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The vision of the institute that “Every student passing out from 

the institute must contribute to the economy of India & whole 

world by becoming a business leader - either by joining to lead a 

company or becoming a successful entrepreneur creating 

employment” entail students undergo character and 

personality building program. As an institute focusing on 

providing quality education, we believe in setting up unique 

training methodologies competency and  which gears towards 

confidence building in the students which in turn increases 

Employability. We believe in building management careers on a 

solid foundation of Practical & Experience based learning rather 

than just Classroom Theories. We follow a very simple yet 

standardized process of training our students where we build 

Logic and Skills. 

BUILDING LOGIC

For building the perfect logic for understanding Business 

Management, we have introduced a unique SCPS training model 

where Faculty and Corporate experts train students with 

application of Management concepts to various Sectors, 

Companies and their respective Products or Services. Case 

Studies are conducted for each concept to understand the 

practical applications of Business Theories. It is of utmost 

importance to build the Business Environment in classroom to 

simulate the practical application of Business Management 

concepts. So, the training process is furthered by experiential 

learning where Corporate Heads from specific domains trains 

students on how to apply the business theories and formulate 

financial models, sales strategies, PMS structures and the like. 

BUILDING SKILLS

Students then get to implement their strategies & models 

developed during training process at various companies 

especially those where processes are not implemented yet, 

during their multiple stints through Live Business Projects & 

Internships. 

Sector understanding enhances student's macro knowledge of 

industry and strategic thinking while understanding micro 

specific details about product/service would make them perfect 

business executor. So, PIBM students have perfect blend of 

forming business strategy and executing them efficiently and 

effectively.

We majorly focus on developing the concentration of mind 

which increases the willpower. Students with this increased 

concentration and will power, grasps the knowledge and facts 

quickly and easily. With the training provided and developed 

skills and concentration, PIBM students achieve their goals. 

Students spend their time with Mentors who are corporate 

heads and senior faculty, discussing about doubts and problems 

they have. In addition to the academic and intellectual input, 

adequate stress is laid in inculcating the traits of leadership and 

team spirit in order to facilitate students to realize their full 

potential. At PIBM, Quality speaks for itself. Every student of 

PIBM stands out in the crowd as they are not only equipped with 

Business Concepts but also the right attitude, competencies, 

aptitude, communication, skills and personality.

Mr. Raman Preet
Chairman, PIBM Group of Institutes

DIRECTORS'
MESSAGE

“
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WHY
BUSINESS
ORIENTATION
PROGRAM?
Every individual has a GOAL and similarly for you, 

your career goal is:

For achieving this goal you have to:

 • Become competent

 • Build Business Knowledge

 • Improve your skills

 • which Adapt to new approach of learning 

  you haven't done in your early education 

  system

In order to achieve this Goal, we have designed 

the Business Orientation Program which is a 

k i c k  s t a r t e r  co u r s e  f o r  yo u r  B u s i n e s s 

Management Learning and overall Personality 

Development. PIBM's Business Orientation 

Program will make you competent in all aspects 

and phases of your life and will help you achieve 

your goal.

How we will make you competent?

 PERSONALITY DEVELOPMENT

It's been famously said, “Healthy body houses 

Healthy Mind Build Body and Mind ” and “

together so World is on your feet”.

So we first start with building healthy body 

through daily:

 • Gym / Aerobics sessions

 • Yoga / Meditation

 • Sports Activities

Your Mantra will be - “ ”EXERCISE DAILY

 SELF MOTIVATION
f

To achieve the highest position or ultimate goal 

in your life, it is very important to have self-

motivating personality. 

Reading self-help books is a great way of not only 

building a self-motivating Personality but also 

improving your Reading Comprehension skills. 

Hence at PIBM, you are required to read the 5 

below mentioned books considered as few of the 

best self-help books written –

 • -  Swami  Personality Development 

  Vivekananda Ji

 •  - Robin   The Monk who sold his Ferrari

  Sharma

 • - Robert KiyosakiRich Dad Poor Dad 

 • - David J. SchwartzMagic of Thinking Big 

· • - Shiv KheraYou Can Win 

 

 SELF CONFIDENCE

Another important factor in becoming competent 

is to grow your self-confidence. We will develop 

your self-confidence by imbibing all the 

important skills in you which are required today 

to achieve success in your career and life. We will 

develop your:

 • Communication Skills

 • Presentation Skills

 • Business Knowledge

 • IT Skills

 • Overall personality

Why the need for Business orientation 

program? 

The answer is simple, because many of you:

 • Are Have unclear goals

 • Are Not clear about what opportunities lie 

  ahead of MBA/PGDM

 • Are Not from Management background

 • Have No training in implementation of 

  theories

 • Have Nil or Negligible exposure to the 

  industry and corporate

Where you will be on Day 1 of First Semester?

 • Objective of learning is clear and aligned 

  with final goal

 • You already know what to expect and 

  absorb from MBA/PGDM

 • Learning the application of each concept 

  becomes effective

Join a company and manage it

Or

Create your own company and 

grow it from scratch
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Create your
own company

Benchmark Level
where you will reach

after Business
Orientation Program  

Goal

Your Level now in
Aptitude, Communication,

Business Knowledge,
Business Process Cycle etc.

Join a
company

PIBM's Unique & Advanced Training methodology

is designed on the basis of

Job Descriptions (JDs)

gathered from

more than 300 companies from various sectors

PIBM’s Communication Training

is inspired from

Science & Art of Communication

explained in

Karma Yoga by Swami Vivekananda Ji

WHY BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM?
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In a highly dynamic and competitive 

corporate world, it is important that you 

h a v e  t h a t  e x t ra  e d g e  t o  s u s t a i n 

competition and rise to the top. PIBM 

believes in bringing about a complete 

transformation in the students so that 

you are ready to take every challenge 

that comes your way. We encourage, 

motivate, support and applaud our 

students so as to tap their full potential 

and sculpt their careers.

 

In the course of the Business Orientation 

Program (BOP), you will be undergoing a

series of learning activities on the subjects 

such as

• Communication Training

• Aptitude Training

• IT Skill - Excel, PPT & Word

• Basics of Marketing, Accounting & 

 Organization Structure (Basics of 

 Marketing, Finance and HR)

• Business Process Cycle

• Business Finance, Human Resource 

 (General Awarness and Current 

 Affairs) 

• Case Study, Report Writing

that would focus on enhancing your 

academic performance and extra-

curricular interests. Strong problem-

solving skills, situation analysing skills, 

team-work, time management, meeting 

deadline and learning about businesses, 

sectors and companies are few take-away 

expected from you post this BOP. 

ABOUT THE BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM 

APTITUDE
TRAINING 

BUSINESS 
PROCESS
CYCLE

IT SKILL:
MS - EXCEL,
POWERPOINT

BASICS OF
MARKETING,

FINANCE &HR 

COMMUNICATION
TRAINING 

                N     O  I    T    C    A    R    E    T    N EI CC OIL N

B O

U MP IC&  TS
T II M

SI E
SV  &L

 A GI ER NT ES RU AD LN  I A   W     A   R   E   N   E   S  S       

BUSINESS
ORIENTATION

PROGRAM 

STUDENT UNDERGOES 
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OBJECTIVE OF THE PROGRAM

This BOP is designed with a single objective in mind, i.e. to prepare students from various streams of 

graduation for a common platform to receive management education. The rigorous and dynamic nature of 

the Business Orientation Program helps the student unlearn all the learning habits of undergraduate 

courses and adapt to professional expectations of MBA/PGDM and  industry.

A student may think, why still there is a need of 60 days of orientation? The answer is simple  –

 Ps Gni Doj M t /n Med Bu AtS  

• Unclear vision and goals 

• Blank about the objective of a  PG Program

• Dont know what to expect from PGDM/MBA

• Not from management background

• Absence of a link between theory

& practical application

• Wrong learning approach

tuS dent goes through
 B

O
P

 a
t P

IB
M

 

• Realization of vision and goal

• Development of right learning approach

• Expected outcomes from course

• Development of application based learning

• Grooming and exposure to corporate

• Student already knows what to expect and 

absorb from various courses and how to deliver

• Objective of each subject is clear and 

aligned with final goal of employability

• Student learns the application of each 

concept effectively

POB fo 1 yaD 
morf  g

ni
nra el  evi t ceff E
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PROGRAM SCHEDULE

The students attending the orientation program will undergo the following training:-

COURSE DESCRIPTION SECTOR PRODUCT HRS FACULTY

Basics Of
Marketing

• Streams In Marketing

• Strategies in Marketing 

 for product and service

 • Segment

 • Target

 • Position

• Implementation of 

 strategies using 

 Marketing Mix

• 4Ps for Product

 7Ps for Service

Consumer
Durables

Hospitality

FMCG

Automobile

Electronic Retail

• Iphone
• Usha Fans

• Taj Hotel
• Starbucks
• McDonalds

• Maggi Noodles
• Coca Cola
• Bournvita
• Lux Soap
• Shampoo
  Pampers

• Maruti Alto

• Flipkart
• Amazon
• Jabong
• Snapdeal
• Myntra

18 Ms.Palak Sharma

Business 

Communication 

& Personality

Development

• Business Grooming

• Self SWOT

• Basic Grammar

• Comprehension Indianism

N/A N/A 138

Ms.Fatemah Abbas

Ms. Mohana

Aptitude

Training
N/A N/A 92

Mr.Ravindra Mangrulkar

Mr.Brij Mishra

Ms.Neelima Khaladkar

• Squares and Cubes with

   Application

• Number System

• Percentage

• Ratios

• Data Interpretation

• Logical Reasoning

Industrial

Visits

Multiple
Mr.Ridhiman

Mukhopadhyay

Cross Functional Learning

• Procurement

• Loading-Unloading

• Warehousing

• Assembly Line

• Packaging

• Marketing

Multiple

BATCH 2017-19

General

Awareness
Multiple

Mr. Bibhas

Mr. David

Mr. Animesh

Mr. Lalit

Mr. Ranjan

 Mr. Shashwat

Cross Functional Learning

• History and Politics

• Geography

•  Economics

• Sports

• Business

• Technological

   Advancement

Multiple
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COURSE DESCRIPTION SECTOR PRODUCT HRS FACULTY

Corporate
Interactions

Multiple

• Interaction with top
   level professionals
• Exposure to the
   corporate universe

Multiple Mr. David Hangsing

Human
Resource

• Importance & Scope of HR

• Misconceptions in HR

   Specialization

• Career Growth in HR

• Organisational Culture

• Organisational Behaviour

Dr. Rajasshrie

Mr. Kingshuk Bhadury

ITES

Manufacturing

Retail

Recruitment

Generalist

Management Trainee

18

MS Office

• Work Sheet & Workbook

• Basic functions

• Formulas

MS Excel

• Basics of slide

• Utility of presentation

• Basic functions

• Smart Art

• Animation

MS Powerpoint

• Basic Functions

• Formatting

• Layout

• Design

MS Word

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

18

9

9

Mr. Gaurav Hans

Mr. David Hangsing

Basics 
of Finance
& Accounting

• Basic Functions

• Formatting

• Layout

• Design

IT

FMCG

Automobile

Infosys

HUL

Force Motors

27 Mr.Prasad Bhat

ET Review
& General
Awareness

18 Dr. Sanjeev Kulkarni

• World
• Country
• Polity
• Economics
• Society
• Current Affairs

N/A N/A

Business
Process
Cycle

15

Mr. Riddhiman

Mr. Bibhas

Mr. Shashwat 

Mr. Chetan

Mr. Poorna

Dr. Pooja

Mr. David Hangsing

Multiple

•  FMCG
•  FMCD
•  Banking
•  Retail
•  E-Commerce

Multiple

BATCH 2017-19

PROGRAM SCHEDULE

Ms. Harshada Sharma
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EVALUATION 

Continuous evaluation would be done to check 

the progress of the students. You will be required 

to give test/presentation on the topics already 

covered for all the subjects in front of the faculty. 

Test for Aptitude and Presentation for Business 

Process Cycle, Basics of Marketing, Accounting 

and Finance and Human resource Management 

on weekly basis

You will be evaluated on - 

�  • Conceptual knowledge

�  • Ability to connect the theory to practical 

  situation

�  • Analytical skills

�  • Communication skills

�  • IT skills etc

and how you can make improvement on your 

weaknesses.Every student’s presentation is video 

recorded so that you can realize the improvement 

required by watching and comparing your video 

with the standard benchmark video which are of 

minimum expected standards. These video 

recordings will also help you to understand the 

p a c e  a t  w h i c h  y o u  i m p r o v e  i n  y o u r 

communication and presentation skill over a 

period of time.

The purpose behind the rigorous evaluation 

process is to increase your communication skills, 

interlinking skill, analytical skills and IT skills. 

This will help in building your knowledge and self 

confidence.
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COURSE DESCRIPTION

Aptitude
2 assignments/week followed by the feedback session 

in that week only and one test fortnightly

Business Communication

Written and Verbal Assessments in the

beginning and at the end of the session

with regular feedback

General Awareness Every week one test / quiz .

HR
7 assignments in whole BOP followed by 

2 PPT and 1 test.

 Finance
7 assignments in whole BOP

followed by 3 test.

Ms Excel 1 assignment in 2 weeks

MS Word 1 assignment in 2 weeks

MS Powerpoint
1 comprehensive project

covering all functionalities

Corporate Interaction
Write Ups to be submitted after

every corporate interaction for evaluation

Business process cycle Every week one presentation on each sector

Marketing 7 assignments in whole BOP, 2PPT and 1 test

EVALUATION 
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SUMMARY OF COURSE PLAN FOR DIFFERENT SUBJECTS

 APTITUDE

The statistics reveal that around 70% of world’s 

recruitment use aptitude test as a part of their 

recruitment procedure. Recruiters will put to use 

several methods to sort out and do away with 

persons from the selection procedure.  Aptitude 

tests are cost-effective and simple ways for 

sorting out candidates to select right individuals 

which is why preparation is very important, as 

saying goes ‘practice makes a man perfect’. 

Business is all about selling a product or service to 

make money. All transactions within a business 

have to be recorded in the company accounts and 

quite often involve very large sums of money. So 

for example, you need to be able to estimate the 

effect of changing numbers in the accounts when 

trying to work out your expected performance for 

next year. Also businesses rely heavily on using 

percentages, in particular anyone who works as a 

sales person will need to be quick at mental 

arithmetic, approximation and in working out 

percentages. The more percentage discount you 

give a customer when you sell the product, the 

less profit your company will make (and quite 

often the less you will be paid!) so it really does 

pay to know your math.

 BUSINESS COMMUNICATION

B u s i n e ss  co m m u n i c a t i o n  d e fi n e s  m o s t 

organizations, resulting in effective marketing 

c a m p a i g n s ,  p r o d u c t i v e  i n t e r p e r s o n a l 

relationships among co-workers and successful 

customer  serv ice  resolut ions.  In  most 

organizations, effective communication offers the 

best opportunity to make an outstanding first 

impression. Using powerful words, images and 

messages, business professionals can craft 

strong internal partnerships while developing 

the foundation of a solid client base. It is an 

important engine of the 21st century even in our 

daily lives, by the fact that we live in a smaller, 

more connected, more globalised world. 

Communication is at the core of this, allowing us 

to explore and learn about other cultures, 

strengthen social ties, create business and 

personal relationships, and facilitate exchange of 

information. Good communication is crucial at all 

levels of our lives, from the very personal, 

everyday interactions we have with family, friends 

and colleagues through to creating effective, 

supportive workplaces, the relationships 

corporations have with their  c l ientele. 

Communication is so fundamental on so many 

levels it is important to study its mechanisms so 

that we better understand its internal workings to 

give us a much broader understanding of the 

world around us, and of how we can influence it.

 BUSINESS FINANCE

Finance plays an involved role in the health of the 

overall economy, which impacts everyone, 

regardless of whether or not they have studied 

finance. Like companies, individuals too are faced 

with investment and financing decisions. Having a 

firm grasp of finance will help individuals make 

those decisions. As the proverbial saying goes- It 

takes money to make money. Businesses have to 

consider their finances for so many purposes, 
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SUMMARY OF COURSE PLAN FOR DIFFERENT SUBJECTS

ranging from survival in bad times to bolstering 

the next success in good ones. Financial health is 

linked with the basic business success of any 

organization which is reflected by the financial 

statements. This course of basics in Business 

Finance is structured as the first step to 

understand the numbers of the business. Also like 

companies, individuals too are faced with 

investment and financing decisions. Having a firm 

grasp of finance will help individuals make those 

decisions

 MARKETING

“Make your marketing so useful that people 

would pay for it.” Products don’t sell themselves. 

Generally, the “build it and they will come” 

philosophy doesn’t work. Good marketing 

educates you to find customers so that you can 

find the right customers for the products they 

want and extract the most value from them. In this 

way, marketing helps facilitate exchanges 

between buyers and sellers for the mutual 

benefit of both parties. Likewise, good social 

marketing provides people with information and 

helps them make healthier decisions for 

themselves and for others. The marketing role in a 

business is such a vital component. It is the 

method by which a service's or a product’s quality 

and usefulness is transmitted to potential 

customers, and is therefore an indispensable to 

the business machine. This makes it important for 

all business students should understand all 

functional areas of the firm, specifically 

marketing. A lot of us are not even aware of the 

vastness of this area; therefore we have Basics of 

Marketing as a subject  where you will not only 

know the areas of application of studying 

marketing but some of the core and important 

concepts as well. 

 HUMAN RESOURCE

“Great vision without great people is irrelevant.” 

People (Human Resource) are viewed by most 

experts as the most important asset of any 

organisation. Managing an organisation’s people 

is often the most challenging and complex task 

required of a manager. “If you fulfill the wishes of 

your employees, the employees will fulfill your 

visions.”  It is also the responsibility, if executed 

well that permits a person to rise to the senior 

level of management or prevents a manager from 

rising to the senior level if done poorly. The 

objective of the course is to teach the basic 

principles- how an organisation generally 

manages its people effectively. During the 

‘Business Orientation Program students will be 

exposed to and will discuss current human 

resource practices and will participate in 

exercises designed to enhance critical skills. 

 BUSINESS PROCESS CYCLE

“In God we trust, everyone else must bring data.” 

Raw data, i.e. unprocessed data, is a collection of 

numbers, characters; it does not make any sense 

on its own. Meaning has to be extracted from it, 

which is in itself a skill. Here at PIBM you are 

taught Business Process Cycle. With focus on the 
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SUMMARY OF COURSE PLAN FOR DIFFERENT SUBJECTS

annual reports published by the companies; it 

will enable you to understand and make sense 

from the jargons and figures used in the 

statements. It is a humble beginning to your 

understanding of business.

 MS OFFICE

  a. MS Word:

 Microsoft Word is an essential tool for any 

individual in today’s digital age. Whether you are a 

working professional, a diligent student or an 

active retiree, proficiency in Microsoft Word is a 

vital skill that is useful for both complex business 

requirements as well as basic day-to-day 

purposes. Not only is Microsoft Word a flexible 

tool that allows you to achieve many of your 

digital document needs, it is also one of the most 

user- friendly applications from the Microsoft 

Office suite.

 b. MS Powerpoint: 

PowerPoint is a computer program that allows 

you to create and show slides to support a 

presentation. You can combine text, graphics 

and multi-media content to create professional 

presentat ions.  PowerPoint  has become 

enormously popular and you are likely to have 

seen it used by your lecturers and fellow students 

or in a presentation outside of the college. 

Learning to present with PowerPoint will increase 

your employability as it is the world’s most 

popular presentational software. Used well, 

PowerPoint can improve the clarity of your 

presentations and help you to illustrate your 

message and engage your audience. 

 c. MS Excel: 

If there’s one big reason why you should be 

learning Excel it’s this:Excel’s used by just about 

everybody and in so many different ways. 

Microsoft Excel might  be an alien to you as table 

manners is to a two-year-old child. But after you 

are taught MS Excel here you will come to know 

that:-

 • Excel makes calculations of complex 

  formulas easy;

 • Excel works great as a basic reporting 

  tool; 

 • Excel is used extensively by just about 

  everyone at work.

Excel must have been taught to you in Excel but 

probably you never were able to hold on to it 

because you never knew why and how it was used. 

This course gives you a platform to learn how is 

excel used and then you will be able to understand 

its utility

 CASE STUDY

If you've ever tried to learn a new concept, you 

probably appreciate that "knowing" is different 

from "doing." When you have an opportunity to 

apply your knowledge, the lesson typically 

becomes much more real. Case studies are a form 

of problem-based learning, where you present a 

situation that needs a resolution. A typical 

business case study is a detailed account, or story, 

of what happened in a particular company, 

industry, or project over a set period of time. Case 

studies are a great way to improve a learning 

experience, because they get the learner 
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involved, and encourage immediate use of newly 

acquired skills. They differ from lectures or 

assigned readings, because they require 

participation and deliberate application of a broad 

range of skills. For example, if you study financial 

analysis through straightforward learning 

methods, you may have to calculate and 

understand a long list of financial ratios (don't 

worry if you don't know what these are). 

Likewise, you may be given a set of financial 

statements to complete a ratio analysis. But until 

you put the exercise into context, you may not 

really know why you're doing the analysis. With a 

case study, however, you might explore whether a 

bank should provide financing to a borrower, or 

whether a company is about to make a good 

acquisition. Suddenly, the act of calculating ratios 

becomes secondary – it's more important to 

understand what the ratios tell you. This is how 

case studies can make the difference between 

SUMMARY OF COURSE PLAN FOR DIFFERENT SUBJECTS

knowing what to do and knowing how, when, and 

why to do it.

 REPORT WRITING

Report provides consolidated, factual and an up-

to-date information about a particular matter or 

subject. Information in the report is well 

organized and can be used for future planning and 

decision making. It acts as an effective means of 

communication within the organization. It 

provides feedback to employees. It is prepared 

for the information and guidance of others 

connected with the matter / problem.  A report 

provides reliable data which can be used in the 

planning and decision making process. It acts as 

a treasure house of reliable information for long 

term planning and decision making. PIBM realizes 

the importance of writing a report and has 

introduced a course on report writing in the 

foundation course itself.
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WHAT IS COMMUNICATION TRAINING AND WHY DO I NEED IT ? 

In today's corporate world, everything has to be  

communicated in a smart and clear manner. And 

without clear communication, no customers can 

be convinced, no deals can be made, no clients 

can be satisfied, no shareholders can be pacified 

and no wealth can be created! Therefore, 

communication training is essential for a 

Management graduate as it has direct impact on 

one's employability factor. Recruitment heads 

and business leaders have very clear idea of an 

MBA/PGDM candidate at the time of hiring –

� •  Must have English language fluency

�  • M u s t  k n ow  h ow  t o  c o m m u n i c a t e 

  effectively

�  • Must know how to listen and interpret, 

  analyze thoroughly and then respond

�  • Must have  and  positive body language

  confidence

Because of the need to have complete command 

o v e r  E n g l i s h  L a n g u a g e  a n d  B u s i n e s s 

Communication, extensive communication 

training is offered to all students at PIBM. You will 

be undergoing the following training modules –

�  • – Pronunciation, Voice and accent training 

  developing neutral accent without Mother 

  Tongue Influence

�  • – What to say, how to say, Interview skills 

  body language tips, etc.

�  •  – Team play, Group discussion skills

  Leadership, body language tips, etc.

�  • – Professional communication techniques 

  Depending upon context, how to speak or 

  write in corporate scenario

�  • Official email, business reports and

  presentation content designing

�  • – Overall communication improvement 

  Confidence building, speaking and writing 

  practice, etc.

Even those who are comfortable with English 

language are inexperienced in professional 

communication and effective expression of 

m a n a g e m e n t  c o n c e p t .  T h e r e f o r e ,  o u r 

communication training is not aimed at teaching 

you English, but making you effective speakers 

for any professional circumstance and situation.

Communication Trainer assessing student’s
Communication Skill 

Student presenting in front of
Communication Trainer & Students
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WHAT IS APTITUDE TRAINING AND WHY IT IS IMPORTANT ? 

Most multi-national companies and market 

leaders today have developed an elaborate 

recruitment process. Every organization wants 

smart employees who can quickly make  

decisions and perform under pressure as well. 

To check this quality during hiring, companies 

now conduct Aptitude test as a screening round 

and select only those who can clear it for further 

rounds of group discussion and interviews.

Ms. Neelima Khaladkar
Aptitude Trainer
10+ yrs. Academics Exp.
Subject - Statistics

Mr. Brijmohan Mishra
Aptitude Skills

That is why, at PIBM, aptitude training and 

practice is offered to all students so that this 

hurdle of aptitude test cannot deny you a good 

career. Aptitude training includes –

1. LOGICAL
REASONING

2. DATA
INTERPRETATION

3. ANALYTICAL SKILLS
4. QUANTITATIVE

TECHNIQUES
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WHY DO I NEED TO MASTER MS EXCEL, POWERPOINT & WORD ?   

MS Excel is a key tool used in today's corporate 

world for handling large data and generating 

meaningful information out of it about the 

business. This means each management 

graduate is expected to be comfortable with 

work ing  on  data  in  Exce l  and  der iv ing 

management reports out of it. Our graduation 

education rarely prepares us for this and 

therefore, PGDM/MBA is the best time to learn 

this skill. Therefore, at PIBM, basics in Excel and 

Advanced Excel training modules are offered to all 

students to enhance their employability. Excel 

training includes –

�  • – how to move between Shortcuts in Excel 

  sheets, format cells, use functions in Excel

�  • – to be used by all  Basic formulae in Excel 

  management graduates in corporate to 

  handle large data

�  • – to be used in Financial formulae in Excel 

  financial modeling, sector and company 

  analysis, costing and budgeting related 

  calculations, time value of money, financial 

  research, etc.

�  • Analysis in Excel with charts, tables and 

  graphs in Marketing, Finance and HR 

  domains

�  • Generating  pivot tables to analyze data

  more effectively

�  • Macros and advanced functions

Success in the business world depends mostly 

on presentation skills. The reasons for this are 

simple. Most businesses run on presentations. Be 

it internal presentations to your management 

about the status of a project or a sales 

presentation to a potential client, failing there 

could end up costing you your job. MS PowerPoint 

skills would help you in making effective 

presentation and hence it is really important to 

learn it. PowerPoint training includes –

�  • in PowerPointShortcuts 

�  • Basic formatting  tools 

�  • Slide Master

�  • Shapes and Figures for representation of 

  data and information

�  • and Slideshows, etc.Animation 

Writing reports will become a routine thing for 

you not in the campus but also in the corporate 

world. You will be required to write reports for 

your project submission to faculty and your boss 

and clients. These reports have to be written in the 

most professional way. Knowledge of MS Word 

would be of immense requirement for effective 

report writing. MS Word training includes –

�  • in WordShortcuts 

�  • Formatting tools

�  • Table of Content

�  • Cover page

�  • Header & Footer

�  • Footnotes & Endnotes

�  • Search & Replace, Spell Check

�  • Charts, Smart Arts & Figures
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WHAT IS SCPS APPROACH / APPLICATION ORIENTED TRAINING?

PIBM’s training methodology is unique and 

designed with an objective to make you 

understand the real life practical application of 

Business theory. 

This concept is never heard or applied in most of 

your undergraduate courses such as BA, BBA, B 

Com., BE, BCA, etc. In a highly specialized 

professional course like PGDM or MBA, this 

approach is necessary so as to prepare candidates 

fit and ready for the industry from Day 1.

The training at PIBM is application based making 

you understand the application of the business 

concepts in the real practical world. One of the 

unique things about the teaching methodology 

followed in PIBM is the SCPS approach of 

teaching. SCPS stands for Sector / Company / 

Product / Service aspect of learning any 

Management concept. 

Management education is a critical phase in a 

student's life because in addition to being a mix of 

professional and vocational course, it is also 

meant to . train you as per industry requirement

With this goal, we have designed pedagogy with 

specific training on different sectors and products 

like –

 •  (Products like Soap, Biscuit, Pen) FMCG

 • (Products like TV, AC, Consumer Durables 

  Mobile, Laptops)

 •  (Two wheeler, four wheeler, Automobile

  heavy and commercial vehicles)

 •  (Gadget retail like Tata Croma, Next; Retail

  Clothing retail like Pantaloons, Shoppers 

  Stop and FMCG retail like More, Big Bazaar, 

  Reliance Fresh)

 •  (Citi Bank, Financial Services and Banking

  Axis Bank, ICICI Group, India Infoline, 

  Moneyhouse)

 •  (Paints like Asian Paint, Infrastructure

  Berger Paint, Dulux Paint, Nerolac; Cement 

  like JK Cement, ACC cement, Birla Cement; 

  Steel like Tata Steel, Essar Steel; L&T infra)

 •  (99Acres.com, Just IT Enabled Services

  Dial, IndiaMart)

 • And many more…

With the SCPS methodology, any topic which is 

taught is explained with real world application in 

various sectors, on different products or services 

of several companies which also helps clarify that 

management strategies vary in different 

sectors for different products or services. 

For instance, 4Ps or 'Product, Price, Promotion 

and Place' is a very commonly known marketing 

concept in Marketing. However, just knowing the 

concept is not sufficient and basic expectation 

from a PGDM/MBA pass-out is to be able to 

apply this concept in any sector. By SCPS concept 

the 4Ps concept can be easily explained as shown 

in diagrams.
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PRODUCT

PRICE

PROMOTION

PLACE

Ball point pen, felt 
tip, blue ink, plastic 

body, white and blue.

6.50 Rs. per unit,
5 Pens for Rs. 30;

competitive pricing as 
per Faber Castle, linc 

pen, Rotomac, etc

Distributed via
Big Bazaar, Small and 

Large stationary 
shops,distributors,
transported by road

Brand Reynolds, brand
ambassador Sachin 
Tendulkar, TV and
newspaper ads

Unleaded petrol, high octane 
and normal variant of product 

available

Distributed via 
underground oil pipelines 

by third party service 
provider to franchisee

Pricing varies as per 
government and industry 

standards for normal 
petrol, high octane HP 

petrol priced Rs.10  more 
than normal

Free car cleaning, air 
filling, credit card cash 

back, gift voucher on petrol 
of Rs.1000 and above; TV 

and newspaper ads

Family car, seating for 5, 
aluminium body, available 
in several colors; petrol, 
diesel and CNG engine; 
accessories available

Transported via
heavy vehicles from

Factory to Distributor or
Franchisee warehouse

Priced at Rs. 4.2
Lac for Petrol variant
and 4.9 Lac for Diesel
variant, Financing and
EMI options available

 Brand ambassador   
 Shahrukh Khan, TV 

 and newspaper ads, 
national and local 

distributor level schemes 
and promotions

4Ps FOR A PEN
(FMCG)

4Ps FOR HP
PETROLEUM (OIL)

4Ps OF HYUNDAI I10
(AUTOMOBILE)

4Ps

WHAT IS SCPS APPROACH / APPLICATION ORIENTED TRAINING?
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As of now, in most of the business schools, the 

pattern is to teach the students with the 

theoretical concepts of subjects. The focus is on 

teaching them from 'examination point of view' 

but we want our students i.e. you to learn, grasp 

and understand from 'real-life applications point 

of view make you understand the '. Our aim is to 

application part of the topics of various fields 

such as Finance, Marketing, Operations and HR. 

Through our standardized pattern of SCPS 

training, we will check whether you are gaining 

only theoretical concepts or if you are also able to 

apply it in real-corporate-like-situations.

How we do it?

 • At first, pre-requisites for every session will 

  be shared with you at least a day before 

  conducting the classes

 • Texts and References for every session will 

  be shared with you on the day of 

  conducting classes

 • While explaining any concept with the help 

  of an example, our faculty member will give 

  you a brief about the sector in which the 

  company is functioning, a brief about the 

  company and the products/services 

  which are being taken as an example

 • During sessions, our faculty member will 

  pick 2-4 sectors such as FMCG, consumer  

  durables, white goods/luxury items, 

  pharma industries, real estate etc. and 

  explain it through the SCPS concept as 

  described in the diagram

 • Faculty will ask practical questions specific 

  to these industries so that you can have a 

  much deeper understanding of the subject 

  (market research, in this case) e.g. How to 

  do market research for Lux? Which set of 

  consumers are more interested in buying 

  Maruti than a Tata Motors 4-wheeler? 

  How much money a family spends on 

  medicines per month? How do we know if 

  people of Pune are more interested in 

  eating in an open fast food outlet or in an 

  AC restaurant?

 • Before staring any new topic, faculty will 

  inform you, at least a week before the topic, 

  about pre-requisite to understand that 

  particular topic e.g. If the next topic is on 

  competitor analysis (say, Parle's Hippo), 

  you should have the understanding of 

  industry (snacks) and the products of 

  another firm (Lays, Bingo) before the 

  Faculty member goes ahead with the topic

 • Faculty will give you assignments which 

  cover application of theory concepts in 

  reality in order to check whether the   

  learning objectives are achieved. This will 

  help in knowing the level of understanding 

  among you and your applying ability

 • There will be real cases which will be   

  discussed after completion of a set of 

  concepts

WHAT IS SCPS APPROACH / APPLICATION ORIENTED TRAINING?
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Ms. Palak Sharma
Founder & Promoter - ContentPal

Ms. Sonal Parmar

8+ yrs. Corp. Exp.- US VPharma

10+ yrs. Teaching Exp

BE, MBA - Marketing 

Subject - Marketing

3 yrs. Corporate Exp.
8 yrs. Academics Exp.

Subject - Marketing

Prof. Sunil Kumar Prof. Madhup Gandhi
Regional Director - Shree Shipping

25 yrs. Academics Exp.

B.E, MBA - Symbiosis

Subject - Materials &

Logistics Management

38 yrs. Corporate Exp.
10 yrs. Academics Exp.

Subject - Marketing 

                  Management

Fatema Abbas 
HOD - Communication 

Mrs. Rakhi Shah

10 yrs. Corp. Experience
- CLSA India

Domain Trainer 

Subject - Cost and Managerial

Accounting

15+years of result driven training
and thus developing professionals

Prof. Sanjeev Kulkarni
Dy. Manager - Aquapharm Chemicals

Prof. A. P. Rao
Former Director - Bharati Vidyapeeth

30 yrs. Academics Exp.

M.A, L.L.B, PhD, MIMA

Subject - Business Statistics

20 yrs. Corporate Exp.
10 yrs. Academics Exp.

Subject - Strategic Marketing, 

Organization Behaviour

DR. RAJASSHRIE PILLAI 
HOD - HUMAN RESOURCE

Mr. Prasad Bhat
PGDM - Finance, ICWA, CS (Inter)

15+ yrs. Academics exp.

Subject - Finance

14 years of experience Industry, 
Research, Academics & Administration

Subject - Employee 
Engagement, Performance
Management, Learning &
Development & Consumer 
Behaviour.

Mr. Bharat Dalal
Ex VP Finance - Religare Securities Ltd.

Mr. Lalit Kumar Sharma

18 years of experience in
academia and industry

30+ yrs. Corporate Exp.

Subject - Equity Research &

Derivatives, Securities and

Portfolio Management

FACULTY - MEET YOUR TRAINERS

To see profiles of all Faculty members, refer to PIBM Prospectus or visit www.pibm.in

At PIBM you will gain exposure to some of the world's leading business thinkers. The 100+ faculty 
members, all well-known and highly respected in their respective academic fraternities, are really what 
distinguish PIBM from the other business schools. The faculty includes professors drawn from all 
management disciplines with rich teaching and industrial experience learn . This enables students to 
both business theory and application giving PIBM an edge over other institutes. 

Subject - personality 
development & business
communication, talent
management 

Subject - Entrepreneurship,
Sales and Distribution, Rural 
Marketing, Permission 
Marketing, IPR.

16 Management books
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BUSINESS PROCESS CYCLE - UNDERSTANDING BUSINESS FROM THE CORE

Business Process Cycle is the basis and foundation of all management learning. If you look at it from 

employability point of view, for running an organization successfully, a management graduate is required 

to know all the important aspects of Business. 

At PIBM this Business Aspects training will be given to you by our faculties and heads of companies and 

will be followed by Industry visits to complement the learning.

Analyzing Industry segments 

and categories 02

Understanding Industry 

value chain03

 Cost heads involved in the 

entire business process
04

 All processes involved in the 
business and how does the 
money flow in and out

05

Making and understanding 

Industry reports01
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MENTORSHIP PROGRAM - SHOWING YOU THE WAY AHEAD

Mr. Riddhiman Mukhopadhyay

MBA - Marketing
10+ yrs. Corporate Exp. - Pharma Sector  |  10+ yrs. 

Academics Exp.- ICFAI Univ.
Subject - Marketing 

Mr. David Hangsing

PGDM - IIM Bangalore, B.Tech - NIT Silchar
10+ yrs. Total Exp. in Marketing Domain

Subject - Marketing Management & Digital 
Marketing 

MR. SHASHWAT SIDDHANT
Associate Director - PIBM
PGDM - IIM Ahmedabad

Master's in Economics & B.Tech - BITS Pilani
Ex. AVP - Investment Banking - Ashika Capital

Subject - Investment Banking, Financial Analysis, 
Business Analytics & Business Statistics

Student Faculty Mentorship Program aims to help 
you in preparing to tackle successfully the 
challenge that you will be facing in this 2 year 
course by leveraging the diverse experience of the 
faculty and mentors. Each one of you will be 
assigned a mentor.

Who are Mentors?

 • Persons having rich experience in 
  education industry as well  as the 
  corporate 
 • Your guide, supporter, teacher and 
  advisor
 • First person to contact in Institute for any 
  issues

 • Bridge between your Parents and you

How they will help you?

 • Academics - Assisting you with extra 
  sessions, doubt clarifications etc.
 • with feedback Personal Counselling 
  related to your performance
 • Projects & Internships guidance
 •  - Resume, PI & GdsPlacement preparation
 • Your friend who can counsel you for your 
  personal problems
The guidance that you receive from your mentor 
will help you to make the best use of the 
opportunities which will come in your way.

MR. G PRAVIN KUMARB.Com & MBA

15+ yrs. Total Exp. in Marketing Domain
Subj. - Sales Management

Dr. Rajasshrie Pillai
Ph.D & MBA

15+ yrs. Total Exp. in Human Resource Management
Subj. - HRM, OB, PMS, T&D & Talent Management

MR. ANIMESH KUMAR

B.Sc. (Hons.) & MBA
12+ yrs. Total Exp. in Marketing Domain

Subj. - Retail Marketing

MR. ADESH DOIFODE

MBA - Finance - University of Wales
10 yrs. Corp. Experience - Jaypee Capital, BP Wealth Management, 

Networth Stock Broking, Peerless Securities, Ventura Securities
Subject - Equity Research, Fundamental Research, Financial 

Modeling
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Mr.  Pranav Nagpurkar

Deputy Director - Academics
Pune Institute of Business Management 

MR. POORNA CHANDRA PRASAD ERRY
B.Sc, MEC & MBA

12+ yrs. Total Exp. in Marketing Domain
Subj. - Market Research & Product 

Management

MR. ANAND Y BHATT

MBA & M.Phil

9+ yrs. Total Exp.  
Subject - Business Statistics & Decision Scien

MS. SONAL PARMAR
BE, MBA (Marketing) - JBIMS

8+ yrs. Corp. Exp. - Mudra Communications
12+ yrs. Academics Exp.

Subject - Marketing Management, Integrated Marketing 
Communications

MS. POORNIMA SEHRAWAT

MBA- HR
2+ yrs. Corp. Exp. - Mudra Communications

5+ yrs. Academics Exp.
Subject - Trains on - H R Management



CORPORATE INTERACTION - LEARNING BUSINESS FROM THE PROFESSIONALS

Corporate Interaction in PIBM helps you to build 

practical knowledge where you will be trained by 

Corporate Heads from various companies. These 

corporate heads are CEOs, CFOs, Directors, 

Presidents, and other top management leaders 

w i t h  m o r e  t h e  2 0  y e a r s  o f  B u s i n e s s 

Management experience. 

How you will be trained by Corporate Heads?

 ·  Industry and sector specific training

  based on today's business world including 

  real life practical business situations

 ·  on various domain Domain based training

  with practical business applications

 ·  Mock Interviews and Group Discussions

  to prepare you for final placements as well 

  as corporate career 

Thus, obtained practical know how will enhance 

your capability to interrelate theory learnt with 

the business related activities carried out in 

various sectors and companies operating within 

the sector thereby making you competent from 

day one of employment.

Learn Business Management from people
who have experience in implementing
Business

Ms. Vandana Tope
Sr. Business Analyst - Insurance Sector

Zensar Technology

Mr. Pratap Tapare 
Sr. Area Sales Manager

ACC Limited

Mr. Nilakantan Govindan
VP HR 

Reliance Industries Ltd.

Mr. Manish Rohtagi
International Business Head  

Mahindra 2-Wheelers

Mr. Sunil Singh
AVP Channel & Business Development   

Piaggio Vehicles

Mr. Arijit Dutta
Tata Green Batteries

CEO

Mr. Zulfi Ali Bhutto
National Head - Sales

Reliance Communication

Mr. Sanjay Shrivastava
VP - Sales 
Micromax

Mr. Vikrant Kadam
Field Director 

IMRB Intemational

Mr. Diniar Patel
Managing Editor (Innovations) cum

Editor (Supplements) 
Times of India

Mr. Jitesh Sethi 
CEO

Women Talent Pool

Mr. Kiran Kurwade
Consultant L& D

Videocon

Mr. Abhay Pathak
Area Sales Head - ROMG

Reckitt Benckiser (India) Ltd.

Ms. Sheetal Parihar
ASM, Retail Operation 

Tata Croma

Mr. MVS Murthy
CPO

Future Retail Ltd.

Mr. Mahesh Deshmukh
Sr. Business Analyst - Banking Sector

Zensar Technology

Mr. Chandru Badrinarayan
Executive Director

Morgan Stanley

Mr. Prem Kr. Apte
Head Management Trainee Program

& Technical Training
Zensar Technologies LimitedCORPORATE PANEL - MARKETING
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Mr. Randeep Singh 
Head HR

Serco Global

CORPORATE INTERACTION - LEARNING BUSINESS FROM THE PROFESSIONALS

To see profiles of all the Corporate Panelists, refer to PIBM Prospectus or visit www.corporate.pibm.in

Mr. T S Narayan
Sr. VP Treasury 

Mizuho Bank Ltd.

Mr. Dinesh Yeole
Research Operations Manager 

Reval Analytical Services Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Rajat Grover
Group Executive Vice President

YES Bank 

Mr. Pawan Panjwani
MD Technology

JP Morgan Chase & Co.

Mr. Dhaval Vakharia
VP Finance

Avendus Capital

Mr. Jitendra Bane
Global Head – Banking & Finance Practice

Zensar Technology

Mr. Satish Joshi
Global Practice & Delivery Head-Insurance

Zensar Technology

Mr. Manish Desai
CFO Product Business

Voltas

Mr. Praveen Sahay
Senior Research Analyst

BNK Securities India Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Atin Shah
MD Wealth Management

Deutche Bank

Mr. Ranjan Mohapatra
CFO

Nilons Enterprises

Mr. Vikas Bhagwat
Cluster Head

Axis Bank

Mr. Suraj Narain
Head - Staffing and Resourcing

E - Clerx Services Ltd.

Mr. Shashank Jagirdhar
Director HR
DHL Pvt. Ltd

Mr. Manish Singh
Head HR and Administration

Haier Appliances

Mr. Mahendra Patil
General Manager HR

Whirlpool

Mr. Aditya Rahul 
Head - Talent Acquisition (BPM)

Allstate Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Vishal Bhargava
Head HR & Administration

Repro India

Mr. Parijat Pushp
Deputy GM HR

Tata Housing Development Co Ltd.

Mr. Pradeep Bandopadhyay
Head HR

Berger Paints

Mr. Satyajit Samant
GM HR

Bisleri India

Mr. Arun Pathak
Sr. VP HR
Amdocs

Mr. Babar Mian
Head HR & Administration
PAMAC Finserve Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Shridhar Gogte
Director Finance

Franke Faber India Ltd.

Mr. Neeraj Madhekar
Group VP Commercial Banking 

YES Bank

Mr. K.S. Susinder
GM Finance

BGR Energy System

Mr. Piyush Nagda
DGM & Head Channel Franchisee

Axis Securities Ltd. 

CORPORATE PANEL - HUMAN RESOURCE

CORPORATE PANEL - FINANCE
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INDUSTRY VISITS - LEARNING BEGINS WITH SEEING & EXPERIENCING

Every week (Thursday or Friday) visit  you will 

manufacturing units of different sectors to 

understand the production mechanisms and 

processes of various sectors, companies and 

products. So in a month you will be visiting four 

different industries and understand their 

operations. The main purpose is to expose you to 

the practical situations and events in companies 

thereby increasing your interlinking skills and 

sector understanding

HOW IT WILL HELP YOU?

 • You will understand how a product or 

  service is created and how is business 

  linked to it

 • Value is created in business by selling 

  either a product or a service. So you as a 

  management graduate is expected to:

   • Either sell or market a product/service 

    (Marketing Manager)

   • Handle financial  aspects of  the 

    product/service (Financial Manager)

   • Develop an organization environment 

    and structure for the employees to 

    del iver products/services to the 

    customer effectively (HR Manager)

  In all these cases, a manager is expected to 

  know every detail about the product or 

  service to better understand and manage 

  the business. When you learn how to 

  manufacture a product or design a service 

  in its depth, then marketing it, financing it 

  and managing human resource for it 

  comes very naturally as the following step.

 • Product/Service design will instil the 

  capability of becoming an entrepreneur in 

  you, paving the way for a strong corporate  

  career or successful creator of a business

• Industry visits are conducted   to   experience the  
 process at first hand
• K n o w l e d g e  a b o u t  b a s i c  m a n u f a c t u r i n g        
 operations  management
• Interaction with Factory  managers and labors  to
    understand the process

M A N U F A C T U R I N G

• B a s i c  u n d e r s t a n d i n g  o f  L o g i s t i c s  a n d  
 Distribution process in various sectors
• Informat ion  about  var ious  d istr ibut ion 
 channels present in different sectors
• Trained into Channel Design, Channel Mix 
 and Channel Management

D I S T R I B U T I O N

• Insight into various types of retail outlets for 
 different sectors
• Understanding of basic retail operations    
 processes
• Training into retail sales techniques and customer 
 service

R E T A I L

25   BOP Instruction Manual



You will be sent to industries, corporate offices, 

malls, NGOs, and 5 star hotels for public 

interaction and you will be meeting group of 

doctors, architects, lawyers and engineers. 

Why is it important?

As a Business Owner or Manager you will be 

serving these people with your products or 

services, so it is important to understand their 

trade as well as their thought process

How it will help you?

 • Learn different aspects of various 

  businesses through interaction

 • Have better understanding of activities 

  happening around you

 • Understand ing  the  impor tance  o f 

  Customer Relationship Management

 • Enhance your communication skill and 

  build your confidence

PUBLIC INTERACTION - UNDERSTANDING WORLD THROUGH EXCHANGE OF IDEAS
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ECONOMIC TIMES & GENERAL AWARENESS 

A management student is tested at various stages 

during any placement process for  their 

understanding of the economy and general 

awareness. When you will participate in Group 

Discussions or interact with corporate guests 

every weekend, your knowledge of Business and 

Economy can give you an extra edge in the 

competition for a great placement. Similarly, at 

the time of your Winter Internship, Summer 

Internship and Final  Placements,  Group 

Discussion topics and straight questions for 

Personal Interview can be lifted from Economic 

Times itself. At that point, being well read and 

well informed can decide whether you will be 

selected or rejected by your dream company. 

While how you perform throughout the course 

and even in your professional life will not depend 

on your reading Economic Times, staying updated 

with current affairs in business world and using it 

to devise business related strategies can make 

you a superior manager than most others. 

Mr. Vikrant Kadam - Field Director -  IMRB 
interacting with the students on “How to prepare and analyze a Case Study”
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ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY 

The next step of grooming students involves 

imparting right values such as improving 

concentration and will-power of the students 

because once such values are ingrained in the 

student, success is guaranteed. This is achieved 

by various activities such as yoga, meditation, 

gym, cardio exercise and aerobics which are 

practiced early in the morning. These values 

constitute a substantial part of the education 

process. This ensures the intrinsic talent as well as 

the holistic personality development of the 

students. 

Engagement Activity is a platform wherein 

students can actively develop their personality by 

practicing instrumental and vocal music, 

different dance forms and sports like football, 

cricket, volleyball, table tennis, badminton, etc. 

in the evening. Even though you can't see its 

direct impact on your professional career, having 

interests and hobbies can help you leave a very 

positive impact on the HR manager who will be 

taking your interview for internship or final 

placement. A constructive hobby also fills you 

with positive energy making it easy for you to 

focus on your management training later on. And 

not to mention, it can be a great stress buster for 

everyone! 
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EXPECTATION FROM THE STUDENTS 

PGDM and MBA is a professional training that 

p re p a re s  e v e r y  s t u d e n t  f o r  c o r p o ra t e 

expectations in long run. Discipline focus from 

foundation course itself is there to install the 

following traits in management graduates –

 • for your own benefit so 100% attendance 

  that you get the most out of the BOP

�  • Completing work on time and delivering it  

  within deadline

�  • Working on all projects and assignments 

  with quality focus

�  •  which will Timely reporting to campus

  instill punctuality in students for reporting 

  to their respective companies as well

�  •  to Grooming and dress code compliance

  develop habit for long term formal wearing

The personal appearance of each student reflects 

on the entire institute, therefore all students 

should maintain standards of good grooming and 

cleanliness, wearing their uniforms with pride in 

their appearance, and in an appropriate, 

professional manner that reflects positively on 

PIBM.

DRESS CODE

The uniform for both boys and girls is as follows:

�  • White shirt

�  • Navy blue trousers

�  • Navy blue tie (boys)

�  • Black leather shoes

The uniform should be worn and the fit should be 

in such a way that a professional appearance is 

maintained. Uniforms should be kept neat, clean 

and pressed or wrinkle free. Faded, wrinkled, torn, 

spotted, stained or mismatched parts of any 

uniform will not be permitted. Worn or ill - fitting 

uniforms must be replaced. Shirt-tails will be kept 

tucked in at all times when the student is in 

uniform. No item of the uniform will be worn at 

any time except as part of a complete uniform.

On Wednesday, the students are allowed to 

wear corporate formals.

For Boys –

�  • Plain shirts in sober colors like cream, 

  white, blue, and gray

�  • The trousers need to be coordinated with 

  the shirts. A tie can also be worn

�  • Shoes should be formal. 

For Girls –

�  • Salwar Kurtas with a duppatta

�  • Formal shirts and trousers

�  • No slippers to be worn

HITENDRA RATHORE
Batch 2015 - 17

RUPIKA SINHA
Batch 2015 - 17
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GROOMING 

FOR BOYS
 HAIR

�  • Hair should be combed back, short, and 

  well-trimmed and should not cover the 

  forehead. It should not be grown below the 

  nape of the neck.

�  • Natural color of hair to be maintained and 

  not be excessively gelled or frizzy.

�  • Moustache if worn be well trimmed and not 

  cover the upper lip.

�  • Should be clean shaven. Beard permitted 

  for religious reasons only. Beard should be 

  well trimmed.

 NAILS

�  • Hand and toe nails to be clean and well-

  trimmed. No color is permitted.

 JEWELRY

�  • Jewelry must be limited to a minimum

�  • One ring on each hand

�  • Bracelets are not al lowed unless for  

  religious reasons

�  • Metal watches of reasonable size with  

  leather or metal strap to be worn

�  • Ear rings are not permitted

 BREATH

�  • Breath must be fresh (no smell of foodstuff or   

  cigarette smoke)

 BODY ODOUR

�  • Ensure that deodorants and/or anti-

  perspirants are used daily to ensure that no 

  body odour is present

 FOOTWEAR

�  • Black/Navy blue socks to be worn. Socks to 

  be changed daily so that it doesn't smell

�  • White socks not to be worn on black 

  leather shoes

� •  Black leather shoes with laces to be worn

FOR GIRLS 
 HAIR

�  • Hair should be combed back, well-trimmed 

  and should not cover the forehead

�  • Hair should be tied into a bun

�  • Hair length if just up to the nape of the neck   

  could be tied into a pony tail

�  • Natural color of hair to be maintained and  

  not be excessively gelled or frizzy

 FACE 

�  • A light make up of foundation, eye liner be 

  worn. Rouge as per skin tone may be worn

�  • A neutral or medium shade lipstick should 

  be worn

�  • Heavy or brightly colored make up to be 

  avoided
 

 NAILS 

�  • Hands and toe nails to be clean and well-

  trimmed. If nails are long they should be 

  shaped

� • Nail polish of neutral or light shades is 

  permitted

 JEWELRY 

� • Jewelry must be limited to a minimum. No 

  large or hanging or noisy jewelry to be worn

�  • One ring on each hand

�  • One simple bracelet or bangle can be worn

�  • Metal watches of reasonable size with 

  leather or metal strap to be worn

 BODY ODOUR

�  • Ensure that deodorants and/or anti-

  perspirants are used daily to ensure that no 

  body odour is present

 BREATH 

� • Breath must be fresh (no smell of foodstuff or

  cigarette smoke)

 BODY ODOUR

 • Ensure that deodorants and/or anti-

  perspirants are used daily to ensure that no 

  body odour is present 

 FOOTWEAR 

 • Black/navy blue socks should be worn with 

  black leather shoes 

�  • Black shoes with a small heel to be worn. 

 • Pencil or high heels are not permitted 
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FAQs FOR BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM

Communication training is essential for a 

Management graduate as it has direct impact on 

one's employability

factor. Recruitment heads and business leaders 

have very clear idea of an MBA/PGDM candidate 

at the time of hiring :

 • Must have English language fluency

 • Must know how to communicate

  effectively

 • Must know how to listen and interpret, 

  analyze thoroughly and then respond

 • Must have positive body language and 

  confidence

At the foundation of all this is the basic need to 

have complete command over English Language 

and Business Communication. 

That is why, at PIBM, extensive communication 

training is offered to all students. Communication 

training includes :

 • Voice and accent training –

  Pronunciation, developing neutral accent 

  without Mother Tongue Influence

 • What to say, how to say, Interview skills – 

  body language tips,  etc.

 •  What to Group discussion skills –

  sayhoto say, body language tips,  etc.

 • Professional communication techniques 

  – Depending upon context, how to speak 

  or write in corporate scenario

 • Official email, business reports and 

  presentation content designing

 •  Overall communication improvement –

  Confidence building, speaking and 

  writing practice, etc.

Even those who are comfortable with English 

language are inexperienced in professional 

communication and effective expression of 

m a n a g e m e n t  c o n c e p t .  Th e re f o re ,  o u r 

What is Communication Training & why  do I need it?

31   BOP Instruction Manual



communication training is not aimed at teaching you English, but making you effective speakers for any 

professional circumstance and situation

FAQs FOR BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM
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At PIBM, aptitude training and practice is offered 

to all students so that this hurdle of aptitude test 

cannot deny you a good career. Aptitude training 

includes  –

 • Logic reasoning

 • Data interpretation

 • Data analysis

 • Analytical skills

 • Basic quantitative techniques

 • Mathematical skills to improve your 

  overall analysis and decision making skill

What is Aptitude Training and why it is important?

FAQs FOR BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM
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MS Office is a key tool used in today’s corporate 

world for handling large data and generating 

meaningful information out of it, preparing and 

presenting reports and creating MIS about the 

business. This means each management graduate 

is expected to be comfortable with working on MS 

Office and deriving management reports out of it. 

Our graduation education rarely prepares us for 

this and therefore, PGDM/MBA is the best time to 

learn this skill. Therefore, at PIBM, training 

modules at basic and advanced levels are offered 

to all students to enhance their employability.

What is the purpose of industrial 
visits?

Value is created in business by selling either a 

product or a service. A management graduate is 

e x p e c t e d  t o  e i t h e r  s e l l  o r  m a r k e t  a 

product/service (Marketing Manager) or handle 

financial aspects of the product/service 

(Financial Manager) or develop an organization 

environment and structure for the employees to 

deliver products/services to the customer 

effectively (HR Manager). In all these cases, a 

manager is expected to know every detail about 

the product or service to better understand and 

manage the business. When a student learns how 

to manufacture a product or design a service in its 

depth, then marketing it, financing it and 

managing human resource for it comes very 

naturally as the following step. This is a unique 

training concept of PIBM and enhances your 

e m p l oya b i l i ty  m a n i fo l d .  N o t  o n l y  t h a t ; 

product/service design also instills the capability 

of becoming an entrepreneur in you paving the 

way for a

strong corporate career or successful creator of a 

business.

Why do I need to know MS Office 
for acquiring management 
education?

Aster understanding the basic design and 

manufacturing process, you have 

to manage sales, finance, or 

human resource functions

pertaining to the product

in your job

SALES

HUMAN RESOURCE FINANCE

FAQs FOR BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM
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The concept of 9 to 6 job is extinct in today's 

c o m p e t i t i v e  a n d  p r o f e s s i o n a l  w o r l d . 

Organizations are willing to offer state of the art 

facilities, perks and privileges for value adding 

employees who don't work with time restrictions 

but are result oriented. A management graduate 

is expected to deliver results irrespective of work 

timings. With more and more organizations 

working on monthly, quarterly and annual 

reviews, managers have to devote all the hours 

required to complete their assigned tasks and 

achieve their targets. That is why PIBM trains its 

students in a manner that they get accustomed to 

working long hours without getting tired and 

deliver results every single  time.

Why do I have to exercise every
morning when it has no impact on
my employability?

PIBM was established and has grown with a 

fundamental concept – “In healthy body resides 

an active mind, and active mind has the potential 

to achieve greatness”. The management program 

at PIBM is designed to help you achieve your 

highest potential and then expand your potential 

even further. This can’t be  achieved  if  you  have  a  

weak  physical  constitution.  Thus,  physical  

exercise  along  with     personality

development is a dedicated program at PIBM. 

With regular exercise your stamina to work and 

deliver increases, making you an efficient 

employee for any organization.
Why do I have to learn and work in
the campus for long hours when I
only want a 9 to 6 job?

Why do I have to eat only healthy
food at campus?

We are what we eat and if we have to strive for a 

brighter, more successful future, healthy diet must 

be integrated into our routine. At PIBM, we ensure 

that the food provided to every student is rich in 

protein, vitamins and minerals; satisfies the daily 

requirement of carbohydrates and is low in fat. 

While incorporating all the essential ingredients 

into your diet, we ensure that quality and hygiene 

is maintained at all times.

Hence  every  student  gets  a  balanced  diet,  

essential  to  preserve  body  immunity  and  

increase  daily productivity.

+

ACTIVE & STRONG
MIND

FAQs FOR BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM
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PGDM and MBA is a professional training that 

prepares every student for corporate expectations 

in long run. there is a deliberate focus on discipline 

from Business Orientation Program itself so as to 

install the following traits in management 

graduates –

 • Completing work on time and delivering it 

  within deadline

 • Simultaneously Working on all projects 

  and assignments with focus

 • Timely reporting to campus which will 

  instill punctuality in students for reporting 

  to their respective companies as well

 • Grooming and dress code compliance to 

  develop professional persona.

Why is DISCIPLINE of such high
importance at PIBM?

What is SCPS approach or
Application oriented training? I 
have never heard of it in my
Graduation!

Full form of SCPS is Sector/ Company/ Product/ 

Service aspect of learning any Management 

concept. SCPS approach or Application oriented 

training is a unique training methodology of PIBM. 

Management education is a critical phase in a 

student’s life because in addition to being a mix of 

professional and vocational course, it is also 

meant to train students as per industry 

requirement. With this goal, we at PIBM, have 

designed a PGDM course with specific training on 

different sectors and products like  –

 • FMCG (Products like Soap, Cream, 

  Biscuit, Maggi, Pen, etc.)

 • Consumer Durables (Products like 

  Refrigerator, TV, AC, Mobile, Washing 

  Machine, Laptops)

 • Automobile (Two wheeler, three wheeler, 

  four wheeler, heavy and commercial 

  vehicles)

 • Retail (Gadget retail like Tata Croma, 

  Next; Clothing retail like Pantaloons, 

  Shoppers Stop and FMCG retail like More, 

  Big Bazaar, Reliance Fresh)

 • Financial Services and Banking (Citi Bank, 

  Axis Bank, ICICI Group, India Infoline, 

  Moneyhouse)

 • Infrastructure (Paints like Asian Paint, 

  Berger Paint, Dulux Paint, Nerolac; 

  Cement like JK Cement, ACC cement, 

  Birla Cement; Steel like Tata Steel, Essar 

  Steel; L&T infra)

PUNCTUALITY

DRESS ETIQUETTE

FAQs FOR BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM
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 • IT Enabled Services (99 Acres.com, Just 

  dial, Indiamart)

With the SCPS methodology, any topic which is 

taught is explained with real world application in 

various sectors, on different products or services 

of several companies. This helps the student 

visualize management concepts and understand 

them better.  This also helps clarify that 

management strategies vary in different sectors 

for different products. In most undergraduate 

courses such as BA, BBA, B Com., BE, BCA, etc. this 

sector specific approach is missing because the 

gap between education and corporate world is 

huge. In a highly specialized professional course 

like PGDM or MBA, this approach is necessary so 

as to prepare candidates fit and ready for the 

industry from Day  1!

Business Process Cycle is the basis and foundation of all management learning. If you look at it from 

employability point of view, for running an organization successfully, a management graduate is required to 

know all of the following –

What is Business Process Cycle and why do I need to know about complete
business when I want to select a specialization eventually?

Who all are the employees of the 

organization and how much business 

does they generate

How does an organization manage 

marketing and promotion cost

What is the cost of selling and 

distribution

W h a t  i s  t h e  co s t  o f  c u s t o m e r 

relationship management

How does an organization manage 

marketing and promotion cost

Who all are the customers for the 

organization and how much business 

does they provide

Which all processes are there in a 

business and how does the money 

flow in and out of each process

What are the different costs involved 

in manufacturing the product or 

service?

FAQs FOR BUSINESS ORIENTATION PROGRAM
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OTHER FAQs

. What's the distance to the nearest hospital ?

 In case of first aid or severe emergencies college 

will provide transport facility to hospital also to & 

fro transport facility to hostel. Closest is Unique 

Hospital, Asian Hospital or Shatayu Hospital 

which is on Paud Road. They are within 4-7km 

radius of the institute. However if you are looking 

for a renowned chain hospital, the nearest will be 

S a h y a d r i  H o s p i t a l ,  K r i s h n a ,  D i n a n a t h 

Mangeshkar in Kothrud approx 8-10 km from 

institute.

 Whom should I contact for permission 

 for leave during the classes?

Get in touch with the Batch Incharge responsible 

for first year for permission. However you should 

use your discretion before asking for permission 

based on the gravity of reason to ask for leave.

 Where do I purchase my daily needs from?

General stores are available around institute 

hostels to meet your daily needs/ requirements. 

The market for clothing is available in Kothrud 

which will be within a radius of 12-18 km from 

institute

 Is there a wifi facility in the campus?

Yes, every student is given a own unique login id to 

avail the internet facility over wifi. A well equipped 

IT Lab is also available with approx 90 systems. 

However you must be sure of not misusing the 

facilities or it could lead to disciplinary action.

 How many hostels does the institute have?

The institute has ample arrangement to 

accommodate 500 students at a time with all 

basic amenities. These hostels are within a radius 

of 2 to 7km within the campus. Institute will 

provide pick and drop facility from hostel to 

institute and vice-versa.

 What are the facilities available in the

  hostels?

The facilities provided are to facilitate the 

students to have a comfortable stay while they 

pursue for their career with PIBM. The facilities 

like wifi, indoor sport, basic amenities such as bed, 

almirah, mattress, pillow, hostel security and 

hostel rector are available. Please get in touch 

with Mr. Rajeev Singh for details who is the facility 

manager and incharge of the hostels.

 Which sim should I buy?

Vodafone, Idea and Reliance are good network 

around the institute. Mr. Rajeev Singh will help 

you with SIM Cards. You can also purchase the 

same from many stores available around the 

institute hostels.

 What should I do in case if concerned

 authority is not available?

You need to approach the batch incharge for all 

q u e r i e s .  H e  w i l l  g u i d e  yo u  a s  p e r  t h e 

circumstances.

 How do I travel in and around Pune?

Pune has got a fairly good network of public 

transportation system. You can get a bus to any 

place in the city from Bhugoan & Kothrud Depot 

which is approximately 5km & 11km respectively 

from the institute
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OTHER FAQs

 What do I do if I miss the bus to and fro m the

  campus ?

The buses timings are provided a day in advance 

by way of daily time table. You are advised to be 

punctual for the same. For further details contact 

Mr. Jeevan Thakur who is the General Manager 

Administration of the institute.

 If I have a suggestion or a complaint, 

 where do I register them?

Any suggestion or complaint must be made in 

writing to the academic team. Please collect the 

complaint / suggestion form from the team.

  Where can I find the laundry?

Laundry services are available within a radius of 

500m from all hostels. Please get in touch with 

your hostel rectors for details.

 Where can I purchase the subjects books

 from?

The book market is at Appa Balwant Chowk, 

popular as ABC Chowk and can be reached from 

Kothrud Depot. Avail the bus for Pune Municipal  

Corporation as its destination.

 Where can I get clothes from?

There are ample numbers of stores available 

around Durga Coffee Shop in  Kothrud Area. It can 

be reached from Kothrud Depot by availing any 

bus going towards Deccan.

 Where can I get my stationery needs

 fulfilled from? Eg. Photocopy, Photographs,

 etc

There are ample number of stores in Bhugaon to 

meet your stationery needs.

 Where can I find some good affordable

  restaurants?

There are ample number of good food outlets in 

Bhugaon, Bavdhan and Kothrud. A good way to 

find one will be to explore these areas.

 Are bikes allowed in the campus?

Two-wheelers are not allowed in hostels and in 

the institute while you are in the first year of your 

education.
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PHONE: +91-20-66036700 / 05 / 08 / 22
FAX: +91-20-66036722
EMAIL: admission@pibm.in

Concentration leads to perfection, perfection to confidence,
confidence to success and success finally leads to happiness. 

OUR SUCCESS MANTRAS

Inch by inch, Step by step, till I'm finished.

I'll improve my COMMUNICATION, 
I'll improve my APTITUDE,  I'll improve my PERSONALITY

I'm part of competition now and I'll do everything 

One inch at a time, One step at a time. Till I achieve my GOALS..

 to emerge as a ..WINNER

CAMPUS ADDRESS:
Gut No. 605/1 Lavasa Link Road,
Pirangut, Tal - Mulashi, 
Pune- 412115, Maharashtra 

CORPORATE OFFICE ADDRESS:
Survey No. 499, Near Manas Lake,
Paud Road, Bhugaon,
Pune - 412115, Maharashtra

| www.pibm.in

| www.facebook.com/punepibm
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FOR THIS TRANSITION WE WILL FOCUS ON:

HOW WE WILL DO THIS?

Ÿ Skill Development

Ÿ Concept Building

Ÿ Through a unique training program

Ÿ Through continuous evaluations

Ÿ Through Mentoring

Ÿ Through Profile Based Counselling

Ÿ Through Industry-Academia interface. 

Ÿ Through Winter Internship Program
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Ÿ In designing the syllabus

Ÿ Corporate Saturdays

Ÿ Live Projects

Ÿ Mini Projects

Ÿ WIP

Ÿ Different JDs are shown to 

explain each topic

Ÿ Through JD’s, faculty can 

explain the purpose of 

teaching that particular 

topic.

Ÿ We use actual data to train 

our students

Ÿ We use Balance sheets to 

give Finance Training

Ÿ It makes students more 

analytical and Industry 

ready.

Data of Actual
companies used

for training

JD specific
training content

Inputs from
Industry Experts

Teaching what the Industry Wants

At PIBM, we combine inputs from all industry sources with what the Job Descriptions require 

and we train our students using real time industry data.

BOP Instruction Manual   02

UNIQUE TRAINING PEDAGOGY AT PIBM

FIGURE - 2



SCPS – APPLICATION APPROACH

WHAT IS SCPS

HOW SCPS WORKS?

TAKEAWAY FROM SCPS

Ÿ Sector/Company/Product/Service

Ÿ How different concepts work and vary 

with various sectors and products.

Ÿ Graduation pattern – Teach Theory, 

Forget Application!

Ÿ  Industry Demand – Trained 

candidates with application 

orientation and smart working skills

Ÿ Training of each concept based on 6-8 

different sectors

Ÿ Evaluation  based on application only

Ÿ Real life case studies, Live Projects 

and internships

Ÿ Student develops analytical mind

Ÿ Everything is visualized in different 

sectors and for different products

HOW DO WE DO IT?

PIBM's training methodology is unique and 
designed with an objective to make students 
understand the real life practical application of 
Business theory. One of the unique things about 
the teaching methodology followed in PIBM is the 
SCPS approach of teaching. SCPS stands for 
Sector/Company/Product/Service aspect of 
learning any management concept. SCPS 
pedagogy is specific training on different sectors 
and products like-

Ÿ FMCG (Products like Soap, Biscuit, Pen)
Ÿ Consumer Durables (Products like TV, AC, 

Mobile, Laptop)
Ÿ A u t o m o b i l e  ( T w o  w h e e l e r ,  F o u r 

Wheeler, heavy and commercial vehicle)
Ÿ Retail (Gadget retail like Tata Croma, Next, 

Clothing retail like Pantaloons, Shoppers Stop 
and FMCG retail like More, Big Bazaar, Reliance 
Fresh)

Ÿ Financial Services and Banking  (Citi 
Bank,  Axis Bank,  ICICI Group,  India 
Infoline, Moneyhouse)

Ÿ Infrastructure (Paints like Asian  Paint, 
B e r g e r  P a i n t ,  D u l u x  P a i n t ,  N e r o l a c ; 
Cement Like JK Cement, ACC cement, 
Birla cement; Steel Like Tata Steel Essar 
Steel; L&T infra.) 

Ÿ IT Enabled Services (99 Acres.com, Just 
Dial, IndiaMart)

With the SCPS methodology, any topic which is 
taught is explained with the real world application 
in various sectors, and different products or 
services of several companies which also helps 
establish clearity about how management 
strategies vary in different sectors for different 
products and services.

WHY SCPS

In most of the business schools, the pattern is to 
teach the students with the theoretical concepts 
of the subjects. But in PIBM we teach each 
concept with application oriented approach for 
which we use “SCPS Approach”.
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STEP

01
Decide two-three  sectors to train 

students

e.g- consumer Goods,CD, Automobile

STEP

02
Select few companies from chosen 

sector

e.g. P&G, HUL, ITC etc.

STEP

03
Select common product category and 

then list down their respective products

e.g. Product category-Shampoo

P&G- Head & Shoulder

HUL- Clinic Plus

ITC- Fiama Di Wills

Similar comparison  will do for other 

sectors also with data.

How the SCPS Approach is Applied?
The faculty members choose a topic and then the following steps are taken:

The whole training pedagogy is divided 
into three steps:

COMPARISON

Students have to first select the product of 
chosen companies from the selected sector. 
Comparisons have to be made on various 
parameters like: 
Ÿ Pricing Strategies
Ÿ Product Quality-Using data derived from the 

market
Ÿ Market Penetration- Using data derived from 

the Market
Ÿ Promotion Strategies etc.

INTERPRETATION

Then Students have to do analysis on various 
factors discussed during comparison phase with 
the help of faculty.

CONCLUSION

Conclusion to be derived by the students on the 
basis of  complete discussion on the topic- e.g. 
Segmentation in this case with the help of 
faculty.
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LEARNING TRIANGLE

 In PIBM we use the learning triangle to explain 
each and every topic in every subject. The learning 
triangle gives clarity on why the student is reading 

Purpose

Why Where

Topic: OB -
Foundation

of Group
Behaviour

Used in roles and functions that 
require team leading and team 
management,  e.g.  as Channel 
Manager, Store Manager, Sales 
Manager, Analyst, HR Manager, etc. 

Student's final Purpose: Placements
Retail, FMCG, CD, Auto, Telecom, 
Financial Services and many other 
sectors require managers who 
understand group behaviour and use 
it to optimize team? 

Where: Application of Concept

the topic & where it can be applied. It ensures the 
learning ensurability of the topic.

To understand how people behave in 
teams, departments &  organizations.

Why: Significance of a Concept
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1. Unique Classroom Training Pedagogy at PIBM

The unguided session follows the guided session 
where faculty members assign only sector to the 
students and monitor their dicussion on the sector 
assigned or the case given. It includes:-
Ÿ Students come prepared with pre-assigned 

tasks like case studies and participate in a 
class activity which is monitored by the trainer.

Ÿ Every student is evaluated through out the 
session.

Ÿ Those who understand the topic are taken 
ahead in the subject; weak students identified 
are aligned for remedial sessions 

 (**For Unguided Session Format kindly refer   
 table no. 4 on page no-13)

TRAINING

GUIDED SESSION

UNGUIDED SESSION
BARRICADING

REMEDIAL SESSIONRE-EVALUATION

FEEDBACK- GROUP &
INDIVIDUAL

ASSESSMENT ON BASIS OF
SESSION & ASSIGNMENTS

Training Process Flowchart
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Unique training pedagogy of PIBM is that we 
have divided each session into two parts:

 1. Guided Session
 2. Unguided Session

Guided Session Method:- The guided Session is a 
type of training method under SCPS approach 
where faculty members guide the students 

through the complete training session. Guided 
Session includes:-
Ÿ Trainer delivers the topic using example of a 

sector, company, product or service.
Ÿ 75% of class time is reserved for guided class 

activity such as GD, Role Play, Simulation 
exercise, Extempore, etc. to ensure absorption 
of concept.

Ÿ Trainer concludes the session clarifying all 
doubts and details of topic .

2) Unguided Session Method

1) Guided Session Method



PGDM-BATCH-2017-19

Sr.
No

Name of the subject Faculty Name Brief Profile

1 Business Finance-I Ms. Rakhi Shah
S.P.Jain Alumni,

10 years of experience

2 Marketing Management Ms. Palak Sharma
20 years of experience

in industry and academics

3 Human Resource Management Dr. Rajasshrie Pillai 
HOD HR, 14 years of 

experience in industry
and academics

4 Organisation Behaviour Dr. Sanjeev Kulkarni
20 years of corporate

experience and 10 years of
academic experience

5 Micro Economics Dr. Ajit Sane

M.Com , MMM and PhD.,
20years of corporate

experience,
12 years of academic exp.

and 5 years of research exp.

7 Research Methodology Dr. Prantosh Banerjee

PhD from IIM Ahmedabad,
More than 30 years of rich
experience in industry and

academics

8 Statistics Mr. Shashwat Siddhant
10 years of academic

experience

9 Operations Management Mr. Madhup Gandhi
Having 20 years of

academic and industry
experience

10 IT Skills Mr. Sandeep Khedkar
15 years of

academic and industry
experience

11 Aptitude Training Mr. Vikrant, Ms. Neelima,
 Mr. Ravinder, Ms. Kajal, 

Mr. Brij Mishra

More than 10 years of
experience

12 Communication Skill Training
Ms. Fatema,Mr. Jatin,
Dr. Pooja, Ms. Sristhi

Having more than 45 years
of combined experience
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MBA-BATCH-2017-19
Sr.
No

Name of the subject Faculty Name Brief Profile

1 Organisational Behaviour Dr. Sanjeev Kulkarni
20 years of corporate

experience and
10 years of academics exp.

2 Marketing Management Ms. Sonal Parmar
8+ years of corporate exp. 

And 10+ years of academics
experience

3 Legal Aspects of Business Adv. Bonagiri
An advocate and have more
than 25 years of experience

4 Management  Accounting Prof. A.P.Rao
Former Director-Bharti
Vidyapeeth, 30 years of

academic experience

5 Economic Analysis for Business Dr. Ajit Sane

M.Com , MMM and PhD. ,
20years of corporate

experience, 12 years of
academics experience and

5 years of research
experience

6
Business Research
Methodology Dr. Prantosh Banerjee

PhD from IIM Ahmedabad,
More than 30 years of rich
Experience in Industry and

Academics

7
Fundamentals of Management
Half Credit Course-50 Marks) Ms. Poornima Sehrawat

2 years of corporate
experience and 5 years of

academic experience

8
Personality Development
(Half Credit-50) Ms. Fatema

15+ years of result driven
training and developing

professionals

10
MS Exel
(Half Credit Course-50 Marks) Ms. Harshada

More than 10 years
of academic experience

11
Cyber Security
Quarter Credit-25 Marks) Ms. Harshada

12
Human Rights
(Quarter Credit-25) Ms. Poornima Sehrawat

2 years of corporate
experience and 5 years of

academic experience

9
Business Communication
(Half Credit-50) Mr. Jatin Bishnoi

Aptitude & Communication training will be same as PGDM
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EVALUATIONS PGDM

Evaluations Internal

External
Assignment

Presentations

Assignment

Unguided Session/
Pre-post reading

Projects/Tests

Viva/Role Play
INTERNAL EVALUATION
We have Internal Evaluations of 50 marks which 
consist:
Ÿ Assignment
Ÿ Presentation
Ÿ Unguided Session/Pre-post reading
Ÿ Projects/Test
Ÿ Test
Ÿ Subject Wise Viva/Role Play

1. MID TERM ASSIGNMENTS
 Faculty members give assignments to all the 
 students after every topic and they are based 
 on the application of the concept. Students 
 need to submit the assignments on the given 
 deadline in the lockers allocated section-wise 
 on the 2nd floor in front of the faculty room.
 Students need to write these assignments by 
 using and analysing data using websites 
 like Proquest, Ace Analyser and Bloomberg. 
Ÿ For  Proquest the link is

 www.proquest.com/go/yourpath
Ÿ For Ace Analyser the link is
 www.aceanalyser.com/
Ÿ For Using Bloomberg the link is
 www.bloomberg.in/

2. PRESENTATIONS 
 There are presentations after completing 25%  
 of the syllabus in many subjects. There will 
 be 3-4 presentations in each subject in a 
 semester. At PIBM, we have a different way to 
 evaluate presentations. Students will get 
 different sectors, different companies and 
 different product for each topic.
 The students need to analyse the company  
 data of  products company of sector on the 
 given topic.
 These are the parameters on which the 
 presentations are are evaluated as shown in  
 table No-3
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EVALUATIONS PGDM
3. UNGUIDED SESSIONS/GDS
  The unguided session follows the guided  
 session where faculty members assign only 
 sector to the students and monitor their 
 discussion. Objective of the Unguided session 
 is to check:

 • Students have understood the concept 
  discussed during guided session.

 • They can apply the concept to other 
  sectors without guidance .
 Following are the steps involved during an un  
 guided session: 

 • A case study will be shared with the 
  students in advance on different sectors:

 • Then the class is to be divided into two 
  groups 

 • Each group will have a discussion in 
  different classrooms in front of different 
  faculty members.

 • Discussion will be followed as per these 
  three steps: Problem identification, 
  Interpretation and Conclusion.
  The parameters on which we evaluate 
  unguided session are as shown below

4. PROJECTS

 We at PIBM give projects to the students in 
 many subjects. which it improves the following 
 skills of the student:

� • Planning and critical thinking

� • Interpersonal and Presentation skills

� • Cross cultural handling

� • Visualizing and decision making

� • Independence

5. ROLE PLAYS

Ÿ Role plays stimulate students imagination 
and enhances their:

� • Social development.

� • Friendship through cooperation.

� • Listening and risk taking skills.

� • Learning to express all their feelings.

� • Verbal and Non-verbal skills

� • Team building skills.

� • Leadership skills.
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EVALUATIONS PGDM
6. TESTS
Ÿ Testing improves transfer of knowledge to new  

context.
Ÿ Testing improves meta-cognitive monitoring by 

giving students scores so that they can better  
predict their own knowledge.

Ÿ Testing identifies gaps in knowledge.
Ÿ Immediate feedback will be given by the 

faculty after the test (Within a week).
Ÿ

7. SUBJECT-WISE VIVA
Ÿ We conduct subject-wise viva for which we call 

professionals from respective industries for 

every subject.
Ÿ Person from industry asks questions from 

whole syllabus from industry point of view.
Ÿ This  improves exposure to  industr ial 

applications 

7. SUBJECT-WISE VIVA

Ÿ We conduct Mid term exam in the month of 
October. 

Ÿ  Mid term exam would be of 25 marks.
Ÿ This involves written exams for all the 

subjects.
Ÿ  This is the part of internals.
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PGDM FINAL EVALUATION
FINAL EVALUATIONS INCLUDES
Open Book exam- We conduct open book written exam on every subject. The exam is based on 
application of the concept so we allow the books to be referred for concepts, but the exam would be 
completely based on data and application.

Type of
Evaluation

Description of Evaluation Marks

Continuous
Internal

Assessment

Presentations ppt/viva

Project/Assignment

Unguided  (Case discussion) 

Mid Term Exam

15%
10%
5%

10%
15%

End
Semester

Exam

40 Marks written Examination
(Practical Exam in exceptional
subjects)

40%

Note:** The %age may change depending on the subject. In case the candidate remains absent or 

secures zero marks in continuous evaluation and secures passing marks in End Semester Exam, the 
candidate will be declared fail and vice-versa is also fail.

BOP Instruction Manual   12

Table-4

Test/Class Participation



EVALUATIONS MBA

Evaluations

End Term Exam

Presentations

Assignment

Unguided Session/
Pre-post reading

Projects/Tests

Viva/Role Play

Internal

External

Online Exam

INTERNAL EVALUATION

  • Presentation

  • Viva

  • Test

  • Projects

  • Assignment

ONLINE EXAM

There will be an online exam conducted by the 

university Mid Term Exam within 1.5 - 2 months 
the semester and 2 units of the syllabus will be 
covered by this online exam. It will be of 20 
marks. Dates will be decided by the university.

EXTERNAL EVALUATION

Written Exam is held at the end of semester and 
will be conducted by the University of Pune.

Type of
Evaluation

Description of Evaluation Marks contains

Continuous
Internal

Assessment

Online Exam

Presentations

Projects

Test

Viva

Mid Term Exam

20%

10%

5%

5%

5%

5%

End
Semester

Exam

50 Marks written Examination
(Practical Exam in exceptional subjects) 50%

Online Exam

**Note- Marks per evaluation may vary subject wise.
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ATTENDANCE & LEAVE POLICIES

You are here at PIBM to work hard and fulfil 
your dreams. For fulfilling your dreams you 
have to be punctual to your classes. Absence 
causes a slow-down in the work and also 
creates gaps in your day to day learning 
process. Good attendance is something that is 
expected from all the students. Excessive 
absenteeism and tardiness will not be tolerated 
and will be a cause of disciplinary action, 
Attendance rules and regulations are as 
follows:-

ATTENDANCE POLICY
Ÿ  A student can take total 8 leaves in a  

 semester, means 1.5-2 leaves in a month.
Ÿ  Every student has to maintain minimum 80%  

 of attendance in a semester.
Ÿ �Every student has to take piror approval  

 from the Academics department for leave.
Ÿ �There will be session wise attendance every 

 day.
Ÿ  Students with less than 80% attendance will 

 not be allowed for exams.
Ÿ  Academics depar tment wil l  d isplay 

 attendance fortnightly on the notice board. 

HOSTEL RULES
Ÿ �For all students entry time is no later than 

 10:00 PM in every hostel.
Ÿ �There is a fine on late entry in hostel.
Ÿ �Night out is not allowed without prior 

 permission from the academics department.

**Note: Dates are subject to change

Academic Calendar for Semester-I

Date Day Event No. of Days

5th Aug Sat One Day event

25th August Friday Ganesh Chaturthi One day holiday

9th Sep Saturday Fresher's Half Day holiday

18th Oct Wednesday Diwali Three days holiday

25th Nov Saturday Entrepreneurial Day Corporate Academia interface event
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15th Aug Tue

CEO Meet

One Day event (No classes)Independence day

23rd Sep Saturday Manufacturing Day One Day event



CORPORATE INTERACTION

Hance, at PIBM we focus on experiential learning 
and for that we have “Corporate Weekends”. 
Every Saturday has been defined as corporate day 
when we invite successful corporate leaders 
from different industries. Corporate Interaction 
will helps students to build practical knowledge 
where they are trained by corporate heads from 
various industries. These corporate heads are 
CEOs, CFOs, Directors, Vice-Presidents and other 
top management leaders usually with more than 
20 years of Business Management experience. 
They train the students on articulation which 

means how to apply the concepts in the business 
world
How students are trained by Corporate Heads:-
Ÿ Industry and sector specific training on topics 

studied in the classroom and how will these 
concepts be applied in real business world.

Ÿ Domain based training on various domains like 
CD, FMCG, Retail, Paint, Cement, IT etc.

Ÿ Mock Interviews and Group Discussions to 
make students industry ready and to prepare 
them for final placements.

“In an effective classroom students should not only know 
What they are doing, they should also know Why and How”. 
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MENTORING PROGRAM
Understanding the PIBM vision behind 
Mentoring Program
Ÿ PIBM drives the vision of building bright 

futures for those students who don’t belong to 
classes but masses by making them hard-
workers.

� • Mentor motivates the protégé when they are 
  not self motivated.

� • In case the students don't know what they 
  are capable of and what they want to do, 

  mentors guide the protege properly.

� • They don’t know that to be eligible for a 5 
  lacs package, they have to completely 
  change themselves.

� • Mentor makes their protégé hard working.

Ÿ PIBM mentors have to transform the life of 
their protégé’s by first BELIEVING in PIBM 
vision.

Ÿ A mentor gives solution to all the problems of 
the protégé.

BOP Instruction Manual   16

Meet your mentors

Mr. Riddhiman Mukhopadhyay

MBA - Marketing
10+ yrs. Corporate Exp. - Pharma Sector  |  10+ yrs. 

Academics Exp.- ICFAI Univ.
Subject - Marketing 

Mr. David Hangsing

PGDM - IIM Bangalore, B.Tech - NIT Silchar
10+ yrs. Total Exp. in Marketing Domain

Subject - Marketing Management & Digital 
Marketing 

MR. SHASHWAT SIDDHANT
Associate Director - PIBM
PGDM - IIM Ahmedabad

Master's in Economics & B.Tech - BITS Pilani
Ex. AVP - Investment Banking - Ashika Capital

Subject - Investment Banking, Financial Analysis, 
Business Analytics & Business Statistics

MR. G PRAVIN KUMARB.Com & MBA

15+ yrs. Total Exp. in Marketing Domain
Subj. - Sales Management

Dr. Rajasshrie Pillai
Ph.D & MBA

15+ yrs. Total Exp. in Human Resource Management
Subj. - HRM, OB, PMS, T&D & Talent Management

MR. ANIMESH KUMAR

B.Sc. (Hons.) & MBA
12+ yrs. Total Exp. in Marketing Domain

Subj. - Retail Marketing

MR. ADESH DOIFODE

MBA - Finance - University of Wales
10 yrs. Corp. Experience - Jaypee Capital, BP Wealth Management, 

Networth Stock Broking, Peerless Securities, Ventura Securities
Subject - Equity Research, Fundamental Research, Financial 

Modeling

Mr.  Pranav Nagpurkar

Deputy Director - Academics
Pune Institute of Business Management 

MR. POORNA CHANDRA PRASAD ERRY
B.Sc, MEC & MBA

12+ yrs. Total Exp. in Marketing Domain
Subj. - Market Research & Product 

Management

MR. ANAND Y BHATT

MBA & M.Phil

9+ yrs. Total Exp.  
Subject - Business Statistics & Decision Scien

MS. SONAL PARMAR
BE, MBA (Marketing) - JBIMS

8+ yrs. Corp. Exp. - Mudra Communications
12+ yrs. Academics Exp.

Subject - Marketing Management, Integrated Marketing 
Communications

MS. POORNIMA SEHRAWAT

MBA- HR
2+ yrs. Corp. Exp. - Mudra Communications

5+ yrs. Academics Exp.
Subject - Trains on - H R Management
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HOLISTIC DEVELOPMENT 

EXTRA CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES



EXTRA CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
GYM, AEROBICS & YOGA

TALENT SHOW
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EXTRA CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
SPORTS

MUSIC 
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EXTRA CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
NGO COMMITTEE

RURAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
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PHONE: +91-20-66575035 / 41 / 42
FAX: +91-20-66036722
EMAIL: admission@pibm.in

Concentration leads to perfection, perfection to confidence,
confidence to success and success finally leads to happiness. 

OUR SUCCESS MANTRAS

Inch by inch, Step by step, till I'm finished.

I'll improve my COMMUNICATION, 
I'll improve my APTITUDE,  I'll improve my PERSONALITY

I'm part of competition now and I'll do everything 

One inch at a time, One step at a time. Till I achieve my GOALS..

 to emerge as a ..WINNER

CAMPUS ADDRESS:
Gut No. 605/1 Lavasa Link Road,
Pirangut, Tal - Mulashi, 
Pune- 412115, Maharashtra 

CORPORATE OFFICE ADDRESS:
Survey No. 499, Near Manas Lake,
Paud Road, Bhugaon,
Pune - 412115, Maharashtra

| www.pibm.in

| www.facebook.com/punepibm



0 | P a g e  
 

MARKETING 

 

  

INSTRUCTION 
KIT-SEMESTER 
III 
BATCH 2017-19 

PUNE INSTITUTE OF BUSINESS 
MANAGEMENT 



1 | P a g e  
 

YOUR LEARNING PATH IN PIBM 

 

 

In line with your goals and as per industry needs, PIBM 1st year (Semesters I and II) gave 

you practical exposures on: 

 Aptitude Training 

 Communication Training 

 Excel Training 

 Verbal and Non-Verbal  Presentations 

 Overviews of Group Discussions and Personal Interviews  

 Mini Projects and Live Projects 

 Corporate Events 

You have also got your specializations as per your interest and also an opportunity to 

clear all concepts in interested areas through the Summer Internship Project (SIP) and 

also various events and occasions held in Semester II like 
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 Live Projects and Field Visits 

 Industry Interactions (Corporate Sessions, FMCG Day, Fintech Day, etc) 

 Mentoring Sessions 

 Case Studies and Presentations 

 External Workshops  

YOUR JOURNEY AHEAD AND WHAT TO LOOK FORWARD 

 

Semester III will make you Industry Ready so that you are successful in your 

placement process and beyond and for that purpose, Sessions and Trainings will be 

based on your specialization so that you get in-depth knowledge of the sector you are 

interested in. 

TRAINING PEDAGOGY OF SEMESTER III 

HOW TO BECOME INDUSTRY READY?  

The Semester III curriculum includes extensive training for Placements like JD based 

training, Sector and Profile based training, Mock GDs and PIs with Corporates, 

Corporate Interactions, Integrated Learnings, and Knowledge Sharing sessions. 

All trainings and sessions will follow the Unique Teaching Pedagogy of PIBM –The SCPS 

Approach. 

• To clear the 
basics of all the 
management 
subjects

• To improve 
Aptitude, 
communication 
and Excel Skills.

Semester-I

• To select 
Specialisation 
and interested 
sectors. 

• Clear all concept 
on interested 
area.

Semester-II

• To become 
industry 

ready.

Semester-III
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WHAT IS SCPS? 

At PIBM, we combine inputs from all industry sources with what the Job descriptions 

require and train our students using real time industry data. 

SCPS Training Approach- 

 

 

 

In most of the business schools, the pattern is to teach the students with the theoretical 

concepts of the subjects. But in PIBM we teach each concept with application oriented 

approach for which we use “SCPS Approach”. 

Extensive Case 
Studies

• Analysing of 
more and more 
cases

JD Based 
Trainings

• By preparing of 
JDs of different 
profiles as you 
read in Sem II

Mock GDs and 
PIs

• Preparation of 
interview 
questions to be 
asked in 
companies

• Mock GDs and 
PIs by 
corporates

Skill 
Enhancement

• Enhancing 
skills like 
managerial 
skills, 
interpersonal 
skills, excel, 
aptitude and 
communication 
skilles

What is SCPS

• Sector/Compan
y/Product/Servi
ce

• How every 
concept works 
and varies in 
different sectors 
and for different 
products

Why SCPS

Graduation pattern –
Teach Theory, Forget 

Application!

Industry Demand –
Trained candidates 

with application 
orientation and 

smart working skills

How SCPS 
works?

• Training of each 
concept based on 6-
8 different sectors

• Evaluation only 
based on 
application

• Real life case 
studies, Live 
Projects and 
internships

Takeaway 
from SCPS

Student develops 
analytical mind

Everything is 
visualized in 

different sectors 
and for different 

products
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PIBM’s training methodology is unique and designed with an objective to make 

students understand the real life practical application of Business theory. One of 

our unique things about the teaching methodology followed in PIBM is the SCPS approach 

of teaching. SCPS stands for Sector/Company/Product/Service aspect of learning any 

management concept. SCPS pedagogy is specific training on different sectors and 

products like- 

 FMCG (Products like Soap, Biscuit, Pen from companies like ITC, Marico, Cello, etc) 

 Consumer Durables (Products like TV, AC, Mobile, Laptop from companies like 

Samsung , Haier, iBall, etc) 

 Automobile (Two wheeler, Four Wheeler, heavy and commercial vehicle from 

companies like Bajaj, Mahindra, etc) 

 Retail (Gadget retail like Tata Croma, Next, Clothing retail like Pantaloons, 

Shoppers Stop and FMCG retail like More, Big Bazaar, Reliance Fresh) 

 Financial Services and Banking (Citi Bank, Axis Bank, ICICI Group, India Info 

line,  Money house) 

 Infrastructure (Paints like Asian Paint, Berger Paint, Deluxe Paint, Nerolac; 

Cement Like JK Cement, ACC cement, Birla cement; Steel Like Tata Steel Essar 

Steel; L&T infra.)  

 IT Enabled Services (99 Acres.com, Just Dial, India Mart) 

With the SCPS methodology, any topic which is taught is explained with the real world 

application in various sectors, and different products or services of several companies 

which also helps to clarify that management strategies vary in different sectors for 

different products and services. 

How SCPS Approach is applied? 

The faculty have to choose a topic and then following steps are to be taken:- 

 

Step-1

Decide two-
three  

sectors to 
train 

students

e.g-
consumer 
Goods,CD, 

Automobile

Step-2

Select few 
companies 

from chosen 
sector

e.g. P&G, HUL, 
ITC etc.

Step-3

Select common product category 
and then list down their 

respective products

e.g. Product category-Shampoo

P&G- head & Shoulder

HUL- Clinic Plus

ITC- Fiama Di Wills

Similar comparison  will do for 
other sectors also with data.
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The whole training pedagogy is devided into three steps: 

Comparison- 

Students have to first select the product of chosen companies from selected 

sector.Comparison have to be done on various parameters like:  

 Pricing Strategies- How the price of the product is arrived at using cost sheet of 

different components and associated services. 

 Product Quality-Using data derived from market 

 Market Penetration- Using data derived from Market 

 Promotion Strategies Etc.- Use data of Expenditure and Return 

Interpretation- 

Then Students have to do analysis on various factors discussed during comparison phase 

with the help of the faculty. 

Conclusion- 

Conclusion to be derived by students of complete discussion for the topic- e.g. 

Segmentation in this case with the help of faculty. 

UNIQUE CLASSROOM TRAINING PEDAGOGY AT PIBM- 

  Unique training pedagogy of PIBM is that we have divided each session into two parts: 

1. Guided Session 

2. Unguided Session 

Guided Session Method:- 

The guided Session is a type of training method under SCPS approach where faculty have 

to guide the students through complete training session.Guided Session includes:- 

 Trainer delivers the topic using example of a sector, company, product or service. 

 75% of class time is reserved for guided class activity such as GD, Role Play, 

Simulation exercise, Extempore, etc. to ensure absorption of concept. 

 Trainer concludes the session clarifying all doubts and details of topic . 

Unguided Session Method:- 

The unguided session follow the guided session where faculty has to assign only sector 

to the students and monitor their dicussion on sector assigned or case given. 

Unguided Session includes:- 

 Students come prepared with pre-assigned tasks like case study and participate in 

a class activity which is monitored by the Trainer. 



6 | P a g e  
 

 Every student is evaluated continually through the session. 

 A feedback is given by the trainer at the end of the session to individual students. 

Those who understand the topic are taken ahead in the subject; weak students identified 

are aligned for remedial sessions. 

TRAINING PROCESS FLOWCHART 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SEMESTER CURRICULUM 

PGDM 

Sr. 
No. 

Subjects Section 
Name of 
Faculty 

Brief Profile 

1 
Strategic Business 
Management 

Common for 
all PGDM  

Mr. Bibhas 
Mr.Anirban 

5+ years of corporate exp. and 
10+ years of academic exp. 

2 
Legal Aspects of 
Business 

Common for 
all PGDM  

Dr. Vilas 
Kulkarni 

30 years of corporate and 
academic experience  

TRAINING 

GUIDED 

SESSION 

UNGUIDED 

SESSION 

FEEDBACK- GROUP & 

INDIVIDUAL 

BARRICADING FOR 

DEFAULTERS/NON-

PERFORMERS 

REMEDIAL SESSION 

RE-

EVALUATION 

ASSESSMENT ON BASIS 

OF SESSION & 

ASSIGNMENTS 
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3 
Entrepreneurship 
Development and 
Project Management 

Common for 
all PGDM  

Ms. Palak 
Sharma 

3 yrs. Corporate Exp 
8 yrs. Academics Exp 

4 
Advance Machine 
Learning 

MKT 
Analytics 

Dr.Hemlata 
3 yrs Industry and 5 yrs 

Academic Exp 

5 Time Series Analysis 
MKT 

Analytics 
Ms.Seema 8 yrs of corporate exp 

6 
World Class 
Manufacturing 

MKT 
Operations 

Mr. Madhup 
Gandhi 

Regional Director-Shree 
Shipping 

25 yrs of Academic Exp 

7 
Enterprise Resource 
Planning 

MKT 
Operations 

Dr.Ashok 
 25+ years of corporate and 

academic experience 

8 Pricing Management Marketing 
Dr.Prantosh 

Banerjee 

PhD from IIM Ahmadabad, 
More than 30 years of rich 
Experience in Industry and 

Academics 

9 
Brand and Product 
management 

Marketing 
Mr. Bibhas 

Mr. Darshan 
5+ years of corporate exp. and 

10+ years of academic exp 

10 Services Marketing Marketing 
Mr.Kingshuk 

Bhadury 
13+ years of corporate and 

academic experience 

11 
Integrated Marketing 
Communications 

Marketing Ms.Sonal 
8 years of corporate exp. 

And 12+ years of teaching 
exp. 

12 Media Marketing 
Mr.Diniar 

Patel 

Managing Editor (Innovations) 
cum Editor (Supplements) – 

Times of India 

13 Marketing Analytics Marketing 
Mr. Shyam 

Nair 

Founder of Transitlab with 
10+ years of corporate 

experience 

14 

Workshop/ Practice Sessions: 
Sales and Distributon 
Digital marketing 
Marketing of Financial Services 
B2B 

SnD- Mr. G. Pravin  
Digital- Mr. Bibhas 

MFS-Ms. Chetna 
B2B- Mr. Poorna 

** Aptitude Training, Communication Training, Excel and Advanced Excel training will be 

planned along with the subjects 

** Integrated Learning will be done and Abhyas and Prayas (As explained on Pg. No: 15) will be 

incorporated in the time table for which Industry people will be required. 
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MBA 

Sr.No Subjects Section Faculty Brief Profile 

1 Strategic Management 
Common 
Subject 

Mr. G. Pravin 
13+ yrs total exp in 
marketing domain 

2 
Enterprise Performance 
Management 

Common 
Subject 

Mr. Ashok 
Kumar 

 25+ years of corporate 
and academic experience  

3 
Start -Up & New Venture 
Management 

Common 
Subject 

Ms. Palak 
Sharma 

3 yrs. Corporate Exp 
8 yrs. Academics Exp 

4 
Contemporary Market 
Research 

Marketing  
Mr. David  
Dr. Naresh 

PGDM – IIM Bangalore , 
B.Tech NIT Silchar (10 yrs 
exp in Marketing Domain) 

5 yrs of total exp 

5 Consumer Behaviour Marketing Dr.Vinay 
14 yrs of Academic Exp 
and 1 yr Industry Exp 

6 
Integrated Marketing 
Communication 

Marketing Ms.Sonal 
8 years of corporate exp. 

And 12+ years of 
teaching exp. 

7 Personal Selling Marketing Dr.Riddhiman 8+ years of corporate 
exp. and 12+ years of 

academic exp. 8 CRM Marketing Dr.Riddhiman 

9 
Marketing of Financial 
Services-1 

Marketing Dr.Chetna 
6 yrs corporate exp 
7 yrs academic exp 

** Aptitude Training, Communication Training, Excel and Advanced Excel training will be 
planned along with the subjects 
** Integrated Learning will be done and Abhyas and Prayas (As explained in Pg No 15) will be 
incorporated in the time table for which Industry people will be required. 
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EVALUATIONS 

PGDM 

 

 

Internal Evaluation 

We have Internal Evaluations of 50 marks which consists: 

 Assignment 

 Presentation 

 Unguided Session/Pre-post reading 

 Projects/Test 

 Test/Mid Terms and End Terms 

 Subject Wise Viva/Role Play 

 
1. Assignments- Faculty has to give assignments to all the students after every topic 

and it is based on application of the concept. Students need to submit the 

assignments on given deadline in the lockers allocated section-wise on 2nd floor in 

front of faculty room. 

Students need to write assignments with using and analysing data using some 

websites like Proquest, Ace Analyser and Bloomberg.  

PGDM 
EVALUATIONS

CONTINUOUS 
INTERNAL 

EVALUATIONS

ASSIGNMENTS

HOME 
ASSIGNMENTS

FIELD 
ASSIGNMENTS

CLASS TESTS

UNGUIDED 
SESSIONS-

DISCUSSIONS

PRESENTATIONS 
AND 

EXTEMPORES

CLASS 
PARTICIPATION

EXTERNAL 
EVALUATIONS

MID TERMS AND 
END TERMS
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 For using Proquest- www.proquest.com/go/yourpath 

 For Using Ace Analyser- www.aceanalyser.com/ 

 For Using Bloomberg- www.bloomberg.in/ 

 

2. Presentations- There are presentations after completing 25% of syllabus in many 

subjects. So there will be 3-4 presentation in each subject in a semester. At PIBM 

we have different way to evaluate presentations. Students will get different sector, 

different company and different product on each topic. The presentation may be 

individual or in group. 

      So students need to analyze company data of particular product on the given topic. 

      There are certain parameters on which we evaluate you for presentations- 

 

 

 

3. Unguided Sessions/GDs- The unguided session follows the guided session where 

faculty has to assign only sector to the students and monitor their discussion. 

Objective of Unguided session is to check: 

 Students have understood the concept discussed during guided session. 

 They can relate the concept to other sectors without guidance by the faculty. 

          Following are the steps involved during unguided session:  

 A case study will be shared with the students in advance on different sectors: 

 Then class is to be divided into groups  

 Each group will have discussion in different classrooms in front of different 

faculty members. 

 Discussion will be followed as per all three steps: Problem identification, 

Interpretation and conclusion. 

The parameters on which we evaluate unguided session are- 

http://www.proquest.com/go/yourpath
http://www.aceanalyser.com/
http://www.bloomberg.in/
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4. Projects- We at PIBM give projects to the students in many subjects. If any student 

is doing project in the semester then it improves following skills of the student: 
 Planning and critical thinking 

 Interpersonal and Presentation skills 

 Handling Cross cultural  

 Visualizing and decision making 

 Independent 

The project than has to be submitted in the form of report. You may also be asked to 

present on it. 

 

5. Role Plays-Role Play involves imagination and stimulates the student’s 

imagination. It also enhances their: 
 Social development. 

 Encourage friendship through cooperation. 

 Listening and turn taking skills. 

 Learn to express all their feelings. 

 Improve language and movement skills. 

 Improve team building skills. 

 Improve leadership skills. 

 Develop decision making and problem solving skills 

6. Test-  
 Testing improves transfer of knowledge to new context. 

 Testing improves meta-cognitive monitoring by giving students score so that they 

can better predict their knowledge. 

 Testing identifies gaps in knowledge. 

 Immediate feedback will be given by the faculty after taking test (Within a week). 
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Final Evaluation- 

Final Evaluations includes:- 

 Mid Term and End Term Exams- Mid Term and End Term exams are conducted in 

the middle and end of the semester respectively. Exams may be open book or 

closed book. The exam is based on application of the concept so that we allow book 

to refer for concept sometimes, but exam will be completely based on data and 

application. Unfair means in these exams can lead to cancellation of the paper 

altogether. 

Type of 

Evaluation 

Description of Evaluation Marks contains 

 

Continuous 

Internal 

Assessment 

Presentations 15% 

Viva 10% 

Test/Project 10% 

Assignment 5% 

Unguided Session/Pre-post reading 5% 

Attendance 5% 

End Semester 

Exam 

50 Marks written Examination (Practical 

Exam in exceptional subjects) 

50% 

 

** A minimum of 40% marks has to be secured as a sum of Continuous Internal 

Assessment and End Semester Exam. In case the candidate remains absent or secures 

zero marks in continuous evaluation and secures passing marks in End Semester Exam, 

the candidate will be declared fail and vice-versa is also fail. 
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MBA 

 

Internal Evaluation- 

 Presentation 
 Viva 
 Test 
 Projects 
 Assignment (Both Home and Field) 

Online Exam- There will be online exam in the semester which will be conducted by 
university within the 1.5-2 months of starting of semester, and 2 units of syllabus will be 
covered by online exam. It will be of 20 marks. Dates will be decided by university. 

External Evaluation- 

Written Exam held at the end of semester and will be conducted by University of Pune. 

Type of 
Evaluation 

Description of Evaluation Marks contains 

Online Exam Online Exam 20% 

 

Continuous 
Internal 
Assessment 

Presentations 10% 

Projects 5% 

Test 5% 

Viva 5% 

EVALUATIONS

ONLINE EXAM

INTERNAL 
EVALUATION

PRESENTATIONS

VIVA

TEST

PROJECTS

ASSIGNMENTS

HOME 
ASSIGNMENTS

FIELD 
ASSIGNMENTS

EXTERNAL 
EVALUATIONS

END TERM 
EXAM
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Assignment 5% 

End Semester 
Exam 

50 Marks written Examination (Practical 
Exam in exceptional subjects) 

50% 

**Note-  

 Marks per evaluation may vary subject wise. 

 Passing marks has to be obtained in all three forms of evaluation 

ATTENDANCE & LEAVE POLICIES 

You are here at PIBM to work hard and fulfil your dreams. For fulfilling your dreams you 

have to be punctual to your classes. Absence causes a slow-down in the work and also 

creates gaps in your day to day learning process. Daily attendance is something that is 

expected from all the students.  

Also, as Placement seasons will be starting immediately, daily attendance is of utmost 

importance so as not to miss out on opportunities 

Excessive absenteeism and tardiness will not be tolerated and will be cause of 

disciplinary action up to. So, attendance rules and regulations are as follows:- 

College rules 

 A student can have total 4 approved absence in a semester, means 1 approved 

absence in a month. 

 Every student has to maintain minimum 90% of attendance in a semester. 

 Every student has to take approval from Academics department and respective 

mentor for taking any off on personal or official account. 

 There will be session wise attendance every day means in a day 6-7 times 

attendance will be taken by academics depending on if you have 6 session or 7 

sessions in a day. 

 Below 90% will not be allowed to sit in exams. Attendance will play a major role 

in your academic grading which will be the basis of  shortlisting for final placement 

companies 

 Academics department will display attendance fortnightly on notice board.  

 LUNCH TIME RULES: Students have to carry their own lunch boxes to college or 

manage their lunch in college canteen itself. Lunch can also be availed in college 

mess by buying coupons from Admin Dept. Students will not be allowed to leave 

campus for lunch. 
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ABHYAAS 

Abhyaas is a series of planned Group Discussions and Personal Interviews scheduled for 

the 2nd year students as part of Placement Training. The idea behind this training program 

is to fully equip the students to face Final Placement Procedures which will start from 

September 2018 onwards or before. Through this student will understand the 

importance of team work, leadership and the ability to communicate clearly what is in 

their mind in a Group Discussion or Personal Interview which they currently lack. This 

training program will focus on bridging this gap by inducting the students in a 

professional environment making them learn how to interact and behave professionally 

in a group discussion. The rigorous and dynamic nature of the training program would 

help students understand how to prepare and perform in a group discussion. GDs and PIs 

are held in front of senior faculties or corporates. 

1. Students will be given tips on how to prepare for a group discussion and how to 
behave and perform in a group discussion. 

2. Demo of ideal group discussions will be shown after which it will be performed by 

students 

3. Individual feedback will be given at that instant and this feedback will be a very 

detailed feedback so that students realize the mistake they have done and work on 

improving for an impeccable performance. 

4. More GDs will be scheduled to check if the student has improved upon the 

previous session 

5. Students will have one GD and PI score card which they will maintain throughout 

the semester where they will have continuous evaluations 

PRAYAAS 

The objective of Integrated Learning (PRAYAS) is as follows – 

1. Getting the student ready for placement 
2. Realizing the importance of Aptitude, GD & PI  

 

Integrated learning (PRAYAS) is where we will conduct simulation of placement 

process. Every week or two, we will share different JD’s to the students. Based on the JD 

shared, the following process will be followed - 

1. Aptitude test 
2. Students shortlisted will appear for GD 
3. Final shortlisted students will appear for PI 

 

Corporate will be invited for the GDs and interviews and their feedback will be of 

utmost importance for the student’s learning and improvement.  
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SAHAAS 

Sahaas: Building Confidence- Our mentor-mentee program instils the required skills- set 

which builds the overall confidence in the students. While facing interviews during the 

placement process, students need skills on business communication and negotiations 

that provide them an opportunity to make the most out of their job offers. Individual 

mentors, who are domain experts, are tasked with imbibing the much needed throughout 

the management programme. 

  

Specific HR, 

Marketing and 

Finance JD to be 

shared to students 

Students will 

undergo Aptitude 

test 

Students will 

undergo Group 

Discussion 

Students will attend 

remedial session 

Students will 

undergo Personal 

Interview 

FAIL 

PASS 

PASS 
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JDs OF DIFFERENT COMPANIES 

JDs of some companies and profiles that have been in campus in previous years are 

shared below. 

 

 

Overview: AMAZON 

Amazon.com strives to be Earth's most customer-centric company where people can find and discover 

virtually anything they want to buy online. By giving customers more of what they want - low prices, vast 

selection, and convenience - Amazon.com continues to grow and evolve as a world-class e-commerce 

platform. Amazon's evolution from Web site to e-commerce partner to development platform is fueled by 

the spirit of innovation that is part of the company's DNA. The world's brightest technology minds come 

to Amazon.com to research and develop technology that improves the lives of shoppers and sellers 

around the world. 

Position Description:  Team Manager - Customer Service  

REPORTEES Associates  

REPORTING TO Group Manager – Customer Service  

Summary of Responsibilities    

If you are passionate about driving process improvement and motivating and leading a team of driven, 

customer-obsessed associates and team leads, all while analyzing systemic issues and implementing 

solutions to challenging problems, we have the career you’re looking for!  

A Team Manager sets the vision and culture of their teams by handling individual and team performance 

expectations and goals, maintaining singular focus on ensuring and improving customer satisfaction , by 

identifying broader customer impacting issues and implementing solutions to drive quality and 

productivity, while achieving real time desired service levels.  

Key responsibilities include:   

People Management: 

 Leading and developing a team of 20-30 associates; responsible for the overall performance 
management, coordination and evaluation of the team.  

 Actively participate in and drive the continuous improvement culture through ‘kaizen’ and lean 
projects. Identifying and eliminating barriers to accuracy, productivity, and quality. 

 Carrying out supervisory responsibilities in accordance with Amazon’s policies and procedures; 
additional responsibilities include interviewing, training and motivating employees; planning and 
assigning work; rewarding and reviewing employee performance; and effective conflict 
resolution.  

 Mentoring and act as a resource to new managers and expedite their learning curve also devise 
action plan to develop and groom associates into future CS Managers 

 Leading Site Level initiatives, primary owner of functional responsibilities that impact overall site 
like Performance Related Pay, transportation etc. and may require interface with other sites in 
network 
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 Communicating policies to associates and become the primary information source for staff; 
following-up to ensure compliance and consistency; taking corrective action as necessary and 
documenting the issue and actions taken.  

 Expected to be 2nd in line to the Operations managers and at times might be required to perform 
delegated duties of operations managers 

 Develop and Achieve performance goals and objectives in line with the network wide vision and 
goals 

Business/Operations Management: 

 Identifying customer impacting issues, working out and implementing solutions and process 
improvements to increase customer satisfaction rate. 

 Assist in developing and implementing training programs to improve the quality and productivity 
of the team.  

 Drive process improvements to enhance the operational efficiency of the site. Understanding and 
effectively utilizing resources provided by internal systems, departments, policies, and 
procedures.  

 Developing and achieving performance goals and objectives in line with the network wide vision 
and goals. 

 Focus on management of SLA, quality and customer experience 
 Trouble shooter in case of issues relating to process affecting the SLAs 

Knowledge & Skills Required 

 Demonstrated ability to build, develop and handle a group of people 
 Ability to support Business and provide solutions to customer pain points 
 Ability to handle complex and ambiguous scenarios 
 Ability to organize, prioritize and schedule work assignments 
 Ability to make administrative and procedural decisions 
 Demonstrated ability to handle reporting and analysis 
 Demonstrated passion for delivering a positive customer experience, and maintain composure in 

difficult situations 
 Ability to effectively and efficiently complete difficult goals or assignments 
 Can adapt well to changing circumstances and strategy 
 Strong interpersonal and communication skills 
 Confident in using Microsoft Package (especially Excel) 
 Fluent English skills are required for this role 
 Experience in Contact Center Operations (Customer Service, Sales, or Collections)  
 Strong in data manipulation and analysis 
 Preferred Project Management & knowledge of Six Sigma/Lean Processes 

Position Qualifications 

 Bachelor’s degree, MBA is a plus 
 3 plus years’ experience with Customer service would be an added advantage 
 Advanced computer skills using a variety of programs highly desired 
 24/7/365 availability, including willingness to work on weekends, and outside of the "standard" 

work day 

Amazon is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

ESAF Bank. 

Designation : Management Trainee 
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Eligibility 

Post graduates Candidates from leading College , with a preference to Candidates 

specialized in Rural Development /Rural Marketing / Sales & Marketing, with mind set 

to serve rural population of India & willingness to work in field 

Primary Role:  

Business Growth at Branches, Portfolio Quality, New Clients Acquisition, Team 

Management & Performance, Statutory and Business Compliance & Branch Operations. 

Location : We  operate across 11 states. Requirements would be primarily in MP, 

MH,CG,Jharkhand & Tamilnadu 

Pre Requisites for Selection: 

1.      Willingness to work in field 

2.      Excellent written and Oral Communication Skills 

3.      Good in Reasoning and aptitude 

4.      Integrity 

5.      Good Sales & Business Acumen 

6.      Service Orientation 

7.      Target Orientation  

IBall             

No of Opening - 1 (Only Female)  

1. Locations: - Delhi, Kolkata, Hyderabad, Bangalore, Chennai. 

2. Salary Bracket will be 25k to 50k, plus other allowances (**subject to change) 

They need a strong female candidate for LFR( Large Format retail). Fluent in 

communication, good personality, presentable, Clarity on their role and project 

completed in SIP. 
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JK Tyres 

  

Job Requirement 

Job Title Sales Trainee 

Training/ Probation 

Period 

6 Months 

Compensation  

(** subject to change) 

On Joining - Rs. 4.00 Lacs CTC P.A. 

 After Successful Completion of 6 Months Training and Probation – Rs. 

4.50 Lacs CTC P.A. 

Location All India (80 Locations) 

    

Qualifications 

MBA 2018 Pass out 

Specialization in Marketing & Sales 

Age Not more than 23-24 years 

Marks Throughout more than 55% (10th, 12th, Graduation, Post Graduation) 

Summer Internship In Marketing/Sales Field Only 

Experience Nil 

Male Candidates Only 

Job Description 

Roles & 

Responsibilities 

Channel Sales, network and market share enhancement 

Appointment and Handling Dealers 

Control and monitor exposure and outstanding 

Initiating Marketing activities – ATL / BTL 

Consumer / brand activities 

Customer / Dealer satisfaction index 

Selection Process 

  Group Discussion 

Personal Interview 

Psychometric Assessment 

   

 

 



21 | P a g e  
 

First Cry 

Job Profile -Digital Marketing Executive 
Position -1 
Location -Pune 
 
Role Summary: 
 
The position is responsible for managing CRM – includes SMS, Offers and related on-site 
communications. Responsible for repeat behaviour, revenues & other business KPIs 
through the channel.  
  
RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
1. End to End management of a significant part of CRM 
 
2. Manage creatives through the design team be responsible for quality of design output, 
creative experiments and impact of creatives on performance 
 
3. Responsible for performance of the channel on the Business goals – Drive 
transactions, revenues, repeat behaviour, cross-sell and up-sell 
 
4. Constructing innovative events / offers for customers, manage related design and tech 
work through relevant teams, manage site changes arising from these. 
 
REQUIREMENTS: 
 
1.  Highly energetic, self-motivated individual and passionate about learning and career 
in digital marketing 
 
2. MBA in Marketing is a plus, not mandatory 
 
a. Creative design through design teams.  
 
b. Performance or ROI through the channel 

4. Excellent written and verbal communication skills  
5. Good at creative judgment (won’t be required to design but will need to judge 

designs) 
6. Experience in an Internet company or an internet marketing agency working on 

an internet based client 
7. Exposure to other online marketing facets will be a plus, not a necessity. 
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ADITYA BIRLA FASHION & RETAIL LTD. 

  

Aditya Birla Fashion & Retail Ltd. (Madura), a part of the Aditya Birla Group is the fastest 

growing apparel brand in India. We are powerhouse of India’s leading fashion brands and 

custodian of several icons, including the top four fashion brands of India - Louis Philippe 

, Van Heusen, Allen Solly and Peter England .It also includes India's first fast-fashion 

youth brand People; India's largest fully integrated fashion multi-brand outlet 

chain, Planet Fashion; India's largest premium international brand retailer, The 

Collective and the British fashion icon, Hackett London's mono-brand retail in India. 

  

ABFRL altogether hosts India's largest fashion network with over 8000 points of sale 

across over 700+ cities and towns, which include more than 2,000 exclusive ABFRL brand 

outlets. ABFRL boasts of creating more than 20,000 new designs every year. 

-Trainee Assistant Store Manager whose principal accountabilities will be customer 

service, people management, visual merchandising, achievement of sales target etc. Upon 

deployment a T-ASM will undergo 3 month’s stint post which they shall be confirmed as 

ASM. 

Location: Pan India 

Selection criteria for shortlisting the students would be: 

For Finals: Aggregate 60% and above till date 

 Students should be open to relocate anywhere in India or within region 

 Students with extracurricular activities will be preferred (like sports, theatre, 

cooking, singing dancing etc.) 

 Should be well groomed, strong analytical and communication skill. 

Nestle 

Name of the position: Sales Officer Trainee 

Duration: 11 Months Traineeship, post which basis performance and positon availability 
they will be confirmed as a Sales Officer. 

Job Description: 

·         Assist in ensuring product availability at all relevant channels. 

·         Assist for planning & achieving monthly/ yearly targets. 

·          Assist in maintaining and enhancing trade relations. 

·         Assist all activations (Trade / Consumer) & merchandising 
(Visibility)           programs. 

·         Facilitate timely and quality feedback for all activities as per         guidelines. 

·         Overall accountable for all operational programs in the assigned area. 
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·         Management of the Distributor point in terms of compliance, efficiency, track of 
delivery from distributor to consumer, manage distributor's overhead expenses and 
ensure payments for the same. 

·         Management of the Secondary Sales Force in terms of compliance, Trainings, 
performance evaluation, coordination and communication between them and the 
distributor and optimization of their expenditure. 

·         Assist towards include identifying opportunities and potential in the area, setting 
monthly, quarterly and yearly target for distributors and ensuring product availability 
and merchandising. 

 
Selection Process 

 Aptitude Test 
 Group Discussion 
 Personal Interview 
 They will do pool campus in Delhi. 
 Location : any location of north India. 

United Breweries Limited 

 

Job  title         TSE (Territory Sales Executive) 

Department   Sales 

Location          RSO/BSO 

Grade              JMC             

1.Scope of the job 

 

Job purpose 

To achieve maximum sales profitability, growth and account 
penetration within an assigned territory and/or market segment 
by effectively selling the company’s products. 
 

 

Key 

Responsibilities 

Sales Focus 
 Achievement of agreed Market and Segment share targets. 
 Monitor Actual Sales against expectations. 

 
Implementation of TM&D plans  
 

 Implementation of market and outlet coverage plans 
 Adherence to fixed call frequency for self and customer 

groups 
 Ensure Availability and Visibility as per norms for all SKUs. 
 Ensure Cold Stocks Percentage as per norms 
 Ensure freshness as per norms 

 
Implementation of category / brand input plans 
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 Implementation of trade and consumer schemes. 
 Ensure implementation of all Branding elements at the 

appropriate place and time 
 Quality execution of merchandising activity. 
 Evaluation and Pre/during and Post sales feedback 

 
Stock control 

 Monitor & ensure the  Stock  at Depot level for all SKU 
 Monitor Chiller Stock is as per norms. 
 Monitor and report any issues in Age / Freshness of stock 
 Co-ordinate with JTSE and ASE / ASM to ensure adequate 

stock availability 
 
Competitive Feedback 

 Provide timely feedback on competitive activities 
 Provide constructive recommendations for countering 

comp activities. 
 
Market Knowledge 

  To possess a complete territorial knowledge. 
   Knowledge of Competition brands, prices, margins and 
activities. 
  To develop & maintain superior trade relations with key trade 
members. 
  

Del creder operations 
 Educate and train customer groups. 
 Demonstrate selling techniques to Customer through live 
examples conducted by self. 

2.Business context 

Reports to: Area Sales Executive/Area Sales Manager 

 

3. Job holder profile 

 

Qualifications: 

Graduate in any stream with at least 3 years of experience 

OR 

MBA with at least 1 year of experience 

Job essentials:  Ability and desire to sell.  
 Excellent communication skills.  
 Strong commercial awareness.  

Languages 

required: 

English 

Fluency in the local language may also be helpful.  
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Open Location- Anywhere in Maharashtra (Pune, Aurangabad, Kolhapur, Nasik, Yevatmal, Parbhani 

currently) 

United Colors of Benetton : 

No of openings: 1-2 

Location - Delhi (Delhi based preferred) 

Male Candidates only 

Responsibility Areas 

Achieving Undercolors (innerwear brand of Benetton India) secondary sales targets through 
distributors in the respective territory by driving more and more visibility of products at MBO and 
family stores 

Delivering on time collections and DSO for improving cash flow 

Partnering with local distributors, and identifying and engaging new distributors to penetrate the 
market reach and drive better sales numbers in line with revenue targets 

Achieving higher performance by educating and motivating sales team of MBO and family stores to 
deliver higher sales number 

Key Performance Indicators 

1 Sell out target 
achievements 2 Collection target achievements 

3 Effective partner 
management   

 

TimeInc India  

This is to inform you that there is opening with TimeInc India for Banglore Location. Its 

3 months internship after successful completion of three months the students will be 

offered Final offer. 

No of Openings: 

Marketing  

1) Supply Chain - 1 

2) Market Research - 1 
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Tata Motors Finance invites applications for “Dealer Relation Manager” position 
(JD appended in trail for your reference). 

   

 

 

 Key Objective of the Job: To maintain relationship with dealer & increase the 
business at dealer counter to meet the sales target of the Branch. 

 Major Deliverables: 

Ø  Maintain relationship with JLR dealerships  

Ø  Daily Dealership contact & visit 

Ø  Ensure enhanced sourcing & business at the dealer counter(s) are being 
managed 

Ø  Ensuring Post Debt Document (PDD) updation & Non starter collection & 
updation, to maintain the portfolio 

Ø  Ensure proper implementation of all the schemes in operation at local level & 
impart regular training on the same to the dealer Sales team 

Ø  Keep updated data on JLR retails & off take at the dealer point along with Market 
share of TMF 

Ø  Ensure good & sustained relationship with local Territory manager of JLR for all 
Products 

Ø  Daily review of the Sales team of the Dealer & focus on sustained logins. 

Specialized job competencies: 

Ø  Analytical skills 

Ø  Articulate – Communication Skills 

Ø  Cross functional interactions & co ordination 

Ø  Process Knowledge 

Ø  Ability to influence 

 Educational Qualification: Preferably MBA 

Other desired attributes: 

Ø  Self starter 

Ø  Highly motivated & enthusiastic individuals 

Ø  Good communication skills 

Ø  0 to 5 years of work experience 

Ø  Customer Service Orientation 

Ø  Process Oriented 

Ø  Interpersonal skills – Team-work 

Ø  Willingness to Learn 
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Rubique 

Channel Development & Management– Associate Manager / Manager 

 Location: Mumbai/Delhi/Bangalore/Hyderabad/Kolkata (Tier 1 cities) 

Here's what you got to do; 

 Identify all small/medium and large channel partners across all retail & SME loan products, credit card 
and Insurance products. 

 Approach them with a pitch which is relevant to them for them to sign up 

o Technological solutions & products offered 

o Payout mechanism 

o Better support 

o Help in increasing productivity 

o All products under one roof etc. 

 Organize the mentoring and training sessions through the Mentoring & Training teams 

 Ensure signing up process is in place 

 Identify non-conventional channels for creating a revenue model both for the prospective channel 
partner and for the organization 

 Ensure sign up and define the process. 

 Ensure all stakeholders are aligned internally to support the non-conventional Channel Partners 

  Follow up for retaining and growing the Channel Partners 

Here’s what you need; 

 Strong technological know-how and bent 

 Strong in conviction, positive attitude and pleasing personality 

 Strong communication, and presentation skills 

 Strong inter-personnel skills 

 Client acquisition skills consisting of: 

 prospecting methods, methods of engagement, qualification and discovery, proposal, presentation and 
closing skills 

 Client retention skills consisting of strategic account management, customer service and cross-selling 
skill 

 Sales business planning skills 

 Sales activity tracking and reporting skills 

 Time management skills 

Formal Qualification: 

Post-Graduation in any stream with relevant experience 
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Manyatech 

1. Position- Business Development Manager (IT and Software) B2B 

2. No. Of Position- 02 

3.Gender- Male or Female 

4. Qualification- Any Graduate/Master in Sales and Marketing 

5. Location- Pune 

6. Immediate joining 

 

Job-Description:- 

        Business Development 

•        Generate quality lead through market research in a timely manner 

•        ERP system ( Different Modules like Sales and Marketing, HRM, 

Production, Project cost analysis, CRM, Finance) 

•        Identifying new prospects. 

•        Make cold calls and follow ups with prospects 

•        Maintain & Update Database 

•        Identify & send introductory email to decision maker 

•        Keep a track of Key Personnel Movement 

•        Fixing up meetings with the client 

•        Reviewing and interpreting the competition after in-depth 

analysis of 

market information to fine-tune the marketing strategies 

•        Devising competitive sales programs/strategies to improve the 

product 

awareness and ensure enhanced brand visibility 

 

   Key Accountability (Institutional Sales) 

•         Achieve sales targets for the year as specified by the top 

management 

•         Build an environment which supports decision making and 

accountability 

at all levels in the team 

•         Assess demand risk and its severity to earnings of the company 

•         Build strategic alliances 

•         Generate required MIS 

•         Ensure customer satisfaction 

         Payment Collection 

         Customer Training. 

 

Supervisory Activities 

•         Ensure development of new customers and markets 

•         Assist in identifying customers with commercial potential for 

business 
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growth 

•         Establish and grow effective relationships with existing and 

potential 

clients 

•         Ensure performance evaluation is timely conducted 

•         Provide guidance and direction to new recruits within the 

department 

•         Disseminate targets set by the top management among the team and 

monitor them on a regular basis 

•        Support and facilitate development and implementation of 

marketing plans 

 

Manage client relationships 

•        Conduct presentations at events/ seminars, if required 

•        Develop internal classification of all customers across territories 

 

Additional Skills 

 

Technical skills 

•        MS Office tools: outlook, internet 

•        Professional English Language skills 

Behavioral Skills 

•        Ability to comprehensively communicate with internet customers, 

colleagues and superiors 

•        Good aptitude for innovation ,creativity and a comfort level with 

technology 

•        An energetic personality with the right attitude & an eagerness 

to learn 

in a dynamic and fast paced environment 

•        Strong project management  and  multitasking skills in a complex 

environment 

•        Excellent team work and ability to successfully work with other 

departments & team and drive quick decision 

•         Ability to analyze problems and proactive recognize need for action 

•        Self-driven and precise work approach 

•        Ability to learn and apply learning quickly 

•        Strong analytical skills to break down complex processes into 

constituent parts & prioritize 

•        Problem solving skills and detail oriented with strong customer 

focus 

•        Ability to meet strict reporting deadlines 

•        Highly self-motivated to achieve supreme standards in both quantity and quality 
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Selection Processes- GD/PI 

IFA Global 

About Us: 

 

IFA Global is one of the leading Treasury Solutions firm. We help companies explore extra-ordinary 
opportunities, manage and sustain growth through efficiency and transparency. We have always 
believed that every client needs a bespoke offering and we have a long history of serving clients 
with tailored offerings as per their needs. We provide the right people and the right skill sets to 
ensure that our clients' solutions are specifically tailored and done right the first time. The passion 
for our work culminated into long lasting partnerships and made us stand undeterred for almost a 
decade. 

Since 2005, we have been a trusted partner with over 300 permanent companies across 30 
different industries. Today, we are privileged to work with diversified clients in different industries 
and capabilities. Most of our clients are big corporate giants and listed companies, the continued 
success of these companies bear testimony to the process of responsibility we undertake to create 
value. Our Founder Mr. Abhishek Goenka is a distinguished name in Treasury Solutions and 
venerated for his insights by various publications and media houses. 

  

Find below the details of the profile: 

·         Designation: Assistant Manager, FX Sales 

·         Profile: 

o    Cold Calling and setting up meetings with CFO/MD for listed Import-Export 
houses 

o    Lead Generation 

o    Involves travel within and outside the city (2-3 times a month) 

·         Background: MBA fresher with a strong hold of finance (specifically capital 
markets) 

·         Work Hours: 8:30 AM – 5:30 PM and 2 Saturdays from 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM 

·         Bond: This role requires a 2 year commitment 

 

Darwish Cybertech  

Company Name: Darwish Cybertech  

Location: Pune  

Profile: Business Analyst (More emphasis on Analytical thinking and less on technical side)  

No. of openings: Not disclosed  
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Job Description- Choice International 

Business Line 

We provide one stop solution for Doing Business Overseas and Developing Globally. We assist clients in 

expanding their presence across the world by optimizing their capital, manpower, technology and 

information.  We aim to diversify our commercial activities across international frontiers and increase 

competitiveness in the market. Our mission is to develop a single point hub for all the compliance and 

services that are required by Investors to establish and expand business across the world. 

Job Brief 

We require Research Associate who assist and works in accordance with our business line to enhance 

growth with professionalism. With the aim of doing business overseas, we have preferred countries where 

we support investor with services for Company Incorporation, Secretarial Services, Tax Consultancy, 

Accounting and Bookkeeping, Management Consultancy, Cross Border Transactions, Corporate Regulatory 

Compliances and Other Compliance with Indian Acts (FEMA, FCRA, IT, etc.). These preferred countries 

include 100 countries from 6 regions which are as below: 

 South East and East Asia 

 Africa 

 Americas & Caribbean 

 Eurasia 

 Middle East & North Africa (MENA) 

 Australia and Oceania 

Job Requirements 

Candidate must possess excellence in interpersonal and analytical skills with the ability to do market 

research with critical thinking. Candidate must possess extraordinary communication skills in English and 

advanced knowledge on email writing. Candidate must to be familiar with Search Engines, Web Analytics, 

and Business Research Tools and have work experience in MS-office applications. Basic knowledge of most 

spoken foreign languages is an advantage. 

Key Responsibilities 

Candidate will have the following key responsibilities; 

 Conducting research on various opportunities in the allotted region 

 Keep a track of economic activities in the region specified 

 Prepare the event based and general economic impact report for various countries in the region 

 Preparation of Information Memorandum for countries by collecting, analyzing and summarizing 

information 

 Communication with the partner firm in the region specified 

 Development of new ideas and Identification of new opportunities in the international market  

 Capturing opportunities received in form of Inquiries through Firm’s Website, Telecom and Email 

(These inquiries are the services required by investors) 

 Keeping a track of inquiries received with their current status 

 Quest for an eligible associate with a competitive quote in foreign countries for the requirements 

 Close business deal by initiating the assignment and provide services with help of country 

associates 

 Regular follow up with the inquiries received  

 Handle communication with clients 

 Drafting Engagement Letter and Agreement with the investor (client)  

 Preparation of Content for the website and Developing Blogs for the websites 

 Other related work allotted by the Partner, Director or Senior Associate 
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  INDUSIND BANK 

 

Experience-0 to 2 yr. 

Roll-BRANCH AQUISTION MANAGER 

Department-Unsecured assets 

 Job Description: 

*To support branch banking, sales team to acquire unsecured product-credit card, Personal loan etc. 

*To responsible for closure of all leads generated by Branch banking related to credit card and personal 
loan. 

*To understand KYC, Documentation. 

*To handle the queries of customers related to credit card and personal loan. 

*Achieve sales target in his/her assigned territorial. 

*Maintain relationship with internal as well as external customers. 

  

Key Skill: 

*Good communication Skill 

*Should have selling Skill 

*Analytical Skill 

*Should have basic knowledge about unsecured assets 
 

FURLENCO 
 
Executive – Channel Sales. 
 
Location - Pune 
 
Furlenco is changing the way India accesses furniture. Furlenco offers furniture on rent 

and is setting new industry standards in the process. This is not only because their 

furniture is of high quality, but also because their designs are user-inspired, to truly 

transform and enhance customers’ lives and homes.  

Furlenco also pairs every unit of furniture with matching home décor; delivers in as quickly as 72 

hours; and, offers free deep cleaning during the tenure of service. Currently the company operates 

in Bangalore, Mumbai and Pune. 

 

Job Description: 

 

- Meeting with Real-estate brokers and generating leads from them resulting to conversions.  

- Effective communication skills  

- Attitude & Aptitude for Sales  

- Identifies builds and uses a wide network of contacts with people at all levels, internally and 

externally. Achieves a good result through a well-planned approach  

- Recognizes the need to adapt to change & implement appropriate solutions. can identify 

opportunities and recommend/influence for change to increase effectiveness and success on 

campaigns  
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- Creativity & Initiative - demonstrate creativity & originality in your work and have the 

personal drive and initiative to bring about change and help drive the business forward. 

 

General Motors Ltd. 

Marketing Executive- 

Experience: 1 to 6 yrs.  | 

1. Approaching potential clients in Rajasthan and getting revenue for media house. 
2. Approaching potential clients in Rajasthan to sell the other products and services of 

the company. 
3. Independent Lead generation. 
4. Accomplishing the sales target. 

 

Industry: Media / Entertainment / Internet  

 

Functional Area: Sales, Retail, Business Development  

 

Role Category: Retail Sales 

 

Voltas Ltd. - JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

 

BASIC INFORMATION 

J.D. CODE 
 

DATE OF ISSUE 
 

POSITION/ ROLE Area Sales Manager 
LOCATION 

 

DEPARTMENT/ DIVISION  GRADE M3 

ISSUED BY  
APPROVED BY 
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KEY DELIVERABLES 

1. Managing distribution channel. 
2. Expand the dealer infrastructure and appoint new channel 

partners in untapped markets and ensuring volume and market 
share growth in the given territory. 

3. Keeping a close watch on competition strategies & actions & 
working out countermeasures. 

4. .Train and guide sales executive. 
5. Handling Sales promotion schemes in association with 

Retailers 
6. Evaluating Effectiveness of Retailers/Dealers in meeting 

customer requirements. 
7. Enhancing brand visibility and recall through regular 

campaigns in association with Marketing department. 
8. Developing/Promoting the Brand Voltas. 
9. Working Capital Management 
10. Organize merchandise at major counters 
11. Ensure proper product display and visibility 

ESSENTIAL ATTRIBUTES 

1. Motivator 
2. Customer oriented 
3. Cost conscious 
4. Disciplined team work 

OPERATIONAL 

REPORTING 
BRANCH MANAGER 

FUNCTIONAL 

REPORTING 
BRANCH MANAGER 

 

INTERVIEW QUESTIONS 

General Interview Questions: 

1) Introduce Yourself? 

2) Tell me something about you? 

3) Describe yourself. 

4) Describe yourself in one word. 

5) Tell me something about you other than your CV. 

6) Tell me about your family? 

7) Tell me your hobbies. 

8) What is your interested area? 

9) Describe yourself in three words or one word or one sentence. 

10) How your friends describe you? 

11) How your teachers describe you? 

12) Tell me something about your college. 

13) Tell me something about Pune and tell me something about your home town. 
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14) Describe any topic of your choice for two minutes. 

15) What colour you like most. 

16) Which fruit you like most and why? 

17) What magazines and books you read? 

18) Which news channel you like most and why? 

19) Which is the last book you have read? 

20) Describe your everyday routine? 

21) Which is the last movie you saw? 

22) What do you do on weekends? 

23) Are you ready to work 24*7 hours? Are you flexible? 

24) If your boss asks you to work beyond working time, what will be your reaction? 

25) Are you ready to work in night shift? 

26) Do you have boy friend or girl friends? If no then why? 

27) Who is the Prime Minister, Finance Minister, Governor of RBI, Labour Minister, 

President, and Vice President of India? 

28) Who is the chief minister of Maharastra? 

29) What is the dollar rate in rupees? 

30) What are gold prices? 

31) What are Sensex and GDP? 

32) Which is your favourite subject and why? 

33) What do you do in your free time? 

34) What is the meaning of your name? 

35) Who is your role model?  

Situation Based Questions: 

1. Why do you want to work with our company? 

2. If you find that two of your staffs are fighting or arguing on the floor then how will 

you handle that situation? 

3. Suppose your male staff has passed wrong comment to a female staff then what 

will you do as a manager? 

4. If you get an opportunity to join that company from which you have done your 

internship then you will join that company or ours? 

5. Why do you want to join this sector (Retail, CD, FMCG, Cement, Paint, IT etc) 

6. What you will do if you find one theft in your store by any of your staff? 

7. What you will do if you find one of your staff coming to the store regularly but not 

following proper grooming standards? 

8. Suppose there is some emergency with any of your staff and he is asking for a long 

leave and at the same time sales period is also going on, then what will you do? 

9. You are working on a project with a tight deadline but you find that you are unable 

to complete your section because your co-worker and your supervisor are 

unavailable to answer a few key questions. How do you deal with the situation? 



36 | P a g e  
 

10. You have been assigned a major project and are halfway through when you 

realize that you’ve made a mistake that requires you to go back to the beginning 

to fix it. How do you handle that while still trying to meet your deadline? 

11. You’re a team leader. What would you do if the work of one of your subordinate 

team member was not up to expectations? 

12. You have reason to believe that a co-worker is preparing to divulge company 

secrets to a rival corporation. These secrets have the potential to really damage 

the company. How would you deal with the situation? 

Interview Questions on Channel Sales:- 

1. What do you find most rewarding about being in sales? 

2. What do you know about our company? 

3. Why do you want this channel sales executive job in our company? 

4. Why do you want to work with us? 

5. Why should we hire you? 

6. What kind of salary do you need? 

7. Do you have any questions to ask? 

8. What are your career goals for channel sales job? 

9. What are your biggest strengths? 

10. What is your greatest weakness? 

11. What have you done in last one year to improve your knowledge in channel sales 

job? 

12. What can you do for us what other candidates can’t? 

13. How do you handle stressful situations and working under pressure? 

14. What relevant experience do you have? 

15. What challenges are you looking for in this channel sales position? 

16. Describe a typical work week for channel sales job, 

17. How do you keep up to date on your target market? 

18. What is worse: not making quota every single month or not having happy 

customers? 

19. How would you approach a short sales cycle differently than a long sales cycle? 

20. When do you stop pursuing a client? 

21. What is your least favourite part of the sales process? 

22. What motivates you for sales job? 

23. How do you keep a smile on your face during a hard day?  

24. Have you ever had a losing streak? How did you turn it around?  

25. What do you think our company/sales organization could do better?  

26. What’s your approach to handling customer object ions? 

27. Have you ever asked a prospect who didn’t buy from you to explain 

why you lost the deal? What did they say, and what did you learn from 

that experience? 

28. How do you research prospects before a call or meeting? What 

information do you look for? 



37 | P a g e  
 

29. Have you ever turned a prospect away? If so, why? 

30. If you were hired for this position, what would you do in your first 

month? 

31. In the current sales environment, what is the process you go through to qualify 

prospects? 

32. What do you consider the key skills in closing? 

33. How do you know when to walk away from a sale? 

34. What is your favourite book about sales? 

35. Tell me about a situation where you had to adjust your approach to meet new 

circumstances. 

36. What are the primary functions of Sales and Distribution? 

37. What was the product you dealt with in SIP? 

38. Who were your target customers? 

39. Give a brief on the segmentation and the targeting strategies you had adopted in 

your SIP. 

40. What was the negative about the product you dealt during your SIP? 

41. Do you think you had justified the quality of the company’s products in terms of 

sales? 

42. What would you do if there were extreme pressure of targets? 

43. Imagine the company assigns you the territory and expresses regret that since 

the concerned ASM is on leave for next 7 days hence there is none who can give 

you a field induction, what will you do? 

44. In channel sales who do you think are your customers? 

45. How you will apply the knowledge of CSM in FMCG? 

46. How will you plan your work in rural area? 

47.  What can be the best promotional strategy in a rural market? 

48. What are primary, secondary & tertiary sales? 

49. What are the differences b/w Depot & a Warehouse 

50. How do you differentiate between a marketing job & a sales job? 

51. What is a flagship product? 

52. What is Umbrella branding? 

53. Company give 8+1 scheme to distributor, what would be margin given to 

distributor? ( with two decimal digit) ( Ans: 1/9*100=11.11) 

54. What is the value of 3/7 of 560? 

55. Product MRP is INR.1200, 10% discount given to distributor & 15 % discount 

given to retailer on MRP, then in what price they have purchased the product. 

56. Company want to launch new soap in existing market, where the reputation of 

the company is poor but as a whole the company is well known to, as a Sales 

Trainee what will be your approach at different channel levels? 

57. After 3 years the company offers you to work for marketing team, what will be 

your reaction to get such lucrative offer? 
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58. If company gives you a target, which you feel as unrealistic target, what would 

be your action plan? 

59. What is most critical situation in your professional life (SIP/WIP/if work ex 

have) How do you overcome yourself from that situation? 

60. Analyse your SIP? All figure & fact should be reflected on your answer. 

61. You are working in a relatively smaller company dealing with less familiar 

brands. How would you tackle a situation when the retailers are refusing to 

make the brands available? 

62. In-case you are posted by your company at a place where there is no existing 

distribution network of the company how will you go about in selling your 

products? 

63. In a situation on a closing day in the last week of the month when you have 

already achieved your Monthly target and still have a Distributor order to be 

billed? Would you prefer to bill the order this week or would you like to save it 

for the next week to credit the sales for the next month, where the stocks will 

also be dispatched the next week? 

64.  As an SO certain new areas are added to your territory where coverage will 

significantly increase your travelling expense but you have learnt from some 

reliable sources that the territory is very potential but will take some time to 

take off. How will you go about? 

65. Have you ever formulated any localized strategy? Give real example in support 

of your answer? 

66. In-case of a defunct Distributor who is not willing to resign and is backed by a 

highly unionized wholesaler association. How will you deal with the matter? 

67. A very potential retailer in your territory   does not purchase from your local 

distributor but procures the stocks of your products from another distributor 

located outside your territory. What will you do? 

68. How will you correlate Consumer Behaviour with Distribution Strategy of a 

company for an FMCG Product? 

69. Mention some localized strategies that would increase visibility of your product 

in key “POS” in your territory? 

70. The Distributor at the end of the month is refusing to give orders unless his 

previous claims are getting settled. You are new in this territory and have no 

idea on previous claims, what would you do? How will you convince? 

71. How will you improve penetration of your distributor? 

72. What steps will you follow to hire a new distributor in your territory which is 

otherwise not penetrated by your company? 

73. How would you scale up POS –wise Sales in your territory? 

74. Your boss requests you to take up some stocks with your distributors which are 

near expiry? Will you disagree? 

75. You have suddenly identified certain near expiry stocks in a retail counter in 

your territory. What will you do? 
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Interview Questions on Retail Management:- 

1. What are the roles of a departmental manager in a Departmental store like 

Shopper Stop? 

2. What do understand by Category management? Why category management is 

used to manage an organized retail store? 

3. What do understand by inventory turnover? Should inventory turnover be more 

or less? 

4. What is role of buying and merchandising department in a retail organization?  

5. What do understand by merchandise planning? What is Visual merchandising? 

6. What do understand by the following store processes or terms? 

(1)  Price/Shelf checker 

(2)  Code management 

(3)  PICS  

(4)  Receiving, Picking and dispatch 

(5)  Shrinkage management 

(6)  Retail audit 

(7)  Mystery Shopping 

7. Situational case (can be given while selection process):  

You are the chief store manager of a departmental store. Your store is holding an 

Independence Day sale on 15th August. On 15th August while you are sitting in your 

office you receive the following information: 

The store is packed with people who have come to buy appliances on which there 

is a major discount. One such item is the Murphy Richards oven. The people who 

have come in when the doors were just opened are standing in the line at the 

purchase counter when they are informed that none of the card machines are 

working and that they will have to pay cash. As there are only a limited number of 

the ovens, people who came late and did not get a chance to buy join the queue 

and claim that they have the cash and can pay for the item right now while the 

early bird customers request that they be given time to go to home and get the 

money. Due to heavy rains the trains have stopped and only 30% of the employees 

have made it to the store. While the sale is in progress, a pregnant woman starts 

claiming that she is having labour pains. She is alone in the store and her husband 

will be coming after 2 hours. Some customers are complaining that from a sale 

held a month ago on a particular food item they have all got food poisoning and 

have come with the police. You have found that this product is actually faulty and 

you do not know who all have purchased these products but you do know that out 

of 1000 products sold, 800 people paid using credit cards. Taking advantage of the 

confusion, some customers are shoplifting by walking out of the store with Gillette 

razors on which there is a sale in their pockets. These razors are kept in an open 

bin from which they are picking up the razors. 

Additional information - There is a management institute opposite your store 

which is hosting Independence Day celebrations. The ATM near the store is out of 
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cash and the nearest ATM is 15km away from the store. The Met Department has 

predicted that these heavy rains will continue for 2 days. Due to low visibility only 

a few flights are functional. The hospital is 2 km away. A section of the store is 

closed due to construction work and customers are complaining about the noise. 

One of your announcement speakers isn't working. A nearby store manager is 

willing to provide additional employees from his store if informed 2 hours in 

advance. One of the customers has a flat tyre and is requesting one of the 

employees for help. Lastly, a society near you is playing loud music due to 

Independence Day celebrations. 

What will you do and why? Explain in detail the sequence of actions that you will 

take. Give rationale how did you prioritize a particular action over another? 

8. What do you know about the following store formats? What are different 

challenges for each format? 

o Franchise  

o Independent 

o Chain stores 

o Leased department 

o Consumer cooperative  

o Super Markets  

o Hypermarkets  

o Departmental Stores  

o Specialty Stores  

o Category Killers  

o Discount Stores  

o Convenient Stores 

o Cash and Carry  

o  Vending machine 

o Catalogue stores 

o Online stores 

o Hyper local formats 

o Unique and innovative designs 

 

9. What is planogram? What the basic rules of designing a planogram? 

10. What do you mean by Retail SOPs? Discuss with examples? 

Interview Questions on Market Research:- 

1. What is the difference between cross sectional research design & longitudinal 

research design? Explain with specific examples, which design is appropriate for 

which situations? 

2. Discuss how you will plan for conducting a focus group to determine attitudes 

towards and preferences for imported automobiles.  

3. What do you understand by sampling? What is simple random sampling and how 

will you take a sample from population using simple random sampling? 
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4. What is cross tabulation and what is its purpose? How is Chi-square method used 

to find the significance difference in cross tabulation?   

5. What is Hypothesis testing? What is the purpose of creating Null Hypothesis?  

6. What are projective techniques? What is its objective? Discuss few methods used 

in projective techniques.  

7. What is systematic sampling? How will you draw a sample from the population 

using systematic sampling?  

8. Specify the objectives for a focus group and what is role of a moderator in a focus 

group discussion.  

9. Can you suggest different phases of this research? Explain the modalities & 

objectives of each phase clearly.  

10. What is the major difference between stratified sampling and cluster sampling? 

Discuss it with examples. 

11. What are the steps in designing a questionnaire? What is a double barrel error in 

questionnaire design? 

12. What do you understand by reliability and validity? What are the different 

methods of measuring the reliability of a measuring instrument? 

13. Describe the 4 primary scales of measurement. What is the difference between a 

Ratio and Interval scale? 

14. A researcher wishes to compare two hotels on the basis of convenience of location, 

friendly personnel, and value of money. Design a Likert scale to accomplish this 

task. 

15. What is the difference between Discriminant analysis & Regression analysis? 

What are the underlying assumptions for both the analysis? 

16. What is the difference between basic and applied research. A researcher 

investigates five personality traits to see if they can explain the purchasing power 

of the automobile buyers. What type of research is this (applied or basic) give 

reasons for the same. 

17. Distinguish the following concepts as used in research. Explain using examples.   

i) Research objectives and hypotheses  

ii) Independent and dependent variables  

iii) Target population and accessible population  

iv) Nominal and Ordinal Scale  

v) Field and Lab experiments 

vi) Snowball and quota sampling 

Vii) Parametric and non-parametric tests 

Viii) t-test and ANOVA 
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iX) Factor and Cluster analysis 

X) Primary and Secondary research 

Interview Questions on B2B:- 

1. Since you have decided to make a job in B2B sales, what criteria are you using to 

select your employer?  

2. What can you tell me about our company?  

3. From reviewing our website, what is one change you would suggest we make to 

the site and why?  

4. Having learned about our business (pre-interview), what opportunities do you 

feel we are missing?  

5.  What did you do to prepare for this interview today?  

6.  Why do you feel you are the best person for this role?  

7.  How will you generate leads?  

8. When prospecting, what is your approach to setting a meeting?  

9. Why do you think people buy from you?  

10. No one is perfect... What is the one thing you are working to improve upon?  

11. What do you do to improve your sales skills?  

12. How do you research prospects before calling them?  

13. If I were to speak with your manager, what would be the one thing that he or she 

would say is your biggest weakness?  

14. If I were to speak with your manager, what would be the one thing that he or she 

would say is your biggest strength?  

15. Of all of the careers you could select, why B2B sales?  

16. In your current sales role, how do you qualify an opportunity?  

17. Share a goal that you set and how you achieved it. What do you attribute to your 

success?  

18. Share a goal that you set, but failed to achieve. Why did you fail? What did you 

learn?  

19. Share a time when your flexibility was challenged. How did you deal with that?  

20. Part of what makes our business successful is being responsive to the market 

which means constant change. How do you deal with change? 

21. How do you stay organized? 

22. Describe your ideal sales culture. 

23. Describe your ideal sales manager. 

24. How will you get up to speed in your sales role with our company? 

25. What is it about your background and skills that tell you that this opportunity is a 

great fit for you? 

26. What causes a sales person to fail? 

27. Rejection is a big part of sales. How do you recover? 

28. How do you overcome your top competitor? 

29. Where do you see your sales career in five years? 
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30. What's the most common objection you experience when selling for your current 

company? How do you handle it? 

31. What CRMs have you used in the past and how have they helped you sell more? 

32. In your current and past sales roles, who were the ultimate decision-makers 

(level) for your offering?  

33. How do you manage your territory so you call on the right prospects at the right 

time? 

34. Describe a time when you had a conflict with a peer. How did you resolve it? 

35. In your current sales role, what metrics do you use to keep yourself on track to 

achieve the annual sales goal? 

36. Share a time when you had to come up with a creative solution for a prospect. 

37. How do you create value with your clients? 

38. What do you like least about your current sales manager? 

39. How much time do you dedicate to prospecting for new business each week? 

40. Share with me a time when you had a frustrated, upset client that was on the brink 

of leaving for a competitor. How did you handle it? What was the outcome? What 

did you learn? 

41. Share with me a time when you developed an account from scratch. Walk me step-

by-step through the chronology of events that ultimately led to your being 

awarded the account. 

42. How would you describe your selling style? 

43. How do you stay up to speed on the news and trends in your industry? 

44. Share a time when you took a small, current client and turned them into a large 

account. 

45. What three adjectives would you use to describe your ideal sales manager?  

46. What is your sales call preparation plan? 

47. Share a time when you had to use multiple internal resources to win an account. 

48. What would be your plan to learn our industry? 

49. Do you prefer to work alone or with teams? Why? 

50. Who was your best mentor? How did they impact you? 

51. Have you been successful building a referral-based business? What is your 

strategy? 

52. What makes you unbeatable? 

53. Share a time when your competitor was in the lead, but you overcame them and 

won the account. 

54. Share a time when you had to break the rules. What was the outcome? 

55. Share a time when your ethics were challenged. What was the outcome? 

56. If we were to extend an offer to you, what would you want to know to make an 

educated, informed decision?  

57. In your current sales role, what are your goals for the first meeting with a 

prospect? 

58. Since there are a number of influencers in the sales of our offering, what is your 

process to navigate through an account? 



44 | P a g e  
 

59. If you were selling for a company, making a lucrative income, but the product 

quality was poor; would you continue to sell for them? 

60. Describe a time when you took a leadership role (work or outside of work). What 

did you accomplish? What did you learn from the experience? 

61. Share a time with me when you got outsold by the competition. How did it happen? 

What did you learn? 

62. What is your approach in working with Procurement Agents? 

63. When you look at the sales profession, what changes do you foresee in the near 

future? 

64. How have you used social media to generate leads? 

65. We have two available sales roles in our company. One of the roles has the primary 

responsibility of expanding the revenue relationship with our clients. The other 

role is a pure business development role starting from scratch. The first role pays 

more in the first two years, but the other role is much more lucrative in future 

years. Which role is most of interest to you? Why? 

66. Scenario: Upon submitting your proposal to a client, they balk at the price. What 

is your resolution approach? 

67. Scenario: After building a relationship with a prospective client, it becomes 

apparent that this person does not have power to make a buying decision. What 

do you do? 

68. Scenario: Out of the blue a request for proposal (RFP) appears on your desk. You 

and your company have no history with this company. What is your blind RFP 

strategy? 

69. Scenario: You receive notification that your proposal has been selected as a finalist 

and are invited to make a group presentation. What is your approach to prepare 

for the finalist presentation?  

70. Scenario: In working with a prospect, you recognize that they need a particular 

product, but your company also offers a higher-priced one that pays a higher 

commission to the sales person. You could probably sell the more expensive 

product to the prospect. What do you do? 

71. Scenario: During a prospecting session, you encounter someone who immediately 

wants to know the price. If you give the price, you will lose because you are a high-

priced provider, but offer significant advantages over the competition. If you don't 

give the price, the prospect hangs-up the phone frustrated. What do you do? 

72. Scenario: In your work with a prospect, you uncover that they do not have a 

budget for your solution. What do you do? 

73. What questions do you have of me? 

 

Interview Questions on Digital Marketing:- 

1. What is Digital Marketing? 

2. Why is Digital Marketing important? 



45 | P a g e  
 

3. Can you explain how the Financial Services have adopted Digital Marketing as their 

part of their growth strategy? 

4. How do companies respond to online complaints of clients/customers?  

5. Recently Online Reputation Management has become popular with companies. Do 

you know what Online Reputation Management is? 

6. Can you throw some light on Social Media analytics? 

7. What is the difference between Traditional Marketing and Digital Marketing? 

8. What do you mean by SEM? Can you do SEM for my company? 

9. What is Email marketing? Can you tell the steps involved in email marketing? 

10. What do you mean by Blog Marketing? How can you leverage it for the growth of a 

business? 

11. What do you know about Google Adwords? 

12. How is Return on Investment calculated in digital marketing campaigns? 

13. Can you develop an online marketing plan for my new product which I am planning 

to launch in the market? 

14. Which companies do you think are the most successful in leveraging social media as 

medium to promote themselves? Why? 

15. Are you good in content writing? Can you write a content now which could be used 

in the company’s blog? 

16. What is the company you admired the most for adopting digital marketing the 

correct way? Why? 

17. Is there any disadvantage of digital marketing? If yes, what? 

18. Have you prepared presentations in your MBA/PGDM course? Can you show them 

and lead us through the presentation? 

19. Would you be able to explain how E-commerce companies leverage Digital 

Marketing for the growth of their business? 

20. What do you see the future of Digital Marketing in India as? 

Interview Questions on Relationship Manager:- 

1. What do you understand by Relationship Manager and how he is different from Sales 

Manager? 
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2. What do you think are the basic important qualities required for Relationship 

Manager? 

3. Do you have those qualities to be effective Relationship Manager? 

4. In the era of Digital Banking, do you think Relationship Manager has lost its 

relevance? 

5. What do you know about Small Payments Bank, which are the few players in this 

segment? 

6. What is the difference between Small Payments Bank and Small Finance Bank? 

7. What impact will these small banks will have on established banks. 

8. Do you know difference between Relationship Manager (Acquisition) and 

Relationship Manager    (Service) 

9. Are you comfortable working independently or as a team member. 

10 Do you think you have any leadership qualities…..if yes what are they. 

11. Which of the leadership qualities you possess will be helpful in role of Relationship 

Manager. 

12. As a relationship manager which product you would be comfortable selling: 

Insurance/Mutual Fund/CASA/Retail Assets. 

13. What is NRI Relationship Manager? 

14. What do you know about NRI accounts? 

15. How would you as a Relationship Manager acquire NRI accounts, what will be your 

business plan. 

16. As a Relationship Manager, what will be your strategy to promote CASA products of 

the bank? 
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YOUR LEARNING PATH IN PIBM 

 

 

In line with your goals and as per industry needs, PIBM 1st year (Semesters I and II) gave 

you practical exposures on: 

 Aptitude Training 

 Communication Training 

 Excel Training 

 Verbal and Non-Verbal  Presentations 

 Overviews of Group Discussions and Personal Interviews  

 Mini Projects and Live Projects 

 Corporate Events 

You have also got your specializations as per your interest and also an opportunity to 

clear all concepts in interested areas through the Summer Internship Project (SIP) and 

also various events and occasions held in Semester II like 
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 Live Projects and Field Visits 

 Industry Interactions (Corporate Sessions, FMCG Day, Fintech Day, etc) 

 Mentoring Sessions 

 Case Studies and Presentations 

 External Workshops  

YOUR JOURNEY AHEAD AND WHAT TO LOOK FORWARD 

 

Semester III will make you Industry Ready so that you are successful in your 

placement process and beyond and for that purpose, Sessions and Trainings will be 

based on your specialization so that you get in-depth knowledge of the sector you are 

interested in. 

TRAINING PEDAGOGY OF SEMESTER III 

HOW TO BECOME INDUSTRY READY?  

The Semester III curriculum includes extensive training for Placements like JD based 

training, Sector and Profile based training, Mock GDs and PIs with Corporates, 

Corporate Interactions, Integrated Learnings, and Knowledge Sharing sessions. 

All trainings and sessions will follow the Unique Teaching Pedagogy of PIBM –The SCPS 

Approach. 

• To clear the 
basics of all the 
management 
subjects

• To improve 
Aptitude, 
communication 
and Excel Skills.

Semester-I

• To select 
Specialisation 
and interested 
sectors. 

• Clear all concept 
on interested 
area.

Semester-II

• To become 
industry 

ready.

Semester-III
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WHAT IS SCPS? 

At PIBM, we combine inputs from all industry sources with what the Job descriptions 

require and train our students using real time industry data. 

SCPS Training Approach- 

 

 

 

In most of the business schools, the pattern is to teach the students with the theoretical 

concepts of the subjects. But in PIBM we teach each concept with application oriented 

approach for which we use “SCPS Approach”. 

Extensive Case 
Studies

• Analysing of 
more and more 
cases

JD Based 
Trainings

• By preparing of 
JDs of different 
profiles as you 
read in Sem II

Mock GDs and 
PIs

• Preparation of 
interview 
questions to be 
asked in 
companies

• Mock GDs and 
PIs by 
corporates

Skill 
Enhancement

• Enhancing 
skills like 
managerial 
skills, 
interpersonal 
skills, excel, 
aptitude and 
communication 
skilles

What is SCPS

• Sector/Compan
y/Product/Servi
ce

• How every 
concept works 
and varies in 
different sectors 
and for different 
products

Why SCPS

Graduation pattern –
Teach Theory, Forget 

Application!

Industry Demand –
Trained candidates 

with application 
orientation and 

smart working skills

How SCPS 
works?

• Training of each 
concept based on 6-
8 different sectors

• Evaluation only 
based on 
application

• Real life case 
studies, Live 
Projects and 
internships

Takeaway 
from SCPS

Student develops 
analytical mind

Everything is 
visualized in 

different sectors 
and for different 

products
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PIBM’s training methodology is unique and designed with an objective to make 

students understand the real life practical application of Business theory. One of 

our unique things about the teaching methodology followed in PIBM is the SCPS approach 

of teaching. SCPS stands for Sector/Company/Product/Service aspect of learning any 

management concept. SCPS pedagogy is specific training on different sectors and 

products like- 

 FMCG (Products like Soap, Biscuit, Pen from companies like ITC, Marico, Cello, etc) 

 Consumer Durables (Products like TV, AC, Mobile, Laptop from companies like 

Samsung, Haier, iBall, etc) 

 Automobile (Two wheeler, Four Wheeler, heavy and commercial vehicle from 

companies lilke Bajaj, Mahindra, etc) 

 Retail (Gadget retail like Tata Croma, Next, Clothing retail like Pantaloons, 

Shoppers Stop and FMCG retail like More, Big Bazaar, Reliance Fresh) 

 Financial Services and Banking (Citi Bank, Axis Bank, ICICI Group, India Info 

line, Money house) 

 Infrastructure (Paints like Asian Paint, Berger Paint, Dulux Paint, Nerolac; 

Cement Like JK Cement, ACC cement, Birla cement; Steel Like Tata Steel Essar 

Steel; L&T infra.)  

 IT Enabled Services (99 Acres.com,Just Dial, IndiaMart) 

With the SCPS methodology, any topic which is taught is explained with the real world 

application in various sectors, and different products or services of several companies 

which also helps to clarify that management strategies vary in different sectors for 

different products and services. 

How SCPS Approach is Applied? 

The faculty have to choose a topic and then following steps are to be taken:- 

 

Step-1

Decide two-
three  

sectors to 
train 

students

e.g-
consumer 
Goods,CD, 

Automobile

Step-2

Select few 
companies 

from chosen 
sector

e.g. P&G, HUL, 
ITC etc.

Step-3

Select common product category 
and then list down their 

respective products

e.g. Product category-Shampoo

P&G- head & Shoulder

HUL- Clinic Plus

ITC- Fiama Di Wills

Similar comparison  will do for 
other sectors also with data.
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The whole training pedagogy is devided into three steps: 

Comparison- 

Students have to first select the product of chosen companies from selected 

sector.Comparison have to be done on various parameters like:  

 Pricing Strategies-How the price of the product is arrived at using cost sheet of 

different components and associated services 

 Product Quality-Using data derived from market 

 Market Penetration- Using data derived from Market 

 Promotion Strategies Etc.- Use data of Expenditure Vs. Return 

Interpretation- 

Then Students have to do analysis on various factors discussed during comparison phase 

with the help of the faculty. 

Conclusion- 

Conclusion to be derived by students of complete discussion for the topic- e.g. 

Segmentation in this case with the help of faculty. 

UNIQUE CLASSROOM TRAINING PEDAGOGY AT PIBM- 

  Unique training pedagogy of PIBM is that we have divided each session into two parts: 

1. Guided Session 

2. Unguided Session 

Guided Session Method:- 

The guided Session is a type of training method under SCPS approach where faculty have 

to guide the students through complete training session.Guided Session includes:- 

 Trainer delivers the topic using example of a sector, company, product or service. 

 75% of class time is reserved for guided class activity such as GD, Role Play, 

Simulation exercise, Extempore, etc. to ensure absorption of concept. 

 Trainer concludes the session clarifying all doubts and details of topic . 

Unguided Session Method:- 

The unguided session follow the guided session where faculty has to assign only sector 

to the students and monitor their dicussion on sector assigned or case given. 

Unguided Session includes:- 

 Students come prepared with pre-assigned tasks like case study and participate in 

a class activity which is monitored by  the Trainer. 
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 Every student is evaluated continually through the session.  

 A feedback is given by the trainer at the end of the session to individual students 

Those who understand the topic are taken ahead in the subject; weak students identified 

are aligned for remedial sessions. 

TRAINING PROCESS FLOWCHART 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

TRAINING 

GUIDED 

SESSION 

UNGUIDED 

SESSION 

FEEDBACK- GROUP 

& INDIVIDUAL 

BARRICADING FOR 

DEAFULTERS/NON-

PERFORMERS 

REMEDIAL SESSION 

RE-

EVALUATION 

ASSESSMENT ON 

BASIS OF SESSION & 

ASSIGNMENTS 
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SEMESTER CURRICULUM 

PGDM 

Sr. 
No. 

Subjects Section 
Name of 
Faculty 

Brief Profile 

1 
Strategic Business 
Management 

Common for all 
PGDM  

Mr. Bibhas and 
Mr. Anirban 

5+ years of corporate exp. and 
10+ years of academic exp. 

2 
Legal Aspects of 
Business 

Common for all 
PGDM  

Dr. Vilas 
Kulkarni 

30 years of corporate and 
academic experience  

3 

Entrepreneurship 
Development and 
Project 
Management 

Common for all 
PGDM  

Ms. Palak 
Sharma 

3 yrs. Corporate Exp 
8 yrs. Academics Exp 

4 
Advance Machine 
Learning 

HR Analytics Dr.Hemlata 
3 yrs Industry and 5 yrs 
Academic Exp 

5 
Time Series 
Analysis 

HR Analytics Ms.Seema 
6.5 + years professional 

experience working in the 
data analytics field 

6 HR Analytics 
Core HR and HR 

Analytics 
Dr. Prantosh 

Banerjee 

PhD from IIM Ahmadabad, 
More than 30 years of rich 
Experience in Industry and 

Academics 

7 
Human Resource 
Information System  

Core HR and HR 
Analytics 

Dr. Lele 
3.5 years of industry exp and 

4.2 years of academic exp  

8 Employee Relation  
Core HR and HR 

Analytics 
Dr. Khushboo 5+ years of Academic Exp 

9 Strategic HR 
Core HR and HR 

Analytics 
Dr. Rajasshrie 

14 yrs of Exp (Industry, 
Research, Academics & 

Administration) 

10 
Organisation 
Development 

Core HR and HR 
Analytics 

Dr. Abhijeet Lele 
3.5 years of industry exp and 

4.2 years of academic exp 

11 
Workshop on R&S, 
PMS, EE, L&D and 
Comp & Ben 

Core HR and HR 
Analytics 

PMS: Dr. Rajasshrie  
R&S: Ms. Poornima 
EE: Dr. Rajalakshmi 

L&D: Ms. Asha 
Comp&Ben: Dr. Khushboo 

  

** Aptitude Training, Communication Training, Excel and Advanced Excel training and Workshop on 
Accountability will be planned along with the subjects 
** Integrated Learning will be done and Abhyas and Prayas (As explained in Pg No : 16) will be 
incorporated in the time table for which Industry people will be required. 
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MBA 

Sr.No Subjects Section Faculty Brief Profile 

1 Strategic Management 
Common 
Subject 

Mr. G. Pravin 
13+ yrs total exp in 
marketing domain 

2 
Enterprise Performance 
Management 

Common 
Subject 

Mr. Ashok 
Kumar 

 25+ years of corporate 
and academic experience  

3 
Start -Up & New Venture 
Management 

Common 
Subject 

Ms. Palak 
Sharma 

3 yrs. Corporate Exp 
8 yrs. Academics Exp 

4 
Labour and Social Security 
Laws 

HR  Adv. Bonagiri 
Advocate with more than 

20 years of exp  

5 
HR Accounting and 
Compensation Management 

HR Mr. A.P.Rao 30+ yrs Academic Exp 

6 
Human Resource 
Information System 

HR 
Dr. Abhijeet 
Lele 

3.5 years of industry exp 
and 4.2 years of academic 

exp  

7 HR Audit HR Ms. Neha   

8 Lab in Training HR Ms. Neha   

9 
Lab in Recruitment & 
Selection 

HR Ms.Poornima 
2+ yrs Corporate Exp 
5+ yrs Academic Exp 

** Aptitude Training, Communication Training, Excel and Advanced Excel training and Workshop on 

Accountability will be planned along with the subjects 

** Integrated Learning will be done and Abhyas and Prayas (As explained in Pg No : 16) will be 

incorporated in the time table for which Industry people will be required. 
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EVALUATIONS 

PGDM 

 

Internal Evaluation 

We have Internal Evaluations of 50 marks which consists: 

 Assignment 

 Presentation 

 Unguided Session/Pre-post reading 

 Projects/Test 

 Test/Mid Terms and End Terms 

 Subject Wise Viva/Role Play 

1. Assignments- Faculty has to give assignments to all the students after every topic 

and it is based on application of the concept. Students need to submit the 

assignments on given deadline in the lockers allocated section-wise on 2nd floor in 

front of faculty room. 

Students need to write assignments with using and analysing data using some 

websites like Proquest, Ace Analyser and Bloomberg.  

 For using Proquest- www.proquest.com/go/yourpath 

 For Using Ace Analyser- www.aceanalyser.com/ 

 For Using Bloomberg- www.bloomberg.in/ 

PGDM 
EVALUATIONS

CONTINUOUS 
INTERNAL 

EVALUATIONS

ASSIGNMENTS

HOME 
ASSIGNMENTS

FIELD 
ASSIGNMENTS

CLASS TESTS

UNGUIDED 
SESSIONS-

DISCUSSIONS

PRESENTATIONS 
AND 

EXTEMPORES

CLASS 
PARTICIPATION

EXTERNAL 
EVALUATIONS

MID TERMS AND 
END TERMS

http://www.proquest.com/go/yourpath
http://www.aceanalyser.com/
http://www.bloomberg.in/
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2. Presentations- There are presentations after completing 25% of syllabus in many 

subjects. So there will be 3-4 presentation in each subject in a semester. At PIBM 

we have different way to evaluate presentations. Students will get different sector, 

different company and different product on each topic. The presentation may be 

individual or in group. 

      So students need to analyze company data of particular product on the given topic. 

      There are certain parameters on which we evaluate you for presentations- 

 

 

 

3. Unguided Sessions/GDs- The unguided session follows the guided session where 

faculty has to assign only sector to the students and monitor their discussion. 

Objective of Unguided session is to check: 

 Students have understood the concept discussed during guided session. 

 They can relate the concept to other sectors without guidance by the faculty. 

          Following are the steps involved during unguided session:  

 A case study will be shared with the students in advance on different sectors: 

 Then class is to be divided into groups  

 Each group will have discussion in different classrooms in front of different 

faculty members. 

 Discussion will be followed as per all three steps: Problem identification, 

Interpretation and conclusion. 

The parameters on which we evaluate unguided session are- 
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4. Projects- We at PIBM give projects to the students in many subjects. If any student 

is doing project in the semester then it improves following skills of the student: 
 Planning and critical thinking 

 Interpersonal and Presentation skills 

 Handling of Cross cultural resources 

 Visualizing and decision making 

 Independent 

The project than has to be submitted in the form of report. You may also be asked to 

present on it. 

 

5. Role Plays-Role Play involves imagination and stimulates the student’s 

imagination. It also enhances their: 
 Social development. 

 Encourage friendship through cooperation. 

 Listening and turn taking skills. 

 Learn to express all their feelings. 

 Improve language and movement skills. 

 Improve team building skills. 

 Improve leadership skills. 

 Develop decision making and problem solving skills 

6. Test-  
 Testing improves transfer of knowledge to new context. 

 Testing improves meta-cognitive monitoring by giving students score so that they 

can better predict their knowledge. 

 Testing identifies gaps in knowledge. 

 Immediate feedback will be given by the faculty after taking test (Within a week). 
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Final Evaluation- 

Final Evaluations includes:- 

 Mid Term and End Term Exams- Mid Term and End Term exams are conducted in 

the middle and end of the semester respectively. Exams may be open book or 

closed book. The exam is based on application of the concept so that we allow book 

to refer for concept sometimes, but exam will be completely based on data and 

application. Unfair means in these exams can lead to cancellation of the paper 

altogether. 

Type of 

Evaluation 

Description of Evaluation Marks contains 

 

Continuous 

Internal 

Assessment 

Presentations 15% 

Viva 10% 

Test/Project 10% 

Assignment 5% 

Unguided Session/Pre-post reading 5% 

Attendance 5% 

End Semester 

Exam 

50 Marks written Examination (Practical 

Exam in exceptional subjects) 

50% 

 

** A minimum of 40% marks has to be secured as a sum of Continuous Internal 

Assessment and End Semester Exam. In case the candidate remains absent or secures 

zero marks in continuous evaluation and secures passing marks in End Semester Exam, 

the candidate will be declared fail and vice-versa is also fail. 
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MBA 

 

 

Internal Evaluation- 

 Presentation 
 Viva 
 Test 
 Projects 
 Assignment (Both Home and Field) 

 

Online Exam- There will be online exam in the semester which will be conducted by 
university within the 1.5-2 months of starting of semester, and 2 units of syllabus will be 
covered by online exam. It will be of 20 marks. Dates will be decided by university. 

External Evaluation- 

Written Exam held at the end of semester and will be conducted by University of Pune. 

Type of 
Evaluation 

Description of Evaluation Marks contains 

Online Exam Online Exam 20% 

 Presentations 10% 

Projects 5% 

EVALUATIONS

ONLINE EXAM

INTERNAL 
EVALUATION

PRESENTATIONS

VIVA

TEST

PROJECTS

ASSIGNMENTS

HOME 
ASSIGNMENTS

FIELD 
ASSIGNMENTS

EXTERNAL 
EVALUATIONS

END TERM 
EXAM
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Continuous 
Internal 
Assessment 

Test 5% 

Viva 5% 

Assignment 5% 

End Semester 
Exam 

50 Marks written Examination (Practical 
Exam in exceptional subjects) 

50% 

**Note-  

 Marks per evaluation may vary subject wise. 

 Passing marks has to be obtained in all three forms of evaluation 

ATTENDANCE & LEAVE POLICIES 

You are here at PIBM to work hard and fulfil your dreams. For fulfilling your dreams you 

have to be punctual to your classes. Absence causes a slow-down in the work and also 

creates gaps in your day to day learning process. Good attendance is something that is 

expected from all the students.  

Also, as Placement seasons will be starting immediately, daily attendance is of utmost 

importance so as not to miss out on opportunities 

Excessive absenteeism and tardiness will not be tolerated and will be cause of 

disciplinary action up to. So, attendance rules and regulations are as follows:- 

College rules 

 A student can have total 2 days approved absence in a semester. 

 Every student has to maintain minimum 95% of attendance in a semester. 

 Every student has to take approval from Academics department and respective 

mentor for taking any off on personal or official account. 

 There will be session wise attendance every day means in a day 6-7 times 

attendance will be taken by academics depending on if you have 6 session or 7 

sessions in a day. 

 Below 95% will not be allowed to sit in exams. Attendance will play a major role 

in your academic grading which will be the basis of  shortlisting for final placement 

companies 

 Academics department will display attendance fortnightly on notice board.  

 LUNCH TIME RULES: Students have to carry their own lunch boxes to college or 

manage their lunch in college canteen itself. Lunch can also be availed in college 

mess by buying coupons from Admin Dept. Students will not be allowed to leave 

campus for lunch. 
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ABHYAAS 

Abhyaas is a series of planned Group Discussions and Personal Interviews scheduled for 

the 2nd year students as part of Placement Training. The idea behind this training program 

is to fully equip the students to face Final Placement Procedures which will start from 

September 2018 onwards or before. Through this student will understand the 

importance of team work, leadership and the ability to communicate clearly what is in 

their mind in a Group Discussion or Personal Interview which they currently lack. This 

training program will focus on bridging this gap by inducting the students in a 

professional environment making them learn how to interact and behave professionally 

in a group discussion. The rigorous and dynamic nature of the training program would 

help students understand how to prepare and perform in a group discussion. GDs and PIs 

are held in front of senior faculties or corporates. 

1. Students will be given tips on how to prepare for a group discussion and how to 
behave and perform in a group discussion. 

2. Demo of ideal group discussions will be shown after which it will be performed by 

students 

3. Individual feedback will be given at that instant and this feedback will be a very 

detailed feedback so that students realize the mistake they have done and work on 

improving for an impeccable performance. 

4. More GDs will be scheduled to check if the student has improved upon the 

previous session 

5. Students will have one GD and PI score card which they will maintain throughout 

the semester where they will have continuous evaluations 

PRAYAAS 

The objective of Integrated Learning (PRAYAS) is as follows – 

1. Getting the student ready for placement 
2. Realizing the importance of Aptitude, GD & PI  

Integrated learning (PRAYAS) is where we will conduct simulation of placement 

process. Every week or two, we will share different JD’s to the students. Based on the JD 

shared, the following process will be followed - 

1. Aptitude test 
2. Students shortlisted will appear for GD 
3. Final shortlisted students will appear for PI 

Corporate will be invited for the GDs and interviews and their feedback will be of 

utmost importance for the student’s learning and improvement.  
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SAHAAS 

Sahaas: Building Confidence- Our mentor-mentee program instils the required skills- set 

which builds the overall confidence in the students. While facing interviews during the 

placement process, students need skills on business communication and negotiations 

that provide them an opportunity to make the most out of their job offers. Individual 

mentors, who are domain experts, are tasked with imbibing the much needed throughout 

the management programme. 

  

Specific HR, 

Marketing and 

Finance JD to be 

shared to students 

Students will 

undergo Aptitude 

test 

Students will 

undergo Group 

Discussion 

Students will attend 

remedial session 

Students will 

undergo Personal 

Interview 

FAIL 

PASS 

PASS 
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JDs OF DIFFERENT COMPANIES 

A) Company: ASHIKA GROUP 

ABOUT ASHIKA GROUP  

Ashika Group is a premier financial services provider, offering numerous packages and 

products including securities trading, depository, distribution, corporate lending and 

investment banking under one roof through a dedicated & experienced team of 

professionals. 

The Group began operations in 1994, merely years after India became an open economy, 

and the story of our growth has been parallel to that of the country. Over the years, we 

have served the specific needs of more than 80,000 clients. Our pan-India network 

includes more than 600 branches and Authorized Persons. 

 Ashika Group has a team of 200 professionals.  

With us, your growth can never be stagnant as we believe that the secret behind 

success is “Growing and sharing with you” 

Our Vision 

To be a globally recognized financial service provider, leveraging the best of technology, 

people and ideas 

Our Mission 

To reach our vision with integrity, honesty and fairness to all stakeholders viz. Clients, 

Employees, Business Associates, Regulatory Authorities and the Society. 

ABOUT ASHIKA CAPITAL 

Ashika Capital limited (ACL) is registered as a Category-1 merchant banker under the 

flagship of Ashika Group. ACL has successfully executed over 35 public issues, 120 

takeover & 80 other advisory services. 

 Position  : HR Executive 

Location & Mobility  : Mumbai  

Educational 

Qualifications:  

• PGDM/MBA HR  

Experience:  • 0 to 1 year of professional experience (post-graduation) in 

management  
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Knowledge/Skills/ 

Personal attributes:  

• Strong analytical skills and structured thinking  

• Excellent communication skills (written and oral)  

• Proficiency with MS-Office (particularly, Power Point and 

Excel)  

• Maturity and ability to engage at all levels of the organization  

• Attention to detail 

• Ability to take initiative and take others along 

• Team player 

Brief Job Role:  
This Department focuses on all the good facility to our 

employees in order to retain them and train them. The role 

would involve:  

• End to end recruitment for all the regions  

• Conducting training of employees in order to improve their 

skills and motivate them 

• Completing all the documentation and joining formalities.  

• Conducting induction program for the new joinee  

• At times, might involve travel out of the base  

B) Company: HAIER 

About Us: 

Haier Group is a Chinese multinational consumer electronics and home appliances 

company headquartered in Qingdao, Shandong province, China. It designs, develops, 

manufactures and sells products including air conditioners, mobile phones, computers, 

microwave ovens, washing machines, refrigerators, and televisions. 

According to data released by Euro monitor, in 2014 the Haier brand had the world's 

largest market share in white goods, with 10.2 per cent retail volume market share. This 

was the 6th consecutive year in which Haier had been the market share leader for major 

appliances 

Job Title:                   Training & Development Executive (HR) 

Location:                   Pune 

Qualification:            MBA 

Gender:                     Female/Male 

Experience:              

 Fresher with excellent communication skills 

 0-2 Year in Training and Development 

Job Description:        
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 Develop Training Plans for employees based on TNA 

 Coordinate Training with NAVTAC and Developing Centre for excellence. 

 Assist Head HR in designing / revising job description for employees. 

 Manage and conduct Performance Appraisal According to the Schedule/KPI  

Skill Required:                   MS Office, Presentation Skills, and Communication Skills 

C) Company: GENERAL MOTORS 

GM INDIA 

GM India started its Indian journey in 1996 and offers products under the Chevrolet 

brand in the country. Its flagship brand, Chevrolet, was introduced in India in 2003, 

under the banner "For a Special Journey Called Life". 

Chevrolet has emerged as one of the fastest growing automotive nameplates in India 

today. 

Headquartered at Gurgaon, GM India presently makes the Chevrolet Spark, Chevrolet 

Beat, Chevrolet Sail, Chevrolet Sail Hatchback, Chevrolet Cruze, Chevrolet Enjoy, 

Chevrolet Tavera, Chevrolet Captiva for the Indian market. 

The company operates two manufacturing facilities in India including the Halol 

Manufacturing Plant in the state of Gujarat, with a manufacturing capacity of 1,27,000 

units per annum (Cruze, Enjoy, Tavera, Captiva CBU) and the Talegaon Manufacturing 

Plant in the state of Maharashtra 1,65,000 units per annum (Spark, Beat, SAIL, SAIL 

Hatchback). It also operates the Flexi Powertrain Plant at Talegaon under a capacity of 

160,000 engines per annum. 

General Motors Technical Centre is Located in Bangalore, it houses the Design Studio 

and the Engineering centre. It is actively involved in Design, Analysis and Development 

of vehicles and Powertrains both globally and for the Indian market. 

TAKE YOUR CAREER TO THE NEXT LEVEL 

Bring your talent to GM – our opportunities for growth span the globe. We will give you 

the training and opportunities to unleash your ambition. From engineering our latest 

plants in China and India, to marketing our boldest designs, your journey to the top 

starts at GM. 

Building a more sustainable future, we're leading the way in advancing battery-

powered vehicles, while we work to make all of our operations greener. We're 

connecting customers with their vehicles like never before, with enhanced safety 

features, 4G capability, and on-board diagnostics. Together, there's nothing we can't 

accomplish. 
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PROFILE OFFERED: 

HR- Operations 

We are Hiring for Hr Executive - Operations 

Experience: 0 to 3 Years. 

Job Profile: 

1. Monthly Manpower Vendor Audits & Invoice Verifications 

2. Manpower Vendor Coordination, monthly reviews & MIS etc. 

3. Labour Compliances including ESI, PF, Gratuity, LWF, PF Settlement, 

4. Monthly Return, Half Yearly & Annual Return 

5. Employees Full & Final Settlements etc 

6. Handling monthly attendance and payrolls. 

7. Attending audits. 

D) Company: SYNTEL 
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E) Company: WIPRO 

BU/ Service Line: Talent Acquisition 

Job Title/ Role: Management Trainee  
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Job Summary: This career opportunity is with Wipro Business Process Solutions 

(WBPS). Wipro BPS is a $ 540 MN company and was established in the year 2002 as 

a division of Wipro Technologies. The company operates in the ITES segment. Wipro 

BPS provides complete end-to-end solutions to global clients across a wide spectrum 

of industries.  

Roles and Responsibilities:  The interested candidates should be able to clearly 

demonstrate an interest in pursuing a career in business process outsourcing 

industry and be a part of the program while working in the domain of choice. 

Additionally, candidates must thrive in a dynamic and rapidly growing environment. 

Those hired will join a successful team with a broad and deep range of experience 

across business process and technology solution areas  

Key Responsibilities:  

 Thorough understanding of recruitment processes. 

 Participation in end-to-end recruitment cycle for the assigned Line of Business / 

location which will include Sourcing to On boarding and Handover of resources 

to Business 

 Source and Head Hunt relevant profiles to meet the hiring requirements 

 Work on increasing footfall by trying new creative ideas 

 Sourcing & Validating Profiles through various channels to meet the internal 

requirement for various departments 

 Compensation fitment & discussion in line with the pre-defined salary structure 

 Undertake research and enable dissemination of knowledge with the team 

including knowledge about competition hiring practices and industry practices 

 Support process excellence initiatives and drive improvement projects in TA 

processes. 

 Understand potential customer dis-satisfaction drivers and proactively mitigate 

any CSAT risks. 

 Work closely with customers and operations leadership team to identify 

improvement opportunities and drive them to closure. 

 Drive standardization practices on the floor and ensure strict compliance in 

internal and client defined processes. 

 Interact with stakeholders and articulate requirements  
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 Constantly look at ways and means to bring more discipline and rigor to the 

function by adopting more structured methodologies and tools.  

 Research into new offerings and solutions  

Role Demands:  

 Excellence in strategic and analytical problem solving skills: Excellence in 

Business analysis to address customer problems, quick analytical thinking, and 

able to have focused energy in transforming the requirements into solutions.  

 Excellence in Recruitment Delivery: Ability to meet customer requirements, meet 

SLAs, tackle problems proactively and creatively. Must be a people’s person, have 

attention to detail and focused energy to achieve goals and exhibit a passion for 

excellence.  

 Excellent Verbal and Written communication skills: Polished verbal and written 

communication style. Ability to confidently articulate customer centric proposals 

& build a strong rapport with project teams and the customer teams.  

 Ability to work in cross functional teams and demonstrated ability to drive change 

in the process. 

Behavioural skills  

 Team player, willingness to stretch, self-motivated, ability to communicate to 

internal and external stakeholders, Learn and impart the learnings to help in 

organizational development. 

 Personal Drive: Entrepreneurial drive with a can-do attitude, a strong desire to 

learn and shape your own career path. Commitment to making a positive lasting 

client impact.  

 Self-Guided Attitude: The ability to succeed in a professional environment where 

client and project direction is not always well defined. Qualified candidates will 

understand how to produce results when working in challenging client 

environments and/or new business areas.  

Skills (Good to have): 

 Experience in recruitment / human resource management field 

 Good understanding of domains like Healthcare/ Telecom/ FAO/ Capital Markets 

etc. 

Experience and skill set required:  
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 Graduate, BE/ B. Tech , MBA  

 2-4 years of prior experience  

 Analytical skills  

JOB DESCRIPTION FOR HR ANALYST  

Position Summary:                

The Human Resources Analyst’s role is to manage and analyze workforce data to 

generate meaningful business insights and to play an important role in analyzing and 

providing data for strategic workforce planning and talent analytics. The HR Analyst 

will gather and analyze data, using advanced statistical models and continuously 

learning about new ways to mine data and distill meaning out of the increasing amount 

of data available. They will build tools to bring our workforce insights to our HR leaders 

and to a wide audience to drive actions from workforce data and insights. 

Core Responsibilities: 

 Responsible for collecting and presenting data on a regular basis 

 Maintaining and updating HR System, reporting on its capabilities 

 Collecting, presenting and communicating data to key stakeholders 

 Manage on-going performance and development of HR systems 

 Develop standard and ad hoc reports, templates, dashboards, scorecards, and 

metrics. 

 Write detailed reports, Research, analyze, and present data as assigned. 

 Assist in rollout and implementation of HR programs. 

 Assist in various HR projects and continuous improvement initiatives. 

 Ensure compliance with Data Privacy and Protection Guidelines. 

 Maintain all compliance requirements. Analyze and correct errors and ensure 

proper quality controls are in place to avoid future errors 

 Assist with the implementation of a new HR system 

 Assist in the creation of communication materials and presentations to support 

analysis, implementation of programs, or for process updates. 

 Prepares and maintains documentation. Regularly updates and distributes 

documents to HR teams as appropriate. 

 Assist with the administration of our annual merit increase program. This includes 

annual performance management appraisals, providing support to employees and 

managers during the planning cycles, data analysis, and validating payroll 

integrations 

 Conduct job evaluation and review of new and/or existing roles. Partner with HR 

and line management to gather information and communicate result 
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Qualification/ Experience Requirements: 

 3 years of relevant experience is preferred, experience with data/statistical 

analysis is a must 

 Experience with benchmarking, analysis, communication of compensation 

programs, and salary management is preferred 

 Excellent in Excel and PowerPoint and other presentation software. Experience 

with Tableau will be a plus 

 Experience using compensation survey tools is a plus. 

 Tech Savvy individual 

 Management Information reporting experience is required 

 Strong attention to detail 

 Strong data and analytical skills. You enjoy working with numbers and bringing 

structure to complex data sheets! 

 Strong relationship building skills with internal/external partners and senior staff 

 Must be a detail-oriented and exhibiting creative problem-solving skills 

INTERVIEW QUESTIONS 

General Interview Questions: 

1) Introduce Yourself? 

2) Tell me something about you? 

3) Describe yourself. 

4) Describe yourself in one word. 

5) Tell me something about you other than your CV. 

6) Tell me about your family? 

7) Tell me your hobbies. 

8) What is your interested area? 

9) Describe yourself in three words or one word or one sentence. 

10) How your friends describe you? 

11) How your teachers describe you? 

12) Tell me something about your college. 

13) Tell me something about Pune and tell me something about your home town. 

14) Describe any topic of your choice for two minutes. 

15) What colour you like most. 

16) Which fruit you like most and why? 

17) What magazines and books you read? 

18) Which news channel you like most and why? 
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19) Which is the last book you have read? 

20) Describe your everyday routine? 

21) Which is the last movie you saw? 

22) What do you do on weekends? 

23) Are you ready to work 24*7 hours? Are you flexible? 

24) If your boss asks you to work beyond working time, what will be your reaction? 

25) Are you ready to work in night shift? 

26) Do you have boyfriend or girlfriends? If no then why? 

27) Who is the Prime Minister, Finance Minister, Governor of RBI, Labour Minister,      

President, and Vice President of India? 

28) Who is the chief minister of Maharastra? 

29) What is the dollar rate in rupees? 

30) What are gold prices? 

31) What are Sensex and GDP? 

32) Which is your favourite subject and why? 

33) What do you do in your free time? 

34) What is the meaning of your name? 

35) Who is your role model?  

Situation Based Questions: 

1. Why do you want to work with our company? 

2. If you find that two of your staffs are fighting or arguing on the floor then how will 

you handle that situation? 

3. Suppose your male staff has passed wrong comment to a female staff then what 

will you do as a manager? 

4. If you get an opportunity to join that company from which you have done your 

internship then you will join that company or ours? 

5. Why do you want to join this sector (Retail, CD, FMCG, Cement, Paint, IT etc) 

6. What you will do if you find one theft in your store by any of your staff? 

7. What you will do if you find one of your staff coming to the store regularly but not 

following proper grooming standards? 

8. Suppose there is some emergency with any of your staff and he is asking for a long 

leave and at the same time sales period is also going on, then what will you do? 
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9. You are working on a project with a tight deadline but you find that you are unable 

to complete your section because your co-worker and your supervisor are 

unavailable to answer a few key questions. How do you deal with the situation? 

10. You have been assigned a major project and are halfway through when you realize 

that you’ve made a mistake that requires you to go back to the beginning to fix it. 

How do you handle that while still trying to meet your deadline? 

11. You’re a team leader. What would you do if the work of one of your subordinate 

team member was not up to expectations? 

12. You have reason to believe that a co-worker is preparing to divulge company 

secrets to a rival corporation. These secrets have the potential to really damage 

the company. How would you deal with the situation? 
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Questions on Different Profiles: 

Sr. 
No.  

HR Recruiter/ 
recruitment 
Executive/ 

Talent 
Acquisition Key 

Activities 

Competencies / 
 Skill sets required  

Questions 

1 
Knowledge of full 
recruitment cycle 

HR Planning, JD 
writing, Sourcing, 
Screening and 
Shortlisting, 
interviewing, 
coordination, 
strategic 
perspective, 
communication 
skills and 
interpersonal skills,  
Analytical Skills   

1. Explain recruitment lifecycle of you SIP 
company?  
2. Tell me one innovation you want to do in 
recruitment lifecycle of your SIP company?  
3. Organization would like to use technology 
for recruitment. How technology will make 
the recruitment lifecycle effective? Suggest the 
technology at each stage of recruitment 
lifecycle? 
4. Tell me the Recruitment lifecycle for 50 cr. 
IT firm you would like to suggest? 
5. Suggest the new innovative recruitment 
lifecycle for any MNC?  
6. What is the process of manpower planning 
in your SIP company?  
7. Your company would like recruit 200 sales 
executive in PAN India and salary of this job 
position is 4Lac per annum. Decide the 
recruitment budget and saucing mix? Justify? 

2 
Handling End-to-
End Recruitment 
processes. 

Sourcing, Screening, 
shortlisting, 
Selection, 
Onboarding, 
Induction  

1. What is the most preferred recruitment 
process in following sectors?  
1. Retail 2) IT 3) BPO 4) Automobile 5) 
manufacturing 6) Banking / Micro bank / BFSI 
/ NBFC 7) FMCD 8) FMCG 9) Telecom 10) 
consulting firms  

3 

Coordinate with 
Line managers 
and clients/ 
Selection of  
Vendors  

coordination, 
Interpersonal 
communication 

1. How will you select the vendor for 
recruitment in your company? 
2. How will you ensure client and sourcing 
manager satisfaction?  

4 

Manpower 
planning with 
Head HR  & 
Budgeting for 
recruitment  

Strategic 
Perspective, 
Analytical skills, 
Numerical Ability, 
Decision making  

1. Decide the sourcing mix and budget for 
following job positions in Haier appliances? 
 a) Sales executive 200 PAN India b) 
Production engineer - 20 pune c) Store 
manager - 2  pune d) production head - 1 
2. How will you handle surplus of manpower 
in your organization?  
3. How will you find out the demand of 
manpower in your organization? 
4. How will you analyse the supply of 
manpower in your organization ? 
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5 

Sourcing 
candidates 
through different 
channels of 
Recruitment like 
various Job 
Portals, 
Professional Sites, 
Database, as well 
as through 
networking, 
headhunting, 
recommendations 
and referrals. 

Sourcing, decision 
on sourcing mix, 
Business tools (ATS, 
PORTALS, Social 
media, Excel, SAP), 
hunter's mentality, 
networking skills,  
time management  

1. Decide the sourcing mix and budget for 
following job positions in Haier appliances.  
 a) Sales executive 200 PAN India b) 
Production engineer - 20 pune c) Store 
manager - 2  pune d) production head - 1 
2. How will you search candidates for the post 
of Production engineer who is from Pune and 
has 4 years of experience in auto components 
and current package of Rs. 4 L.? 
3. How will you headhunt for Branch manager 
at ICICI Bank from competitors? 
4.  How will you design internal referral 
program for your SIP company? 
5. How will you source from social media 
(Facebook and LinkedIn)  
What are the most preferred souring mix in 
following sectors?  
1. Retail 2) IT 3) BPO 4) Automobile 5) 
manufacturing 6) Banking / Micro bank / BFSI 
/ NBFC 7) FMCD 8) FMCG 9) Telecom 10) 
consulting firms  

6 

Writing and 
understanding JD 
and JS / Sourcing 
and screening 
profiles as JD and 
JS and 
organization fit 

JD writing, 
Analyzing  

1 What are the different job profiles in these 
sectors and discuss two job profiles of these 
sectors   
1) Retail 2) IT 3) BPO 4) Automobile 5) 
manufacturing 6) Banking / Micro bank / BFSI 
/ NBFC 7) FMCD 8) FMCG 9) Telecom 10) 
consulting firms  
2. What is the role of Job Analysis (JD and JS) 
in recruitment? 
3. Prepare the JD and JS for below mentioned 
profile and What are the sources of 
recruitment for this job profile: 1. HR 
Generalist in Shoppers stop 2) TA Executive in 
Wipro 3) Sales executive in Bajaj Allianz 4) MT 
at KPIT 5) Learning & Development at DSM 
Technology 6. Sales executive at Kotak 
4. Your line managers has not provided the JD 
he only discussed the profile of the vacancy? 
How will you recruit? 
5. You are searching for profiles and 
shortlisting however your sourcing manager 
is not approving any of your shortlisted CV. 
What will you do? 

7 

Expertise in  Job 
portals, Social 
media, Boolean 
search, advance 
search and key 
work search  

Sourcing, Screening, 
analyzing, technical 
skills 

Practical questions on naukri to search for 
different. 1. HR Generalist in Shoppers stop 2) 
TA Executive in Wipro 3) Sales executive in 
Bajaj Allianz 
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8 

Job posting on 
social media, job 
portals and 
developing 
advertisement for 
news paper  

Technical skills, 
Written 
communication, 
creativity, 
innovation 

1. Design the job post and advertisement for 
different job profiles. 1. HR Generalist in 
Shoppers stop 2) TA Executive in Wipro 3) 
Sales executive in Bajaj Allianz 4) MT at KPIT 
5) Learning & Development at DSM 
Technology 6. Sales executive at Kodak Bank 

9 
Headhunting for 
lateral 
recruitment  

Interpersonal 
communication, 
Networking skills, 
Relationship 
building, Analytical 
skills  

1 How will you headhunt for Project Head for 
Infosys?  
2. I am the project head at Wipro?  Do the role 
play with me for headhunting (for the job of 
project head) in Infosys? 

10 

Defining 
innovative 
referral program 
and campaigning 

Networking skills, 
communication  

1. How Will you develop efficient and effective 
referral program? 2. How will you campaign 
referral program? Is referral program 
developing in company lead to bias?  

11 

Handling bulk / 
mass/ walk-ins 
Recruitment and 
selections / Bulk 
mailing and oral 
and written 
correspondence 
with candidates.  

Interpersonal 
communication, 
Networking skills, 
Relationship 
building, Analytical 
skills , Time 
management, Stress 
management 

1. Have you handled any bulk hiring? What are 
the challenges in bulk hiring and How will you 
overcome on it?  
2. What is the sourcing mix for bulk hiring for 
following positions a. Management trainer - 
HUL 2. 100 candidates in Maharashtra b. 300 
Customer care executive at Wipro BPO -? 
3. In walk-in interview process at one BPO, 
candidates wait for whole day and candidates 
leave the company without interview due to 
lengthy process of selection? What will you do 
to ensure that each and every candidate 
appear for the selection process? 

12 

Working with 
available 
technology for 
recruitment  1) 
ATS 2) ERP/ SAP 
3) Chatbots 4) any 
AI and Analytics 
tools 

Technical skills and 
General awareness  

1. Tell me the Role of AI in recruitment? 2. 
What is the role of technology in recruitment?  
3. Tell me 10 recruitment apps? 4. Technology 
leading to imperfect recruitment justify? 5.  
Can technology improve yield ratio of 
recruitment? 6. How will you choose 
technology vendor for recruitment in your 
organization? 

13 

Deciding and 
coordinating 
selection process 

Analytical Skills  

what personality test is conducted?  
1. What are the different personality tests 
available for different job profiles  
2. Tell me few personality test vendors 
available in market?  
3. Why stress interview is conducted? 
4. Which personality as per MBTI is most 
suitable for sales executive profile? 
5. What are the different types of interview 
6. What is the authenticity of video interview  
7. How technology can make the selection 
process simpler? Tell me the technology 
available for selection of candidate? 
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14 Scheduling 
interviews, a 
follow-up to get 
feedback 

Interpersonal 
communication, 
Networking skills, 
Relationship 
building, Analytical 
skills  

1. Why we conduct primary interview?  
Discuss the selection process for following 
jobs and justify your selection process :1. HR 
Generalist in Shoppers stop 2) TA Executive in 
Wipro 3) Sales executive in Bajaj Allianz 4) MT 
at KPIT 5) Learning & Development at DSM 
Technology 6. Sales executive at Kotak Bank 

15 Scheduling and 
Tracking the 
Shortlisted 
Candidates until 
they join / Pre and 
Post-offer follow 
ups with 
candidates to 
ensure timely 
joining 

Interpersonal 
communication, 
Networking skills, 
Relationship 
building, Analytical 
skills  

1. Abhay has accepted the job offer of Project 
head and he is requesting for extension of 15 
days in joining date. He might search for new 
job in this period. What's your follow up 
strategy to ensure that he will join your 
organization? 
2. It has been observed that many candidates 
are committing for interview  time but not 
turned up for the interview. How will you 
ensure that candidates who confirmed the 
interview time will attend the interview? 
3. After joining of one week, employee has 
resigned. How will you ensure he will be 
retained in an organizations? 
4. How will you tackle offer decline? 

16 Managing 
resumes and 
updating the 
database. / 
Maintaining 
Recruitment MIS 
tracker 

Business tools / Ms 
Excel Skills / 
Analytical skills  

Practical questions using data of recruitment 
1. V look  2. Pivot Table 3. If command  4. 
Recruitment metrics related questionwv 5 3 
Ms Excel Macros  

17 Background check 
of candidates  
using latest 
technology  

Business tools  

1. How will you find out that candidate has 
provided fake certificates ?  
2 The candidate selected has submitted the 
face mark sheet  / fake certificate and he has 
already joined the organization. What will you 
do now? 

18 Negotiations of 
salary with 
candidates and 
working 
knowledge of CTC 
structure 

Networking skills, 
communication, 
legal compliance   

1. Candidate is asking for 7 lac package and 
you have budget of 5.5 Lac and you don’t want 
to loose the candidate. How will you negotiate 
the salary with the candidate? 



33 | P a g e  
 

19 Ensuring joining 
formalities , 
onboarding, and 
Induction  / 
Ensuring legal 
compliance of 
recruitment \ 
Ensuring 
international 
recruitment 
documentation 
process  

Legal Compliance, 
Interpersonal 
communication, 
Relationship 
building, Written nd 
oral English 
communication  

1. Tell me the documents required at the time 
of candidate's joining?  
2. Tell me process of induction in your sip 
question ? 
3. What is the difference between orientation 
and induction  
4. How will you develop the innovative and 
impactful induction program  
5. How Induction is linked with employee 
retention? 
6.  How will you budget for induction program 
and justify you budget ? 
7. What is the difference between off roll 
(third party payroll) and on roll ? 

20 Ensuring 
recruitment 
efficiency as per 
pre-defined 
recruitment 
metrics  

Analytical Skills  
Business Tool, 
Technical skills , 
Strategic 
perspective  

1. Why we recruit people at workplace ? 
2. tell me 10 recruitment metrics  
3. Tell me five cost effective recruitment 
sources 
4. How will you ensure strong employee 
retention strategy 
5. What is just in time recruitment and which 
company invented this process? 
6. How can efficient recruitment process can 
develop business impact / organizational 
profitability ?  
7. What is predictive and prescriptive 
recruitment analytics? 
8. How analytics can help in improving 
recruitment process and make it efficient ?  
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HR Business Partner  

Job 
Role/ 
Profil

e 

Role Specific 
Activity / 
Learning 

Role Specific 
Competencies

/Skills 
Required 

Core 
Competencies/ 
Skills Required 

Questions 

H
R

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

 P
a

rt
n

e
r 

Act as the first 
line of contact 
in Human 
Resources for 
any employee 
relations issues 
involving 
employees 
between entry 
level and 
Executive 
Manager. 

Legal 
compliance, 
Critical 
thinking, 
Integrity, 
Negotiation 
skills, empathic 
concern 

Legal Ethics, 
Problem 
Solving, 
Communication 
and 
Interpersonal 
Communication, 
Service Focus, 
Decision 
Making, 
Business Tool 
Skills (ATS, Job 
Portals, Social 
media, Excel, 
SAP) 

1.An employee has joined the 
organization and he/she is facing any 
issue in communicating with others. 
What steps would you take in order to 
help him and solve his issue? 
2. What  is EAP and how technology can 
help to make your EAP more effective?  
3. Employee newly joined is not able to 
adjust with work enviorment and 
supervisor. What will you do as HR 
business partner?  
4. Tell me the effective and efficient 
policy to resolve the grievance at 
workplace? 
5. What would you do if an employee 
said they couldn’t collaborate with their 
supervisor? 
6. How do you persuade managers to 
follow your guidance? 
7. What policies would you implement 
to ensure company diversity? 
8.  Please share with me an example of 
how you helped coach or mentor 
someone. What improvements did you 
see in the person's knowledge or skills? 

Support, 
develop and 
coach people 
managers to 
manage 
employee 
relations issues 
using Company 
policies, 
procedures and 
best practice, 
ideally 
resolving 
issues where 
possible 
informally. 

Coaching and 
mentoring 

1. How do you brainstorm, relay ideas 
to coworkers, and analyze complex 
problems? 
2. What are KRAs , KPIs and how would 
you monitor the performance of the 
employees on the basis of these? 
3. Reena has achieved all her targets as 
Branch Manager. How will you assess 
that she is ready for promotion? 
4.What policies would you implement 
to ensure company diversity? 
5. What HR metrics are you familiar 
with? 
6.What employee retention programs 
would you advise us to implement? 
7. Which are in your opinion the most 
crucial factors that constitute company 
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culture? 
8. Tell me one HR initiative which can 
create business impact? 
9. What are the qualities HR business 
partner need to have as per your 
viewpoint? 

Manage all 
internal 
promotions 
career level in 
consultation 
with the 
relevant 
Senior HRBP to 
ensure 
reflection of 
competence, 
diversity. 

Performance 
Management 
(designing and 
execution), 
Empathic 
concern 

1. Why most of the companies are 
failing in succession planning?  
2. How would you ideally identify the 
key talents and job positions in the 
organization? 
3. You have to do succession planning 
for the position of CEO. Describe in 
detail how would you go about it ( 
when to start planning, what 
parameters to be considered, how to be 
implemented, what measures to be 
taken while implementing the same 
etc.) 
4. Good succesion plan leads to good 
business impact. Justify? 

 Designs 
succession 
plans for key 
talents and key 
job positions 

Forecasting, 
Planning, 
system 
thinking, 
design thinking 

1. What are your views on change 
management in the organization? 
2. Give few examples of Positive 
changes and negetive changes in the 
organizations. 
3. why to conduct skip level meeting 
and how it can be helpful for 
organizational performance?  
4.It has been observed that most of the 
line managers in sales department are 
not dealing with subordiantes properly. 
What will you do as HR BP?  
5.  
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Actively 
identifies gaps, 
proposes and 
implement 
changes 
necessary to 
cover risks 

gap analysis, 
critical 
thinking, risk 
management 

1. Discuss an experience where you 
explained complicated technical terms 
to individuals without the same 
knowledge. 
2. Describe an instance where your 
communication skills allowed you to 
make a meaningful difference to a 
situation. 

Facilitates the 
management 
team to bring 
best solutions 
for employees 

designing 
feedback 
systems, 
empathic 
concern, ability 
to conduct 
townhall 
meetings 

1. Name a time when your creativity or 
alternative thinking contributed to the 
organization effectiveness. 
2. The organization has developed a 
new policy for employees by changing 
the current policy. How would you go 
about implementing the same? 
3. How would you ensure change 
implementation effectively in case 
employees are not satisfied? 

 Support the 
Senior HRBP's 
change 
programmes 
ensuring that 
they provide a 
value adding 
service in all 
initiatives 

change agent, 
Organization 
agility, Team 
Management, 
Adaptibilty, 
Prioritization 

1. Which are in your opinion the most 
crucial factors that constitute company 
culture? 
2. How do you ensure that rewards and 
recognitions planned by the higher 
management are been implemented 
effectively? Explain with the help of 
examples. 
3. How do you make the employees 
understand the importance of Rewards 
and Recognition? 

Ensure timely 
Implementatio
n of rewards & 
recognition 
plan 

Time 
management, 
Planning and 
executing R & R 
events 

1. Describe a project or idea (not 
necessarily your own) that was 
implemented primarily because of your 
efforts. What was your role? What was 
the outcome? 
2. Tell me about a project that you 
planned. How did you organize and 
schedule the tasks? Tell me about your 
action plan. 
3. When has a project or event you 
organised not gone according to plan? 
What happened? Why? How did you 
feel? 
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Acts as the 
performance 
improvement 
driver and 
provokes 
positive 
changes in the 
people 
management 

Motivational 
speaker, 
philosophical 
thinking, 
Leadership, 
Adaptibility  

1. Describe a situation that required 
you to do a number of things at the 
same time. How did you handle it? 
What was the result? 
2. When have you had to present to a 
group of people with little or no 
preparation? What obstacles did you 
face? How did you handle them? 
3. Tell me about a time when you had to 
analyze information and make a 
recommendation. What kind of thought 
process did you go through? Was the 
recommendation accepted? If not, why? 

Proactively 
supports the 
delivery 
of HR Processe
s at the client's 
side 

Interpersonal 
skills, Co-
ordination, 
analyzing 
business 
requirements 

1. Give an example of when you had to 
work with someone who was difficult 
to get along with. How/why was this 
person difficult? How did you handle it? 
How did the relationship progress? 
2. Describe a situation where you had a 
conflict with another individual, and 
how you dealt with it. What was the 
outcome? How did you feel about it? 
3. Reena and Meena are top performers. 
They are working together in a team. 
But, in the team, they are facing 
difficulties in arriving to one solution. 
As a HRBP, what measures would you 
adopt in order to help them? 

Manages HR Pr
ojects cross-
functionally 

Co-ordination , 
Interpersonal 
skills, 
Organization 
agility, 
Delegation, 
global exposure 

1. Describe any event that you have 
managed and share with me the 
learnings. 
2. How would you ensure that the HR 
processes are effectively followed? 

To promote the 
use 
of HR systems 
policies and 
processes, 
challenging 
appropriately 
as necessary. 

Legal 
compliance, 
Problem 
solving, 
decision 
making, 
empathic 
concern, ability 
to develop 
feedback 
systems 

1. What do you understand by the term 
Cross Functional? Explain with the help 
of an example? 
2. Give me an example of a time when 
you were able to successfully 
communicate with another person even 
when that individual may not have 
personally liked you (or vice versa). 
How did you handle the situation? 
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Manage exit 
processes for 
staff, carrying 
out exit 
interviews etc. 

Empathic 
concern, 
Integrity, 
Analyzing exit 
interviews, 
recommendatio
n from exit 
interview 

1. Tell me about a project that you 
planned. How did your organize and 
schedule the tasks? Tell me about your 
action plan. 
2. When have you ever found yourself 
in a competitive situation 
professionally? How did you handle it? 
3. Tell me about a team project when 
you had to take charge of the project? 
What did you do? What was the result? 

Drive internal 
and 
external HR Co
mmunication 

spokesperson 1. Tell me about a successful exit 
interview you conducted. What 
methods led to your success? 
2. How would you ensure that the 
feedback received from the employee is 
communicated to the higher 
management?  

Drive events 
and activities 
aimed at 
developing an 
employee 
friendly culture 
thereby 
increasing 
employee 
motivation 

Planning, 
Organizing, 
Creativity, 
Approachabilit
y, Team 
Building, 
negotiation 
skills 

1. Describe the concept of organization 
vitality in your own words with the 
help of an example. 
2. How do ensure that the employees in 
your organization stay motivated in the 
long run? 
3. How will you ensure that the 
employee satisfaction survey conducted 
in the organization is reliable? 
4. You have to conduct a survey of 1000 
employees in the organization. How 
will you go about it, mention the tools 
to be used and how will you ensure 
100% response for the same? 

Developing 
strategic plans 
for various HR 
activities 

Co-ordination 
,system 
thinking, 
design 
thinking, 
conducting 
primary 
research 

  1. Differentiate between Internal HR 
communication and External HR 
communication in your own words 
with suitable examples. 
2. How important is it to conduct Team 
meetings, at what intervals should it be 
conducted and why? 
3. What are your thoughts on talking to 
the employees about their personal 
matters? 
4. An met with an accident at workplace 
and it has created an outburst in media. 
As a HRBP, how will you communicate 
with the media as well as the 
employees in order to tackle the 
situation? 
5. Tell me how you organize, plan, and 
prioritize your work with an example. 
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6. Describe any event that you have 
managed and share with me the 
learnings. 
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HR Analyst  

Job 
Role/ 

Profile 

Role Specific 
Activity / 
Learning 

Role Specific 
Competencies/Skills 

Required 

Core 
Competencies/ 
Skills Required 

Questions 

H
R

 A
n

a
ly

st
 

Research, analyze, 
and present data 
as assigned. 

Research Skills, 
Analytical Thinking, 
Data Analysis, 
Descriptive Analysis, 
Predictive Analysis, 
Prescriptive Analysis 

Strategic 
Perspective, 
Leadership 
Skills, Business 
Acumen, Change 
Management,  
Evidence Based 
Approach, 
Communication 
and 
Interpersonal 
Communication, 
Team Work, 
Decision 
Making,  
Analytical Skills 
( SPSS, MS- 
Excel, R) 

Q.1 Can you outline the various 
steps in an HR analytics project? 
 
Q.2 How can descriptive analytics 
be used in HR? 
 
Q.3 Give three examples where 
predictive analytics can be used 
in people or HR related issues at 
an organization? 
 
Q.4 What is prescriptive 
analytics? How can organizations 
benefit from it? 
 
Q.5 Explain different types of 
data generated through various 
HR processes? 
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Develop standard 
and ad hoc 
reports, 
templates, 
dashboards, 
scorecards, and 
metrics. 

HR Metrics, HR 
Scorecard, Data 
Visualization 

Q.1 You are a CHRO at XYZ Corp. 
Develop an outline for strategic 
HR report to be submitted to CEO 
of your organization. Consider 
strategic HR report will cover all 
HR processes and will have 
change initiatives to be 
implemented in next 3 years.  
 
Q.2 A lot of people are talking 
about HR analytics and a lot of 
people are talking about people 
analytics. Which one do you like 
best? 
 
Q.3 "It take years of continuos 
effort to develop a HR system 
based on analytics", do you agree 
with this statement? 
 
Q.4 How will you measure ROI on 
training activities? 
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Meet with 
management to 
discuss and clarify 
requests for 
projects, highlight 
issues, and make 
recommendations 
to address issues 
and priorities. 

Research Skills (with 
primary data and 
secondary data), 
Analytics Framework 

Q.1  Is HR analytics all about 
combining two separate data sets 
and do a simple correlation 
analysis in Excel? 
 
Q.2 What is the biggest change 
you have seen happen in the last 
two years in the field of HR 
analytics? 
 
Q.3 What are you most excited 
about in the next few years in the 
field of HR analytics? 
 
Q.4 How will you persuade CEO 
of your organization to invest in 
HR analytics? 
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Write detailed 
reports and make 
oral presentations 
to management. 

Analytical Thinking, 
Analytics Framework, 
Writing Skills, 
Communication Skills 

Q.1 How will you treat missing 
values in a data set? 
 
Q.2 How will you treat outlier 
values? 
 
Q.3 What is multicollinearity? 
Give an example of 
multicollinearity in a dataset 
regarding employees? 
 
Q.4 What obstacles you might 
face while implementing HR 
analytics in an Indian 
organization? 
 
Q.5 What do you do in data 
exploration? 
 
Q.6 What is data visualization? 
How can you perform data 
visualization in HR analytics? 
Explain with an example. 

Troubleshoot data 
and reports. 

Analytical Thinking, 
Data Analysis, Data 
Visualization, Data 
management 

Q.1 Would you agree that 
"traditional HR activities become 
obsolete when an organization 
starts to make fact-based 
decisions"? 
 
Q.2 Using HR analytics can you do 
same work with more efficiency 
with less resources? Please give 
an example. 
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Assist in rollout 
and 
implementation of 
HR programs. 

Change agent 

Consider you are CHRO at XYZ 
Corp. 
Q.1 How would you ensure that 
HR Depeartment of XYZ Corp. is 
following emerging trends in 
implementing various HR 
processes? 
 
Q.2 How would you motivate to 
learn and use HR analytics to 
solve HR issues? 

Coach and assist 
in development of 
new team 
members. 

Coaching and 
mentoring 

Q.1  As an HR manager, how will 
you take decisions on people 
related issues?  
 
Q.2 Which is better, analytics 
driven decision making or 
intution based decision making? 
 
Q.3 Would you agree that HR 
analytics always lead to 
improvement in efficiency in HR 
activities? 
 
Q.4 Suggest an improvement 
using HR anaytics for  the 
organization where you 
completed SIP? 
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Identify and 
participate in 
continuous 
improvement 
initiatives. 

Change agent 

Q.1 How would you ensure safety 
of HRIS data at your 

organization? 
 

Q.2 What are the risk and 
vulnerabilities with HRIS data? 

 
Q.3 What will you do in case of 

data breach related to HRIS data? 

Ensure 
compliance with 
Data Privacy and 
Protection 
Guidelines. 

Data management, 
empathic concern 
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HR Generalist 

Job 
Role/ 

Profile 

Role 
Specific 
Activity / 
Learning 

Role Specific 
Competencies/S

kills Required 

Core 
Competencie

s/ Skills 
Required 

Questions 

H
R

 G
e
n

e
ra

li
s
t 

Design 
and 
impleme
nt overall 
recruiting 
strategy 

Job description 
writing, candidate 
sourcing, social 
media,  screening 
and shortlisting,  
application 
tracking, system 
and database 
management, 
negotiation skills, 
conducting 
interviews, 
Selection, 
Onboarding, 
Induction,  
strategic 
networking, 
relationship 
management, 
Documentation 
and joining 
formalities, 
Recruitment 
Metrics, head 
hunting,  
persuasive skills 

Legal Ethics, 
Problem 
Solving, 
Communicatio
n and 
Interpersonal 
Communicatio
n, Service 
Focus, 
Decision 
Making, 
Business Tool 
Skills (ATS, 
Job Portals, 
Social media, 
Excel, SAP) 

1. Explain recruitment lifecycle of you SIP 
company?  
2. Tell me one innovation you want to do 
in recruitment lifecycle of your SIP 
company?  
3. Organization would like to use 
technology for recruitment. How 
technology will make the recruitment 
lifecycle effective ? Suggest the technology 
at each stage of recruitment  lifecycle? 
4. Tell me the Recruitment lifecycle for 50 
cr. IT firm you would like to suggest? 
5. Suggest the new innovative recruitment 
lifecycle for any MNC?  
6. What is the process of manpower 
planning in your SIP company?  
7. Your company would like recruit 200 
sales executive in PAN India and salary of 
this job position is 4Lac per anuum. Decide 
the recruitment budget and saucing mix? 
Justify?1. What are the objectives of the 
Recruitment policy in your organization? 
8. Tell me about your last experience 
recruiting, interviewing, or hiring an 
employee. What techniques did you find 
most effective in finding the right person 
for the job? 
9.Describe a recruitment strategy which 
you developed and implemented. What 
factors did you consider that helped you 
develop a successful strategy? 
10 How is Manpower planning done in 
your organization? 
11Provide an effective method you have 
used to conduct reference or background 
checks. 
12. Tell me about your last experience 
interviewing applicants and hiring 
employees. 
13 Share an effective method you have 
used to ensure  Right fit selection 
conformance to recruitment and selection 
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criteria. 
14 Tell me about your last experience 
reviewing and evaluating applicant 
qualifications and eligibility. 
15 How would you ensure that the hired 
candidate is fit for the job? 
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Develop 
and 
update 
job 
descriptio
ns and 
job 
specificat
ions as 
required. 

JD writing, 
coordination 
skills, 
Competency 
mapping, Job 
Analysis, Job 
Evaluation 

1. What is the importance of JD, JS?Explain 
with the help of an example.  
2. How would you rate your writing skills? 
(Ask for an example that demonstrates 
great writing skills.) 
3. Share an effective method you have 
used to inform job applicants of job 
details, e.g. responsibilities, benefits, or 
conditions. 
4. Tell me the job description of financial 
analyst? 
5. You have shortlisted the canddiates and 
all are rejected by the sourcing manager 
where is the issue and How will you 
resolve? 
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Incumbe
nt will be 
responsi
ble for 
Talent 
acquisitio
n, Talent 
manage
ment & 
Onboardi
ng. 

Presentation 
skills, 
Interpersonal 
skills,  networking 
skills, design 
thinking 

1. What key factors would you take into 
consideration when building an action 
plan for hiring 250 candidates within 1 
month? 
2. You have to coordinate a training 
programme/induction. Explain with an 
example how would you typically go about 
it.  
3. Tell me the innovative induction 
program you would like to design for a SIP 
company? 
4. Please share an experience in which you 
presented to a group. What was the 
situation and how did it go? 
5.Tell me about your last experience of 
hiring temporary candiates. 
6. What are the documents required for 
joining formalities of a candidate? 
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Employe
e Life 
cycle 

HR planning, 
problem solving, 
interpersonal 
skills, grievance 
handling, 
planning, 
Organizing, Legal 
compliance 

1. Tell me the employee lifecycle and role 
of HR in managing employee lifecycle? 
2. What are the different issues HR need 
to manage in employee lifecycle? 
3. Sales executive has compliant against 
the sales manager, How will you resolve?  
4. Describe a new-employee orientation 
you succefully conducted? 
5. Tell me how employee lifecycle is 
associated with employee retention?  
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Employe
e 
grievanc
es 
handling 
& queries 

Legal 
compliance, 
Critical thinking, 
persuasive skills, 
problem solving, 
strong ethics and 
value system 

1 What is EAP and why its important ? 
2. Wipro has aodpted open door policy ? Is 
it good ? Why? 
3. I want my company to be grievance 
free. What should I do as HR? 
4.  In case you are unable to solve a 
grievance or query, what would be your 
action plan? 
5. Two employees slapped each on the 
floor? Other employees informed you, 
what will you do? 
6. Top performer of marketing department 
does not follow the code of conduct. What 
will be your strategy ot ensure that he / 
she follows the same? 
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Maintaini
ng MIS 

design thinking 

1.How well versed are you with MS Excel? 
(Give a live example to be solved on MS 
EXCEL and check) 
2. Share an effective approach to working 
with a large amount of information/data. 
How has your approach affected your 
company? 
3. Tell me about an experience in which 
you analyzed information and evaluated 
results to choose the best solution to a 
problem. 
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1. Condut the exit interview with me? 
2. Is exit interview a formalty done by HR 
department? 
3. Does exit inteviews help in retaining 
employees ? 
4. What is the use of exit interview data 
and what kind of analysis you can do using 
that data? 
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Employe
e 
engagem
ent 
activities 

Planning, 
Organizing, 
Creativity, time 
management, 
Team Building 

1. You see that few employees in your 
organization are demotivated and are not 
willing to put in their 100% efforts. What 
steps will you take to analyze the 
situation? 
2. Explain an employee engagement 
activity that you have conducted from 
which you learnt as well as the employees 
benefitted? 
3. Please suggest 5 innovative employee 
engagement ideas? 
4. Employee engagement activities are 
waste of money? What is your viewpoint? 
5. What is gallup survey and where is it 
used? 
6. What are the engagement metrics 
which dicuss the business impact of 
employee engagement ? 
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Improves 
organizat
ion 
attractive
ness by 
recomme
nding 
new 
policies 
and 
practices; 
monitorin
g job 
offers 
and 
compens
ation 
practices; 
emphasiz
ing 
recogniti
on and 
benefits. 

critical thinking, 
research skills, 
design thinking, 
general 
awareness, 
change agent 

1. Name a time when your creativity or 
alternative thinking contributed to the 
organization effectiveness. 
2. What is employer branding and how will 
yoru promote your employer brand as 
Manager HR of company?  
3. How technology can help in employer 
brand? 
4. What are the key policies in an 
organization helps in establishing 
employer brand? 
5. employees would like to join MNCs not 
startups Why?  
6. I want to develop compensation and 
benefit policy which will help in employer 
branding? Suggest me the policy?  
7. Which HR policy make the employer 
brand strong.?  
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Develop 
and 
impleme
nt HR & 
Admin 
policies 
for the 
organisat
ion 

Legal 
compliance, 
critical thinking, 
ability to write 
policy drafts, 
conducting  
reviews, feedback 
incorporation 

1. The organization has developed a new 
policy for employees. How would you go 
about implementing the same? 
2. Some employees are not following the 
code of condut ? What should I do?  
3. How will you ensure that leave policy is 
implemented proplery in an organization?  
4. What steps would you take if any policy 
is not implemented properly? Explain with 
the help of an example. 
5. What are the different HR policies and 
what are the key points in any HR policy?  
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Conduct 
Exit 
interview 
and 
provide 
proper 
feedback 
to 
Manage
ment 

Interviewing 
skills, Integrity, 
empathic 
concern, research 
skills (qualitative 
data especially ), 
persuasive skills 

1. Why to condut exit interview ? It is 
waste of time?  
2. What should be the content of exit 
interview quesitons? 
3. Is data of exit interivew useful?  
4. Exit interview data can be useful for 
improving the HR practices at workplace 
5. Exit interview can be useful for 
employee retention. If yes why?  
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HR Recruitment 

Job Role/ 
Profile 

Role 
Specific 

Activity / 
Learning 

Role Specific 
Competencies/Skill

s Required 

Core 
Competencies/ 
Skills Required 

Questions 

HR 
Recruiter 

Handling 
End-to-End 
Recruitmen
t 
processes/ 
Recruitmen
t lifecycle  

Job description 
writing, candidate 
sourcing, social 
media,  screening 
and shortlisting,  
application tracking, 
system and database 
management, 
negotiation skills, 
conducting 
interviews, Selection, 
Onboarding, 
Induction,  strategic 
networking, 
relationship 
management, 
Documentation and 
joining formalities, 
Recruitment Metrics, 
head hunting,  
persuasive skills 

Communication 
Skills, Business 
Acumen, 
Strategic 
Perspective, 
Business tools 
(ATS, Job 
Portals, Social 
media, Excel, 
SAP) 

1. Explain recruitment lifecycle of 
you SIP company?  
2. Tell me one innovation you want 
to do in recruitment lifecycle of 
your SIP company?  
3. Organization would like to use 
technology for recruitment. How 
technology will make the 
recruitment lifecycle effective ? 
Suggest the technology at each 
stage of recruitment  lifecycle? 
4. Tell me the Recruitment lifecycle 
for 50 cr. IT firm you would like to 
suggest? 
5. Suggest the new innovative 
recruitment lifecycle for any MNC?  
6. What is the process of 
manpower planning in your SIP 
company?  
7. Your company would like recruit 
200 sales executive in PAN India 
and salary of this job position is 
4Lac per anuum. Decide the 
recruitment budget and saucing 
mix? Justify? 
1. What is the most preferred 
recruitment process in following 
sectors  ?  
1. Retail 2) IT 3) BPO 4) 
Automobile 5) manufacturing 6) 
Banking / Micro bank / BFSI / 
NBFC 7) FMCD 8) FMCG 9) 
Telecom 10) consulting firms  
2. How will you select the vendor 
for recruitment in your company? 
3. How will you ensure client and 
sourcing manager satisfaction ?  
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Coordinate 
with Line 
managers 
and 
clients/ 
Selection of  
Vendors  

coordination, 
Interpersonal 
communication, 
comparative analysis 

1. Decide the sourcing mix and 
budget for following job positions 
in Haier appliances? 
 a) Sales executive 200 PAN India 
b) Production engineer - 20 pune c) 
Store manager - 2  pune d) 
production head - 1 
2. How will you handle surplus of 
manpower in your organization ?  
3. How will you find out the 
demand of manpower in your 
organization ? 
4. How will you analyze the supply 
of manpower in your organization 
? 

Manpower 
planning 
with Head 
HR  & 
Budgeting 
for 
recruitmen
t  

 Numerical Ability, 
Forecasting 
techniques, 
budgeting 

1. Decide the sourcing mix and 
budget for following job positions 
in Haier appliances.  
 a) Sales executive 200 PAN India 
b) Production engineer - 20 pune c) 
Store manager - 2  pune d) 
production head - 1 
2. How will you search candides for 
the post of Production engineer 
who is from pune and has 4 years 
of experience in auto components 
and current package of Rs. 4 L. ? 
3. How will you headhunt for 
Branch manager at ICICI Bank from 
competitors ? 
4.  How will you design  internal 
referral program for your SIP 
company? 
5. How will you source from social 
media (Facebook and LinkedIn) 
What are the most preferred 
souring mix  in following sectors  ?  
1. Retail 2) IT 3) BPO 4) 
Automobile 5) manufacturing 6) 
Banking / Micro bank / BFSI / 
NBFC 7) FMCD 8) FMCG 9) 
Telecom 10) consulting firms  
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Sourcing 
candidates 
through 
different 
channels of 
Recruitmen
t like 
various Job 
Portals, 
Professiona
l Sites, 
Database, 
as well as 
through 
networking
, 
headhuntin
g, 
recommen
dations and 
referrals. 

Sourcing, decision on 
sourcing mix, 
Business tools (ATS, 
PORTALS, Social 
media, Excel, SAP), 
hunter's mentality, 
networking skills,  
time management  

1 What are the different job 
profiles in these sectors and 
discuss two job profiles of these 
sectors   
1) Retail 2) IT 3) BPO 4) 
Automobile 5) manufacturing 6) 
Banking / Micro bank / BFSI / 
NBFC 7) FMCD 8) FMCG 9) 
Telecom 10) consulting firms  
2. What is the role of Job Analysis 
(JD and JS) in recruitment ? 
3. Prepare the JD and JS for below 
mentioned profile and What are 
the sources of recruitment for this 
job profile  : 1. HR Generalist in 
Shoppers stop 2) TA Executive in 
Wipro 3) Sales executive in Bajaj 
Allianz 4) MT at KPIT 5) Learning & 
Development at DSM Technology 6. 
Sales executive at Kotak 
4. Your line managers has not 
provided the JD he only discussed 
the profile of the vacancy? How will 
you recruit? 
5. You are searching for profiles 
and shortlisting however your 
sourcing manager is not approving 
any of your shortlisted CV. What 
will you do? 

Writing 
and 
understand
ing JD and 
JS 

JD writing, Analyzing 
Job Specification 

Practical questions on naukari to 
search for different. 1. HR 
Generalist in Shoppers stop 2) TA 
Executive in Wipro 3) Sales 
executive in Bajaj Allianz 

Expertise 
in Job 
portals, 
Social 
media, 
advance 
search 
using key 
words 

Sourcing (Advanced 
search, Job posting, 
Bollean Search) , 
Screening, technical 
skills 

1. Design the job post and 
advertisement for different job 
profiles . 1. HR Generalist in 
Shoppers stop 2) TA Executive in 
Wipro 3) Sales executive in Bajaj 
Allianz 4) MT at KPIT 5) Learning & 
Development at DSM Technology 6. 
Sales executive at Kodak Bank 

Job posting 
on social 
media, job 
portals and 
developing 
advertisem

Writing skills, 
creativity, innovation 

1 How will you headhunt for 
Project Head  for Infosys?  
2. I am the project head at Wipro ?  
Do the  role play with me for 
headhunting (for the job of project 
head) in Infosys? 
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ent for 
news paper  

Headhuntin
g for lateral 
recruitmen
t  

Interpersonal 
communication, 
Networking skills, 
Relationship 
building, Negotiation 
Skills 

1. How Will you develop efficient 
and effective referral program? 2. 
How will you campaign referral 
program? Is referral program 
developing in company lead to 
bias?  
3. Tell me  the effective referral 
program for new IT company?  
4. Tell me one innovation you 
would like suggest in referral 
program of your SIP or WIP 
company? 

Defining 
innovative 
referral 
program 
and 
campaignin
g 

Networking skills, 
Design Thinking 

1. Have you handled any bulk 
hiring? What are the challenges in 
bulk hiring and How will you 
overcome on it?  
2. What is the sourcing mix for bulk 
hiring for following positions a. 
Management trainer - HUL 2. 100 
candidates in Maharashtra b. 300 
Customer care executive at Wipro 
BPO -? 
3. In walk-in interview process at 
one BPO, candidates wait for whole 
day and candidates leave the 
company without interview due to 
lengthy process of selection? What 
will you do to ensure that each and 
evey candidate appear for the 
selection process? 

Handling 
bulk / 
mass/ 
walk-ins 
Recruitmen
t and 
selections / 
Bulk 
mailing and 
oral and 
written 
correspond
ence with 
candidates.  

Networking skills, 
Time management, 
Stress management 1. Tell me the Role of AI in 

recruitment ? 2. What is the role of 
technology in recruitment?  3. Tell 
me 10 recruitment apps? 4. 
Technology leading to imperfect 
recruitment justify?5.  Can 
technology improve yield ratio of 
recruitment ? 6. How will you 
choose technology vendor for 
recruitment in your organization? 
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Working 
with 
available 
technology 
for 
recruitmen
t  1) ATS 2) 
ERP/ SAP 
3) Chatbots 

Domain expertise, 
learning mindset 

what personality test is conducted?  
1. What are the different 
personality tests available for 
different job profiles  
2. Tell me few personality test 
vendors available in market?  
3. Why stress interview is 
conducted? 
4. Which personality as per MBTI is 
most suitable for sales executive 
profile? 
5. What are the different types of 
interview 
6. What is the authenticity of video 
interview  
7. How technology can make the 
selection process simpler? Tell me 
the technology available for 
selection of candidate? 

Deciding 
and 
coordinatin
g selection 
process 

 decision making, 
time management 

1. Why we conduct primary 
interview?  Discuss the selection 
process for following jobs and 
justify your selection process :1. HR 
Generalist in Shoppers stop 2) TA 
Executive in Wipro 3) Sales 
executive in Bajaj Allianz 4) MT at 
KPIT 5) Learning & Development at 
DSM Technology 6. Sales executive 
at Kotak Bank 

Scheduling 
interviews, 
a follow-up 
to get 
feedback 

Networking skills 1. Abhay has accepted the job offer 
of Project head and he is requesting 
for extension of 15 days in joining 
date. He might search for new job 
in this period. What's your follow 
up strategy to ensure that he will 
join your organization? 
2. It has been observed that many 
candidates are committing for 
interview  time but not turned up 
for the interview. How will you 
ensure that candidates who 
confirmed the interview time will 
attend the interview? 
3. After joining of one week, 
employee has resigned. How will 
you ensure he will be retained in an 
organizations? 
4. How will you tackle offer 
decline? 
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Scheduling 
and 
Tracking 
the 
Shortlisted 
Candidates 
until they 
join / Pre 
and Post-
offer follow 
ups with 
candidates 
to ensure 
timely 
joining 

Networking skills, 
MIS Skills 

Practical questions using data of 
recruitment 1. V look  2. Pivot 
Table 3. If command  4. 
Recruitment metrics related 
questionwv 5 3 Ms Excel Macros  

Managing 
resumes 
and 
updating 
the 
database. / 
Maintainin
g 
Recruitmen
t MIS 
tracker 

MIS Skills 

1. How will you find out that 
candidate has provided fake 
certificates ?  
2 The candidate selected has 
submitted the face mark sheet  / 
fake certificate and he has already 
joined the organization. What will 
you do now? 

Backgroun
d check of 
candidates  
using latest 
technology  

detective mindset, 
strong ethics, legal 
compliance 

1. Candidate is asking for 7 lac 
package and you have budget of 5.5 
Lac and you don’t want to loose the 
candidate. How will you negotiate 
the salary with the candidate? 

Negotiation
s of salary 
with 
candidates 
and 
working 
knowledge 
of CTC 
structure 

Negotiation Skills, 
Compensation 
Designing 

1. Tell me the documents required 
at the time of candidate's joining?  
2. Tell me process of induction in 
your sip question ? 
3. What is the difference between 
orientation and induction  
4. How will you develop the 
innovative and impactful induction 
program  
5. How Induction is linked with 
employee retention? 
6.  How will you budget for 
induction program and justify you 
budget ? 
7. What is the difference between 
off roll (third party payroll) and on 
roll ? 
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Ensuring 
joining 
formalities , 
onboarding
, and 
Induction  / 
Ensuring 
legal 
compliance 
of 
recruitmen
t / 
Ensuring 
internation
al 
recruitmen
t 
documenta
tion 
process  

Legal Compliance, 
Time management  

1. Why we recruit people at 
workplace ? 
2. tell me 10 recruitment metrics  
3. Tell me five cost effective 
recruitment sources 
4. How will you ensure strong 
employee retention strategy 
5. What is just in time recruitment 
and which company invented this 
process? 
6. How can efficient recruitment 
process can develop business 
impact / organizational 
profitability ?  
7. What is predictive and 
prescriptive recruitment analytics? 
8. How analytics can help in 
improving recruitment process and 
make it efficient ?  

Ensuring 
recruitmen
t efficiency 
as per pre-
defined 
recruitmen
t metrics  

HR Metrics 
development and 
calculation 

1. What are the new trends in 
recruitment ? 
2. What recrutiment technology 
available in the market ? 
3. How will you headhunt the top 
performer of competitor? 
4. How will you find out the 
recruitment vendors for effective and 
efficient hiring? 
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YOUR LEARNING PATH IN PIBM 

 

 

In line with your goals and as per industry needs, PIBM 1st year (Semesters I and II) gave 

you practical exposures on: 

 Aptitude Training 

 Communication Training 

 Excel Training 

 Verbal and Non-Verbal  Presentations 

 Group Discussions and Personal Interviews overviews 

 Mini Projects and Live Projects 

 Corporate Events 

You have also got your specializations as per your interest and also an opportunity to 

clear all concepts in interested areas through the Summer Internship Project (SIP) and 

also various events and occasions held in Semester II like 
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 Live Projects and Field Visits 

 Industry Interactions (Corporate Sessions, FMCG Day, Fintech Day, etc) 

 Mentoring Sessions 

 Case Studies and Presentations 

 External Workshops  

YOUR JOURNEY AHEAD AND WHAT TO LOOK FORWARD 

 

Semester III will make you Industry Ready so that you are successful in your 

placement process and beyond and for that purpose, Sessions and Trainings will be 

based on your specialization so that you get in-depth knowledge of the sector you are 

interested in. 

TRAINING PEDAGOGY OF SEMESTER III 

HOW TO BECOME INDUSTRY READY?  

The Semester III curriculum includes extensive training for Placements like JD based 

training, Sector and Profile based training, Mock GDs and PIs with Corporates, 

Corporate Interactions, Integrated Learnings, and Knowledge Sharing sessions. 

All trainings and sessions will follow the Unique Teaching Pedagogy of PIBM –The SCPS 

Approach. 

• To clear the 
basics of all the 
management 
subjects

• To improve 
Aptitude, 
communication 
and Excel Skills.

Semester-I

• To select 
Specialisation 
and interested 
sectors. 

• Clear all concept 
on interested 
area.

Semester-II

• To become 
industry 

ready.

Semester-III
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WHAT IS SCPS? 

At PIBM, we combine inputs from all industry sources with what the Job descriptions 

require and train our students using real time industry data. 

SCPS Training Approach- 

 

 

 

In most of the business schools, the pattern is to teach the students with the theoretical 

concepts of the subjects. But in PIBM we teach each concept with application oriented 

approach for which we use “SCPS Approach”. 

Extensive Case 
Studies

• Analysing of 
more and more 
cases

JD Based 
Trainings

• By preparing of 
JDs of different 
profiles as you 
read in Sem II

Mock GDs and 
PIs

• Preparation of 
interview 
questions to be 
asked in 
companies

• Mock GDs and 
PIs by 
corporates

Skill 
Enhancement

• Enhancing 
skills like 
managerial 
skills, 
interpersonal 
skills, excel, 
aptitude and 
communication 
skilles

What is SCPS

• Sector/Compan
y/Product/Servi
ce

• How every 
concept works 
and varies in 
different sectors 
and for different 
products

Why SCPS

Graduation pattern –
Teach Theory, Forget 

Application!

Industry Demand –
Trained candidates 

with application 
orientation and 

smart working skills

How SCPS 
works?

• Training of each 
concept based on 6-
8 different sectors

• Evaluation only 
based on 
application

• Real life case 
studies, Live 
Projects and 
internships

Takeaway 
from SCPS

Student develops 
analytical mind

Everything is 
visualized in 

different sectors 
and for different 

products
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PIBM’s training methodology is unique and designed with an objective to make 

students understand the real life practical application of Business theory. One of 

our unique things about the teaching methodology followed in PIBM is the SCPS approach 

of teaching. SCPS stands for Sector/Company/Product/Service aspect of learning any 

management concept. SCPS pedagogy is specific training on different sectors and 

products like- 

 FMCG (Products like Soap, Biscuit, Pen and companies like ITC, Marico, Cello, etc) 

 Consumer Durables (Products like TV, AC, Mobile, Laptop and companies like 

Samsung, Haier,etc) 

 Automobile (Two wheeler, Four Wheeler, heavy and commercial vehicle and 

companies like Bajaj, Mahindra, etc) 

 Retail (Gadget retail like Tata-Croma, Next, Clothing retail like Pantaloons, 

Shoppers Stop and FMCG retail like More, Big Bazaar, Reliance Fresh) 

 Financial Services and Banking (Citi Bank, Axis Bank, ICICI Group, India Infoline,  

Moneyhouse) 

 Infrastructure (Paints like Asian Paint, Berger Paint, Dulux Paint, Nerolac; 

Cement Like JK Cement, ACC cement, Birla cement; Steel Like Tata Steel Essar 

Steel; L&T infra.)  

 IT Enabled Services (99 Acres.com, Just Dial, IndiaMart) 

With the SCPS methodology, any topic which is taught is explained with the real world 

application in various sectors, and different products or services of several companies 

which also helps to clarify that management strategies vary in different sectors for 

different products and services. 

How SCPS Approach is Applied? 

The faculty have to choose a topic and then following steps are to be taken:- 

 

Step-1

Decide two-
three  

sectors to 
train 

students

e.g-
consumer 
Goods,CD, 

Automobile

Step-2

Select few 
companies 

from chosen 
sector

e.g. P&G, HUL, 
ITC etc.

Step-3

Select common product category 
and then list down their 

respective products

e.g. Product category-Shampoo

P&G- head & Shoulder

HUL- Clinic Plus

ITC- Fiama Di Wills

Similar comparison  will do for 
other sectors also with data.
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The whole training pedagogy is devided into three steps: 

Comparison- 

Students have to first select the product of chosen companies from selected 

sector.Comparison have to be done on various parameters like:  

 Pricing Strategies-How the price of the product is arrived at using cost sheet of 

different components and associated services. 

 Product Quality-Using data derived from market 

 Market Penetration- Using data derived from Market 

 Promotion Strategies Etc.-Use data of Expenditure Vs. Return 

Interpretation- 

Then Students have to do analysis on various factors discussed during comparison phase 

with the help of the faculty. 

Conclusion- 

Conclusion to be derived by students of complete discussion for the topic- e.g. 

Segmentation in this case with the help of faculty. 

UNIQUE CLASSROOM TRAINING PEDAGOGY AT PIBM- 

  Unique training pedagogy of PIBM is that we have divided each session into two parts: 

1. Guided Session 

2. Unguided Session 

Guided Session Method:- 

The guided Session is a type of training method under SCPS approach where faculty have 

to guide the students through complete training session.Guided Session includes:- 

 Trainer delivers the topic using example of a sector, company, product or service. 

 75% of class time is reserved for guided class activity such as GD, Role Play, 

Simulation exercise, Extempore, etc. to ensure absorption of concept. 

 Trainer concludes the session clarifying all doubts and details of topic . 

 

Unguided Session Method:- 

The unguided session follow the guided session where faculty has to assign only sector 

to the students and monitor their dicussion on sector assigned or case given. 

Unguided Session includes:- 
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 Students come prepared with pre-assigned tasks like case study and participate 

in a class activity which is monitored by Trainer. 

 Every student is evaluated continually through the session. 

 A feedback is given by the trainer at the end of the session to individual student 

Those who understand the topic are taken ahead in the subject; weak students identified 

are aligned for remedial sessions. 

TRAINING PROCESS FLOWCHART 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TRAINING 

GUIDED 

SESSION 

UNGUIDED 

SESSION 

FEEDBACK- GROUP 

& INDIVIDUAL 

BARRICADING FOR 

DEFAULTER/NON-

PERFORMERS 

REMEDIAL SESSION 

RE-

EVALUATION 

ASSESSMENT ON 

BASIS OF SESSION & 

ASSIGNMENTS 
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SEMESTER CURRICULUM 

PGDM 

Sr. 
No. 

Subjects Section Name of Faculty Brief Profile 

1 
Strategic Business 
Management 

Common for all 
PGDM  

Mr. Bibhas 
Mr.Anirban 

5+ years of corporate exp. 
and 10+ years of academic 

exp. 

2 
Legal Aspects of 
Business 

Common for all 
PGDM  

Mr. Vilas Kulkarni 
 30 years of corporate and 

academic experience 

3 

Entrepreneurship 
Development and 
Project 
Management 

Common for all 
PGDM  

Ms. Palak Sharma 
3 years. Corporate Exp 
8 years. Academics Exp 

4 
Advance Machine 
Learning 

Finance Analytics Dr.Hemlata 

8 years of Corporate and 1 
year Academic exp 

3 years Industry and 5 years 
Academic Exp 

5 
Time Series 
Analysis 

Finance Analytics Ms.Seema 
6.6 + years professional 

experience working in the 
data analytics field 

6 
Advanced Financial 
Management 

Core Finance & 
Finance Analytics 

Mr. Prasad Bhat 
CA, CS, CMA and having 
more than 16+ years of 

exp. 

7 
International 
Finance 

Core Finance & 
Finance Analytics 

Mr. S K Vaze 
Having more than 20 

years of exp. 

8 Taxation 
Core Finance & 

Finance Analytics 
Mr. Prasad Bhat 

CA, CS, CMA and having 
more than 16+ years of 

exp. 

9 Risk/Credit 
Core Finance & 

Finance Analytics 
Mr. Vaibhav 

Kabra 
13 + years of corporate 

experience 

10 Financial Modelling 
Core Finance & 

Finance Analytics 
Mr. Vaibhav 

Agarwal 
6 + years of corporate 

experience 

11 SAPM 
Core Finance & 

Finance Analytics 
Mr.Bharat Dalal 

CA with total of 38 years’ 

experience in Financial 

Services and also includes 

5+ years in Academics. 

** Aptitude Training, Communication Training, Excel and Advanced Excel training and Workshop on 
Accountability will be planned along with the subjects 
** Integrated Learning will be done and Abhyas and Prayas (As explained on page no 16) will be 
incorporated in the time table for which Industry people will be coming. 
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MBA 

Sr.No Subjects Section Faculty Brief Profile 

1 Strategic Management 
Common 
Subject 

Mr. G. Pravin 
13+ years total experience in 

marketing domain 

2 
Enterprise Performance 
Management 

Common 
Subject 

Mr. Ashok 
Kumar 

 25+ years of corporate and 
academic experience 

3 
Start -Up & New Venture 
Management 

Common 
Subject 

Ms. Palak 
Sharma 

3 years. Corporate Experience 
5 years. Academics Experience 

4 Direct taxation Finance Prof. A P Rao 30+ years Academic Exp 

5 
Financial System of India, 
Markets and Services 

Finance Mr. Pavandeep 
CA with more than 13+ years of 

Industry and Academic exp 
6 Strategic Cost Management Finance Mr.Pavandeep 

7 Corporate Finance Finance 
Mr. Vaibhav 
Agarwal 

6 + years of corporate 
experience 

8 
Equity Research, Credit 
Analysis and Appraisal 

Finance Mr. Adesh 
10 years corporate 

(Institutional Equity Research) 
+ 4 years academic experience 

9 
Financial Instrument and 
Derivative 

Finance Prof. Dalal 

CA with total of 38 years’ 
experience in Financial Services 

and also includes 5+ years in 
Academics. 

** Aptitude Training, Communication Training, Excel and Advanced Excel training and 

Workshop on Accountability will be planned along with the subjects 

** Integrated Learning will be done and Abhyas and Prayas (As explained on page no :16) will 

be incorporated in the time table for which Industry people will be coming. 
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EVALUATIONS 

PGDM 

 

Internal Evaluation 

We have Internal Evaluations of 50 marks which consists: 

 Assignment 

 Presentation 

 Unguided Session/Pre-post reading 

 Projects/Test 

 Test/Mid Terms and End Terms 

 Subject Wise Viva/Role Play 

1. Assignments- Faculty has to give assignments to all the students after every topic 

and it is based on application of the concept. Students need to submit the 

assignments on given deadline in the lockers allocated section-wise on 2nd floor in 

front of faculty room. 

Students need to write assignments with using and analyzing data using some 

websites like Proquest, Ace Analyser and Bloomberg.  

 For using Proquest- www.proquest.com/go/yourpath 

 For Using Ace Analyser- www.aceanalyser.com/ 

 For Using Bloomberg- www.bloomberg.in/ 

PGDM 
EVALUATIONS

CONTINUOUS 
INTERNAL 

EVALUATIONS

ASSIGNMENTS

HOME 
ASSIGNMENTS

FIELD 
ASSIGNMENTS

CLASS TESTS

UNGUIDED 
SESSIONS-

DISCUSSIONS

PRESENTATIONS 
AND 

EXTEMPORES

CLASS 
PARTICIPATION

EXTERNAL 
EVALUATIONS

MID TERMS AND 
END TERMS

http://www.proquest.com/go/yourpath
http://www.aceanalyser.com/
http://www.bloomberg.in/
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2. Presentations- There are presentations after completing 25% of syllabus in many 

subjects. So there will be 3-4 presentation in each subject in a semester. At PIBM 

we have different way to evaluate presentations. Students will get different sector, 

different company and different product on each topic. The presentation may be 

individual or in group. 

      So students need to analyze company data of particular product on the given topic. 

      There are certain parameters on which we evaluate you for presentations- 

 

 

 

3. Unguided Sessions/GDs- The unguided session follows the guided session where 

faculty has to assign only sector to the students and monitor their discussion. 

Objective of Unguided session is to check: 

 Students have understood the concept discussed during guided session. 

 They can relate the concept to other sectors without guidance by the faculty. 

          Following are the steps involved during unguided session:  

 A case study will be shared with the students in advance on different sectors: 

 Then class is to be divided into groups  

 Each group will have discussion in different classrooms in front of different 

faculty members. 

 Discussion will be followed as per all three steps: Problem identification, 

Interpretation and conclusion. 

The parameters on which we evaluate unguided session are- 
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4. Projects- We at PIBM give projects to the students in many subjects. If any student 

is doing project in the semester then it improves following skills of the student: 
 Planning and critical thinking 

 Interpersonal and Presentation skills 

 Handling of Cross cultural resources 

 Visualizing and decision making 

 Independent 

The project than has to be submitted in the form of report. You may also be asked to 

present on it. 

 

5. Role Plays-Role Play involves imagination and stimulates the student’s 

imagination. It also enhances their: 
 Social development. 

 Encourage friendship through cooperation. 

 Listening and turn taking skills. 

 Learn to express all their feelings. 

 Improve language and movement skills. 

 Improve team building skills. 

 Improve leadership skills. 

 Developing decision making and problem solving skills 

6. Test-  
 Testing improves transfer of knowledge to new context. 

 Testing improves meta-cognitive monitoring by giving students score so that they 

can better predict their knowledge. 

 Testing identifies gaps in knowledge. 

 Immediate feedback will be given by the faculty after taking test (Within a week). 
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Final Evaluation- 

Final Evaluations includes:- 

 Mid Term and End Term Exams- Mid Term and End Term exams are conducted in 

the middle and end of the semester respectively. Exams may be open book or 

closed book. The exam is based on application of the concept so that we allow book 

to refer for concept sometimes, but exam will be completely based on data and 

application. Unfair means in these exams can lead to cancellation of the paper 

altogether. 

Type of 

Evaluation 

Description of Evaluation Marks contains 

 

Continuous 

Internal 

Assessment 

Presentations 15% 

Viva 10% 

Test/Project 10% 

Assignment 5% 

Unguided Session/Pre-post reading 5% 

Attendance 5% 

End Semester 

Exam 

50 Marks written Examination (Practical 

Exam in exceptional subjects) 

50% 

 

** A minimum of 40% marks has to be secured as a sum of Continuous Internal 

Assessment and End Semester Exam. In case the candidate remains absent or secures 

zero marks in continuous evaluation and secures passing marks in End Semester Exam, 

the candidate will be declared fail and vice-versa is also fail. 
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MBA 

 

Internal Evaluation- 

 Presentation 
 Viva 
 Test 
 Projects 
 Assignment (Both Home & Field) 

Online Exam- There will be online exam in the semester which will be conducted by 
university within the 1.5-2 months of starting of semester, and 2 units of syllabus will be 
covered by online exam. It will be of 20 marks. Dates will be decided by university. 

External Evaluation- 

Written Exam held at the end of semester and will be conducted by University of Pune. 

Type of 
Evaluation 

Description of Evaluation Marks contains 

Online Exam Online Exam 20% 

Continuous 
Internal 
Assessment 

Presentations 10% 

Projects 5% 

Test 5% 

EVALUATIONS

ONLINE EXAM

INTERNAL 
EVALUATION

PRESENTATIONS

VIVA

TEST

PROJECTS

ASSIGNMENTS

HOME 
ASSIGNMENTS

FIELD 
ASSIGNMENTS

EXTERNAL 
EVALUATIONS

END TERM 
EXAM
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Continuous 
Internal 
Assessment 

Viva 5% 

Assignment 5% 

End Semester 
Exam 

50 Marks written Examination (Practical 
Exam in exceptional subjects) 

50% 

**Note-  

 Marks per evaluation may vary subject wise. 

 Passing marks has to be obtained in all three forms of evaluation 

ATTENDANCE & LEAVE POLICIES 

You are here at PIBM to work hard and fulfil your dreams. For fulfilling your dreams you 

have to be punctual to your classes. Absence causes a slow-down in the work and also 

creates gaps in your day to day learning process. Good attendance is something that is 

expected from all the students.  

Also, as Placement seasons will be starting immediately, daily attendance is of utmost 

importance so as not to miss out on opportunities 

Excessive absenteeism and tardiness will not be tolerated and will be cause of 

disciplinary action up to. So, attendance rules and regulations are as follows:- 

College rules 

 A student can have total 4 approved absence in a semester, means 1 approved 

absence in a month. 

 Every student has to maintain minimum 90% of attendance in a semester. 

 Every student has to take approval from Academics department and respective 

mentor for taking any off on personal or official account. 

 There will be session wise attendance every day means in a day 6-7 times 

attendance will be taken by academics depending on if you have 6 session or 7 

sessions in a day. 

 Below 90% will not be allowed to sit in exams. Attendance will play a major role 

in your academic grading which will be the basis of  shortlisting for final placement 

companies 

 Academics department will display attendance fortnightly on notice board.  

 LUNCH TIME RULES: Students have to carry their own lunch boxes to college or 

manage their lunch in college canteen itself. Lunch can also be availed in college 

mess by buying coupons from Admin Dept. Students will not be allowed to leave 

campus for lunch. 
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ABHYAAS 

Abhyaas is a series of planned Group Discussions and Personal Interviews scheduled for 

the 2nd year students as part of Placement Training. The idea behind this training 

program is to fully equip the students to face Final Placement Procedures which will 

start from September 2018 onwards or before. Through this student will understand the 

importance of team work, leadership and the ability to communicate clearly what is in 

their mind in a Group Discussion or Personal Interview which they currently lack. This 

training program will focus on bridging this gap by inducting the students in a 

professional environment making them learn how to interact and behave professionally 

in a group discussion. The rigorous and dynamic nature of the training program would 

help students understand how to prepare and perform in a group discussion. GDs and PIs 

are held in front of senior faculties or corporates. 

1. Students will be given tips on how to prepare for a group discussion and how to 
behave and perform in a group discussion. 

2. Demo of ideal group discussions will be shown after which it will be performed by 

students 

3. Individual feedback will be given at that instant and this feedback will be a very 

detailed feedback so that students realize the mistake they have done and work on 

improving for an impeccable performance. 

4. More GDs will be scheduled to check if the student has improved upon the 

previous session 

5. Students will have one GD and PI score card which they will maintain throughout 

the semester where they will have continuous evaluations 

PRAYAAS 

The objective of Integrated Learning (PRAYAS) is as follows – 

1. Getting the student ready for placement 
2. Realizing the importance of Aptitude, GD & PI  

Integrated learning (PRAYAS) is where we will conduct simulation of placement 

process. Every week or two, we will share different JD’s to the students. Based on the JD 

shared, the following process will be followed - 

1. Aptitude test 
2. Students shortlisted will appear for GD 
3. Final shortlisted students will appear for PI 

 

Corporate will be invited for the GDs and interviews and their feedback will be of 

utmost importance for the student’s learning and improvement.  
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SAHAAS 

Sahaas: Building Confidence- Our mentor-mentee program instils the required skills- set 

which builds the overall confidence in the students. While facing interviews during the 

placement process, students need skills on business communication and negotiations 

that provide them an opportunity to make the most out of their job offers. Individual 

mentors, who are domain experts, are tasked with imbibing the much needed throughout 

the management program. 

Specific HR, 

Marketing and 

Finance JD to be 

shared to students 

Students will 

undergo Aptitude 

test 

Students will 

undergo Group 

Discussion 

Students will attend 

remedial session 

Students will 

undergo Personal 

Interview 

FAIL 

PASS 

PASS 
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JDs OF DIFFERENT COMPANIES 

AXIENCE 

Structured Finance – Analyst and Associate 

Who are we? 

Axience started at the beginning of 2007 and is a business services firm providing business and 

financial research and consulting services to corporate, consultancies and financial services 

industry. We are looking for medium KPO/Business Research professional who would like to be 

part of a story of making a small business successful in highly competitive environment. 

Axience senior management comes leading organizations and has worked globally at leading 

investment banks, industry, market research firms and financial services institutions. 

What is our requirement? 

We are in measured growth phase and are currently looking to hire junior and middle level 

professionals for our Securitization division with following roles and responsibilities: 

 The management of the credit surveillance for the Securitization Investment portfolio by 

analyzing the periodic reports of Securitization Transactions managed by our clients 

 Produce monitoring reports for Securitization Investments 

 Update dashboards 

 Liaise with Portfolio Managers, Credit Risk Management, Trustees and Servicer in order to 

meet monitoring specifications and make the most of existing tools and database 

 Keep a check on trend of Ratings, Losses and the other key variables of the transaction and 

make a client aware at the earliest 

 Implementing quality control tools, automation and knowledge management systems 

ensuring high efficiency and enhanced quality of operations 

 Working on pilot projects related to Securitization, Covered Bond, Corporate Bonds and 

other financial products 

 For Associate/Senior Analyst level only 

o Prior experience in cash flow modeling 

o Knowledge of Excel and VBA for financial modeling 

To meet the above stated requirement, we seek candidate with following skill-set: 

Analyst: 

 Fresh MBA with enthusiasm and ability to learn  

 Proficient in MS Office 

 Excellent communication skills and Team player 

 Attention to detail and focus on quality 

Associate: 

 2-4 years of relevant experience in securitization industry, including deal surveillance 

o Experience in deal modeling and structuring is required 
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o Preference is given to candidates who have supported sell side investment 

banks 

 Proficient in MS Office 

 Self-starter, who can work with little supervision 

 Good communication skills 

 Attention to detail and focus on quality 

Why should you join us? 

 We offer an exciting opportunity to work for a fast growing company that 

services Investment banks, hedge funds, asset managers and more 

 Congenial work culture with young and dynamic team  

 Significant idea and knowledge sharing opportunities 

 Experienced Management/Board practicing open door policy for all levels of employees   

 

 

 

 

Job Description 

Joining: Immediate 

Rounds: GD followed by PI 

Joining would be immediate for those candidates who get selected 

Job Role & Responsibility 

 Retirement Benefits Investment Management is a flagship Department of 

Darashaw 

 The company is in a process of approaching 300-400 companies for their fund 

management 

Job Title Management Trainee  

Business Unit 

RBIM (Retirement Benefits Investment 

Management) 

Experience 0-3 years 

Location Mumbai 

Education PGDM/MBA(Finance) 

No. of openings 3 
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 They are in need of people who have good financial knowledge and have 

excellent communication skills 

 ICICI Securities Ltd.  

 

Please find below the detailed Job Description and the Compensation Details: 

 

Job Description for Equity Relationship Manager - OAG  

 

 *   Converting and generating revenue from Stop Trading customers assigned for 

conversion  

 *   Proactive Retention of customers who have fallen in revenue and retain and enhance 

revenue  

 *   Interaction with clients with research calls , advisory to keep clients active and 

increase revenue  

 *   Conducting IKP Sessions for customer education and increase new traders in 

different products  

 *   Acquiring new active trading HNI clients for ATS, EAG  

 

Skills sets required:  

 

 *   Ability to acquire, advise and handle relationships of top end clients  

 *   Should be proficient in equity and derivatives products and understanding of 

equities markets  

 *   Certification in Equity and Derivative Segment mandatory  

 *   NCFM Certification is Mandatory  

 

Location: Pune & Ahmedabad 

 

 

JOB DESCRIPTION (JD) 
 

Job Title Financial Relationship 
Manager 

JD No.   

Designation Financial Relationship 
Manager 

Reporting 
Relationship 

BM/SBM 

Grade   Function / 
Department 

Sales  

Direct Reports NIL Branch / 
Location 

Mumbai 
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Purpose of Role Financial Relationship Manager acts as an interface between the company & 

customers. He/She should be able to offer customized insurance solution to 

the customers for all their financial needs. The Primary responsibility is to 

drive the Insurance sales for Life & to manage and optimize the customer 

acquisition model through work sites  

Description of 
Role 

• Meeting Productivity targets as assigned by the Organization on MoM 

basis 

• Ensure all Training Modules laid by the L&D department are attended and 

certification obtained post assessment. 

• Represents IDBI Federal/Direct Marketing channel & its value proposition 

to all customers as per the vision & values of the organization & channel. 

• Meeting the customers to solicit insurance products of IDBI Federal based 

on appointments & references generated in the course of daily activities. 

• Ensure that appointments allocated by the call center are attended and 

reverted in the prescribed formats within the TAT. 

• Ensure that MIS/ Reporting Formats are maintained/ Updated on regular 

basis. 

• Ensure that a comprehensive financial need analysis of customers is done 

& provide insurance solutions based on the analysis. 

• Customer Servicing - Maintain customer relations & ensure post sale 

needs of customers are met.  

• Ensure strict adherence to Human Resource Policies & processes. 

Competencies 
1 

Aggressive go 
getter 

Education & 
Experience 1 

Should be at least a 
graduate 

2 
High Energy  
levels 

2 

Previous experience 
should be in sales across 
products & services (Direct 
Sales preferred) 

3 

Good 
Communication 
skills (English & 
Local language 

3 
Between 21 years to 30 
years of age 

4 
Strong Customer 
Orientation 

4 

Previous assignment 
should be minimum 1 year 
(6 months can be 
considered with due 
approvals) 

5 

Familiar with 
basic working on 
Computers/ MS 
Word/ MS XL. 
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INDUSIND BANK LTD. 
JOB DESCRIPTION – CUSTOMER SERVICE MANAGER 

JOB SUMMARY 

Responsible for acquiring NTB business, branch sales, servicing walk-in-customers and handling 

client queries on various products and services within the timelines. 

Detailed Responsibilities: 

 Resolve all client queries or requests for products and services within the given timelines. 

 Seek out ways to increase client satisfaction. 

 Identify opportunity for cross-sell of new products (CASA, FD, and Insurance & Investments) 

and services to existing customers. Generate referrals from existing customers. Perform 

outbound tele-calling to allocated portfolio if required to meet sales targets. 

 Participate in branch sales campaigns. 

 Direct clients to appropriate staff person for specialized services. Eg Trade/Fx, Home Loans 

etc 

 

XL Dynamic 

Position:  Financial Analyst 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE PROFILE:  

Your skill and experience will place you in key positions in our full-service Banking and 

Financial Services operation for Companies in the United States of America. You will 

be engaged in different phases of the life-cycle of mortgage transactions. You will be 

responsible for reviewing financial statement, configuring financial data and documents 

in the ERP system, performing various verifications to determine authenticity of data, 

detecting red-flags in financial documents, generating final agreements for execution. 

All aspects of the operations are backed with an independent quality control teams and 

will require you to consistently ensure delivery of high-quality work. Your positive 

attitude, discipline and hard work will enable you to span across different departments 

as well as progress to higher levels in the organization. 

Skills: 

# Any Graduate/Post Graduate with 0 to 4 years of experience 

# Openings are available for Day Shifts & Night Shifts (Day Shift timing - 9.00 AM to 6.00 

PM & Night shift timing- 8.30 PM to 5.30 AM) [Please note that these are fixed shifts and 

we have no rotational shifts] 

# Must be self-managed, responsive, and dedicated to customer support. 

# No prior knowledge in finance / mortgages is required. 
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# Candidate must have good communication skills (both written & verbal) as well as 

good analytical skills. 

# Candidates staying in Navi Mumbai & Central Suburbs will be preferred. 

#Candidates from technical stream with highest education qualification as 

B.E/B.Tech/BCA/BSc.IT/MCA/MSc.IT must not apply. CA's are also not eligible. 

Company Profile 

XL Dynamics India is a business information services company founded in 2002. We are 

focused on providing the highest quality financial services to the financial markets, part 

of diverse portfolio of services. 

 

Being a technology savvy company, we have also developed our integrated technology 

platform to bring the best of the banking services and innovative financial products. Our 

experience in financial and banking industry with a blend of technology enables us to 

provide the most efficient and cost effective services to our customers. 

 

 

Post Offered – Management Trainee – Corporate Finance 

Job Description 

● Assist in preparing the monthly Management report, which will be circulated to 

the Top Management 

● Carry out primary and secondary research and produce reports, briefing papers 

and findings for the purpose of special projects 

● Assist in completing assignments by determining priorities, managing time, 

gaining cooperation of others, monitoring progress, problem-solving, and 

making adjustments to plans 

● Managing Banking documentation (fund based and non-fund based borrowings) 

● Preparation of Treasury reports for Management 

● Treasury operations documentation and follow up for placement of surplus 

funds 

● Cash flow preparations weekly / fortnightly / monthly 

● Keeping track of all bank charges levied by the banks and inform the manager 

about the variance 

● Assist in monitoring the Innovation program of the Company 

● Provide general assistance for presentations, workshops or meetings. Take notes 

if required and follow up 

Qualification Required: MBA Finance 

Location: Gurgaon 
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Skills Required: 

● IT savvy, fully conversant and proficient in Microsoft Office and related Software 

packages 

● Ability to analyze large data and generate meaningful results 

● Handle multiple tasks simultaneously and autonomously 

● Excellent interpersonal, organization and communication skills appropriate to a 

multi-cultural and diverse working environment 

 

 

Position Assistant Manager- Credit Admin Dept. (Business Banking) 

 Objective The primary purpose of the role is Credit administration  

Job Description 

        Candidate Should have understanding of Loans Advances & 
disbursement

       Should have knowledge on various Assets products (Viz : 
CC/TL/WCDL/LC/BG etc)

         Understanding of Bank facility management and drawing Power 
Calculation

         Knowledge of working products

         Understanding of Security creation (Hypothecation/Mortgage)

         Knowledge of financial statements and accounting

Essential 
competencies 

  In depth knowledge of Banking industry and regional market.

  Well versed with Excel

  Service focussed

  Drive for making things happen

  Teamwork, co-operation and sharing

Qualifications   Post Graduate with above 60% in academics

 

 

Position: Research Associates (Private Equity/Venture Capital) 

Location: Pune 

Employment Type: Full Time 

Job Description: We're looking for professionals to work closely together to bring together the 

most comprehensive and accurate database available to the Private Equity and Venture Capital 
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Markets. We expect you to leverage your skills, your passion and your desire to accomplish 

great things. And we expect you to have fun while doing it. 

Our team is creative, innovative and completely dedicated to our strategic goals and vision. The 

team knows where it is going and how it is going to get there. We need go-getters who can 

execute skillfully and help us achieve our goals. 

Our Research Associates: 

1.       Pay fanatical attention to details. Our projects are high profile and gather a lot of attention. 

2.       Are interested in the Private Equity, Venture Capital and M&A industries and research 

events in the Private Equity and Venture Capital industries, including details on deals, acquired 

companies and investment firms. 

3.       Gather information through internet research and SEC filings, manage the information in 

our research database and then verify it. 

4.       Are numbers and data driven. 

5.       Are "people people" 

6.       Are process driven. Love to follow process and then improve it. 

7.       Love to work in a team but can also work alone and deliver on time. 

8.       Are amazing communicators - both verbal and written. 

 

Job Description 

-          Designation- Management Trainee (Commercial Credit) 

-          Qualification: M.B.A (Finance) or C.A 

-          Location- Mumbai  
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 Brief job description/Technical skill/Competencies: 

         Manage the corporate finance loans portfolio 

         Conduct credit & technical appraisal for all corporate finance proposals 

         Client interface from origination to repayment   

         Monitor existing loan portfolio on the books 

         Review credit data to evaluate commercial loan requests in order to approve or deny 
applications 

         Analyze sources of financial information such as reporting services, credit bureaus, 
other companies, main office files, and branches to determine profitability of loan 

         Reviews the credit history, profitability and liquidity of clients to assess the risk level 
involved in credit extension or money lending 

         Analyzes financial data to determine customers' financial status and the expected 
profitability of commercial loans; recommends approval or denial of loan applications 

         Firm legal knowhow of Real Estate regulations & compliances along with factors 
persistent and consistent in the local/target market 

         In-depth Knowledge on matters pertaining to taxation, credit, lending etc. 

  

 

Position / Title   : Research Associate  

Department        : Investment Banking 

Location                : Mumbai 

www.elaracapital.com 

Elara Capital provides a complete, coordinated investment banking effort to offer superior 

services to our clients across industries and products. We have completed 75+ deals in India 

and in overseas market involving capital raising, M & A, Private Equity Placement and advisory 

services etc. 

With the wide product suite to serve Indian companies – our fund raising capabilities span 

across a broad array of instruments and our M&A capabilities cut across geographies and 

cultures. This helps us adopt a diagnostic approach to our clients’ investment banking needs 

and provide them the most appropriate solution. 

We differentiate ourselves from others through our service suite that rivals the largest 

investment banks, a global reach, and an entrepreneurial, knowledge driven approach. 
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Job Description: 

This position provides opportunity to work with the institutional equity research team covering 

Indian equities, industries and would also cover valuation of IPOs, QIPs, Private Equity, FCCB, 

GDRs, Mergers’ & Acquisitions, Corporate Advisory services etc. 

 Responsible for tracking a sector and having coverage on major companies within the 

sector. 

 Role includes meeting management of the companies under coverage and keeping track of 

all the developments 

 Should attend all company meets/ conference calls and should prepare /update the report 

under coverage. 

 The financial models of the companies under coverage need to be updated regularly based 

on any company / industry event. 

 Should be in touch with the clients – fund managers, buy side research analyst, dealers, 

bank treasury, etc and update them on every event regarding the companies tracked 

 Preparing Research Report (Initiating Coverage) for Clients based on fundamental analysis 

 Knowledge of Bloomberg and Ace Equity preferred 

Requirement: 

 Deep domain knowledge 

 Candidate shall be analytical, multi-tasker, persuasive, should possess excellent number 

crunching skills. 

 Good team player 

 

BNY MELLON 

Operations Executive – Wealth Management 

Pune, Maharashtra 

For over 230 years, the people of BNY Mellon have been at the forefront of finance, expanding 

the financial markets while supporting investors throughout the investment lifecycle. BNY 

Mellon can act as a single point of contact for clients looking to create, trade, hold, manage, 

service, distribute or restructure investments & safeguards nearly one-fifth of the world's 

financial assets. BNY Mellon remains one of the safest, most trusted and admired companies. 

Every day our employees make their mark by helping clients better manage and service their 

financial assets around the world. Whether providing financial services for institutions, 

corporations or individual investors, clients count on the people of BNY Mellon across time 

zones and in 35 countries and more than 100 markets. It's the collective ambition, innovative 

thinking and exceptionally focused client service paired with a commitment to doing what is 

right that continues to set us apart. 

 

As one of the nation's leading wealth managers, BNY Mellon Wealth Management is dedicated to 

helping individuals, families, planned giving programs, endowments, foundations and other 

institutions with all of their wealth and investment planning needs. By providing integrated 

products, services and solutions, we help them capitalize on opportunity while managing risk. 

Backed by more than two centuries of experience, we understand our clients' needs and deliver 
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customized strategies to help them reach their goals. 

 

Description: 

Operations Executive Wealth - WW44047 

 

Qualifications: 

The qualified candidate should possess an MBA degree with a concentration in Finance 

preferred or comparable work experience. 

BNY Mellon is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer.  

 

Primary Location: India-Maharashtra-Pune 

Job: Wealth Management 

Internal Jobcode: 51202 

Organization: BNYM Wealth Management-HR06268 

Requisition Number: 1604445 
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Company profile: 
Capital First (CFL) is a systemically important NBFC with record of consistent growth & profitability and focus on 

MSME financing. Warburg Pincus, global Private Equity player, has majority stake (71.83% as on June 30, 2014) in 

CFL. The company is led by a dynamic leader, Mr. V. Vaidyanathan as CMD who joined CFL from ICICI Prudential 

where he was the MD and CEO. CFL has total loan assets under management of Rs. 106.03 bn and presence across 

215 locations in India as on June 30, 2014. For further details about Capital First please visit our website 

www.capfirst.com 

Job Title Credit Underwriter 

Job Grade Range Management Trainee  

Department Credit- Business Instalment Loans (BIL) / Loans against Property (LAP) 

Reporting To State Credit Manager 

Experience 0-1 years 

Qualification MBA 

Location 
Chennai(2),   Bangalore(2),   Hyderabad(2),    Pune(2),   Mumbai(2),     Ahmedabad(2), 
Kolkata(1),    Ludhiana(1),    Surat(1),    Delhi(1),    Dehradun(1),    Indore(1),   Chandigarh(1) 

Job Description 

 Your primary responsibility will be to proactively assess and take decisions on 
underwriting Micro and SME loan customers proposal according to the laid down 
credit policies & procedures to adhere to the agreed SLAs and manage city /area 
business lending volumes. 

 The role also involves coordinating with sales to achieve business targets and 
ensure TAT and SLAs are met. 

 You will have the opportunity to travel and meet customers to conduct personal 
discussions at their factories / business premises to accurately assess and 
correctly determine their Credit worthiness. 

 Adherence to completion of credit / KYC documents, Credit Appraisal Memo 
(CAM) and verification- telephonic, field & collateral visits are an essential part of 
the due diligence process. 

 Your interventions would also be vital to control and contain front-end 
delinquencies and be involved in managing customer relationships for adherence 
to repayment schedules. 

 

Desired 
Candidate profile 

 
In the selection process at CFL the following traits defining potential & other criteria play a 
critical role.  
Ambition – Future leaders are willing to pay the price for success, including time, energy, 
risk taking and personal mobility. 
Ability – Leaders can move from doing work, to getting work done with others as team 
leaders, to getting work done when they are not present. 
Agility – High potentials must learn experiment, be curious, be self aware, and be flexible. 
Achievement – Future leaders have developed a pattern of achievement. They accept new 
assignments and deliver what they say they are going to do. 

http://www.capfirst.com/
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INTERVIEW QUESTIONS 

General Interview Questions: 

1) Introduce Yourself? 

2) Tell me something about you? 

3) Describe yourself. 

4) Describe yourself in one word. 

5) Tell me something about you other 

than your CV. 

6) Tell me about your family? 

7) Tell me your hobbies. 

8) What is your interested area? 

9) Describe yourself in three words or 

one word or one sentence. 

10) How your friends describe you? 

11) How your teachers describe you? 

12) Tell me something about your 

college. 

13) Tell me something about Pune and 

tell me something about your home 

town. 

14) Describe any topic of your choice 

for two minutes. 

15) What color you like most. 

16) Which fruit you like most and why? 

17) What magazines and books you 

read? 

18) Which news channel you like most 

and why? 

19) Which is the last book you have 

read? 

20) Describe your everyday routine? 

21) Which is the last movie you saw? 

22) What do you do on weekends? 

23) Are you ready to work 24*7 hours? 

Are you flexible? 

24) If your boss asks you to work 

beyond working time, what will be 

your reaction? 

25) Are you ready to work in night 

shift? 

26) Do you have boyfriend or 

girlfriends? If no then why? 

27) Who is the Prime Minister, Finance 

Minister, Governor of RBI, Labor 

Minister,      President, and Vice 

President of India? 

28) Who is the chief minister of 

Maharashtra? 

29) What is the dollar rate in rupees? 

30) What are gold prices? 

31) What are Sensex and GDP? 

32) Which is your favorite subject and 

why? 

33) What do you do in your free time? 

34) What is the meaning of your name? 

35) Who is your role model?  
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Situation Based Questions: 

1. Why do you want to work with our 

company? 

2. If you find that two of your staffs are 

fighting or arguing on the floor then 

how will you handle that situation? 

3. Suppose your male staff has passed 

wrong comment to a female staff 

then what will you do as a manager? 

4. If you get an opportunity to join that 

company from which you have done 

your internship then you will join 

that company or ours? 

5. Why do you want to join this sector 

(Retail, CD, FMCG, Cement, Paint, IT 

etc) 

6. What you will do if you find one theft 

in your store by any of your staff? 

7. What you will do if you find one of 

your staff coming to the store 

regularly but not following proper 

grooming standards? 

8. Suppose there is some emergency 

with any of your staff and he is asking 

for a long leave and at the same time 

sales period is also going on, then 

what will you do? 

9. You are working on a project with a 

tight deadline but you find that you 

are unable to complete your section 

because your co-worker and your 

supervisor are unavailable to answer 

a few key questions. How do you deal 

with the situation? 

10. You have been assigned a major 

project and are halfway through 

when you realize that you’ve made a 

mistake that requires you to go back 

to the beginning to fix it. How do you 

handle that while still trying to meet 

your deadline? 

11. You’re a team leader. What would 

you do if the work of one of your 

subordinate team member was not 

up to expectations? 

12. You have reason to believe that a co-

worker is preparing to divulge 

company secrets to a rival 

corporation. These secrets have the 

potential to really damage the 

company. How would you deal with 

the situation? 
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GUIDE TO FINANCE INTERVIEWS (VAULT) 

INTRODUCTION 

FINANCIAL SERVICES INDUSTRY 
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PREPARING FOR FINANCE INTERVIEWS 

PRACTICE MAKES PERFECT 

SAMPLE FIT QUESTIONS 

 

VALUATION TECHNIQUES 
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BASIC ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS 

MARKET VALUATION 

DCF ANALYSIS 

CALCULATING DISCOUNT RATE 

DCF ANALYSIS EXAMPLE 

     COMPARABLE TRANSACTIONS 

MULTIPLES 

QUESTIONS 

DCF ANALYSIS QUESTION 

STOCKS 

A REMEDIAL LESSON 
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DIVIDENDS 
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STOCK INTERVIEW QUESTIONS 

BONDS AND INTEREST RATES 
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PRICING BONDS 
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OPTIONS AND DERIVATIVES 

THE WILD WEST OF FINANCE 

OPTIONS 

WRITING OPTIONS 
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FORWARDS, FUTURES AND SWAPS 
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MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS 

THE HOT M&A WORLD 
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WE LOVE POOLING ACCOUNTING 
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WILL THAT BE CASH OR STOCK 

ACCRETIVE VS. DILUTIVE MERGERS 

INTERVIEW QUESTIONS 

GUESSTIMATES 

BRAINTEASERS 

QUICK WHAT’S 2+2 

INTERVIEW QUESTIONS 
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INTRODUCTION 

Financial Services Industry 

Money makes the world go round, and those in charge of the money are the financiers. 

Have a thirst for relevance? 

Finance career opportunities can be broadly divided into several categories, most 

prominently investment banking, commercial banking, asset management, venture 

capital and private equity, and finance positions at a corporation like Dell or The Coca-

Cola Company (also called "finance in a company"). There is considerable movement 

between these positions - I-bankers leave to take posts in industry, or with private equity 

firms, etc. Generally, the pinnacle for most finance professionals is either as a partner or 

managing director of a bank, a portfolio manager for an asset management firm, or as 

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of a company. Let's take a brief look at some of the major 

industries for finance positions. 

Investment banking 

Tom Wolfe called them "Masters of the Universe" in The Bonfire of the Vanities; Michael 

Lewis called them a few unprintable things in Liar's Poker. Who are they? Investment 

Bankers, salespeople, traders, and research analysts. Investment banks aren't like your 

local branch office with ubiquitous ATMs (those are commercial banks, like Citibank or 

Bank of America); instead, investment banks work with corporations, governments, 

institutional investors and extraordinarily wealthy individuals to raise capital and 

provide investment advice. 

However, the legal barrier between commercial and investment banks has been rapidly 

decaying since the 1980s, and this decade has witnessed the arrival of huge commercial 

banks entering the investment banking market. Commercial banks have been acquiring 

small-to medium-sized investment banks at a rapid rate. Baltimore-based Alex. Brown, 

the oldest investment bank in the nation, was recently acquired by Bankers Trust 

(Bankers Trust itself was bought by German titan Deutsche Bank) and commercial titan 

Bank of America snapped up fast-growing Robertson Stephens only to sell it to 

BankBoston after merging with another major commercial bank, NationsBank. 

(NationsBank had acquired its own investment bank, Montgomery Securities.) 

Mergers between investment banks and retail brokerage houses are another trend - 

witness the recent conjoining of Morgan Stanley and Dean Witter, Discover, and Salomon 

Brothers and Smith Barney (now called Salomon Smith Barney). Furthermore, these 

investment banks are also combining with commercial banks (for example, Salomon 

Smith Barney's parent company, Travelers, merged with commercial banking giant 

Citicorp to form Citigroup). These combinations and mergers mean big changes and big 

opportunities in the investment banking industry. Despite the turmoil, positions in these 

temples of lucre remain highly sought after. 
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Commercial banking 

Generally, commercial banks are "lenders" rather than "bankers." In other words, they 

loan money rather than raise it. You can go to the local branch office of your bank and 

apply for a loan, but you can't ask them to find investors to fund your latest get-rich-quick 

scheme. Similarly, commercial banks will loan out large amounts of money to businesses 

(sometimes banding together with other banks for especially huge loans to issue what is 

called a "syndicated loan"), but traditionally, could not raise money for clients by bringing 

stock offerings to the public. Commercial banks lend out money at interest rates that are 

largely determined by the Federal Reserve Board (currently governed by the 

bespectacled Alan Greenspan). The Fed loans out money to commercial banks, which 

turns around and lends it to its customers in a variety of forms - standard loans, 

mortgages, etc. Commercial banks also lend out money that they have on deposit from 

clients. (For a more detailed description of how the Fed operates, refer to the chapter on 

bonds and interest rates.) 

These days, the legal wall between commercial banking and investment banking, which 

was erected in the aftermath of the Depression, is being torn down. Many commercial 

banks are buying investment banking arms, adding I-banking capabilities, or in some 

cases, like J.P. Morgan and Chase Manhattan, transforming themselves into investment 

banks, providing money-raising capabilities to clients with whom they had previously 

had lending relationships. Commercial bankers and investment bankers are notoriously 

different culturally: commercial bankers are typically less aggressive and more risk-

averse than investment bankers. They also don't command the eye-popping bonuses that 

I-bankers can receive. As more commercial banks become driven by investment banking 

businesses, culture clash will be an important factor in whether these combinations work. 

Investment management 

The investment management industry, or, as it's also known, asset management, can be 

broken down into three basic categories: hedge funds and proprietary trading desks, 

mutual funds and the asset management divisions of investment banks, and 'other' - 

which includes insurance companies, universities, municipal governments, and other 

large institutions with money to invest. Asset managers are the "customers," or "buy-

side" of an institutional sale of financial securities. On the "sell-side" are the traders and 

salespeople, who provide liquidity for the asset managers. 

The name of the industry, investment management, is pretty much self-explanatory: a 

client gives money to an asset manager or fund manager, who then invests it to meet the 

client's objectives. The people on the sell-side provide information to the buy-side 

(research, ideas, meetings with officials), and try to get the asset managers to trade 

through them (the sell-side makes a commission for every trade it facilitates). These days, 

many banks are looking to grow their asset management business because they are 

largely protected against the volatility of the market. Asset managers are generally paid 

a percentage of the entire amount they handle, whether they make or lose money for the 
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client. Because their salaries are based on the amount of money they manage, asset 

managers make less money than investment bankers (unless they work for hedge funds). 

They don't necessarily make big bonuses, but on the upside, they know what they're 

getting paid whether they make or lose money for the client. Be advised, however, that 

asset managers typically have contract terms of three years or less - AMs can't keep 

clients if they underperform. 

Venture capital 

Venture capital (VC), says one insider, is the R&D of the 1990s. For the past six years, 

venture capital firms have been on a roll - and the cream of the crop of MBA programs 

across the country are clawing for a spot in these tiny, highly profitable enterprises. 

Landing a VC job requires smarts, a thorough understanding of business operations (so 

one can tell how a company is operating and where it can improve), but perhaps most of 

all, great connections. Venture capital companies typically invest between $250,000 and 

$20 million in seed to private companies in exchange for equity - a piece of the firm. 

Venture firms raise their money from pension funds, endowments, corporations, and 

wealthy individuals. Venture capitalists are in it for the money - and with the Internet 

boom, that can be quite a bit of money indeed. Imagine the profits enjoyed by Sequoia 

Capital, which took a 20 percent stake in Yahoo! for a mere $1 million. The stake was 

worth billions in less than five years. 

Industry 

Finance officials with corporations can perform a wide variety of functions, which range 

from managing a company's stock buyback strategy, to internal auditing, to cost, pricing 

or profitability analysis. In some cases, these positions can be similar to investment 

banking positions. For example, many large companies maintain small internal M&A 

arms, which seek out acquisition opportunities, and help structure those deals. 

Companies with large international operations also often employ financial whizzes to 

help them hedge their foreign exchange risk. 

The entry-level position in the finance function at corporations is usually called 

"financial analyst." The peak is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) position. Throughout 

a finance career in industry, employees work closely with other functions (most 

commonly marketing and operations), partly to report and explain financial statements, 

and partly to hash out both short-term and long-term strategy 

INTERVIEW GUIDELINES 

As you read this guide, you should prepare answers to common questions given at finance 

interviews - whether they be fit questions, technical questions, or brainteasers. While this 

may be easiest for technical questions and brainteasers (after all, we can help you to nail 

those questions with the right answers), it is also important to prepare for fit questions 

even if there are no right or wrong answers. We can steer you onto the right path with 

these questions, but you'll need to fill in the blanks. What's the hardest thing you've ever 
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had to do? Can you give me an example of a time when you came up with a creative 

solution? You don't want to be cursing yourself after an interview, thinking about what 

you should have said, or examples you could have brought up. 

One of the best ways to prepare answers to these questions is to use mock/practice 

interviews. You can practice by role-playing with your friends and classmates, or by 

taking advantage of interview training offered by college. 

What mistakes are commonly unearthed by the interview? 

It has been found that "most MBAs don't have their story down. They can't elaborate why 

they came to business school, and why they want to work in the industry." The best 

candidates are able to describe their background and career history, and make a pitch 

about why they are interested in a firm, all in a minute or less. Another problem is that 

many students apparently "can't elaborate their strengths. They have them, but can't sell 

them. They are too modest." While there's no use demurring when explicating your good 

points, career center professionals warn that "there is also a danger of tooting your horn 

too much" - so make sure you're not making any claims for competency you can't back 

up with relevant experience. 

To take full advantage of their mock interviews, students should take them as seriously 

as possible. Dress professionally "to get into the interviewing mindset." Afterwards, the 

interviewer will go over the session, assessing the candidate's strengths and weaknesses. 

It's a good idea to take notes on this feedback. 

Mock interviewers also coach students on appropriate answers. "For example," explains 

one mock interviewer, "many candidates are asked to name their top three weaknesses. 

Answering with your actual weaknesses is not a good idea. So when I identify a student's 

weaker point - maybe they are weak on real teamwork experience - we strategize on an 

appropriate answer. It's better to say something like 'I wouldn't call them weaknesses, 

but there are three areas in which I still have room to grow,' and then choose three areas 

that are not deal-breakers." 

Do interviewers thus end up hearing the same canned answers over and over again? So 

it is always advised to students to always put answers into their own words." 

Prepare questions 

Finally, don't forget that finance interviewers often ask candidates whether they have any 

questions. Don't get caught looking like a job applicant who hasn't done research and is 

not curious about the opportunities. Read about the firms, read about the industries, and 

prepare some intelligent questions 

Sample Fit Questions 

1. Why do you want to do investment banking/investment management/whatever 

career you plan to pursue? 
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If you do not have a finance background, or are an undergrad, this is a question you are 

guaranteed to receive. Don't say that you wanted to be an I-banker all your life (unless 

you want to assure yourself a "ding"), but do talk about how your experiences have 

prepared you for an I-banking job. Talk about how you have developed the core skills 

required to be in finance (analytical ability, good communication skills, oh - and don't 

forget, hardworking). 

2. Walk me through your resume. 

Again, highlight those activities and previous positions that are most applicable to the 

core finance skills. You should also talk about the things you are proud of and that set you 

apart. 

3. Let me give you a situation: "It is Friday afternoon. Tomorrow morning you have to 

catch a flight to Boston for your best friend's marriage, and you are in the wedding. You 

have informed your deal team well in advance and they know that you will be gone. Just 

when you are about to leave, you find out that client wants to meet with the banking team 

tomorrow. What will you do?" 

One of the big things assets you bring to a finance position, especially those with 

investment banks, is your attitude towards work. This is a rather tricky question, but use 

this to express the fact that you understand the hardships that an I-banking career would 

involve, and that you have endured such sacrifice situations previously. 

4. Say you are supposed to meet your girlfriend for dinner but the MD asks you to stay 

late. What do you do? Can you give me an example of a similar situation you have faced 

before? 

Another attitude question. Be prepared. 

5. Why should we hire you? 

When answering an open-ended question like this, try to make them insightful and 

entertaining like you did for your school applications. As you prepare your answers to 

the interview questions, think of them as if they were speeches. What would your stories 

and anecdotes be? Would they be exciting? Funny? Insightful? Absorbing? Something that 

the audience would remember for a long time? Unique? 

 

Also, use this as an opportunity to show your interviewers that you have the makeup for 

the position: hardworking, analytical, and team-oriented. Prepare examples to bolster 

this claim. 

6. Why did you decide to do an MBA? 
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If you are an MBA student looking for a finance position, you are probably going to get 

this question. If you came from a finance background, you can talk about how you thought 

you would add to your skill set by going to business school, and how that expectation has 

panned out. 

7. What types of activities did you pursue while in college? 

While it may be all good and well to talk about the soup kitchen, remember that you're 

interviewing for intense, stressful positions. Says one interviewer, "We love to see people 

who worked part-time, went to all six of their classes, got A’s and don't seem to need 

sleep. Frankly, banks like people in debt who will kill themselves for the big bonus. I 

believe 'hungry' people are highly valued in the interview process." (That's not what we 

meant by the soup kitchen!) 

8. Why are you applying to this firm? 

Get ready to talk about the industry and the firm specifically. For some firms (smaller, 

specialized I-banks like Lazard Freres or Wasserstein Perella, for example), this is an 

especially important question. Says one insider at a boutique firm, "You definitely want 

to have someone who knows what they're getting into. I don't think its advisable to say 

I'm looking at all the bulge-bracket firms - plus [yours]. You want to see people who are 

much focused." And even at those big firms that all seem the same, your interviewer will 

be impressed and flattered if you can talk about how his or her firm is different and why 

that interests you. 

9. Give me an example of a project that you've done that involved heavy analytical 

thinking. 

Candidates without a financial background should have an answer prepared for this 

question that describes a work or school project, focusing on the part that required a lot 

of number crunching. 

10. Give me an example of a time you worked as part of a team. 

You're sure to get this one. Draw on experiences from previous work experience, from 

volunteer activities, and any other situation in which you worked toward a common goal. 

Highline your strengths as a team member: empathy, collaboration, consensus-building, 

etc. 

11. What is the most striking thing you've read recently in The Wall Street Journal? 

A variation of this question is: "What publications do you read regularly?" With these 

questions, your interviews want to see how well read you are and how well you can 

describe any of the recent burning financial issues. Read the Journal regularly, especially 

when it is close to the interview time. We suggest starting with 45 minutes a day and 

gradually bringing that down as you become more efficient in your information-

gathering. 
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12. Describe a project you have worked on that you enjoyed. 

Another opportunity to show that you are a hardworking, responsible, analytical team 

player. 

13. Let's say I give you this summer job/full-time job today. Now let's move to the future 

and say that at the end of the summer, you find out that you did not get a full-time offer, 

or that six months into the job you are fired. Give me three reasons why this could 

happen, and what you can do to prevent this. 

This is a twist on the "So what are your weaknesses" question, made specifically more 

stressful for the finance interview. Don't lose your cool, and have answers prepared for 

the "weaknesses" question. 

14. Think of a person you feel knows you very well both professionally and socially. If I 

were to call this person and ask him to describe you, what would he say? 

Another twist on a personal question designed to get you talking about your strengths 

and weaknesses. 

15. What motivates you? 

Think through this one. First of all, you should indicate that you are highly motivated. 

Second, remember the profile that finance interviews are generally looking for. 

16. Can you give me an example of an experience of failure? 

You should have an answer prepared for this question. Be modest and admit that you 

have experienced setbacks. Also, focus on how you bounced back from this setback and 

what you learned from the experience 

17. You don't seem like you are a very driven person, how will you be able to handle a job 

in banking? 

A stress personal question that can easily hit you during the long and tiring interview 

process. For example, interviewing with Goldman, you might meet with more than a 

dozen people in a day. In this situation, it is very easy to appear worn out, which is 

precisely what you have to convince them that you don't wear out easily. Come up with a 

good example of a time when you were totally driven. 

18. Tell me about an accomplishment that you are proud of. 

This is your chance to shine. Remember: teamwork, analytic ability, hardworking, 

dependable. 

19. Can you tell me about a time when you handled many things at the same time? 
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In some finance positions, especially I-banking, multi-tasking is an important attribute. 

Think through your background and prepare for this question. 

20. What would you like for me to tell you? 

Remember, you will be asked for questions yourself. Do your research and impress your 

interviewer with your knowledge and insight. 

VALUATION TECHNIQUES 

How much is it worth? 

Imagine yourself to be CEO of a publicly traded company that makes widgets. You've had 

a greatly successful business so far and want to sell the company to anyone interested in 

buying it. How do you know how much to sell it for? Likewise, consider the recent AOL-

Netscape acquisition. How did AOL decide how much it should pay to buy Netscape? 

For starters, we should understand that the value of a company is equal to the value of its 

assets, and that 

Value of Assets = Debt (D) + Equity (E) 

If I buy a company, I buy its stock (equity) and assume its debt (bonds and loans). Buying 

a company's equity means that I actually gain ownership of the company - if I buy 50% 

of a company's equity, I own 50% of the company. Assuming a company's debt means 

that I promise to pay the company's lenders the amount owed by the previous owner. 

The value of debt is easy to calculate: the market value of debt is equal to the book value 

of debt. (If in the books it says that a company owes its bondholders $1 million, that's 

how much that debt is worth in the market.) Figuring out the market value of equity is 

trickier, and that's where valuation techniques come into play. 

The four most commonly used techniques are: 

1. Discounted cash flow (DCF) analysis 

2. Comparable transactions method 

3. Multiples method 

4. Market valuation 

Basic Accounting Concepts 

Before we look at these valuation techniques, let's take a look at basic accounting 

concepts that underpin valuation. MBAs interested in finance careers should definitely be 

comfortable with these concepts (and may find this overview to be very basic). 

Undergrads who have taken accounting classes should already be familiar with these 

concepts as well. 
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Basic overview of financial statements 

There are four basic financial statements that provide financial statement users with the 

information they need to evaluate a company: 

 Balance Sheets 

 Income Statements 

 Statements of Retained 

Earnings  

 Statements of Cash Flows 

These four statements are provided in the annual reports published by public companies. 

In addition, a company's annual report is almost always accompanied by notes to the 

financial statements. The notes to the financial statements provide additional 

information about the numbers provided in the four basic financial statements. 

The Balance Sheet presents the financial position of a company at a given point in time. It 

is comprised of three parts: Assets, Liabilities, and Equity. Assets are the economic 

resources of a company. They are the resources that the company uses to operate its 

business and include Cash, Inventory, and Equipment (accounts in financial statements 

are capitalized). A company normally obtains the resources it uses to operate its business 

by incurring debt, obtaining new investors, or through operating earnings. The Liabilities 

section of the Balance Sheet presents the debts of the company. Liabilities are the claims 

that creditors have on the company's resources. The Equity section of the Balance Sheet 

presents the net worth of a company, which equals the assets that the company owns less 

the debts they owe to creditors. Equity can also be defined as the claims that investors 

have on the company's resources. 

This example uses the basic format of a Balance Sheet: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Because a company can obtain resources from both investors and creditors, one must be 

able to distinguish between the two and understand why one type is classified as a 

Liability and the other type is classified as Equity. Companies incur debt to obtain the 

economic resources necessary to operate their businesses and promise to pay the debt 
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back over a specified period of time. This promise to pay is fixed and is not based upon 

the operating performance of the company. Companies also seek new investors to obtain 

economic resources. However, they don't promise to pay investors back a specified 

amount over a specified period of time. Instead, companies promise investors a return on 

their investment that is often contingent upon a certain level of operating performance. 

Since an equity holder's investment is not guaranteed, it is more risky in nature that a 

loan made by a creditor. But if a company performs well, the return to investors is often 

higher. The "promise-to-pay" element makes loans made by creditors a Liability and, as 

an accountant would say, more "senior" than equity holdings. 

To summarize, the Balance Sheet represents the economic resources of a business, 

including the claims that creditors and equity holders have on those resources. Debts 

owed to creditors are more senior than the investments of equity holders and are 

classified as Liabilities, while equity investments are accounted for in the Equity section 

of the Balance Sheet. 

We have discussed two of the three ways in which a company normally obtains the 

economic resources necessary to operate its business: by incurring debt and by seeking 

new investors. A third way in which a company can obtain resources is through its own 

operations. The Income Statement presents the results of operations of a business over a 

specified period of time (e.g. one year, one quarter, one month) and is composed of 

Revenues, Expenses, and Net Income. Revenue is a source of income that normally arises 

from the sale of goods or services that the company is in business to sell and is recorded 

when it is earned. For example, when a retailer of roller blades makes a sale, the sale 

would be considered revenue. However, income may also come from other sources. For 

example, selling a business segment or a piece of capital equipment generates a type of 

revenue for a company. This type of income would be considered a Gain on Sale. Gains 

are sources of income from peripheral or incidental transactions (i.e. all economic events 

that are not usual and frequent). 

Expenses: Expenses are the costs incurred by a business over a specified period of time 

to generate the revenues earned during that same period of time. For example, in order 

for a manufacturing company to sell a product, it must buy the materials it needs to make 

the product. In addition, that same company must pay people to both make and sell the 

product. The company must also pay salaries to the individuals who operate the business. 

These are all types of expenses that a company can incur during the normal operations of 

the business. When a company incurs an expense outside of its normal operations, it is 

considered a "loss." Losses are expenses incurred as a result of one-time or incidental 

transactions. The destruction of office equipment in a fire, for example, would be a loss. 

Incurring expenses and acquiring assets both involve the use of economic resources (i.e. 

cash or debt). So when a purchase is considered an asset and when is it considered an 

expense? 
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Assets vs. expenses: A purchase is considered an asset if it provides future economic 

benefit to the company, while expenses only relate to the current period. For example, 

monthly salaries paid to employees are for services that they already provided to the 

company during the month and would be considered expenses. On the other hand, the 

purchase of a piece of manufacturing equipment would be classified as an asset, as it will 

probably be used to manufacture a product for more than one accounting period. 

Net income: The Revenue a company earns, less its Expenses a specified period of time, 

equals its Net Income. A positive Net Income number indicates a profit, while a negative 

Net Income number indicates that a company suffered a loss (called a "net loss"). 

Here is an example of an Income Statement:  

To summarize, the Income Statement measures the success of a company's operations; it 

provides investors and creditors with information to determine the profitability and 

creditworthiness of the enterprise. A company has earned net income when its total revenues 

exceed its total expenses. A company has a net loss when total expenses exceed total 

revenues. The Statement of Retained Earnings is a reconciliation of the Retained Earnings 

account from the beginning to the end of the year. When a company announces income or 

declares dividends, this information is reflected in the Statement of Retained Earnings. Net 

income increases the Retained Earnings account. Net losses and dividend payments decrease 

Retained Earnings. 

Here is an example of a basic Statement of Retained Earnings: 

As you can probably tell by looking at this example, the Statement of Retained Earnings 

doesn't provide any new information not already reflected in other financial statements. But 
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it does provide additional information about what management is doing with the company's 

earnings. Management may be "plowing back" the company's net income into the business 

by retaining part or all of its earnings, distributing its current income to shareholders, or 

distributing current and accumulated income to shareholders. (Investors can use this 

information to align their investment strategy with the strategy of a company's management. 

An investor interested in growth and returns on capital may be more inclined to invest in a 

company that "plows back" its resources into the company for the purpose of generating 

additional resources. Conversely, an investor interested in receiving current income is more 

inclined to invest in a company that pays quarterly dividend distributions to shareholders.) 

Remember that the Income Statement provides information about the economic resources 

involved in the operation of a company. However, the Income Statement does not provide 

information about the actual source and use of cash generated during its operations. That's 

because obtaining and using economic resources doesn't always involve cash. For example, 

let's say you went shopping and bought a new mountain bike on your credit card in July - but 

didn't pay the bill until August. Although the store did not receive cash in July, the sale would 

still be considered July revenue. The statement of cash flows presents a detailed summary of 

all of the cash inflows and outflows during the period and is divided into three sections based 

on three types of activity: 

 Cash flows from operating activities: includes the cash effects of transactions 

involved in calculating net income 

 Cash flows from investing activities: involves items classified as assets in the 

Balance Sheet and includes the purchase and sale of equipment and 

investments 

 Cash flows from financing activities: involves items classified as liabilities and 

equity in the Balance Sheet; it includes the payment of dividends as well as 

issuing payment of debt or equity 

This example shows the basic format of the Statement of Cash Flows. 
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As you can tell be looking at the above example, the Statement of Cash Flows gets its 

information from all three of the other financial statements: 

 Net income from the Income Statement is shown in the section "cash flows 

from operating activities." 

 Dividends from the Statement of Retained Earnings is shown in the section 

"cash flows from financing activities." 

 Investments, Accounts Payable, and other asset and liability accounts from 

the Balance Sheet are shown in all three sections. 

Market Valuation 

Now let's look at the major techniques of valuation. We'll begin with market valuation, as 

it is the simplest way to value a publicly traded firm. A publicly traded firm is one that is 

registered on a stock exchange (like the New York Stock Exchange or NASDAQ). The 

company's stock can be bought and sold on that exchange. Most companies we are 

familiar with, such as The Coca-Cola Company, IBM, and General Motors, are publicly 

traded. Every publicly traded company is required to publish an annual report, which 

includes financial figures such as annual revenues, income, and expenses. The 10Ks and 

10Qs for publicly traded firms are available online through the SEC Edgar database, 

www.edgar-online.com. 

The value of a publicly traded firm is easy to calculate. All you need to do is find the 

company's stock price (the price of a single share), multiply it by the number of shares 

outstanding, and then - voila - you have the equity market value of the company. (This is 

also known as market capitalization or "market cap.") The market price of a single share 

of stock is readily available from publications like The Wall Street Journal and from 

various quote services available on the Internet today; the number of shares outstanding 

can be obtained from the annual report of the company. 

Example: 

 

 

Once you determine the market value of a firm, you need to figure out either the discount 

or premium that it would sell for. When a company sells for a discount it is selling for a 

value lower than the market value; when it sells for a premium, it is selling for a value 

greater than the market value. Whether a company sells at a premium or a discount 

depends on those supply and demand forces you learned about in Econ 101. Typically, if 

someone wants to acquire a firm, it will sell for a price above the market value of the firm. 

This is referred to as an acquisition premium. If the acquisition is a hostile takeover, or if 
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there is an auction, the premiums are pushed even higher. The premiums are decided by 

the perception of the synergies resulting from the purchase or merger. (See chapter on 

M&A.) 

DCF Analysis 

The DCF analysis is the most thorough way to value a company, and second-year MBAs 
should expect to be tested on their ability to do a DCF in a finance interview. There are 
two ways to value a company using the DCF approach: the Adjusted Present Value (APV) 
method and the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) Method. Both methods require 
calculation of the free cash flows (FCF) of a company and the net present value (NPV) of 
these FCFs. Before we look at these methods, we'll examine their underlying concepts: 
net present value, the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM), free cash flows, and terminal 
year value. 

Net Present Value 

What do we mean when we talk about net present value? We'll explain this important 

concept with a simple example. Let's say you had an arrangement under which you were 

set to receive $20 from a friend one year from now. Now let's say for some reason that 

you decide you don't want to wait for a year and would rather have the money today. 

How much should you be willing to accept today? More than $20, $20, or less than $20? 

Perhaps the reason you would rather have the money today is that you are worried about 

the likelihood of your receiving the money a year from now. What if, in the next year, your 

friend goes bankrupt, decides to pretend he does not remember the arrangement, or 

something else happens that makes him unable to return the money? 

Because of this risk, you should be just as happy if you were to receive an amount slightly 

below $20 today. The rule of thumb for net present value is this: "Money today is worth 

more than the same money tomorrow." (We might recall the sly Wimpy, who, with an 

apparent understanding of this rule, tries to convince Popeye that "I will gladly pay you 

Tuesday for a hamburger today.") How much lower you should be willing to go if you 

don't want to wait until next year to receive your $20? That depends on what your 

estimate of the risk associated is. Thus we have the concept of the "discount rate," which 

is the rate you are willing to discount the future cash flow of $20. Discount rate can also 

be understood as the expected return from a project of a certain amount of risk. 

Note: The "discount rate" is different than the "opportunity cost" of the money. 

Opportunity cost is a measure of the opportunity lost. Discount rate is a measure of the 

risk. These are two separate concepts. To express the relationship between the present 

value and future value, we use the following formula: 
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Here, "rd" is the discount rate, and "n" is the number of years in the future 

The method of calculating the discount rate is different depending on the method of 

valuation used (i.e. APV method vs. WACC method). Although the discount rate varies, 

the concept of NPV, or net present value, is the same. 

Let's say a series of cash flows is expressed as the following: 

Year  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Free 
Cash 
Flows 

FCF1 FCF2 FCF3 FCF4 FCF5 FCF6 FCF7 FCF8 

Net present value (NPV) in Year 0 of future cash flows is calculated with the following 
formula: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Here again, rd is the discount rate, which is calculated differently depending on whether 

you use APV or WACC (to be explained later). 

Note: In Microsoft Excel, the commonly used spreadsheet software for these purposes, 

there is a function "= NPV (rd, cash flow range ID)" which can be used to easily calculate 

Net Present Value. 

Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) 

In order to find the appropriate "discount rate" used to discount the company's cash 

flows, you use the Capital Asset Pricing Model, or ("CAPM"). This is a model used to 

calculate the expected return on your investment, also referred to as expected return on 

equity, re. It is a linear model with one independent variable, Beta. Beta represents 

relative volatility of the given investment with respect to the market. For example, if the 

Beta of an investment is 1, the returns on the investment (stock/bond/portfolio) vary 

identically with the market returns. (A Beta less than 1, like 0.5, means the investment is 

less volatile than the market. So if the Dow Jones Industrial Average goes up or down 20% 

the next day, a less volatile stock i.e. (? < 1) might go up 10% and down 10%, respectively. 

A Beta of greater than 1, like 1.5, means the investment is more volatile than the market.) 

A company in a volatile industry, like, say, an Internet company, would be expected to 

have a Beta greater than 1. A company whose value does not vary much, like an electric 

utility, would be expected to have a Beta under 1. Here, "the market" refers to a well-

diversified index like the Dow Jones Industrials Average or the S&P 500 
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Mathematically, CAPM is calculated as 

 

 

Here: 

re = Discount rate for an all-equity firm 

rf = Risk-free rate (The Treasury bill rate for the period the cash projections are being 

considered. For example, if we are considering a 10-year period, then the risk-free rate is 

the rate for the 10-year U.S. Treasury note.) 

rm - rf = Excess market return (This is the excess annual return of the stock market over 

a U.S. Treasury bond over a long period of time. This is usually assumed to be 7% for the 

U.S. Market.) 

ß = Equity Beta 

Equity Beta is given in various sources like Value Line. These days, Yahoo also carries the 

equity Beta of publicly traded firms. If the firm you are valuing is not publicly traded, then 

you need to get a firm with a similar Balance Sheet and Income Statement that is publicly 

traded. (When calculating CAPM you should be careful to use the "equity Beta" value, and 

not "assets Beta.") 

If you have information for Beta assets rather than Beta equity, you can derive Beta equity 

using the following relationship: 

Here: 

D = Market value of debt (usually the book value of debt) 

E = Market value of equity (the number of shares outstanding x share price) (Also known 

as "market cap.") 

ßD = Beta debt (usually one can assume this to be equal to 0) t = Corporate taxes, (usually 

assumed to be 35%) 

Therefore: 
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Free cash flows- To capture the characteristics of an all-equity firm we recalculate a 

company's cash flows as if there were no debt in the firm. The free cash flow (FCF) of an 

all-equity firm in year (i) can be calculated as: 

Here: 

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (or EBIT) can be obtained from the Income Statement 

(see section on major accounting concepts). 

t = Corporate tax rate, usually assumed to be 35%. 

Depreciation & Amortization of a firm can be obtained from the firm's Balance Sheet (see 

section on major accounting concepts). 

Capital Expenditure and Net increase in working capital can be obtained from the 

Statement of Cash Flows. 

Other relevant cash flows for an all-equity firm would be items like asset sale proceeds 

(selling a major piece of real estate, for example) or the use of tax loss carry-forwards or 

tax credits. 

Terminal Year Calculation 

The terminal year represents the year (usually 10 years in the future) when the growth 

of the company can be considered to have stabilized. 

In other words... 

The cash flows of the first 10 years are determined by company management or a 

financial analyst, based on predictions and forecasts of what will happen. Then, a terminal 

year value needs to be calculated assuming that after year 10 the cash flows of the 

company keep growing at the given rate, represented as "g." 

The value of the terminal year cash flows (that is, the value in year 10) is given by: 
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The present value of the terminal year cash flows (that is, the value today) is given by: 

 

Adding it up 

Adding the value of the terminal year free cash flows (TY FCF) and future cash flows 

(FCFs) up to the terminal year gives us the value of the company under the DCF analysis. 

These cash flows need to be discounted to the present using methods discussed in the net 

present value calculations. 

Calculating Discount Rate 

Remember when we said that there are several ways of calculating discount rates? We'll 

now look at the two most popular methods of discounted cash flow (DCF) analysis tested 

in finance interviews: the WACC (Weighted Average Cost of Capital) and APV (Adjusted 

Present Value). The key difference between the two methods is the way in which the 

discount rate is calculated. For WACC, we calculate the discount rate for leveraged equity 

(reL); for APV, we calculate the discount rate for an all-equity firm (reU). 

WACC 

For WACC, the discount rate is calculated with the following formula: 

 

 

 

Here: 

D = Market value of debt 
E = Market value of 
equity 
 

rD = Discount rate for debt = Average interest rate on long-term debt  

reL = Discount rate for (leveraged) equity (calculated using the CAPM) 

Note: The terms (E)/(D + E) and (D)/(D + E) represent the "target" equity and debt 
ratios (also referred to as the equity-to-debt and debt-to-equity ratios). 
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Here: 

rf = Risk-free rate = the Treasury bond rate for the period for which the projections are 
being considered 

rm - rf = Excess market return 

βL = Leveraged Beta 
 

Finding the value of leveraged Beta from unleveraged Beta can be calculated from the 

unleveraged Beta using the equation below, in a process also referred to as "unlevering 

the Beta": 

 

Here: 

βU = Unleveraged Beta (This can be obtained from Value Line or online sources like 
Yahoo!) 

APV 

For the APV calculation the discount rate is calculated with the following formula: 

 

 

 

Here: 

ßU = Unleveraged Beta 
 

Thus we see that the key difference between WACC and APV is that in the APV calculation, 

we take the unleveraged equity discount rate, rather than a leveraged (historical) 

discount rate. The APV calculation assumes an "all-equity" firm, rather than one with 

debt. 

To summarize: 

Method Discount Type of Firm 
(Assumption) 

Beta 

APV ruU    All Equity U 

WACC reL Leveraged/historical L 

To compensate for this difference we add a value for the debt tax shield separately to 

arrive at an overall valuation of the company. The debt tax shield (DTS) for any year is 

given by: 
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Here: 

D = Total debt for the company that year 

rD = Weighted average interest rate on that debt calculated for each year of the 
projected cash flows 
 

t = Corporate tax rate 

The debt tax shield captures the value added by debt. The interest paid on the debt 

reduces the total taxes being paid. This principle is the main reason for the emergence of 

the LBO (leveraged buyout) shops, including the famous KKR takeover of RJR Nabisco 

that inspired the bestseller Barbarians at the Gate. KKR borrowed money (introduced 

debt) to buy RJR Nabisco at a price way above the market price. Since the company had 

no debt before the takeover and highly reliable cash flows, KKR was able to increase the 

value of the company by financial restructuring. 

The tricky question now is: What discount rate should be used for calculating the present 

value of the DTS? The answer is the discount rate that would best capture the risk 

associated with the DTS. If you assume that the ability to use the tax shield is as risky as 

the cash flows to an all-equity firm, we would use the reU. If you assume that the tax shield 

is as risky as the ability to repay the debt, then the discount rate should be the average 

interest rate, or rD. 

Note: The debt tax shield is similarly calculated for the terminal year and discounted to 

the present year. 

One simple approximation for the DTS that can be used for most back-of-the-envelope 

calculations in an interview is: 

 

 

Here: 

t = Tax rate 

L = Leverage ratio (also referred to as the long-term debt ratio) = D/(D + E) 

The main difference between the WACC and APV methods is that the WACC takes the 

"target" debt-to-equity ratio to calculate the discount rate. However, the target debt-to-

equity ratio is not reached until a few years in the future. Hence the method is not 

"academically complete." The APV method takes this into consideration and looks at an 

"all-equity" firm. 

However, the difference that amounts from assuming a target debt-to-equity ratio is very 

small; most investment banks use the WACC method even though most business schools 

teach both methods. The difference between the two methods will become clearer as we 

go through an example 
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DCF Analysis Example 

Step one - Assumptions 

You are given the following information for the company you are valuing: 

 Year One Year Two Year Three Year Four 

EBIT 7.0 7.5 7.9 8.4 

Depreciation 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.6 

Capital 1.5 2.5 2.5 3.0 

Expenditures 
Increase in 
Working 
Capital 

0.8 1.5 1.5 0.9 

Tax Rate 35% 

Book Value Debt (D) 7.0 

Book Value Equity (Ebook) 10.0 

Market Value Equity (Emarket) 15.0 

Beta (historical) (BL) 1.5 

Long-term T-Bond rate (rf) 10.0 % 

Long-term debt rate (rD) 12.0% 

Long-term growth rate (g) 6.0% 

Long-term risk premium (rm - 8.0% rf)  

 

Step two - Cash Flows 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Step three - Discount Rates 

APV 

Remember that there are two ways to determine a discount rate.  
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Let's begin with the APV analysis 

Hence, the expected return on equity for an all-equity firm would be 19.2%. We will use 

this as the discount rate for the APV analysis. 

Remember: 

ßL = Beta for a firm with debt, or historical Beta (leveraged/historical Beta) ßU = Beta for 

the equivalent firm without debt, or an all-equity firm (unleveraged Beta) 

WACC 

Let's now look at the WACC method. For WACC, we need to know what the target (long-

term) debt-to-capital ratio for this company is. Let's assume that it is 40%. That is, in the 

long run, this company expects to finance its projects with 40% debt and 60% equity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: Here we calculate our expected return on equity, or reL, using the target debt-to-

equity ratio. We use this reL for all years whether or not that target ratio has been matched 

or not. Since our long-term debt rate is 13.0%, and our long-term debt is 40%, we can 

now calculate WACC. 
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Step four - Terminal Value  

We assume that the company operates forever. But, we only have four years of cash flow. 
We need to put a value on all the cash flows after Year Four. The Year Four cash flow is 
4.16 and we expect it to grow at 5% a year. The value of all cash flows after Year Four (as 
of the end of Year Four) can be calculated with our Terminal Value formula. 

 

Step five - Taking the NPV of all the cash flows 

Now we have to add up our cash flows 

APV     

    Year Four 

FCF 5.15 3.58 3.84 4.16 

Add Terminal Value=30.76 

FCF Adjusted 5.15 3.58 3.84 34.92 
 

Using these cash flows, and our discount rate of 19.2%, we can calculate the net present 
value. 

 

Let's add up the cash flows for the WACC method: 
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WACC Year One Year Two Year Three  Year Four 

FCF 5.15 3.58 3.84 4.16 

Terminal Value=35.51 

FCF Adjusted 5.15 3.58 3.84 34.67 

Using these cash flows, with a discount rate of 17.2%, we can calculate an NPV 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Step 6 - Figuring out the Company's Value 

For WACC, we are done with our calculation - the value of the company is $30.3. 

For APV, however, we add the present value of the interest tax shields. We use the 
following formula: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To summarize 

 APV WACC 

Discounted value of FCF $26.41 $30.3 

Value of Tax Shield $4.3 ? 

Total $30.7 $30.3 

The APV and WACC methods make slightly different assumptions about the value of 

interest tax shields, and we have received slightly different values. 

Comparable Transactions 

With this technique of valuing a company for a merger or acquisition, you look at 

transactions that have taken place in the industry that are similar to the transaction 

under consideration. 

With the comparable transactions method, you are looking for a key valuation parameter. 

That is, are the companies in those transactions being valued as a multiple of EBIT, 
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EBITDA, revenue, or some other parameter? If you figure out what the key valuation 

parameter is, you can examine at what multiples of those parameters the companies are 

being valued in a series of transactions. You can then value the company similarly 

As an example, let's assume that there is an Internet start-up called echicago.com that is 

planning to go public. Let's also say that this is a health care Internet company. The 

question the company's financial management, their investment bankers, and the 

portfolio managers who are planning to buy stock in the company will ask is: "How much 

is the company worth?" To obtain a value for the company, they can look at recent 

comparable transactions. For example, suppose eharvard.com and estanford.com are 

other health care Internet companies that have recently successfully gone public. The 

financials of the companies are summarized below. 

Company Value 
(Market 
Cap)(mil) 

Sales(mil) EBITDA Earnings 
(Losses) 
(mil) 

Sales 
Multiples 
(Market 
Cap/Sales) 

Echicago.com ? 80 20 (10) ? 

Estaford 2100 70 17 (12) 30 

Eharvard.com 3000 75 18 (8) 40 

Because the three companies are in the same industry and have similar financials, the 

transaction for echicago.com can be valued at multiples similar to those for the other two. 

The value for echicago.com could be anywhere from 30 x 80 to 40 x 80, i.e. 2,400 to 3,200 

millions of dollars, or $2.4 billion to $3.2 billion. (This range in valuation is how bankers 

would value the company; because of heavy speculation on Internet stocks recently, 

however, we would not be surprised if valued the company at an even higher price.) 

Multiples 

Quite often, there is not enough information to be able to determine the valuation using 

the comparable transactions method. In these cases, you can value a company based on 

market valuation multiples. Examples of these valuation multiples include price/earning 

multiples (also known as P/E ratios, this method, which compares a company's market 

capitalization to its annual income, is the most commonly used multiple) EBITDA 

multiples, and others. When using this method, you look at what multiples are used for 

other companies in the industry. 

Let's look at an example. What is the value of a company in the semiconductor industry 

that posts annual sales of $180 million, EBITDA of $70 million, and earnings of $40 million 

(let's call it Wharton Semiconductor). Companies in the semiconductor industry might be 

valued with sales multiples, earnings multiples or EBITDA multiples. The numbers used 

for EBITDA or earnings might be figured for the 12 months trailing (the previous 12 

months), the last fiscal year, 12 months projected, or the next fiscal year projected. These 
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figures can be obtained from research reports published by various research 

departments within investment banks or brokerage houses. 

Let's assume that there are four semiconductor companies similar to Wharton 

Semiconductor. An investment bank would perform a "Common Stock Comparison" to 

determine relevant multiples: 

Company Value 
(Market Cap) 
(mil) 

Sales EBITDA Earnings 

Chicago 
Semiconductor 

900 220 115 82 

Harvard 
Semiconductor 

700 190 90 60 

Kellogg 
Semiconductor 

650 280 68 42 

Stanford 
Semiconductor 

320 150 45 26 

 

Company Value (Market 
Cap)(mil) 

Sales EBITDA 

Chicago 
Semiconductor 

4.7 7.8 11.0 

Harvard 
Semiconductor 

3.7 7.8 11.7 

Kellogg 
Semiconductor 

2.3 9.6 15.5 

Stanford 
Semiconductor 

2.1 7.1 12.3 

Average 3.1 8.1 12.6 

 

Using the average multiples from the Common Stock Comparison, we can estimate 

Wharton Semiconductor's value as follows: 

Using the sales multiple: Wharton's sales of $180 million x 3.1 (average sales multiple) = 

558 million 

Using the EBITDA multiple: Wharton's EBITDA of $70 million x 8.1 (average EBITDA 

multiple) = $567 million 

Using the price-to-earnings multiple: Wharton's earnings of $40 million x 12.6 (average 

price-to-earnings multiple) = $504 million 
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So using the multiples method, we can estimate the value of Wharton Semiconductor at 

between $504 and $567 million. 

Questions 

1. What is the difference between the Income Statement and the Statement of Cash 

Flows? 

The Income Statement is a record of Revenues and Expenses while the Statement of Cash 

Flows records the actual cash that has either come in or left the company. The Statement 

of Cash Flows has the following categories: Operating Cash Flows, Investing Cash Flows, 

and Financing Cash Flows. 

Interestingly, a company can be profitable as shown in the Income Statement, but still go 

bankrupt if it doesn't have the cash flow to meet interest payments. 

2. What is the link between the Balance Sheet and the Income Statement? 

The main link between the two statements is that profits generated in the Income 

Statement get added to shareholder's equity on the Balance Sheet as Retained Earnings. 

Also, the debt on the Balance Sheet is used to calculate interest expense. 

3. What is the link between the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Cash Flows? 

The Statement of Cash Flows starts with the cash balance, which comes from Balance 

Sheet. Also, to figure out Cash from Operations, you use the changes in Balance Sheet 

accounts (such as Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable, etc.). The net increase in cash 

flow for the year goes back to the Balance Sheet of the next year. 

4. What is EBITDA? 

Also known as "cash flow," EBITDA is Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and 

Amortization 

5. Say you knew a company's net income. How would you figure out its "cash flow"? 

A basic answer: You start with the company's net income. Then you add back 

depreciation and amortization. Then you subtract the company's Capital Expenditures 

(called "CapEx" for short, this is how much money the company must invest each year on 

plants and equipment). The number you get is the company's cash flow: 

Net Income + Depreciation and Amortization - Capital Expenditures = Cash Flow 

6. Walk me through the major line items on a Cash Flow statement. 

Another question designed to test your accounting skills. The answer: first the Beginning 

Cash Balance, then Cash from Operations, then Cash from Investing Activities, then Cash 

from Financing Activities, and finally the Ending Cash Balance. 
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7. How do you value a company? 

This is one of the most popular technical questions of finance interviews. Remember the 

several ways that we discussed, and good luck. MBAs looking for I-banking or finance in 

a company positions are sure to get this one. 

One basic answer to this question is to discount the company's projected cash flows by a 

"risk-adjusted discount rate." After projecting the first five or 10 years, you add in a 

"Terminal Value," which represents the present value of all the future cash flows that are 

too far into the future to project. You can calculate the Terminal Value in one of two ways: 

(1) you take the earnings of the last year you projected, say year 10, and multiply it by 

some market multiple like 20 times earnings, and that's the terminal value; or (2) you 

take the last year, say year 10, and assume some constant growth rate after that like 10%. 

The present value of this growing stream of payments after year 10 is the Terminal Value. 

For a more advanced answer, discuss the APV and WACC methods of doing a discounted 

cash flow analysis (DCF analysis). 

Finally, you should also mention other methods of valuing a company, including looking 

at "comparable" - that is, how other similar companies were valued recently as a multiple 

of their sales, net income, or some other measure. 

Note: To figure out what "discount rate" you would use to discount the company's cash 

flows, tell your interviewer you would use the "Capital Asset Pricing Model" (or "CAPM"). 

(In a nutshell, CAPM says that the proper discount rate to use is the risk-free interest rate 

adjusted upwards to reflect this particular company's market risk or "Beta.") 

8. The CEO of a $500 million company has called you, her investment banker. She wants 

to sell the company. She wants to know how much she can expect for the company today. 

It might sound different, but this is the same question as No. 7: How do you value a 

company? 

9. What is the formula for the Capital Asset Pricing Model? 

The Capital Asset Pricing Model is used to calculate the expected return on your 

investment. It is a linear model with one independent variable, Beta. Beta for a company 

is the relative volatility of the given investment with respect to the market, i.e., if Beta is 

1, the returns on the investment (stock/bond/portfolio) vary identically with the market. 

Here "the market" refers to a well-diversified index like the Dow Jones Industrials or the 

S&P 500. The formula for CAPM is as follows: 
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Here: 

rf = Risk-free rate = the Treasury bond rate for the period for which the projections are 

being considered 

rm - rf = Excess market return. 

ßL = Leveraged Beta. 

reL = Discount rate for (leveraged) equity (calculated using the CAPM) 

10. Why might there be multiple valuations for a single company? 

As this chapter has discussed, there are several different methods by which one can value 

a company. And even if you use the rigorously academic DCF analysis, the two main 

methods (the WACC and APV method) make different assumptions about interest tax 

shields, which can lead to different valuations 

11. How do you calculate the terminal value of a company? 

The value of the terminal year cash flows (usually calculated for 10 years in the future) is 

calculated by calculating the present value of cash flows from the terminal year (in our 

case, Year 10) continuing forever with the following formula: 

 

 

 

Here "g" is an assumed growth rate and rd is the discount rate. (Remember that you could 

also calculate the terminal value of a company by taking a multiple of terminal year cash 

flows, and discounting that back to the present to arrive at an answer. This alternative 

method might be used in some instances because it is less dependent on the assumed 

growth rate (g). 

12. Why are the P/E multiples for a company in London different than that of the same 

company in the States? 

The P/E multiples can be different in the two countries even if all other factors are 

constant because of the difference in the way earnings are recorded two countries. 

Overall market valuations in American markets could be higher than those in the U.K. 

13. What are the different multiples that can be used to value a company? 

The most commonly used multiple is earnings, thus the often-quoted price-to-earnings 

(P/E) ratio. Other figures that are used include revenues, EBITDA, EBIT, and book value. 

Which figure is used depends on the industry. For example, Internet companies are often 

valued with revenue multiples; this explains why companies that lose money every year 
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can have such high market caps. Companies in the metal and mining industry are valued 

using EBITDA. 

As discussed in the section on valuation, not only should we be aware of what financial 

figure is being used, we should know what time period the figure used represents: it can 

be for the previous or projected 12 months, for example, or for the previous or projected 

fiscal year. 

14. How do you get the discount rate for an all-equity 

firm? You use the Capital Asset Pricing Model, or CAPM. 

15. Can I apply CAPM in Latin American markets? 

CAPM was developed for use in the U.S. markets. However, it is presently the only tool 

available. Hence while it is an approximation, it is a good framework for thinking and 

analyzing the markets outside U.S. as fundamentally, markets are based on similar 

principles. 

16. How much would you pay for a company with $50 million in revenue and $5 million 

in profit? 

If this is all the information we are given we should use comparable transaction or 

multiples method to value this company (rather than the DCF method). To use the 

multiples method, you would prepare a common stock comparison, using comparable 

companies in the same industry, to get average industry multiples. These numbers would 

depend on the industry the company is in. 

17. How do you value a company with NOLs (net operating losses)? 

The valuation would be similar as that for a company making profits. We would use the 

formula to get to the free cash flows. And if the present value of the free cash flows also 

come out to be negative, the project (or company) is a negative NPV project, and thereby 

a bad investment. (Typically, the management of a company will be able to show that 

cash flows become positive before the terminal year!) 

18. How would you value a company with no revenue? 

First you would make reasonable assumptions about the company's projected revenues 

(and projected cash flows) for future years. Then you would calculate the Net Present 

Value of these cash flows. 

19. What is Beta? 

Beta is the value that represents the volatility of a stock with respect to overall market 

volatility. 

20. How do you unlever a company's Beta? 
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Unlevering a company's Beta means calculating the Beta under the assumption that it is 

an all-equity firm. The formula is as follows: 

 

21. What is going on with the valuations of Internet companies today? 

There probably is no right answer for this (although there might be some wrong 

answers). Here, the interviewer is trying to see how you think and how creative ideas you 

can come up with. 

22. Do you think these valuations are justified? 

Internet valuations today are based on what the investors believe is the future market 

potential of the Internet companies. As you know, the Internet has changed the way 

people do business in recent years, and revenues from Internet based advertising and e-

commerce are expected to explode. Whether the current valuations are justified, 

however, is a point of contention. 

23. Name three companies that are undervalued and tell me why you think they are. 

This is a very popular question for equity research and portfolio management jobs. Here 

you have to do your homework. Study the stocks you like and see make valuations using 

various methods: DCF, multiples, comparable transactions, etc. Then choose several 

undervalued (and overvalued) stocks, and be prepared to back up your assessment. 

For example, let's say that Coke received some bad PR recently and its stock took a 

hammering in the market. However, say the earnings of Coke are not expected to decrease 

significantly because of the negative publicity (or at least that's your analysis). Thus, Coke 

is trading at relatively lower P/E than Pepsi and others in the industry and is 

undervalued. This is an example of a line of reasoning you might offer when asked this 

question (the more thorough and insightful the reasoning, the better). Using some of the 

techniques discussed earlier and regular readings of the WSJ and other publications will 

help you formulate real-world examples. 

Also, keep in mind that there are no absolute right answers for a question like this: If 

everyone in the market believed that a stock was undervalued, the price would go up and 

it wouldn't be undervalued anymore! What the interviewer is looking for is your chain of 

thought, your ability to communicate that convincingly and your preparation for the 

interview. 

24. Walk me through the major items of an Income 

Statement Revenues, expenses, and net income. 
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25. Which industries are you interested in? What are the multiples that you use for those 

industries? 

As discussed, different industries use different multiples. If you claim interest in a certain 

industry, you better know how companies in the industry are commonly valued. (Don't 

answer the first question without knowing the answer to the second) 

DCF Analysis Question 

Value the following company given the following information (a written finance 

interview question): 

Step one - Assumptions 

You are given the following information for the company you are valuing: 

 Year One Year Two Year Three  Year Four 

EBIT 480.0 530.0 580.0 605.0 

Depreciation 145.0 130.0 110.0 100.0 

Capital 
Expenditures 

160.0 140.0 130.0 110.0 

Increase in 
Working 
Capital 

25.0 20.0 15.0 12.0 

Tax rate  40% 

Book value debt 1,200.0 

Book value equity 1,5000.0 

Market value equity 1,8000.0 

Beta (historical) 1.10 

Long-term T-bond rate 8.0% 

Long-term debt rate 10.0% 

Long term growth rate 4.0% 

Long term risk premium 6.0% 

Step two - Cash Flows 
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Step three - Discount Rates 

APV 

Remember that there are two ways to determine a discount rate. Let's begin with the 

APV analysis 

 

The expected return on equity for an all-equity firm would be 12.7%. We will use this as 

the discount rate for the APV analysis. 

WACC 

Let's now look at the WACC method. For WACC, we need to know what the target (long-

term) debt-to-capital ratio for this company is. Let's assume that it is 30%. That is, in the 

long run, this company expects to finance its projects with 30% debt and 70% equity. 

Since our long-term debt rate is 9.93%, and our long-term debt is 30%, we can now 

calculate WACC. 

 

Step four - Terminal Value 
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We assume that the company operates forever. But, we only have four years of cash flow. 

We need to put a value on all the cash flows after Year Four. The Year Four cash flow is 

341 and we expect it to grow at 5% a year. The value of all cash flows after Year Four (as 

of the end of Year Four) can be calculated with our Terminal Value formula. 

 

 

Step five - taking the NPV of all the cash flows 

Now we have to add up our cash flows 

APV         

  Year One Year Two Year 
Three 

Year Four 

FCF 248 288 313 341 

Add terminal value = 4,650 

FCFadjusted 248 288 313 4991 

Using these cash flows, and our discount rate of 12.7%, we can calculate the Net Present 

Value using the NPV formula. 

 

 

 

 

 

Let's add up the cash flows for the WACC method: 

WACC         
  Year One Year 

Two 
Year 

Three 
Year Four 

FCF 248 288 313 341 
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Add terminal value = 5,483.15 
FCFadjusted 248 288 313 5,824.15 

 

 

 

 

 

Step six - Figuring out the Company's Value 

For WACC, we are done with our calculation - the value of the company is $4,443.62. 

For APV, however, we add the present value of the interest tax shields. We use the 

following formula: 

 

 

To summarize 

  APV WACC 

      

Discounted 
value of FCF 

$3,759.16  $4,44.62 

Value of tax 
shield 

$512.61  -- 

Total $4,271.77  $4,443.62  

STOCKS 

A Remedial Lesson 

What does the "Inc." after the names of many companies, mean? Not surprisingly, it 

means that a company is incorporated. There are many forms of incorporation from 

which a company can choose. With the help of a lawyer, a company files 

papers/applications in court to define itself as one of these forms. A company can be 

incorporated as a C Corp, an S Corp, an LLC (Limited Liability Corporation), or a 

partnership. There are different rules of ownership for each of these forms, and different 

tax rules. 
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The incorporation of a company can be regarded as its birth. And when a company is 

born, it has "equity." This equity is also referred to as stock, and refers to ownership in a 

company. Most people unfamiliar with the finance world equate stock with the running 

tickers in the “pits" of Wall Street trading floors, and other symbols of publicly traded 

stock. But we should realize that companies do not have to be publicly traded in order to 

have stock - they just have to be incorporated and owned. 

Equity vs Debt 

Debt and equity make up the assets of a company. Equity, or ownership stake, is the 

volatile part of the firm's assets. The equity of a company is represented by securities 

called stocks. Here, when we refer to stock, we are actually referring to common stock. 

Equity has a book value - this is a strictly defined value that can be calculated from the 

company's Balance Sheet. It also has a market value. The market value of equity or stock 

for a publicly traded firm can be found in The Wall Street Journal or any of the stock quote 

services available today. (Market value of a company's equity can be understood with the 

simple formula: stock price x number of shares outstanding [or common stock 

outstanding] = market value of equity.) The market value of a private company can be 

estimated using the valuation techniques discussed in the valuation section of this guide. 

However, any method used to measure either the book value or market value of a 

company depends on highly volatile factors such as performance of the company, the 

industry and the market as a whole - and is thus highly volatile itself. Investors make lots 

of money - and lose lots, too - because of their decisions on which stocks to invest in, and 

what happened to the value of those stocks after they were bought. 

The other component of the asset value of a company comes from its debt, which is 

represented by securities called bonds (these are issued when investors loan money to a 

company at a given interest rate). Typically, banks and large financial institutions invest 

in debt. The returns for debt investors are assured in the form of interest on the debt. 

Sometimes, the market value of the debt changes (see section on bond pricing), but bond 

prices usually do not change as drastically as stock prices can. On the downside, bonds 

also have lower expected returns than stocks. U.S. Treasury bonds, for example, can 

provide returns of 5 to 7% a year or so, while Yahoo! stock may rise 10% in a single day. 

On the other hand, bonds usually have less downside risk than stock. Though they won't 

post big gains, U.S. Treasury bonds won't lose 10% of their value in a single day, either. 

A simple example of how debt and equity make up assets is to consider how most people 

buy homes. Homebuyers generally start with a down payment, which is a payment on the 

equity of the house. Then, the homebuyer makes mortgage payments that are a 

combination of debt (the interest on the mortgage) and equity (the principal payments). 

Initially, a homebuyer generally pays primarily interest (debt), before gradually buying 

larger and large portions of the principal (equity). 

Preferred Stock 



69 | P a g e  
 

Common stock and debt are the two extremes in the continuum of the forms of 

investment in a company. Enter preferred stock, which is a security in the middle of the 

continuum. One type of preferred stock is referred to as "convertible" preferred. If the 

preferred stock is convertible, it can be converted into common stock as prescribed in the 

initial issuance of the preferred stock. Like bondholders, holders of preferred stock are 

assured an interest-like return - also referred to as the preferred stock's "dividend." (A 

dividend is a payment made to stockholders, usually quarterly, that is intended to 

distribute some of the company's profits to shareholders.) 

The other key difference between preferred and common stock comes into play when a 

company goes bankrupt. In what is referred to as the "seniority" of creditors, the debt 

holders have first claim on the assets of the firm if the company becomes insolvent. 

Preferred shareholders are next in line, while the common stock shareholders bring up 

the rear. This isn't just a matter of having to wait in line longer if you are a common stock 

shareholder. If the bondholders and owners of preferred stock have claims that exceed 

the value of the assets of a bankrupt company, the common stock shareholders won't see 

a dime. 

There is a tax advantage for corporations to invest in preferred stock rather than in bonds 

for other companies. Corporate investors are taxed for only 30% of the dividends they 

receive on preferred stock. On the other hand, 100% of the interest payments on bonds 

paid to corporate investors are taxed. This tax rule comes in handy when structuring 

mergers. 

Seniority of Creditors 

1. Bondholders 
2. Preferred Stockholders 
3. Common Stockholders 

Dividends 

Dividends are paid to many shareholders of common stock (and preferred stock). 

However, the directors cannot pay any dividends to the common stock shareholders until 

they have paid all outstanding dividends to the preferred stockholders. The incentive for 

company directors to issue dividends is that companies in industries that are particularly 

"dividend sensitive" have better market valuations if they regularly issue dividends. 

Issuing regular dividends is a signal to the market that the company is doing well. 

Unlike with bonds, however, the company directors decide when to pay the dividend on 

preferred stock. In contrast, if a company fails to meet a few bond payments as scheduled, 

the bondholders can force the company into Chapter 11 bankruptcy. (Bankruptcy filing 

in court comes in two categories: Chapter 7 and Chapter 11. If a Chapter 11 bankruptcy 

filing is approved, the court puts a stay order on all interest payments - management is 

given a period of protection during which it can clean up its financial mess and try to get 

the house marching toward profitability. If the management fails to do so within the given 
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time, there can be a Chapter 7 bankruptcy filing, when the assets of the company are 

liquidated.) 

Stock Splits and Buybacks 

Stock splits 

As a company grows in value, it usually splits its stock so that the price does not become 

absurdly high. This enables the company to maintain the liquidity of the stock. If The 

Coca-Cola Company had never split its stock, the price of one share bought when the 

company's stock was first offered would be worth millions of dollars. If that were the 

case, buying and selling one share would be a very crucial decision. This would adversely 

affect a stock's liquidity (that is, its ability to be freely traded on the market). 

Stock buybacks 

Often you will hear that a company has announced that it will buy back its own stock. 

Such an announcement is usually followed by an increase in the stock price. Why does a 

company buy back its stock? And why does its price increase after? 

The reason behind the price increase is fairly complex, and involves three major reasons. 

The first has to do with the influence of earnings per share on market valuation. Many 

investors believe that if a company buys back shares, and the number of outstanding 

shares decreases, the company's earnings per share goes up. If the P/E (price to earnings-

per-share ratio) stays stable, investors’ reason, the price should go up. Thus investors 

drive the stock price up in anticipation of increased earnings per share. 

The second reason has to do with the "signaling effect." This reason is simple to 

understand, and largely explains why a company buys back stock. No one understands 

the health of the company better than its senior managers. No one is in a better position 

to judge what will happen to the future performance of the company. So if a company 

decides to buy back stock (i.e., decides to invest in its own stock), these managers must 

believe that the stock price is undervalued and will rise (or so most observers would 

believe). This is the signal company management sends to the market, and the market 

pushes the stock up in anticipation. 

The other reason the stock price goes up after a buyback can be understood in terms of 

the "debt tax shield" (a concept used in valuation methods). When a company buys back 

stock, its net debt goes up (net debt = debt - cash). Thus the debt tax shield associated 

with the company goes up and the valuation rises (see APV valuation). 

New Stock Issues 

The reverse of a stock buyback is when a company issues new stock, which usually is 

followed by a drop in the company's stock price. As with stock buybacks, there are three 

main reasons for this movement. First, investors believe that issuing new shares "dilutes" 

earnings. That is, issuing new stock increases the number of outstanding shares, which 
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decreases earnings per share, which - given a stable P/E ratio - decreases the share price. 

(Of course, the issuing of new stock will presumably be used in a way that will increase 

earnings, and thus the earnings per share figure won't necessarily decrease, but because 

investors believe in earnings dilution, they often drive stock prices down.) 

There is also the signaling effect. In other words, investors may ask why the company's 

senior managers decided to issue equity rather than debt to meet their financing 

requirements. Surely, investors may believe, management must believe that the 

valuation of their stock is high (possibly inflated) and that by issuing stock they can take 

advantage of this high price. 

Finally, if the company believes that the project for which they need money will definitely 

be successful, it would have issued debt, thus keeping all of the upside of the investment 

within the firm rather than distributing it away in the form of additional equity. The stock 

price also drops because of debt tax shield reasons. Because cash is flushed into the firm 

through the sale of equity, the net debt decreases. As net debt decreases, so does the 

associated debt tax shield. 

Stock Interview Questions 

1. What kind of stocks would you issue for a startup? 

A startup typically has more risk than a well-established firm. The kind of stocks that one 

would issue for a startup would be those that protect the downside of equity holders 

while giving them upside. Hence the stock issued may be a combination of common stock, 

preferred stock and debt notes with warrants (options to buy stock). 

2. When should a company buy back stock? 

When it believes the stock is undervalued and believes it can make money by investing in 

itself. This can happen in a variety of situations. For example, if a company has suffered 

some decreased earnings because of an inherently cyclical industry (such as the 

semiconductor industry), and believes its stock price is unjustifiably low, it will buy back 

its own stock. On other occasions, a company will buy back its stock if investors are 

driving down the price precipitously. In this situation, the company is attempting to send 

a signal to the market that it is optimistic that its falling stock price is not justified. It's 

saying: "We know more than anyone else about our company. We are buying our stock 

back. Do you really think our stock price should be this low?" 

3. Is the dividend paid on common stock taxable to shareholders? Preferred stock? Is it 

tax deductible for the company? 

The dividend paid on common stock is taxable on two levels in the U.S. First at the firm 

level, as a dividend comes out from the net income after taxes (i.e., the money has been 

taxed once already) and then at the shareholder level. The shareholders are taxed for the 

dividend as ordinary income (O.I.). Dividend for preferred stock is treated as an interest 

expense and is tax-free at the corporate level. 



72 | P a g e  
 

4. When should a company issue stock rather than debt to fund its operations? 

There are several reasons for a company to issue stock rather than debt. The first is if it 

believes its stock price is inflated, and it can raise money (on very good terms) by issuing 

stock. The second is when the projects for which the money is being raised may not 

generate predictable cash flows in the immediate future. A simple example of this is a 

startup company. The owners of startups generally will issue stock rather than take on 

debt because their ventures will probably not generate predictable cash flows, which is 

needed to make regular debt payments, and also so that the risk of the venture is diffused 

among the company's shareholders. A third reason for a company to raise money by 

selling equity is if it wants to change its debt-to-equity ratio. This ratio in part determines 

a company's bond rating. If a company's bond rating is poor because it is struggling with 

large debts, they may decide to issue equity to pay down the debt. 

5. Why would an investor buy preferred stock? 

(1.) An investor that wants the upside potential of equity but wants to minimize risk 

would buy preferred stock. The investor would receive steady interest-like payments 

(dividends) from the preferred stock that are more assured than the dividends from 

common stock. (2.) The preferred stock owner gets a superior right to the company's 

assets should the company go bankrupt. (3.) A corporation would invest in preferred 

stock because the dividends on preferred stock are taxed at a lower rate than the interest 

rates on bonds. 

6. Why would a company distribute its earnings through dividends to common 

stockholders? 

Regular dividend payments are signals that a company is healthy and profitable. Also, 

issuing dividends can attract investors (shareholders). Finally, a company may distribute 

earnings to shareholders if it lacks profitable investment opportunities. 

7. What stocks do you like? 

This is a question often asked of those applying for equity research positions. (Applicants 

for investment banking and trading positions, as well as investment management 

positions have also reported receiving this question.) If you're interviewing for one of 

these positions, you should prepare to talk about a couple of stocks you believe are good 

buys and some that you don't. This is also a question asked of undergraduate finance 

candidates to gauge their level of interest in finance. 

8. What did the S&P 500 close at yesterday? 

Another question designed to make sure that a candidate is sincerely interested in 

finance. This question (and others like it - "What's the Dow at now?" "What's the yield on 

the Long Bond?") can be expected especially of those looking for sales and trading 

positions. 
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9. Why did the stock price of XYZ Company decrease yesterday when it announced 

increased quarterly earnings? 

A couple of possible explanations: 1) the entire market was down, (or the sector to which 

XYZ belongs was down), or 2) even though XYZ announced increased earnings, the Street 

was expecting earnings to increase even higher. 

10.  Can you tell me about a recent IPO that you have followed? 

Read the Wall Street Journal and stay current with recent offerings. 

11. What is your investing strategy? 

Different investors have different strategies. Some look for undervalued stocks, others 

for stocks with growth potential and yet others for stocks with steady performance. A 

strategy could also be focused on the long-term or short-term, and be more risky or less 

risky. Whatever your investing strategy is, you should be able to articulate these 

attributes. 

12. How has your portfolio performed in the last five years? 

If you are applying for an investment management firm as an MBA, you'd better have a 

good answer for this one. Also, if you think you are going to say it has outperformed the 

S&P each year, you better be well prepared to explain why you think this happened. 

13. If you read that a given mutual fund has given 50% returns last year, would you invest 

in it? 

You should look for more information, as past performance is not necessarily an indicator 

of future results. How has the overall market done? How did it do in the years before? 

Why did it give 50% returns last year? Can that strategy be expected to work 

continuously over the next five to 10 years? You need to look for answers to these 

questions before making a decision. 

14. You are in the board of directors of a company and own a significant chunk of the 

company. The CEO, in his annual presentation states that the company's stock is doing 

well as it has gone up 20% in the last 12 months. Is the company's stock doing well? 

Another "trick" stock question that you should not answer too quickly. First, ask what the 

Beta of the company is. (Remember, the Beta represents the volatility of the stock with 

respect to the market.) If the Beta is 1 and the market (i.e. the Dow Jones Industrial 

Average) has gone up 35%, the company actually has not done too well in the stock 

market. 

15. What is your Beta? 

Don't be too surprised if an interviewer asks you this question. He/she could be doing 

this to throw you off guard! Take it in the spirit and reply based on how "risky" you 

think you are! 
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16. What do you think is happening with ABC stock? 

Expect to be asked this question if you say you like to follow the Internet sector or the 

pharmaceutical sector. Interviewers will test you to see how well you know your 

industry. In case you don't know that stock, admit it, and offer to describe a stock in that 

sector that you like or have been following. 

17. Where do you think the DJIA will be in three months and six months - and why? 

Nobody knows the answer to this one. However, you should at least have some thoughts 

on the subject and be able to articulate why you think this is the case. If you have been 

following the performance of major macroeconomic indicators (which will be reviewed 

in the next section), you can state your case well. 

18. Why do some stocks rise so much on the first day of trading and others don't? How is 

that "money left on the table?" 

By "money left on the table," bankers mean that the company could have successfully 

completed the offering at a higher price, and that the difference in valuation thus goes to 

initial investors rather than the company. Why this happens and when it will happen is 

not easy to predict from responses received from investors during roadshows. Moreover, 

if the stock rises a lot the first day it is good publicity for the firm. But in many ways it is 

money left on the table because the company could have sold the same stock in its initial 

public offering at a higher price. However, bankers must honestly value a company and 

its stock over the long-term, rather than simply trying to guess what the market will do. 

Even if a stock trades up significantly initially, a banker looking at the long-term would 

expect the stock to come down, as long as the market eventually correctly values it. 

19. What is insider trading and why is it illegal? 

Undergraduates may get this question as feelers of their business knowledge. Insider 

trading describes the illegal activity of buying or selling stock based on information that 

is not public information. This is to prevent those with privileged information (company 

execs, I-bankers and lawyers) from using this information to make a tremendous 

amount of money unfairly. 

20. Who is a more senior creditor, a bondholder or stockholder? 

The bondholder is always more senior. Stockholders (including those who own preferred 

stock) must wait until bondholders are paid during a bankruptcy before claiming 

company assets 

BONDS AND INTEREST RATES 

A Remedial Lesson 

A bond is a borrowing arrangement through which the borrower (or seller of a bond) 

issues or sells an IOU document to the investor (or buyer of the bond). The arrangement 

obligates the borrower to make specified payments to the bondholder on agreed-upon 
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dates. For example, if you purchase a five-year U.S. Treasury note, the U.S. government is 

borrowing money from you for a period of five years. For this service, the government 

will pay you interest at the T-bill rate and return the amount it borrowed (called the 

principal) at the end of five years. Meanwhile, you can sell the bond in the market, too. 

Different types of organizations can issue bonds: companies like Ford Motor or Procter & 

Gamble, and municipal organizations, like counties and states. 

Bond Terminology 

Before going any further in our discussion of bonds, we will introduce several terms you 

should be familiar with. 

Par value or face value of a bond: This is the total amount the bond issuer will commit to 

pay back at the end of the bond maturity period (when the bond expires). 

Coupon payments: The payments of interest that the bond issuer makes to the 

bondholder. These are often specified in terms of coupon rates. The coupon rate is the 

bond coupon payment divided by the bond's par value. 

Bond price: The price the bondholder (i.e. the lender) pays the bond issuer (i.e. the 

borrower) to hold the bond (to have a claim on the cash flows documented on the 

bond). Default risk: The risk that the company issuing the bond may go bankrupt, and 

"default" on its loans. 

Default premium: The difference between the promised yields on a corporate bond and 

the yield on an otherwise identical government bond. In theory, the difference 

compensates the bondholder for the corporation's default risk. 

Credit ratings: Bonds are rated by credit agencies (Moody's, Standard & Poor's), which 

examine a company's financial situation, outstanding debt, and other factors to determine 

the risk of default. Companies guard their credit ratings closely, because with high ratings, 

they can raise money easily at lower interest rates. 

Investment grade bonds: These bonds have high credit ratings, and pay a relatively low 

rate of interest. 

Junk bonds: Also known as "high yield bonds," these bonds have poor credit ratings, and 

pay a relatively high rate of interest. 

U.S. Treasury bills, notes, and bonds: "Bills" mature in one year or less, "notes" in two to 

10 years, and "bonds" in 30 years. (The 30-year U.S. Treasury bond is also called The Long 

Bond.") 

How a Bond works 

To illustrate how a bond works, let's look at an 8% coupon, 30-year maturity bond with 

a par value of $1,000, paying 60 coupon payments of $40 each. 



76 | P a g e  
 

Let's illustrate this bond with the following schematic: 

 

 

 

 

 

Coupon rate = 8% 

Par value = $1,000 

Therefore the coupon = 8% x $1,000 = $80 per year 

Because this bond is a semiannual coupon, the payments are for $40 every six months. 

We can also say that the semiannual coupon rate is 4%. 

Because it’s time to maturity is 30 years, there are total of 30 x 2 = 60 semiannual 

payments. 

At the end of Year 30, the bondholder receives the last semiannual payment of $40 dollars 

plus the principal of $1,000. 

Pricing Bonds 

The question now is how much such a bond is worth? 

The price of a bond is the net present value of all future cash flows expected from that 

bond. (Recall net present value from our discussion on valuation.) 

 

 

Here: 

r = Discount rate 

t = Interval (for example, 6 months) T = Total payments 

First, we must ask what discount rate should be used. Remember from our discussion of 

valuation techniques that discount rate for a cash flow for a given period should be able 

to account for the risk associated with the cash flow for that period. In practice, there will 

be different discount rates for cash flows occurring in different periods. However, for the 

sake of simplicity, we will assume that the discount rate is the same as the interest rate 

on the bond. 
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So, what is the price of the bond described earlier? From the equation above we get: 

Calculating the answer for this equation is complex. Luckily, this can be solved using a 

financial calculator. Also, there are Present Value tables available that simplify the 

calculations. In this case, the % is 4% and T is 60. Using the Present Value tables we get 

= $757.17 + $53.54 

= $810.71 

Also, if we look at the bond price equation closely, we see that the bond price depends on 

the interest rate. If the interest rate is higher, the bond price is lower and vice versa. This 

is a fundamental rule that should be understood and remembered 

OTHER BOND CONCEPTS 

The Yield to Maturity (YTM) 

The measure of the average rate of return that will be earned on a bond if it is bought now 

and held until maturity. To calculate this, we need the information on bond price, coupon 

rate and par value of the bond. 

Example: Suppose an 8% coupon, 30-year bond is selling at $1,276.76. What average rate 

of return would be earned if you purchase the bond at this price? 

To answer this question, we must find the interest rate at which the present value of the 

bond payments equals the bond price. This is the rate that is consistent with the observed 

price of the bond. Therefore, we solve for r in the following equation. 

 

This equation can be solved using a financial calculator; in completing the calculation we 

see that the bond's yield to maturity is 3%. 

Holding Period Return (HPR) 

The income earned over a period as a percentage of the bond price at the start of the 

period, assuming that the bond is sold at the end of the period. Example: Let's take a 30-

year bond, with an $80 coupon, purchased for $1000 with a Yield to Maturity (YTM) of 

8%. Say at the end of the year, the bond price increases to $1,050. Then the YTM will go 

below 8%, but the HPR will be higher than 8% and is given by: 
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Callable Bonds 

For the sake of simplification in our earlier discussions, we assumed that the discount 

rate was equal to the interest rate, and that the interest rate was constant at the coupon 

rate. However, in the real world, this is not always the case. 

If the interest rate falls, bond prices can rise substantially. 

We'll explain why this happens with an example. Let's say a company has a bond 

outstanding. It took $810.71 and promised to make the coupon payments as described 

above, at $40 every six months. Let's say the market interest rates dropped after a while 

(below 8%). According to the bond document, the company is still expected to pay the 

coupon at a rate of 8%. 

If the interest rates were to drop in this manner, the company would be paying a coupon 

rate much higher than the market interest rate today. In such a situation, the company 

may want to buy the bond back so that it is not committed to paying large coupon 

payments in the future. This is referred to as "calling the bond." However, an issuer can 

only "call" a bond if the bond was originally issued as a callable bond. The risk that a bond 

will be called is reflected in the bond's price. The yield calculated up to the period when 

the bond is called back is referred to as the yield to call. 

Zero Coupon Bonds 

This type of bond offers no coupon or interest payments to the bondholder. The only 

payment the zero-coupon bondholder receives is the payment of the bond face value 

upon maturity. The returns on a coupon bonds must be obtained through price 

appreciation. These bonds are priced at a considerable discount to par value. 

Forward Rates 

These are agreed-upon interest rates for a bond to be issued in the future. For example, 

the one year forward rate for a five-year U.S. Treasury note represents the interest 

"forward" rate on a five-year T-note that will be issued one year from now (and that will 

mature six years from now). This "forward" rate changes daily just like the rates of 

already-issued bonds. It is essentially based on the market's expectation of what the 

interest rate a year from now will be, and can be calculated using the rates of current 

bonds 

FED AND INTEREST RATES 

The Federal Reserve Board has the broad responsibility for the health of the U.S. financial 

system. In this role, the Fed sets the margin requirements on stocks and options, and 

regulates bank lending to securities market participants. 

The Fed also has the responsibility of formulating the nation's monetary policy. In 

determining the monetary policy of the nation, the Fed manipulates the money supply to 
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effect the macro economy. When the Fed increases the money supply to the economy, the 

monetary policy set by the Fed is said to be "expansionary." This encourages investment 

and subsequently increases consumption demand. In the long run, however, an 

expansionary policy can lead to higher prices and inflation. Therefore, it is the Fed's 

responsibility to maintain a proper balance and prevent the economy from either 

hyperinflation or recession. 

The Fed uses several tools to regulate the money supply. The Fed can 1) use its "check 

writing capabilities" 2) raise or lower the interest rates, or 3) manipulate the reserve 

requirements for various banks to control the money flow and thereby the interest rate. 

Let's look at these tools one by one: 

1. Open Market Operations 

The Fed can "write a check" to buy securities and thereby increase the money supply. 

Unlike the rest of us, the Fed doesn't have to pay the money for a check it has written. As 

we will see, an increase in the country's money supply stimulates the economy. Likewise, 

if the Fed sells securities, the money paid for them leaves the money supply and slows 

the economy. 

2. Changing Interest Rates 

The Fed can raise or lower interest rates by changing: (a) the discount rate (the interest 

rate the Fed charges banks on short-term loans), and/or (b) the Federal Funds rate (or 

"Fed Funds" rate), (the rate banks charge each other on short-term loans). When the Fed 

raises or lowers interest rates, banks usually quickly follow by raising or lowering their 

"prime rate" (the rate banks charge on loans to its most creditworthy customers). A 

reduction of the interest rate signals an expansionary monetary policy. Why? Because by 

reducing the interest of its loans to banks, the Fed allows banks to lend out money at 

lower rates. More businesses and individuals are willing to take out loans, thus pouring 

more money into the economy. 

3. Reserve Requirements 

All banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System are required to maintain a 

minimum balance in a reserve account with the Fed. The amount of this minimum balance 

depends on the total deposits of the bank's customers. These minimum deposits are 

referred to as "reserve requirements." Lowering the reserve requirements for various 

banks has the same expansionary effect. This move allows banks to make more loans with 

the deposits it has and thereby stimulates the economy by increasing the money supply. 

But why does an increase in money supply stimulate the economy? An increase in the 

money supply usually results in investors having too much money in their portfolios, 

which leads them to buy more bonds. This increases the demand for bonds, drives up 

bond prices, and thereby reduces interest rates. More money available increases demand 
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for stocks and subsequently real estate. This leads to higher investments and greater 

demand for goods 

Fed and Inflation Rates 

Inflation is the rise of prices over time - it is why over the long-term, we are guaranteed 

to hear and (sorry, it's true) speak phrases like: "When I was your age, a can of Coke was 

only 50 cents." 

Inflation directly affects interest rates. Consider this: If lending money is healthy for the 

economy because it promotes growth, interest rates must be higher than inflation. (If I 

lend out money at a 5 percent annual interest rate, but inflation was at 10 percent, I would 

never lend money.) Thus, the Federal Reserve watches inflation closely in its role of 

setting interest rates. 

Moreover, lenders issuing long-term loans such as mortgages can issue what are called 

"floating rate" loans, whose yield depends on an interest rate (like the prime rate) that 

adjusts to account for changes in inflation. In this way, lenders can be protected should 

inflation increase. 

At the same time, some amount of inflation (usually around 1 to 2 percent) is a sign of a 

healthy economy. If the economy is healthy and the stock market is growing, consumer 

spending increases. This means that people are buying more goods, and by consequence, 

more goods are in demand. No inflation means that you do not have a robust economy - 

that there is no competitive demand for goods. 

But "good inflation" must be watched closely. From basic microeconomics we know that 

if the demand curve shifts upwards because of higher income, the new equilibrium price 

is higher. Once the price rises, the supply curve shifts as more people (sellers) enter the 

market to take advantage of the opportunity (i.e. growth in macroeconomic terms). This 

causes the supply curve to also shift upwards - the prices reach a new equilibrium above 

the previous equilibrium. As you can see, this can theoretically spiral upward, as 

increased supply indicating a healthy economy further boosts the demand and so on. This 

is Federal Reserve Chairman Alan Greenspan's major concern with an "irrationally 

exuberant" stock market - that the economy will overheat as a result and inflation will 

spiral out of control 

Effect of inflation on Bond Prices 

The rule is very simple: when inflation goes up, interest rates rise. And when interest 

rates rise bond prices fall. Therefore, when inflation goes up, bond prices fall. 

The ways in which economic events, inflation, interest rates, and bond prices interact are 

the basics of an understanding of finance - these relationships are sure to be tested in 

finance interviews. In general, a positive economic event (such as a decrease in 

unemployment, greater consumer confidence, higher personal income, etc.) drives up 
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inflation (because there are more people working, there is more money to be spent), 

which drives up interest rates, which causes a decrease in bond prices (although the yield 

on bonds increases). 

The following table summarizes this relationship with a variety of economic events. 

Economic Event Inflation Interest Bond Prices 

Unemployment figures 
low 

Up Up Down 

Dollar weakens against 
Yen 

Up Up Down 

Consumer confidence 
low 

Down Down Up 

Stock market drops Down Down Up 

Companies report 
healthy earnings 

Up Up Down 

Leading Economic Indicators 

The following table is a look at leading economic indicators, and whether their rise or fall 

signal positive economic events or negative economic events. For finance interviews, 

know this chart cold! 

Indicator Positive Economic Event Negative Economic Event 

GDP Up Down 
Unemployment Down Up 

Inflation Down Up 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) Down Up 

Interest rates Down Up 

New home starts Up Down 

Interview Questions 

1. How are bonds priced? 

Bonds are priced based on the net present value of all future cash flows expected from 

the bond. 

2. How would you value a perpetual bond that pays you $1,000 a year in coupons? 

Divide the coupon by the current interest rate. For example, a corporate bond with an 

interest rate of 10% that pays $1,000 a year in coupons would be worth $10,000. 

3. When should a company issue debt instead of issuing equity? 
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First, a company needs a steady cash flow before it can consider issuing debt (otherwise, 

it can quickly fall behind interest payments and eventually see its assets seized). Once a 

company can issue debt, it will do so for a couple of main reasons. 

If the expected return on equity is higher than the expected return on debt, a company 

will issue debt. For example, say a company believes that projects completed with the $1 

million raised through either an equity or debt offering will increase its market value 

from $4 million to $10 million. It also knows that the same amount could be raised by 

issuing a $1 million bond that requires $300,000 in interest payments over its life. If the 

company issues equity, it will have to sell 20% of the company ($1 million / $4 million). 

This would then grow to 20% of $10 million, or $2 million. Thus, issuing the equity will 

cost the company $1 million ($2 million - $1 million). The debt, on the other hand, will 

only cost $300,000. The company will therefore choose to issue debt in this case, as the 

debt is "cheaper" than the equity. 

Also, interest payments on bonds are tax deductible. A company may also wish to issue 

debt if it has taxable income and can benefit from tax shields. 

4. What major factors affect the yield on a corporate bond? 

The short answer: (1) interest rates on comparable U.S. Treasury bonds, and (2) the 

company's credit risk. A more elaborate answer would include a discussion of the fact 

that corporate bond yields trade at a premium, or "spread," over the interest rate on 

comparable U.S. Treasury bonds. (For example, a five-year corporate bond that trades at 

a premium of 0.5%, or "50 basis points," over the five-year Treasury note is priced at "50 

over.") How large this "spread" is depends on the company's credit risk: the riskier the 

company, the higher the interest rate the company must pay to convince investors to lend 

it money and, therefore, the wider the spread over U.S. Treasuries. 

5. If you believe interest rates will fall, which should you buy: a 10-year coupon bond or 

a 10-year zero coupon bond? 

The 10-year zero coupon bond. A zero coupon bond is more sensitive to changes in 

interest rates than an equivalent coupon bond, so its price will increase more if interest 

rates fall. 

6. Which is riskier: a 30-year coupon bond or a 30-year zero coupon bond? 

A 30-year zero coupon bond. Here's why: A coupon bond pays interest semi-annually, 

then pays the principal when the bond matures (after 30 years, in this case). A zero 

coupon bond pays no interest, but pays one lump sum upon maturity (after 30 years, in 

this case). The coupon bond is less risky because you receive some of your money back 

before over time, whereas with a zero coupon bond you must wait 30 years to receive 

any money back. (Another answer: The zero coupon bond is more risky because its price 

is more sensitive to changes in interest rates.) 
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7. What is The Long Bond trading at? 

The Long Bond is the U.S. Treasury's 30-year bond. In particular for sales & trading 

positions, but also for corporate finance positions, interviewers want to see that you're 

interested in the financial markets and follow them daily. If the price of the 10-year 

Treasury note rises, does the note's yield rise, fall or stay the same? 

8. Bond yields move in the opposite direction of bond prices. 

Therefore, if the price of a 10-year note rises, its yield will fall. 

9 If you believe interest rates will fall, should you buy bonds or sell bonds? 

Since bond prices rise when interest rates fall, you should buy bonds. 

10. How many "basis points" equal?  Percent? 

Bond yields are measured in "basis points," which are 1/100 of 1%. 1% = 100 basis 

points. Therefore?  Percent = 50 basis points. 

11. Why can inflation hurt creditors? 

Think of it this way: If you are a creditor lending out money at a fixed rate, inflation cuts 

into the percentage that you are actually making. If you lend out money at 7% a year, and 

inflation is 5%, you are only really clearing 2%. 

12. How would the following affect the interest rates? U.S. bombers attack Iraq (again). 

The President is impeached and convicted. 

While it can't be said for certain, chances are that these kind of events will lead to fears 

that the economy will go into recession, so the Fed would want to balance that by giving 

expansionary signals and lowering interest rates. 

13. What does the government do when there is a fear of hyperinflation? 

The government has fiscal and monetary policies it can use in order to control 

hyperinflation. The monetary policies (the Fed's use of interest rates, reserve 

requirements, etc.) are discussed in detail in this chapter. The fiscal policies include the 

use of taxation and government spending to regulate the aggregate level of economic 

activity. Increasing taxes and decreasing government spending slows down growth in the 

economy and fights inflationary fears. 

14. Where do you think the U.S. economy will go over the next year? 

Talking about the U.S. economy encompasses a lot of topics: the stock market, consumer 

spending, unemployment, etc. Underlying all these topics are the way interest rates, 

inflation, and bonds interact. Make sure you can speak articulately about the concepts 

discussed in this chapter as they relate to the current situation. 
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15. How would you value a perpetual zero coupon bond? 

The value will be zero. A zero coupon doesn't pay any coupons, and if that continues on 

perpetually, when do you get paid? Never - so it isn’t worth nothing! 

16. Let's say a report released today showed that inflation last month was very low. 

However, bond prices closed lower. Why might this happen? 

Bond prices are based on expectations of future inflation. In this case, you can assume 

that traders expect future inflation to be higher (regardless of the report on last month's 

inflation figures) and therefore they bid bond prices down today. (A report which showed 

that inflation last month was benign would benefit bond prices only to the extent that 

traders believed it was an indication of low future inflation as well.) 

17. If the stock market falls, what would you expect to happen to bond prices, and interest 

rates? 

Bond prices increase and interest rates fall. 

18. If unemployment is low, what happens to inflation, interest rates, and bond prices? 

Inflation goes up, interest rates also increase, and bond prices decrease 

CURRENCIES 

Exchange Rates 

In this global economy, an understanding of how currencies interact and what influences 

currency rates is vital for those interested in finance careers. The strength and stability 

of currencies influence trade and foreign investment. Why did so many U.S. investment 

banks suffer when Asian currencies plummeted in recent years? What does a "strong" 

dollar mean? When a company makes foreign investments or does business in foreign 

countries, how is it affected by the exchange rates among currencies? These are all issues 

that you'll need to know as you advance in your finance career. 

To begin our discussion of currencies, let's look at some of the major terms used to 

discuss currencies: 

Spot exchange rate: The prices of currencies for immediate delivery. (The "exchange rate" 

people commonly talk about is actually the spot exchange rate.) 

Example: Let's say that today the spot rate of U.S. dollars to the British pound is 

$1.5628/£1. If you go to the bank today, and present a teller with $1,562.80, you will 

receive £1,000. 

Forward exchange rate: The prices of currencies at which they can be bought and sold 

for future delivery. 
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Example: Let's say that today the one-month forward rate for British pound is $1.5629, 

the three-month rate is $1.5625, and the one-year rate is $1.5619. These represent the 

prices at which the market (buyers and sellers) would agree (today) to exchange 

currencies one month, three months, or a year from now. 

In this example, the dollar is said to be trading at a one-month forward discount, because 

you can get fewer pounds for the dollar in the future than you can today. Alternately, the 

dollar is trading at a forward premium for a three-month or a year period, because you 

can get more pounds for the dollar in the future than you can today. 

So what determines the rate at which dollars and pounds, or dollars and baht, or baht and 

roubles are exchanged? The perfect market exchange rate between two currencies is 

determined primarily by two factors: the interest rates in the two countries and the rates 

of inflation in the two countries. However, in the real world, governments of many 

countries regulate the exchange rate to control growth and investment of foreign capital 

in the economy. Economists believe that such artificial controls are the main reason 

currencies fall so drastically sometimes (such as the 1997-98 collapse of the Russian 

rouble and many Asian currencies). 

Strong/weak currencies: When a currency is "strong," that means its value is rising 

relative to other currencies. This is also called "currency appreciation." When a currency 

is weak, its value is falling relative to other currencies. This is also called "currency 

depreciation." 

Example: Let's say the dollar-pound exchange rate on January 1 is $1.50/£1. Three 

months later, on March 1, the exchange rate is $1.60/£1. The dollar has "weakened," or 

"depreciated" against the pound, because it takes more dollars to equal 1 pound. 

Interest Rates and Foreign Exchange 

The foreign exchange rate between two currencies is related to the interest rates in the 

two countries. If the interest rate of a foreign country relative to the home country goes 

up, the home currency weakens. In other words, it takes more of the home currency to 

buy the same amount of foreign currency. (Note: We are talking here about the "real" 

interest rate, or the interest rate after inflation. After all, if interest rates and inflation 

were to go up by the same amount, the effect on the country's currency would generally 

be a "wash," of no net effect.) 

Example: Let's say the risk-free interest rate in the U.S. is 5%; and in the U.K. it is 10%. 

Let's also assume that the exchange rate today is $1.5/£1. If the U.K. interest rate rises to 

12%, the British pound will tend to strengthen against the dollar. 

Explanation: When interest rates in a country rise, investments held in that country's 

currency (for example, bank deposits, bonds, CDs, etc.) will earn a higher rate of return. 

Therefore, when a country's interest rates rise, money and investments will tend to flow 
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to that country, driving up the value of its currency. (The reverse is true when a country's 

interest rates fall.) 

Inflation and Foreign Exchange 

If the inflation in the foreign country goes up relative to the home currency, the foreign 

currency devalues or "weakens" relative to the home currency. In other words, it takes 

less of the home currency to buy the same amount of foreign currency. 

Example: Let us say that at the beginning of the year, silver costs $1,500/lb in the U.S. and 

£1,000/lb in the U.K. At the same time it takes $1.5 to buy £1. Let us now assume that 

inflation in the U.K. is at 10% while that in the U.S. is at 0%. At the end of the year, the 

silver still costs $1,500/lb in the U.S., but it costs pounds £1,100 in U.K. because of 

inflation. Because of the U.K.'s higher inflation rate, the British pound will weaken relative 

to the dollar (so that, for example, it may take $1.36 to buy £1). 

Advanced Explanation: Let's say again that at the beginning of the year, silver costs 

$1,500/lb in the U.S. and £1,000/lb in the U.K. At the same time, it takes $1.5 to buy £1. 

Let us now assume that inflation in the U.K. is at 10% while inflation in the U.S. is at 0%. 

At the end of the year, the silver still costs $1,500/lb in the U.S., but it costs £1,100/lb in 

U.K. because of inflation. If the exchange rate were to remain the same, people would start 

buying silver in the U.S., selling it in the U.K., and converting their money back to dollars, 

thus making a tidy profit. In other words, if you had $1,500, you would buy a pound of 

silver in U.S., sell it in U.K. for £1,100 at the end of the year, and convert the British pounds 

into dollars at $1.5 /£1, thus receiving $1,650. For each pound of silver with which you 

did this, you would make a neat profit of $150. If you were to do that with a billion dollars’ 

worth of silver, you could pay for the travel expenses and buy homes in London and New 

York. I have been able to take advantage of the inflation in the U.K. and created an 

arbitrage opportunity 

In the real world, this does not happen. If there is inflation in the U.K., the value of the 

pound will weaken. This is given by the relationship below. 

 

 

Here: 

i$ = the inflation in 

$ i£ = the inflation 

in £ 

Capital Market Equilibrium 

The principle of capital market equilibrium (CME) states that there should be equilibrium 

in the interest rate markets all over the world so that there is no arbitrage opportunity in 
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shifting between two currencies. For example, if you could buy 1 pound for every 1.5 

dollars, and 60 Indian Rupees for every pound, you should only be able to by a dollar for 

every 40 Rupees. 

 

 

Consider what would happen if this was not the case? Say the dollar/pound exchange rate 

was $2/£1 instead of $1.5/£1, but the Rupee/dollar and Rupee/pound relationships 

remained the same (1$/40 Rs and £1/60 Rs)? You could take $100, convert it into 4,000 

rupees, take those rupees and convert it into pounds 66.67, and finally, take those 66.67 

pounds and convert that back into $133.3. You could sit at home and churn out millions 

of dollars this way! 

Step 1: Convert Dollars to Rupees-- $100 x (Rs40)/$1 = 4,000Rs 

Step 2: Convert Rupees to Pounds-- 4,000 Rs x (£1)/60 Rs =66.67 

Step 3: Convert Pounds to Dollars-- 66.67 x ($2/£1) = $133.33 

The three factors 

These three factors - interest rates, inflation, and the principle of capital market 

equilibrium - govern the valuation of various currencies relative to each other. Because 

the U.S. dollar is generally considered the world's most stable currency, it is the widely 

accepted standard for foreign exchange valuation. Other currencies that are considered 

stable are the Japanese yen and the German Deutsch mark. The relative movements of 

these currencies, as well as others, are monitored daily. 

Exchange Rates and company earnings 

Companies that do business abroad are exposed to currency risk. For example, if a U.S. 

company that manufactures goods in the U.S. sells them in England, its quarterly earnings 

will fluctuate based on fluctuating dollar-pound exchange rates. 

If the dollar weakens, (i.e. one dollar can buy fewer pounds), the company's earnings will 

increase because when the pounds earned by selling the product are sent back to the U.S., 

they will be able to buy more dollars. If the dollar strengthens, then the earnings will go 

down. It is important to note that there are several complex accounting rules that govern 

how these earnings are accounted for. Let's look at another example. 

Example: If Coca-Cola sells soda in the U.K. for £1 per 2-liter bottle, and the dollar-pound 

exchange rate is $1.50/£1, Coca-Cola really gets $1.50 per 2-liter bottle it sells in England. 

If the dollar weakens, so that the exchange rate is $1.60/£1, Coca-Cola will in fact get 

$1.60 per pound and its earnings will be positively impacted (all else being equal). 

The following table summarizes the effect of exchange rates on multinational 

companies. 
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Economic Event Effect of earnings 
of US Multinational 

Inflation Interest Rates 

US Dollar strengthens Negative Falls Fall  

US Dollar weakens Positive Rises Rise 

 

Exchange Rates, Inflation Rates 

A weak dollar means that the prices of imported goods will rise when measured in U.S. 

dollars (i.e., it will take more dollars to buy the same good). When the prices of imported 

goods rise, this contributes to higher inflation, which also raises interest rates. 

Conversely, a strong dollar means that the prices of imported goods will fall, which will 

lower inflation (which will lower interest rates). The following table summarizes the 

relationship between interest rates, inflation, and exchange rates. 

Economic Event Effect on Dollars 

U.S (real) interest rates rise Strengthens 

U.S (real) interest rates fall Weakens 

U.S. inflation rates rise Weakens 

U.S. inflation rates falls Strengthens 

 

Currency Devaluation and Revaluation 

Under a fixed-exchange-rate system, in which exchange rates are changed only by official 

government action, different terms are used. Instead of depreciation, a weakening of the 

currency is called "devaluation." To take a recent example, devaluation is what occurred 

in Indonesia in 1998. The Indonesian government had pegged its currency, the rupiah, to 

the American dollar in an attempt to artificially maintain its strength. As this policy 

became untenable, the government devalued its currency, causing foreign investment to 

flee the country and throwing the country's economy into turmoil. A strengthening of the 

currency under fixed exchange rates is called "revaluation," rather than appreciation. 

These terms can be summarized in the following chart. 

Interview Questions 

1. What is the currency risk for a company like Microsoft? What about Ford? 

Microsoft and Ford have different currency risks. Let's take Microsoft first. Its currency 

risks are created by its sales in foreign countries. For example, if it markets a software 

program for 100 RMB in China, and the dollar strengthens against the RMB (and the 

company doesn't change its price), Microsoft will be making less in U.S. dollars than it had 

previously anticipated. Of course, it can react by changing its prices. 
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Now let's examine Ford's currency risks. Like Microsoft, Ford is vulnerable to currency 

risks because it sells products in foreign currencies. In addition, the auto giant is 

vulnerable because it manufactures cars overseas. Let's say the company has 

manufacturing operations in Mexico, where cars are built, later be sold in the U.S. The 

cost of those operations will be sensitive to the price of the peso relative to the dollar. If 

the peso weakens, Ford can make its cars cheaper, sell them for lower prices, and thus 

gain a competitive advantage. But the opposite is also true. If the peso strengthens, Ford's 

labor costs will shoot up. In contrast, Microsoft doesn't have manufacturing costs 

overseas (most of its production costs are spent in Redmond rather than at cheaper 

production facilities overseas). Ford's currency risk is further complicated because some 

of its major competitors are in countries outside the U.S. For example, the price of the 

deutsch mark and the yen influences the prices at which German and Japanese 

competitors sell their cars. Thus Ford has greater currency risk than Microsoft. 

2. When the currencies in companies like Thailand, Indonesia, and Russia fell drastically 

recently, why were U.S. and European-based investment banks hurt so badly? 

I-banks were hurt on trading losses in Asia and Russia. If banks held either currency or 

bonds in the currencies that dropped, these assets suddenly turned "non-performing," in 

other words, essentially worthless. (In fact, Russia's government defaulted on its 

government-backed bonds, so firms weren't just hurt by dropping currencies but also by 

loan defaults.) 

3. If the U.S. dollar weakens, should interest rates generally rise, fall or stay the same? 

Rise. A weak dollar means that the prices of imported goods will rise when measured in 

U.S. dollars (i.e., it will take more dollars to buy the same good). When the prices of 

imported goods rise, this contributes to higher inflation, which raises interest rates. 

4. If U.S. inflation rates fall, what will happen to the dollar? 

It will strengthen. 

5. If the interest rate in Brazil increases relative to that in the U.S., what will happen to 

the exchange rate between the real and the dollar? 

The real will strengthen relative to the dollar. 

6. If inflation rates in the U.S. falls relative to the inflation rate in Russia, what will happen 

to the exchange rate between the dollar and the rouble? 

The dollar will strengthen relative to the rouble. 

7. What is the difference between currency devaluation and currency depreciation? 
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Devaluation occurs in a fixed-exchange-rate system, while depreciation occurs when a 

country allows its currency to move according to the international currency exchange 

market. 

8. What is the effect on U.S. multinational companies if the U.S. dollar strengthens? 

U.S. multinationals see their earnings decrease when the dollar strengthens. Why? 

Essentially, the sales in foreign currencies don't amount to as many U.S. dollars when the 

dollar strengthens. 

9. What factors govern foreign exchange rates? 

Chiefly: interest rates, inflation, and capital market equilibrium. 

10. If the spot exchange rate of dollars to pounds is $1.60/£1, and the one-year forward 

rate is $1.50/£1, would we say the dollar is strong or weak relative to the pound? 

The forward exchange rate indicates the rate at which traders are willing to exchange 

currencies in the future. In this case, they believe that the dollar will strengthen against 

the pound in the coming year (that one dollar will be able to buy more pounds one year 

from now than it can now). 

OPTIONS AND DERIVATIVES 

The Wild West of Finance 

Derivatives aren't the most trusted of financial instruments. They received some bad 

press in the mid-1990s when Bankers Trust, the leading marketer of derivatives, was 

accused by several of its key clients, including Procter & Gamble and Gibson Greetings, of 

misinforming them about the riskiness of its derivatives instruments. The 

trustworthiness of derivatives wasn't helped any when Bankers Trust bankers, who had 

a reputation for being high-flying risk-takers, were caught on tape making dismissive 

comments about whether their clients would be able to understand what they were doing 

or had done wrong. Derivatives received another black mark for their role in the 

bankruptcy of Orange County, California, the largest municipal bankruptcy in U.S. history. 

In a case similar to the Bankers Trust case, Orange County officials charged that they had 

been misled about the riskiness of their investments, which involved complex 

derivatives. To settle that suit, the county's lead investment banker, Merrill Lynch, agreed 

to pay $437.1 million. 

What are these scary things called derivatives? Quite simply, derivatives are financial 

instruments that derive their value out of or have their value contingent on the values of 

other assets like stocks, bonds, commodity prices or market index values. 

Derivatives are often used to "hedge" financial positions. Hedging is a financial strategy 

designed to reduce risk by balancing a position in the market. Often, hedges work like 

insurance: a small position pays off large amounts if the price of a certain security reaches 
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a certain price. On other occasions, derivatives are used to hedge positions by locking in 

prices 

Options 

We'll begin our discussion of derivatives with a look at options, the most common form 

of derivatives. Options, as the word suggests, give the bearers the right to buy or sell a 

security - without the obligation to do so. Two of the simplest forms of options are "call" 

options and "put" options. 

Call options 

A "call option" gives the holder the right to purchase an asset for a specified price on or 

before a specified expiration date. (This specified price is called the "exercise price" or 

"strike price.") Let's take a look at an example - a July 1 call option on IBM stock with an 

exercise price of $70. The owner of this option is entitled to purchase IBM stock at $70 at 

any time up to and including the expiration date of July 1. If in June, the price of IBM stock 

jumps up to $80, the holder can exercise the option to buy stock from the option seller 

for $70. The holder can then turn around and sell it to the market for $80 and make a neat 

profit of $10 per share (minus the price of the option, which we will discuss later). 

Note: When a call option's exercise price is exactly equal to the current stock price, the 

option is called an "at the money" call. When a call option whose exercise price is less 

than the current stock price, it is called an "in the money" call. When a call option's 

exercise price is greater than the current stock price, it is called an "out of the money" 

call. 

Put options 

The other common form of option is a "put option." A put option gives its holder the right 

to sell an asset for a specified exercise price on or before a specified expiration date. For 

example, a July 1 put option on IBM with an exercise price of $70 entitles its owner to sell 

IBM stock at $70 at any time before it expires in July, even if market price is lower than 

$70. So if the price drops to $60, the holder of the put option would buy the stock at $60, 

sell it for $70 by exercising her option, and make a neat profit of $10 (minus the price of 

the option). On the other hand, if the price goes over $70, the holder of the put option will 

not exercise the option and will lose the amount he paid to buy the option. 

Writing Options 

Sounds pretty neat, eh? But how are these options created? And who buys and sells the 

stock that the options give holders the right to buy and sell? 

Well, there is an entire market - called the options market - that helps these transactions 

go through. For every option holder there must be an option seller. This seller is often 

referred to as the "writer" of the option. So selling a put option is called "writing a put." 
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Anyone who owns the underlying asset, such as an individual or a mutual fund - can write 

options.  

Let's go back to our previous example. If you buy the July 1 call option on IBM stock with 

an exercise price of $70, you are betting that the price of IBM will go above $70 before 

July 1. You can make this bet only if there is someone who believes that the price of IBM 

will not go above $70 before July 1. That person is the seller, or writer, of the call option. 

If the price goes to $80 in June and you exercise your option, the person who sold the call 

option has to buy the stock from the market at $80 (assuming he does not already own 

it) and sell it to you at $70, thus incurring a loss of $10. 

But remember that you had to buy the option originally. The seller of the option, who has 

just incurred a loss of $10, already received the price of the option when you bought the 

option. On the other hand, say the price had stayed below $70 and closed at $60 on June 

30. The seller would have made the amount he sold the option for, but would not make 

the difference between the $70 strike price and the $60 June 30 closing price. Why not? 

Because as the buyer of the call option, you have the right to buy at $70 but is not 

obligated to. If the stock price of IBM stays below $70, you as the option buyer will not 

exercise the option. 

Note: If the writer of the call option already owns IBM stock, he is essentially "selling you 

his upside" on his IBM stock, or the right to all gains above $70. Obviously, he doesn't 

think it's very likely that IBM will rise above $70 and he hopes to simply pocket the option 

price 

Summary options chart 

 Action to take 

Person believes a stock 
will go up 

Buy a call 

Person believes a stock 
will go down 

Buy a put 

 

Options Pricing 

Understanding how an option writer makes money brings up the natural question: How 

does an option get priced? 

There are at least six factors that affect the value of an option: the stock price, exercise 

price, the volatility of the stock price, the time to expiration, the interest rate and the 

dividend rate of the stock. To understand how these factors affect option values, we will 

look at their effect on call options (the option to buy a security). 

Price of underlying security. If an option is purchased at a fixed exercise price, and the 

price of the underlying stock increases, the value of a call option increases. Clearly, if you 

have the option to buy IBM stock at $100, the value of your option will increase with any 
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increase in stock price: from $95 to $100, from $100 to $105, from $105 to $106, etc. (The 

value of a put option in this scenario decreases.) 

Exercise ("strike") price. Call options can be bought at various exercise prices. For 

example, you can buy an option to buy stock in IBM at $100, or you can buy an option to 

buy stock in IBM at $110. The higher the exercise price, the lower the value of the call 

option, as the stock price has to go up higher for you to be in the money. (Here, the value 

of the put option increases, as the stock price does not need to fall as low.) 

Volatility of underlying security. The option value increases if the volatility of the 

underlying stock increases. Let's compare similar options on a volatile Internet stock like 

eBay and a more steady stock like Wal-Mart. Say that the eBay stock price has been 

fluctuating from $70 to $130 in the last three months. Let's also say that Wal-Mart has 

been fluctuating from $90 to $110. Now let's compare call options with an exercise price 

of $100 and a time until expiration of three months. Although the average price for both 

stocks in the past three months has been $100, you would value the option to buy eBay 

stock more because there is a greater possibility that it will increase well above $100. 

(Perhaps eBay would rise to $130, rather than Wal-Mart's $110, if the previous three 

months were replicated.) The reason this potential upside increases the option's value is 

that the downside loss that you can incur is fixed! You have the "option" to exercise and 

not the obligation to buy at $100. No matter how low eBay's stock might go, the most you 

would lose is the cost of the option. Volatility increases the value of both call and put 

options. 

Time to expiration. The more time the holder has to exercise the option, the more 

valuable the option. This makes common sense. The further away the exercise date, there 

is more time for unpredictable things to happen and the range of likely stock price 

increases. Moreover, the more time the option holder has, the lower the present value of 

the exercise price (thus increasing the option value). Like volatility, time to expiration 

increases the value of both put and call options. 

Interest rates. If interest rates are higher, the exercise price has a lower present value. 

This also increases the value of the option. 

Dividends. A higher dividend rate policy of the company means that out of the total 

expected return on the stock, some is being delivered in the form of dividends. This 

means that the capital gain the stock can be expected to get will be lower, and the 

potential increase in stock price is lower. Hence, larger dividend payouts lower the call 

value. 

The following table summarizes the relationships between these factors and the value of 

options: 

If this variable increases The value of a call option 

Stock price Increases 
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Exercise price Decreases 

Volatility ?Increases 

Time to expiration ?Increases 

Interest rate ?Increases 

Dividend payouts ?Increases 

In the end, the price of an option, like any security, is determined by the market. However, 

as with the various valuation techniques for companies discussed previously, there are 

standard methods of pricing options, most prominently the Black-Scholes model. This 

model has essentially become the industry standard, and is a fairly good predictor of how 

the market prices options. 

Those interviewing for jobs as derivative traders should consult a finance textbook and 

understand the model in further detail, as interviewers for these position are bound to 

ask more detailed questions based on the Black-Scholes model and its application. 

Forwards, Futures and Swaps 

Other popular derivatives instruments include forwards, futures, and swaps. 

Forwards 

A forward contract is an agreement that calls for future delivery of an asset at an agreed-

upon price. Let's say a farmer grows a single crop, wheat. The revenue from the entire 

planting season depends critically on the highly volatile price of wheat. The farmer can't 

easily diversify his position because virtually his entire wealth is tied up in the crop. The 

miller who must purchase wheat for processing faces a portfolio problem that is a mirror 

image of the farmer's. He is subject to profit uncertainty because of the unpredictable 

future of the wheat price when the day comes for him to buy his wheat. 

Both parties can reduce their risk if they enter into a forward contract requiring the 

farmer to deliver the wheat at a previously agreed upon price, regardless of what the 

market price is at harvest time. No money needs to change hands at the time the 

agreement is made. A forward contract is simply a deferred delivery sale of some asset 

with an agreed-upon sales price. The contract is designed to protect each party from 

future price fluctuations. These forwards are generally used by large companies that deal 

with immense quantities of commodities, like Cargill or Archer Daniels Midland. 

Futures 

The futures contract is a type of forward that calls for the delivery of an asset or its cash 

value at a specified delivery or maturity date for an agreed upon price. This price is called 

the futures price, and is to be paid when the contract matures. The trader who commits 

to purchasing the commodity on the delivery date is said to be in the "long position." The 

trader who takes the "short position" commits to delivering the commodity when the 

contract matures. 
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Futures differ from other forwards in the fact that they are liquid, standardized, traded 

on an exchange, and their prices are settled at the end of each trading day (that is, the 

futures traders collect/pay their day's gains and losses at the end of each day). Futures 

are actively traded and liquid securities. For example, for agricultural commodities, the 

exchange sets allowable grades of a commodity (for example, No. 2 hard winter wheat or 

No. 1 soft red wheat). The place or means of delivery of the commodity is specified as 

issued by approved warehouses. The dates of delivery are also standardized. The prices 

of the major agricultural futures appear in The Wall Street Journal. Futures are also 

available on other commodities, like gold and oil. 

Swaps 

Another derivative, a swap, is a simple exchange of future cash flows. Some popular forms 

of swaps include foreign exchange swaps and interest rate swaps. Let's first examine 

foreign exchange swaps. 

Say Sun Microsystems outsources its software development to India on a regular basis. 

In such a situation, it would make payments to the firms in India in rupees, thus find itself 

exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuation risks. To hedge these exchange risks, Sun 

would want to enter into a foreign exchange swap - a predetermined exchange of 

currency - with another party. For example, Sun might want to swap $1.0 million for Rs 

40 million for each of the next five years. For instance, it could enter into a swap with the 

Birla Group in India, which has many expenses in U.S. dollars and is thus also subject to 

the same exchange rate fluctuation risk. By agreeing to a foreign exchange swap, both 

companies protect their business from exchange rate risks. 

Interest rate swaps work similarly. Consider a firm (Company A) that has issued bonds 

(which, remember, means essentially that it has taken loans) with a total par value of $10 

million at a fixed interest rate of 8%. By issuing the bonds, the firm is obligated to pay a 

fixed interest rate of $800,000 at the end of each year. In a situation like this, it can enter 

into an interest rate swap with another party (Company B), where Company A pays 

Company B the LIBOR rate (a floating, or variable, short-term interest rate measure) and 

Company B agrees to pay Company A the fixed rate. In such a case, Company A would 

receive $800,000 each year that it could use to make its loan payment. For its part, 

Company A would be obligated to pay $10 million x LIBOR each year to Company B. Hence 

Company A has swapped its fixed interest rate debt to a floating rate debt. (The company 

swaps rates with Company B, called the "counterparty." The counterparty gains because 

presumably it wants to swap its floating rate debt for fixed rate debt, thus "locking in" a 

fixed rate.) The chart below illustrates this swap. 
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Interview Questions 

 

1. When would you write a call option on Disney stock? 

When you expect the price of Disney stock to fall (or stay the same). Because a call option 

on a stock is a bet that the value of the stock will increase, you would be willing to "write" 

(sell) a call option on Disney stock to an investor if you believed Disney stock would not 

rise. (In this case, the profit you would make would be equal to the option premium you 

received when you sold the option.) 

2. Explain how a swap works. 

A swap is an exchange of future cash flows. The most popular forms include foreign 

exchange swaps and interest rate swaps. They are used to hedge volatile rates, such as 

currency exchange rates or interest rates. 

3. Say I hold a put option on Amazon.com stock with an exercise price of $250, the 

expiration date is today, and Amazon is trading at $220. About how much is my put worth, 

and why? 

Your put is worth about $30, because today, you can sell a share of stock for $250, and 

buy it for $220. (If the expiration date were in the future, the option would be more 

valuable, because the stock could conceivably drop more.) 

4. When would a trader seeking profit from a long-term possession of a future be in the 

"long position"? 

The trader in the long position is committed to buying a commodity on a delivery date. 

She would hold this position if she believes the commodity price will increase. 

5. All else being equal, which would be less valuable: a December put option on 

Amazon.com stock or a December put option on Bell Atlantic stock? 

The put option on Bell Atlantic should be less valuable. Amazon.com is a more volatile 

stock, and the more volatile the underlying asset, the more valuable the option. 

6. All else being equal, which would be more valuable: a December call option for eBay or 

a January call option for eBay? 

The January option: The later an option's expiration date, the more valuable the option. 

7. Why do interest rates matter when figuring the price of options? 

Because of the ever-important concept of net present value, higher interest rates lower 

the value of options. 
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8. If the strike price on a put option is below the current price, is the option holder at the 

money, in the money or out of the money? 

Because a put option gives the holder the right to sell a security at a certain price, the fact 

that the strike (or exercise) price is below the current price would mean that the option 

holder would lose money. Translate that knowledge into option lingo, and you know that 

the option holder is "out of the money." 

9. If the current price of a stock is above the strike price of a call option, is the option 

holder at the money, in the money, or out of the money? 

Because a call option gives the holder the right to buy a security, the holder in this 

scenario is "in the money" (making money). 

10. When would you buy a put option on General Mills stock? 

Because buying a put option gives you the option to sell the stock at a certain price, you 

would do this if you expect the price of General Mills stock to fall. 

MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS 

The Hot M&A World 

We have seemingly entered an age in which virtually every week, we are greeted with 

news of blockbuster, bigger-than-ever-before mergers like those between Mobil and 

Exxon and Deutsche Bank and Bankers Trust. In fact, the seven largest mergers ever - and 

eight of the largest 10 - were announced in 1998. Why are companies in industries 

ranging from telecommunications to financial services to retail looking to merge? 

Because of the much referred to "synergies" that theoretically result from a merger. 

Because of synergies, the combination of the two companies that merge are thought to be 

greater than the sum of the two independently. Examples of these synergies include: 

reductions in redundant workforce, and utilizing the technology and market share of the 

other party to the deal. Let's take a look at the major reasons for M&A activity. 

Why Merge? 

One important reason that a company might merge with another company is to gain 

footholds in new markets. In some cases, companies gain entry to new product markets, 

or add products complimentary to their business lines. For example, in the 

Salomon/Smith Barney merger, Salomon Brothers gained an immense brokerage army 

to hawk the bonds and stocks it underwrites. Smith Barney gained a leading investment 

bank that can originate financial products. Also, Salomon was a strong player in fixed 

income, while Smith Barney was stronger in equity. Merging to add new product lines is 

a strong reason for the big push in media/telecom mergers - as the telecommunications 

industry deregulates, telecom companies are looking for ways to put together Internet 

access and long distance service, local lines and cable access. 
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In other cases, companies merge to enter new geographic markets. Chrysler sells its cars 

almost exclusively in North America; Daimler-Benz is strong in Europe. Thus the two 

agree to combine and form DaimlerChrysler. 

Sometimes mergers are driven by the coveted brand recognition of the acquisition. For 

example, by acquiring US Robotics, 3Com added US Robotics' strong brand recognition in 

the modem industry. (That merger also added an important hardware strength to 3Com's 

drive to challenge Cisco as the computer networking leader.) 

In other cases, companies merge to consolidate operations, thus lowering costs and 

boosting profits (think "economies of scale"). Why pay for two legal departments, two PR 

departments, or two headquarters when you only need one? Moreover, if you can buy 

10,000 sheets of metal for less than you can buy 5,000, maybe you should merge with 

someone who would gain the same advantage. 

And sometimes, companies merge just to get bigger in a consolidating industry. In some 

industries, most notably banking and brokerage, executives believe that size is required 

in order to compete as the industry consolidates around a handful of major players. 

Why not Merge? 

While mergers are fun and exciting to talk about, the post-merger logistics aren't always 

as sexy. Did you know that more than one out of every five mergers does not achieve the 

synergies initially targeted? This isn't just because of poor implementation after the 

merger. Many mergers are simply ill-advised or involve a clash of corporate cultures. 

So why do they go through? One reason is that many mergers are also the result of 

management egos and the excitement generated in a merger mania market. For example, 

the recent Mobil/Exxon deal was constructed largely in private through the efforts of the 

CEOs of the two companies, Lucio Noto of Mobil and Lee Raymond of Exxon. (This is not 

to say that this merger will not work, but to simply note that it, like many mergers, was 

driven by the personalities and choices of individuals.) 

Another powerful force pushing mergers are the huge I-banking fees that the deals 

generate. Investment bankers are going to argue to their clients that the mergers are in 

their best interest because they are in fact in their (the bankers') best interest. Goldman 

Sachs and Credit Suisse First Boston both pocketed about $30 million from their advisory 

roles in the AT&T/TCI merger. Think they didn't have some incentive to be enthusiastic 

when talking about telecom/cable TV synergy? 

Stock Swaps vs Cash Offers 

Bankers and finance officials at companies have a couple of main options when they 

consider how to structure a merger: a stock swap or a cash deal. The most common type 

of deal these days is a stock swap - when the stock of one company is exchanged for the 

stock of another. Cash offers occur when one company pays cash for the stock of another. 
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The reason for the current reliance on stock swaps is the strong stock market, which 

makes it easier for a company with a high market capitalization to acquire companies. It 

can use its valuable stock, rather than cash, to merge with or acquire companies. 

According to Fortune magazine, 67% of the merger activity in 1998 was accomplished 

through stock, versus 33% through cash. In 1988, the ratio was only 7% stock to 93% 

cash. Of course, the volatility of the stock market can make stock swaps tricky. We should 

understand why many announced mergers become "pending" once the stock market 

crashes - the initial assumptions for valuing the companies are not true anymore when 

the market falls. Interestingly, when the market is good or bullish, the merger mania 

heightens! Even though valuations are inflated, the environment is optimistic and it looks 

like both companies made off well - the acquired company is given a very high market 

value, while the acquirer appears to have gained valuable assets. 

In a cash deal, shareholders must pay taxes when they receive the cash. The tax rate for 

their earnings is at the ordinary income marginal tax rate (your tax rate increases as the 

income bracket you are in goes higher), which is 39.6% for wealthy individuals. By 

contrast, in a stock swap, no taxes are paid at the time of the swap. But when the swapped 

stock is sold in the market, the shareholder must pay capital gains tax at a marginal tax 

rate of 20%. The U.S. government sets tax laws this way as a part of its fiscal strategy to 

regulate the amount of cash in the economy and to control factors like inflation. 

Type of 
Merger 

1988 1998 

Stock 7% 67% 

Cash 93% 33% 

Source: Fortune magazine 

Tender Offers 

Tender offers are associated with hostile takeovers. In a tender offer, the hostile acquirer 

renders a tender to the public in an attempt to gather a controlling interest in (majority 

ownership of) a company. For example, let's say Mr. T-Bone Pickins wants to take over 

Acme Internet Corp., and that Acme stock is trading at $20 per share. Say Pickins issues 

an advertisement to the public - usually through the newspaper, or sometimes through 

direct mail campaigns - that announces that he will buy Acme stock for $40 a share 

(double the going market price). If he can garner 51% of the stock outstanding through 

this method, he will also have gained controlling ownership of the stock. 

When a tender offer is issued, the share price generally shoots right up to offering price - 

in our example, to $40 per share. (If it didn't, I, as T-Bone Pickins, would simply buy from 

the market, rather than following though with the tender offer, wouldn't I? Or better still, 

if the stock price didn't rise, I, as John Doe investor, would simply buy from the market 

and sell to T-Bone.) 
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However, Pickins doesn't have to buy all the stock offered to him through a tender offer. 

If he receives offers for more than 75% of the stock and doesn't want to buy more than 

51%, he can buy 2/3 of the stock that each shareholder offers him. For example, if you 

were an Acme shareholder interested in T-Bone's offer, and were willing to sell him your 

1,000 shares, he would only buy 2/3 of your stock (666 shares) for $40 and the other 1/3 

for $20. (The consequence of this, of course, is that you would only sell him 2/3 of your 

shares.) Also, because he has made a tender offer, if Pickins does not receive offers to buy 

51% at his price, he does not have to purchase the shares offered to him. 

Why would anyone offer $40 a share to buy a company that the market valued at only 

$20 a share? Basically, if they believe they can do substantially better with the company 

than current management - whether because of expected synergies with companies they 

already own, a belief that the company is inefficient and mismanaged, a belief the 

company is worth more in parts than as a whole, or any other reason they believe the 

company's inherent assets to be substantially more valuable than its current market 

value. (All the reasons together result in the "control premium," or the premium over the 

current value.) 

Of course, the target company can defend itself. Say Acme's management hires 

Wasserstein Purella to make a counter bid to prevent a hostile takeover and offers 

another tender at a even higher price. Sometimes this leads to an auction situation (the 

famous RJR Nabisco case is an example of an escalating auction, although no tenders were 

involved there). 

Mergers vs Acquisitions 

The terms "merger" and "acquisition" are often used loosely and interchangeably. For 

example, a bit of tension arose in the recent Bankers Trust/Deutsche Bank deal when 

Deutsche Bank officials became irked at Bankers Trust execs' continual referral to the 

deal as a merger when it was in fact an acquisition. When two companies of relatively 

equal size decide to combine forces, it is usually referred to as a "merger of equals." 

Examples of this type of deal are the recent BP/Amoco merger, or the Morgan 

Stanley/Dean Witter, Travelers Group/Citibank, and Daimler-Benz/Chrysler mergers. On 

the other hand, if one company buys out another, the deal is considered a purchase or 

acquisition. Examples of this include AOL's acquisition of Netscape or Nortel's acquisition 

of Bay Networks. 

Despite this sometimes loose definition of how we normally categorize mergers and 

acquisitions, there are real legal and accounting differences between the two - which, it 

ends up, basically depend on the method used for the transaction (stock swap, etc. as 

discussed above). 

Whether a deal is a "merger" or an "acquisition" determines the taxes paid because of the 

combination. Whenever there is a combination of two firms, the financial statements of 

the two firms need to be combined. These can be combined using either "pooling" or 
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"purchase" accounting. Whether a combination can be accounted using "pooling" 

methods depends on a complex list of rules. (In the U.S., these rules are FASB rules, 

referred to as fas-B rules. Although the U.S. is trying to impose FASB regulations 

worldwide, it is facing stiff opposition.) The simplest, most general way to explain these 

rules is that if the deal is a stock-for-stock deal, it can be accounted using pooling 

accounting. If the deal involves a considerable amount of cash (traded for the stock of a 

company), it must to be accounted using purchase accounting. 

We love pooling Accounting 

Investment bankers and the finance departments of merging companies always prefer to 

use pooling accounting rather than purchase accounting. Why? Because there is no 

"Goodwill" when one accounts for a merger using pooling techniques. "Goodwill" is an 

account that represents some of the intangible assets a company may have. (Other 

intangible assets include patents and copyrights.) For example, the public image of a 

company, and the financial value that image adds, is included in Goodwill. If a company is 

considered sexy and desirable (say a company like Mercedes-Benz or Coca-Cola), an 

acquirer of the company may be willing to pay for this image (which presumably 

translates into sales). 

To define the Goodwill created during a purchase accounting merger more strictly, we 

can say that it is the price paid over the Net Market Value of the assets of the company 

being acquired. 

 

The reason those involved in an M&A deal would rather not account for Goodwill is that 
the Goodwill account, like all others, must be amortized and be recorded as an 
amortization expense. This cuts into the projected future earnings of the firm and thereby 
the market valuation (as determined by P/E multiples). In order to avoid creating a 
Goodwill account, investment bankers and M&A accountants are always on the lookout 
for loopholes that will allow them to use pooling accounting instead of purchase 
accounting. 

Let's take a look at an example to illustrate the difference between pooling and purchase 

accounting. Here, Company P is acquiring Company S. In our example, Company P swaps 

250 of its shares for all 500 Shares of S. Just before the swap, Company P's Shares have a 

Market Value of $1.50 per share. Here's an overview: 

 Company P Company S Book Company S Market 

Assets 700 350 450 

Liabilities 300 150 100 
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Common Stock 150 75 ? 

Retained 250 125 ? 

Earnings    
 

Purchase accounting 

If this deal would be accounted using purchase accounting, the acquisition price is the 

amount of stock given multiplied by its price, or 250 x $1.50 = $375. But the Net Market 

Value of Company S's assets is only $350. The difference ($25) is considered Goodwill. 

 

 

 

On the Balance Sheet of the combined company, the Market Value of Company S's assets 

and liabilities will be added to the Book Value of P's assets and liabilities. (S's assets and 

liabilities are said to be "stepped up to market" value. The final Balance Sheet of the 

merged company looks like: 

 

The $25 in Goodwill will be amortized over a period of time and will show up in the 

Income Statement as Depreciation and Amortization and thereby reduce the combined 

company's earnings. 

Pooling accounting 

If this deal were done through pooling accounting, the purchase price would be 

accounted as the Book Value of S's Net Assets, or $350 - $150 = $200. Also, there would 

be no Goodwill generated, and the Assets and Liabilities would be recorded at Book 

Value. 
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The final Balance Sheet of the combined company would look like: 

 

Will that be cash or stock? 

The choice of whether to make a cash deal or stock swap depends largely on the tax 

factors discussed above. However, it can also depend on other factors. For example, if the 

stockholders of the company being acquired value the stock of their acquirer and believe 

that the merged company will be a long-term industry leader (and is thus a company 

whose stock they would like to receive), they will push for a stock swap. On the other 

hand, the volatility of the stock market must also be considered; if the market is behaving 

like a roller coaster, a company's board of directors and shareholders may feel they 

cannot stomach a stock swap, and opt for a cash deal. Another factor that may come into 

play is how soon an acquired company will receive cash in a cash deal, and how badly it 

needs the cash. If we remember our discussion of net present value, we know that cash 

today is worth more than cash tomorrow. 

Accretive vs. Dilutive Mergers 

A merger can be either accretive or dilutive. A merger is accretive when the acquiring 

company's earnings per share will increase after the merger. A merger is dilutive when 

the acquiring company's earnings will fall after a merger. 

Let's take a look at an example. Say a shoe company, Big Gun wants to acquire a fast 

growing competitor, Ubershoe. Also suppose that Big Gun's earnings are $10 million, that 

it has 1 million outstanding shares (and thus has earnings of $10 per share), and that 

Ubershoe's earnings are $2 million. 

Whether the acquisition will be accretive or dilutive depends on the amount Big Gun will 

pay for Ubershoe. Say that Big Gun agrees to a stock swap in which it issues 500,000 

shares which it will trade for all of Ubershoe's shares. The combined company will have 

1.5 million shares and $12 million in earnings. The new earnings per share are $8 per 

share. This deal is dilutive to Big Gun's earnings. 

But say that the terms of the acquisition are different, and Big Gun agrees to issue 100,000 

new shares of stock instead of 500,000. The combined company will have $12 million in 

earnings and 1.1 million shares, or earnings of $10.91 per share. This deal is accretive to 

Big Gun's earnings. 
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Figuring out whether a merger is accretive or dilutive can be done by actually adding up 

the companies' earnings and shares (as we have done in this case), but an easier way is 

to use the companies' price to earnings ratios (P/Es). The rule is this: When a company 

with a higher price to earnings ratio (we'll call the company "Company 1," and label it's 

P/E ratio "P/E1") acquires a firm, "Company 2" of a lower P/E ratio (which we will label 

P/E2), it is an accretive merger. 

If Company 1 acquires Company 2 

Price to Earnings 

Relationship 

Merger Type 

P/E1> P/E2 Accretive 

P/E1< P/E2 Dilutive 
 

Interview Questions 

1. Describe a recent M&A transaction that you've read about. 

If you are preparing for an I-banking interview, this is a must prepare question. Read the 

papers and have at least one transaction thoroughly prepared. You should be able to 

cover various aspects of the transactions. You should know what the structure of the 

transaction was. Who was buying whom, or was it a merger of equals? Was it an all-stock 

transaction or was there cash involved? 

For example, you could talk about America Online's acquisition of Netscape. In that 

transaction, a stock swap valued at $4.2 billion, AOL acquired Netscape. You should talk 

about how the acquisition was structured from a financial point of view, and the effect 

the acquisition is likely to have on AOL's earnings (both short-term and long-term). 

2. What were the reasons behind that transaction? Does that transaction make sense? 

Perhaps more important than understanding the nuts and bolts mechanics of 

transactions is understanding the factors that drive M&A activity. The America 

Online/Netscape deal is especially interesting in this regard because it involves heavy 

strategic planning in a fast-moving industry (as opposed to, say, the merger between 

Mobil and Exxon, through which the two giants simply hope to consolidate, save, and 

boost profits). 

America Online is a content-driven company with more than 16 million subscribers. 

Netscape has popular software, in the form of a popular browser and tools for businesses 

to pursue e-commerce. However, Netscape has seen its browser market share fall as 

Microsoft, with its immense distribution strength (and questionable pairing of browser 

with operating system) has elbowed its way into the category. And despite America 

Online's undisputed lead in market share as an Internet service provider, it had not 



105 | P a g e  
 

moved aggressively into what many consider to be the golden road of the Internet e-

commerce. 

This deal partners AOL and Netscape with Sun Microsystems, which is a hardware 

company that boasts strong hardware products and sales and support staff. The partners 

envision a world in which companies use the e-commerce tools developed by Netscape, 

hawk their wares on America Online (lured by the audience AOL can deliver), and are 

supported in their hardware and service needs by Sun. Synergy for the 21st century. 

Again, your interviewer will expect you to discuss both the financial structure of a deal, 

its impact on earnings, as well as its strategic drivers. 

3. Do you know whether most mergers are stock swaps or cash transactions and why? 

These days, most mergers are stock swaps, largely because the stock prices of companies 

are so high. In addition, stock swaps generally permit the acquirer to use pooling 

accounting to account for the merger. 

4. When can you use pooling accounting? 

Most generally, when a transaction is legally a merger, or a stock swap. 

5. What is a dilutive merger? 

A merger in which the acquiring company's earnings per share decreases as a result of 

the merger. Also remember the P/E rule: A dilutive merger happens when a company 

with a lower P/E ratio acquires a company with a higher P/E ratio. 

6. What is an accretive merger? 

The type of merger in which the acquiring company's earnings per share increase. With 

regard to P/E ratio, this happens when a company with a higher P/E ratio acquires a 

company with a lower P/E ratio. The acquiring company's earnings per share should rise 

following the merger. 

7. Company A is considering acquiring Company B. Company A's P/E ratio is 55 times 

earnings, whereas Company B's P/E ratio is 30 times earnings. After Company A acquires 

Company B, will Company A's earnings per share rise, fall, or stay the same? 

Company A's earnings per share will rise, because of the following rule: When a higher 

P/E company buys a lower P/E company, the acquirer's earnings-per-share will rise. The 

deal is said to be "accretive," as opposed to "dilutive," to the acquirer's earnings. 

8. Can you name two companies that you think should merge? 

Identifying "synergies" between two companies is only part of correctly answering this 

question. You also need to ensure that the merger will not raise antitrust issues with FTC. 

For example, you could say that Apple and Microsoft should merge, but the combined 
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company will have an unfair monopoly on the operating system market and the FTC will 

not approve the merger. Moreover, the top people running the two companies don't like 

each other and would not want to merge! 

9. What is a hostile tender offer? 

If company A wants to acquire company B, but company B refuses, company A can "issue 

a tender offering." In this offer, company A will take advertisements in major newspapers 

like The Wall Street Journal to buy stock in company B at a price much above the market 

price. If company A is able to get more than 50% of the stock that way, it can officially run 

and make all major decisions for company B – including firing the top management. This 

is something of a simplistic view; there are scores of rules and regulations from the SEC 

governing such activity. 

10. What is a leveraged buyout? How is it different than a merger? 

A leveraged buyout occurs when a group, by refinancing a company with debt, is able to 

increase the valuation of the company. LBOs are typically accomplished by either 

financial groups such as KKR or company management, whereas M&A deals are led by 

companies in the industry. 

11. If Company A buys Company B, what will the Balance Sheet of the combined company 

look like? 

In this accounting, simply add each line item on the Balance Sheet. 

Guesstimates 

Perhaps even more so than tough finance questions, brainteasers and guesstimates can 

unnerve the most icy-veined, well-prepared finance candidate. Even if you know the 

relationships between inflation, bond prices and interest rates like the back of a dollar 

bill, all your studying may not help you when your interviewer asks you how many ping 

pong balls fit in a 747. 

That is partly their purpose. Investment bankers and other finance professionals need to 

be able to work well under pressure, so many interviewers believe that throwing a 

brainteaser or guesstimate at a candidate is a good way to test an applicant's battle-

worthiness. But these questions serve another purpose, too – interviewers want you to 

showcase your ability to analyze a situation, and to form conclusions about this situation. 

It is not usually important that you come up with a "correct" answer, just that you display 

strong analytical ability 

Acing guesstimates 

We'll start by discussing guesstimates, for which candidates are asked to come up with a 

figure, usually the size of a market or the number of objects in an area. Although 

guesstimates are more commonly given in interviews for consulting positions, they do 
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pop up in finance interviews as well. Also, they are a good way to begin preparing for 

stress questions in finance interviews, as they force candidates to think aloud – precisely 

what interviewers want to see. This is the most important thing to remember about 

brainteasers, guesstimates, or even simple math questions that are designed to be 

stressful: Let your interviewer see how your mind works. 

The best approach for a guesstimate question is to think of a funnel. You begin by thinking 

broadly, then slowly narrowing down the situation towards the answer. Let's look at this 

approach in context. Let's go back to the question of how many ping pong balls fit in a 

747. The first thing you need to determine is the volume of the ping pong ball. 

For any guesstimate or brainteaser question, you will need to understand whether your 

interviewer will be providing any direction or whether you will have to make 

assumptions. Therefore, begin the analysis of a guesstimate or brainteaser question with 

a question to your interviewer, such as, "What is the volume of a single ping pong ball?" 

If the interviewer does not know or refuses to provide any answer, then you will know 

that you must assume the answer. If they do provide the information, then your approach 

will be a series of questions. For this example let's assume your interviewer wants you to 

make the assumptions. Your verbal dialogue might go something like this: 

"Let's assume that the volume of a ping pong ball is three cubic inches. Now let's assume 

that all the seats in the plane are removed. I know that an average refrigerator is about 

23 cubic feet, and you could probably fit two average people in the space occupied by that 

refrigerator, so let's say that the volume of an average person is 12 cubic feet, or 144 

cubic inches. 

Okay, so a 747 has about 400 seats in it, excluding the galleys, lavatories, and aisles on 

the lower deck and about 25 seats on the upper deck. Let's assume there are three galleys, 

14 lavatories, and three aisles (two on the lower deck and one on the upper deck) and 

that the space occupied by the galleys is a six-person equivalent, by the lavatories is a 

two-person equivalent, and the aisles are a 50-person equivalent on the lower deck and 

a 20-person equivalent on the upper deck. That's an additional 18, 28, and 120 person-

volumes for the remaining space. We won't include the cockpit since someone has to fly 

the plane. So there are about 600 person-equivalents available. 

In addition to the human volume, we have to take into account all the cargo and extra 

space – the belly holds, the overhead luggage compartments, and the space over the 

passengers' heads. Let's assume the plane holds four times the amount of extra space as 

it does people, so that would mean extra space is 2,400 person-equivalents in volume. 

(Obviously, this assumption is the most important factor in this guesstimate. Remember 

that it's not important that this assumption be correct, just that you know the assumption 

should be made.) 

Therefore, in total we have 3,000 (or 600 + 2,400) person-equivalents in volume 

available. Three thousand x 11,728 cubic inches means we have 5,184,000 cubic inches 
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of space available (we can round to 5.2 million). At three cubic inches per ball, a 747 could 

hold about 1.7 million balls. However, spheres do not fit perfectly together. Eliminate a 

certain percentage - spheres lose about 30 percent when packed - and cut your answer 

to about 1.2 million. 

You might be wondering how you would calculate all these numbers in your head! No 

one expects you to be a human calculator, so you should be writing down these numbers 

as you develop them. Then you can do the math on paper, in front of the interviewer, 

which will further demonstrate your analytical abilities. 

You choose the numbers, so pick nice round numbers that are easy for you to manipulate. 

Even if you just read a study that states that there are 270 million people in the United 

States, no interviewer will flinch if you estimate the number of Americans as 300 million. 

Note: The extra step 

Don't forget to add the "extra step" that often pop into guesstimates. In our previous 

example, this step involved reducing our estimate of ping pong balls because spheres do 

not pack perfectly together. If you're trying to figure out how many blocks there are in 

New York City, remember to eliminate blocks covered by Central Park (and other parks). 

If you're determining the number of black cars in the United States, once you've estimated 

the number of cars in America, make sure you estimate what percentage of them are 

black. 

Brainteasers 

Now we'll turn our attention to brainteasers, which are often used in finance interviews. 

Some of these, like the legendary "Why is the manhole round?" question which reportedly 

originated at Microsoft, have no definite answer. Others do have answers, but even with 

these, interviewers are more interested in assessing creativity, composure, and your 

ability to deconstruct a problem and ask directed and relevant questions. 

Remember, brainteasers are very unstructured, so it is tough to suggest a step-by-step 

methodology as we can with guesstimates. There are a couple of set rules, though. First, 

take notes as your interviewer gives you a brainteaser, especially if it's heavy on the math. 

Second, think aloud so your interviewer can hear your thought process. This may seem 

unnatural at first; the examples at the end of this chapter will show you how to logically 

attack these questions, and how you should vocalize your analysis. 

Quick what’s 2+2 

In addition to the riddle-type brainteasers, finance interviewers will often throw out 

simple mathematical questions designed to see how quick thinking you are. The math 

questions are most often given to analyst applicants. The best way to prepare for these 

(other than to find out which of these questions are most common, which we've happily 
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done for you), is simply to know that you might get one of them. That way, if you do, you 

won't be quite as surprised or unprepared. 

Interview Questions 

1. How many gallons of white house paint are sold in the U.S. every year? 

THE "START BIG" APPROACH: If you're not sure where to begin, start with the basic 

assumption that there are 270 million people in the U.S. (or 25 million businesses, 

depending on the question). If there are 270 million people in the United States, perhaps 

half of them live in houses (or 135 million people). The average family size is about three 

people, so there would be 45 million houses in the United States. Let's add another 10 

percent to that for second houses and houses used for other purposes besides residential. 

So there are about 50 million houses. 

If houses are painted every 10 years, on average (notice how we deftly make that number 

easy to work with), then there are 5 million houses painted every year. Assuming that 

one gallon of paint covers 100 square feet of wall, and that the average house has 2,000 

square feet of wall to cover, then each house needs 20 gallons of paint. So 100 million 

gallons of paint are sold per year (5 million houses x 20 gallons). (Note: If you want to be 

fancy, you can ask your interviewer whether you should include inner walls as well!) If 

80 percent of all houses are white, then 80 million gallons of white house paint are sold 

each year. (Don't forget that last step!) 

THE "START SMALL" APPROACH: You could also start small, and take a town of 27,000 

(about 1/10,000 of the population). If you use the same assumption that half the town 

lives in houses in groups of three, then there are 4,500 houses, plus another 10 percent, 

then there are really 5,000 houses to worry about. Painted every 10 years, 500 houses 

are being painted in any given year. If each house has 2,000 square feet of wall, and each 

gallon of paint covers 100 square feet, then each house needs 20 gallons - and so 10,000 

gallons of house paint are sold each year in your typical town. Perhaps 8,000 of those are 

white. Multiply by 10,000 - you have 80 million gallons. 

Your interviewer may then ask you how you would actually get that number, on the job, 

if necessary. Use your creativity - contacting major paint producers would be smart, 

putting in a call to HUD's statistics arm could help, or even conducting a small sample of 

the second calculation in a few representative towns is possible 

2. What is the size of the market for disposable diapers in China? 

Here's a good example of a market sizing. How many people live in China? A billion. 

Because the population of China is young, a full 600 million of those inhabitants might be 

of child-bearing age. Half are women, so there are about 300 million Chinese women of 

childbearing age. Now, the average family size in China is restricted, so it might be 1.5 

children, on average, per family. Let's say two-thirds of Chinese women have children. 

That means that there are about 200 million children in China. How many of those kids 
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are under the age of two? About a tenth, or 20 million. So there are at least 20 million 

possible consumers of disposable diapers. 

To summarize: 

1 billion people x 60% childbearing age = 600,000,000 people 

600,000,000 people x 1/2 are women = 300,000,000 women of childbearing age 

300,000,000 women x 2/3 have children = 200,000,000 women with children 

200,000,000 women x 1.5 children each = 300,000,000 children 

300,000,000 children x 1/10 under age 2 = 30 million 

3. How many square feet of pizza are eaten in the United States each month? 

Take your figure of 300 million people in America. How many people eat pizza? Let's say 

200 million. Now let's say the average pizza-eating person eats pizza twice a month, and 

eats two slices at a time. That's four slices a month. If the average slice of pizza is perhaps 

six inches at the base and 10 inches long, then the slice is 30 square inches of pizza. So 

four pizza slices would be 120 square inches. Therefore, there are a billion square feet of 

pizza eaten every month. 

To summarize: 

300 million people in America 

200 million eat pizza 

Average slice of pizza is six inches at the base and 10 inches long = 30 square inches 

(height half the base) 

Average American eats four slices of pizza a month 

Four pieces x 30 square inches = 120 square inches (one square foot is 144 inches), so 

let's assume one square foot per person 

200 million square feet a month 

4. How would you estimate the weight of the Chrysler building? 

This is a process guesstimate - the interviewer wants to know if you know what questions 

to ask. First, you would find out the dimensions of the building (height, weight, depth). 

This will allow you to determine the volume of the building. Does it taper at the top? (Yes.) 

Then, you need to estimate the composition of the Chrysler building. Is it mostly steel? 

Concrete? How much would those components weigh per square inch? Remember the 

extra step - find out whether you're considering the building totally empty or with office 
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furniture, people, etc.? (If you're including the contents, you might have to add 20 percent 

or so to the building's weight.) 

5. Why are manhole covers round? 

The classic brainteaser, straight to you via Microsoft (the originator). Even though this 

question has been around for years, interviewees still encounter it. 

Here's how to "solve" this brainteaser. Remember to speak and reason out loud while 

solving this brainteaser! 

Why are manhole covers round? Could there be a structural reason? Why aren't manhole 

covers square? It would make it harder to fit with a cover. You'd have to rotate it exactly 

the right way. So many manhole covers are round because they don't need to be rotated. 

There are no corners to deal with. Also, a round manhole cover won't fall into a hole 

because it was rotated the wrong way, so it's safer. 

Looking at this, it seems corners are a problem. You can't cut yourself on a round manhole 

cover. And because its round, it can be more easily transported. One person can roll it. 

6. If you look at a clock and the time is 3:15, what is the angle between the hour hand the 

minute hands? 

The answer to this is not zero! The hour hand, remember, moves as well. The hour hand 

moves a quarter of the way between three and four, so it moves a quarter of a twelfth 

(1/48) of 360 degrees. So the answer is seven and a half degrees, to be exact. 

7. You have a five-gallon jug and a three-gallon jug. You must obtain exactly four gallons 

of water. How will you do it? 

You should find this brainteaser fairly simple. If you were to think out loud, you might 

begin by examining the ways in which combinations of five and three can come up to be 

four. For example: (5 - 3) + (5 - 3) = 4. This path does not actually lead to the right answer, 

but it is a fruitful way to begin thinking about the question. Here's the solution: fill the 

three-gallon jug with water and pour it into the five-gallon jug. Repeat. Because you can 

only put two more gallons into the five-gallon jug, one gallon will be left over in the three-

gallon jug. Empty out the five-gallon jug and pour in the one gallon. Now just fill the three-

gallon jug again and pour it into the five-gallon jug. Ta-da. (Mathematically, this can be 

represented 3 + 3 - 5 + 3 = 4) 

8. You have 12 balls. All of them are identical except one, which is either heavier or lighter 

than the rest. The odd ball is either hollow while the rest are solid, or solid while the rest 

are hollow. You have a scale, and are permitted three weighings. Can you identify the odd 

ball, and determine whether it is hollow or solid? 
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This is a pretty complex question, and there are actually multiple solutions. First, we'll 

examine what thought processes an interviewer is looking for, and then we'll discuss one 

solution. 

Start with the simplest of observations. The number of balls you weigh against each other 

must be equal. Yeah, it's obvious, but why? Because if you weigh, say three balls against 

five, you are not receiving any information. In a problem like this, you are trying to 

receive as much information as possible with each weighing. 

For example, one of the first mistakes people make when examining this problem is that 

they believe the first weighing should involve all of the balls (six against six). This 

weighing involves all of the balls, but what type of information does this give you? It 

actually gives you no new information. You already know that one of the sides will be 

heavier than the other, and by weighing six against six, you will simply confirm this 

knowledge. Still, you want to gain information about as many balls as possible (so 

weighing one against one is obviously not a good idea). Thus the best first weighing is 

four against four. 

Secondly, if you think through this problem long enough, you will realize how precious 

the information gained from a weighing is: You need to transfer virtually every piece of 

information you have gained from one weighing to the next. Say you weigh four against 

four, and the scale balances. Lucky you! Now you know that the odd ball is one of the 

unweighted four. But don't give into the impulse to simply work with those balls. In this 

weighing, you've also learned that the eight balls on the scale are normal. Try to use this 

information. 

Finally, remember to use your creativity. Most people who work through this problem 

consider only weighing a number of balls against each other, and then taking another set 

and weighing them, etc. This won't do. There are a number of other types of moves you 

can make - you can rotate the balls from one scale to another, you can switch the balls, 

etc. 

For simplicity's sake, we will refer to one side of the scale as Side A, and the other as 

Side B. 

Step 1: Weigh four balls against four others. 

Case A: If, on the first weighing, the balls balance 

If the balls in our first weighing balance we know the odd ball is one of those not weighed, 

but we don't know whether it is heavy or light. How can we gain this information easily? 

We can weigh them against the balls we know to be normal. So: 

Step 2 (for Case A): Put three of the unweighed balls on the Side A; put three balls that 

are known to be normal on Side B. 
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I. If on this second weighing, the scale balances again, we know that the final unweighed 

ball is the odd one. 

Step 3a (for Case A): Weigh the final unweighed ball (the odd one) against one of the 

normal balls. With this weighing, we determine whether the odd ball is heavy or light. 

II. If on this second weighing, the scale tips to Side A, we know that the odd ball is heavy. 

(If it tips to Side B, we know the odd ball is light, but let's proceed with the assumption 

that the odd ball is heavy.) We also know that the odd ball is one of the group of three on 

Side A. 

Step 3b (for Case A): Weigh one of the balls from the group of three against another one. 

If the scale balances, the ball from the group of three that was unweighed is the odd ball, 

and is heavy. If the scale tilts, we can identify the odd ball, because we know it is heavier 

than the other. (If the scale had tipped to Side B, we would use the same logical process, 

using the knowledge that the odd ball is light.) 

Case B: If the balls do not balance on the first weighing 

If the balls do not balance on the first weighing, we know that the odd ball is one of the 

eight balls that was weighed. We also know that the group of four unweighed balls are 

normal, and that one of the sides, let's say Side A, is heavier than the other (although we 

don't know whether the odd ball is heavy or light). 

Step 2 (for Case B): Take three balls from the unweighed group and use them to replace 

three balls on Side A (the heavy side). Take the three balls from Side A and use them to 

replace three balls on Side B (which are removed from the scale). 

I. If the scale balances, we know that one of the balls removed from the scale was the odd 

one. In this case, we know that the ball is also light. We can proceed with the third 

weighing as described in step 3b from Case A. 

II. If the scale tilts to the other side, so that Side B is now the heavy side, we know that 

one of the three balls moved from Side A to Side B is the odd ball, and that it is heavy. We 

proceed with the third weighing as described in step 3b in Case A. 

III. If the scale remains the same, we know that one of the two balls on the scale that was 

not shifted in our second weighing is the odd ball. We also know that the unmoved ball 

from Side A is heavier than the unmoved ball on Side B (though we don't know whether 

the odd ball is heavy or light). 

Step 3 (for Case B): Weigh the ball from Side A against a normal ball. If the scale balances, 

the ball from Side B is the odd one, and is light. If the scale does not balance, the ball from 

Side A is the odd one, and is heavy. 

Whew! As you can see from this solution, one of the keys to this problem is understanding 

that information can be gained about balls even if they are not being weighed. For 
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example, if we know that one of the balls of two groups that are being weighed is the odd 

ball, we know that the unweighed balls are normal. Once this is known, we realize that 

breaking the balls up into smaller and smaller groups of three (usually eventually down 

to three balls), is a good strategy - and an ultimately successful one. 

9. You are faced with two doors. One door leads to your job offer (that's the one you 

want!), and the other leads to the exit. In front of each door is a guard. One guard always 

tells the truth. The other always lies. You can ask one question to decide which door is 

the correct one. What will you ask? 

The way to logically attack this question is to ask how you can construct a question that 

provides the same answer (either a true statement or a lie), no matter who you ask. 

There are two simple answers. Ask a guard: "If I were to ask you if this door were the 

correct one, what would you say?" The truthful consultant would answer yes (if it's the 

correct one), or no (if it's not). Now take the lying consultant. If you asked the liar if the 

correct door is the right way, he would answer no. But if you ask him: "If I were to ask 

you if this door were the correct one, what would you say," he would be forced to lie about 

how he would answer, and say yes. Alternately, ask a guard: "If I were to ask the other 

guard which way is correct, what would he say?" Here, the truthful guard would tell you 

the wrong way (because he is truthfully reporting what the liar would say), while the 

lying guard would also tell you the wrong way (because he is lying about what the truthful 

guard would say). 

If you want to think of this question more mathematically, think of lying as represented 

by -1, and telling the truth as represented by +1. The first solution provides you with a 

consistently truthful answer because (-1)(-1) = 1, while (1)(1) = 1. The second solution 

provides you with a consistently false answer because (1)(-1) = -1, and (-1)(1) = -1. 

10. A company has 10 machines that produce gold coins. One of the machines is producing 

coins that are a gram light. How do you tell which machine is making the defective coins 

with only one weighing? 

Think this through - clearly, every machine will have to produce a sample coin or coins, 

and you must weigh all these coins together. How can you somehow indicate which coins 

came from which machine? The best way to do it is to have every machine crank a 

different number of coins, so that machine 1 will make one coin, machine 2 will make two 

coins, and so on. Take all the coins, weigh them together, and consider their weight 

against the total theoretical weight. If you're four grams short, for example, you'll know 

that machine 4 is defective. 

11. The four members of U2 (Bono, the Edge, Larry and Adam) need to get across a 

narrow bridge to play a concert. Since it's dark, a flashlight is required to cross, but the 

band has only one flashlight, and only two people can cross the bridge at a time. (This is 

not to say, of course, that if one of the members of the band has crossed the bridge, he 
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can't come back by himself with the flashlight.) Adam takes only a minute to get across, 

Larry takes two minutes, the Edge takes five minutes, and slowpoke Bono takes 10 

minutes. A pair can only go as fast as the slowest member. They have 17 minutes to get 

across. How should they do it? 

The key to attacking this question is to understand that Bono and the Edge are major 

liabilities and must be grouped together. In other words, if you sent them across 

separately, you'd already be using 15 minutes. This won't do. What does this mean? That 

Bono and the Edge must go across together. But they cannot be the first pair (or one of 

them will have to transport the flashlight back). 

Instead, you send Larry and Adam over first, taking two mtes. Adam comes back, taking 

another minute, for a total of three minutes. Bono and the Edge then go over, taking 10 

minutes, and bringing the total to 13. Larry comes back, taking another two minutes, for 

a total of 15. Adam and Larry go back over, bringing the total time to 17 minutes. 

12. What is the decimal equivalent of 3/16 and 7/16? 

A commonly-used Wall Street interview question, this one isn't just an attempt to stress 

you out or see how quick your mind works. This question also has practical banking 

applications. Stocks often are traded at prices reported in 1/16s of a dollar. (Each 1/16 = 

.0625, so 3/16 =.1875 and 7/16 = .4375). 

13. What is the sum of the numbers from one to 50? 

Another question that recent analyst hires often report receiving. This is a relatively easy 

one: pair up the numbers into groups of 51 (1 + 50 = 51; 2 + 49 = 51; etc.). Twenty-five 

pairs of 51 equals 1275. 

14. You have a painting that is $320 that is selling for 20 percent off. How much is the 

discounted price? 

Calculate quickly: What's 80 percent of $320? The answer's $256. Even in a question like 

this, if you are good with numbers and use shortcuts, don't be afraid to talk aloud. For 

example: 80 percent of $320 can be broken down to a calculation like 80 percent of $80 

x $4, or 162. 

15. You're playing three-card monte. Two cards are red, one is black. (Note: In three-card 

monte, the three cards are face down and you try to pick the black card in order to win.) 

You pick the middle card. After you pick, the dealer shows that one of the cards you have 

not chosen is red. You are given the chance to switch your selection. Should you? 

The short answer is yes. By switching, you are betting that the card you initially chose 

was red. By not switching, you are betting that the card you initially chose was black. And 

because two out of three cards are red, of course, betting on red is the way to go. 
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Let's break it down, starting with the not switching case. Say the first card you chose was 

the black one. This happens one-third of the time. If you do not switch your choice, you 

win. Needless to say, the other two-thirds of the time, having picked a red card, and 

deciding not to switch, you lose. In other words, if you do not switch, you win a third of 

the time. 

Now let's examine what happens when you switch cards. Say the first card you chose was 

the black one. Again, this would happen one-third of the time. If, after being shown a red 

card, you switch, you lose. The other two-thirds of the time, if you switch, you win because 

the dealer has already shown you that one of the cards you did not pick is red. Given the 

premise that your original pick was a red card, the card you are switching to must be the 

black one. You will win two-thirds of the time. 

16. A straight flush beats a four-of-a-kind in poker because it is more unlikely. But think 

about how many straight flushes there are - if you don't count wraparound straights, you 

can have a straight flush starting on any card from two to 10 in any suit (nine per suit). 

That means there are 36 straight flushes possible. But how many four of a kinds are there 

- only 13. What's wrong with this reasoning? 

Immediately, you should think about what the difference is between a straight flush and 

a four-of-a-kind. One involves five cards, and the other involves four. Intuitively, that's 

what should strike you as the problem with the line of reasoning. Look closer and you'll 

see what that means: for every four of a kind, there are actually a whole bunch of five-

card hands: 48 (52 - 4) in fact. There are actually 624 (48 x 13) of them in all. 

17. If you have seven white socks and nine black socks in a drawer, how many do you 

have to pull out blindly in order to ensure that you have a matching pair? 

Three. Let's see - if the first one is one color, and the second one is the other color, the 

third one, no matter what the color, will make a matching pair. Sometimes you're not 

supposed to think that hard 

18. Tell me a good joke that is neither sexist nor racist. 

If you can't think of any, you're in the same boat as the unfortunately tongue-tied recent 

candidate at Salomon Smith Barney. Find one and remember it. 

19. If I were to fill this room with pennies, how many pennies would fit 

in? A literally in-your-face guesstimate. 

20. Say you are driving on a one-mile track. You do one lap at 30 miles an hour. How fast 

do you have to go to average 60 miles an hour? 

This is something of a trick question, and was recently received by a Goldman candidate. 

The first thought of many people is to say 90 miles an hour, but consider: If you have done 

a lap at 30 miles an hour, you have already taken two minutes. Two minutes is the total 
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amount of time you would have to take in order to average 60 miles an hour. Therefore, 

you cannot average 60 miles an hour over the two laps. 

Accretive merger: A merger in which the acquiring company's earnings per share 

increase. 

Balance Sheet: One of the four basic financial statements, the Balance Sheet presents the 

financial position of a company at a given point in time, including Assets, Liabilities, and 

Equity. 

Beta: A value that represents the relative volatility of a given investment with respect to 

the market. 

Bond price: The price the bondholder (the lender) pays the bond issuer (the borrower) 

to hold the bond (i.e. to have a claim on the cash flows documented on the bond). 

Bond spreads: The difference between the yield of a corporate bond and a U.S. Treasury 

security of similar time to maturity. 

Buy-side: The clients of investment banks (mutual funds, pension funds) that buy the 

stocks, bonds and securities sold by the investment banks. (The investment banks that 

sell these products to investors are known as the "sell-side.") 

Callable bond: A bond that can be bought back by the issuer so that it is not committed to 

paying large coupon payments in the future. 

Call option: An option that gives the holder the right to purchase an asset for a specified 

price on or before a specified expiration date. 

Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM): A model used to calculate the discount rate of a 

company's cash flows. 

Commercial bank: A bank that lends, rather than raises money. For example, if a company 

wants $30 million to open a new production plant, it can approach a commercial bank 

like Chase Manhattan or Citibank for a loan. (Increasingly, commercial banks are also 

providing investment banking services to clients.) 

Commercial paper: Short-term corporate debt, typically maturing in nine months or 

less. 

Commodities: Assets (usually agricultural products or metals) that are generally 

interchangeable with one another and therefore share a common price. For example, 

corn, wheat, and rubber generally trade at one price on commodity markets worldwide. 

Common stock: Also called common equity, common stock represents an ownership 

interest in a company. (As opposed to preferred stock, see below.) The vast majority of 

stock traded in the markets today is common, as common stock enables investors to vote 

on company matters. An individual with 51 percent or more of shares owned controls a 
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company's decisions and can appoint anyone he/she wishes to the board of directors or 

to the management team. 

Comparable transactions (comps): A method of valuing a company for a merger or 

acquisition that involves studying similar transactions. 

Convertible preferred stock: A relatively uncommon type of equity issued by a company, 

convertible preferred stock is often issued when it cannot successfully sell either straight 

common stock or straight debt. Preferred stock pays a dividend, similar to how a bond 

pays coupon payments, but ultimately converts to common stock after a period of time. 

It is essentially a mix of debt and equity, and most often used as a means for a risky 

company to obtain capital when neither debt nor equity works. 

Non-convertible preferred stock: Sometimes companies issue non-convertible preferred 

stock, which remains outstanding in perpetuity and trades like stocks. Utilities represent 

the best example of non-convertible preferred stock issuers. 

Capital market equilibrium: The principle that there should be equilibrium in the global 

interest rate markets. 

Convertible bonds: Bonds that can be converted into a specified number of shares of 

stock. 

Coupon payments: The payments of interest that the bond issuer makes to the 

bondholder. 

Credit ratings: The ratings given to bonds by credit agencies. These ratings indicate the 

risk of default. 

Currency appreciation: When a currency's value is rising relative to other currencies. 

Currency depreciation: When a currency's value is falling relative to other currencies. 

Currency devaluation: When a currency weakens under fixed exchange rates. 

Currency revaluation: When a currency strengthens under fixed exchange rates. 

Default premium: The difference between the promised yields on a corporate bond and 

the yield on an otherwise identical government bond. 

Default risk: The risk that the company issuing a bond may go bankrupt and "default" 

on its loans. 

Derivatives: An asset whose value is derived from the price of another asset. Examples 

include call options, put options, futures, and interest-rate "swaps." 

Dilutive merger: A merger in which the acquiring company's earnings per share 

decrease. 
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Discount rate: A rate that measures the risk of an investment. It can be understood as 

the expected return from a project of a certain amount of risk. 

Discounted Cash Flow analysis (DCF): A method of valuation that takes the net present 

value of the free cash flows of a company. 

Dividend: A payment by a company to shareholders of its stock, usually as a way to 

distribute some or all of the profits to shareholders. 

Equity: In short, stock. Equity means ownership in a company that is usually 

represented by stock. 

The Fed: The Federal Reserve, which gently (or sometimes roughly), manages the 

country's economy by setting interest rates. 

Fixed income: Bonds and other securities that earn a fixed rate of return. Bonds are 

typically issued by governments, corporations and municipalities. 

Float: The number of shares available for trade in the market times the price. Generally 

speaking, the bigger the float, the greater the stock?s liquidity. 

Floating rate: An interest rate that is benchmarked to other rates (such as the rate paid 

on U.S. Treasuries), allowing the interest rate to change as market conditions change. 

Forward contract: A contract that calls for future delivery of an asset at an agreed-upon 

price. 

Forward exchange rate: The price of currencies at which they can be bought and sold for 

future delivery. 

Forward rates (for bonds): The agreed-upon interst rates for a bond to be issued in the 

future. 

Futures contract: A contract that calls for the delivery of an asset or its cash value at a 

specified delivery or maturity date for an agreed upon price. A future is a type of forward 

contract that is liquid, standardized, traded on an exchange, and whose prices are settled 

at the end of each trading day. 

Glass-Steagall Act: Part of the legislation passed during the Depression (Glass-Steagall 

was passed in 1933) designed to help prevent future bank failure – the establishment of 

the F.D.I.C. was also part of this movement. The Glass-Steagall Act split America's 

investment banking (issuing and trading securities) operations from commercial banking 

(lending). For example, J.P. Morgan was forced to spin off its securities unit as Morgan 

Stanley. Since the late 1980s, the Federal Reserve has steadily weakened the act, allowing 

commercial banks such as NationsBank and Bank of America to buy investment banks 

like Montgomery Securities and Robertson Stephens. 
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Goodwill: An account that includes intangible assets a company may have, such as brand 

image. 

Hedge: To balance a position in the market in order to reduce risk. Hedges work like 

insurance: a small position pays off large amounts with a slight move in the market. 

High-yield bonds (a.k.a. junk bonds): Bonds with poor credit ratings that pay a relatively 

high rate of interest. 

Holding Period Return: The income earned over a period as a percentage of the bond 

price at the start of the period. 

Income Statement: One of the four basic financial statements, the Income Statement 

presents the results of operations of a business over a specified period of time, and is 

composed of Revenues, Expenses, and Net Income. 

Initial Public Offering (IPO): The dream of every entrepreneur, the IPO is the first time a 

company issues stock to the public. ? Going public? Means more than raising money for 

the company: By agreeing to take on public shareholders, a company enters a whole 

world of required SEC filings and quarterly revenue and earnings reports, not to mention 

possible shareholder lawsuits. 

Investment grade bonds: Bonds with high credit ratings that pay a relatively low rate of 

interest. 

Leveraged Buyout (LBO): The buyout of a company with borrowed money, often using 

that company's own assets as collateral. LBOs were the order of the day in the heady 

1980s, when successful LBO firms such as Kohlberg Kravis Roberts made a practice of 

buying up companies, restructuring them, and reselling them or taking them public at a 

significant profit. LBOs are now somewhat out of fashion. 

Liquidity: The amount of a particular stock or bond available for trading in the market. 

For commonly traded securities, such as big cap stocks and U.S. government bonds, they 

are said to be highly liquid instruments. Small cap stocks and smaller fixed income issues 

often are called illiquid (as they are not actively traded) and suffer a liquidity discount, 

i.e. they trade at lower valuations to similar, but more liquid, securities. 

The Long Bond: The 30-year U.S. Treasury bond. Treasury bonds are used as the starting 

point for pricing many other bonds, because Treasury bonds are assumed to have zero 

credit risk take into account factors such as inflation. For example, a company will issue 

a bond that trades "40 over Treasuries." The 40 refers to 40 basis points (100 basis points 

= 1 percentage point). 

Market Capitalization: The total value of a company in the stock market (total shares 

outstanding x price per share). 
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Money market securities: This term is generally used to represent the market for 

securities maturing within one year. These include short-term CDs, Repurchase 

Agreements, Commercial Paper (low-risk corporate issues), among others. These are low 

risk, short-term securities that have yields similar to Treasuries. 

Mortgage-backed bonds: Bonds collateralized by a pool of mortgages. Interest and 

principal payments are based on the individual homeowners making their mortgage 

payments. The more diverse the pool of mortgages backing the bond, the less risky they 

are. 

Multiples method: A method of valuing a company that involves taking a multiple of an 

indicator such as price-to-earnings, EBITDA, or revenues. Municipal bonds: Bonds issued 

by local and state governments, a.k.a. municipalities. Municipal bonds are structured as 

tax-free for the investor, which means investors in "muni's" earn interest payments 

without having to pay federal taxes. Sometimes investors are exempt from state and local 

taxes, too. Consequently, municipalities can pay lower interest rates on muni bonds than 

other bonds of similar risk. 

Net present value (NPV): The present value of a series of cash flows generated by an 

investment, minus the initial investment. NPV is calculated because of the important 

concept that "money today is worth more than the same money tomorrow." 

Par value: The total amount a bond issuer will commit to pay back when the bond 

expires. 

P/E ratio: The price to earnings ratio. This is the ratio of a company's stock price to its 

earnings-per-share. The higher the P/E ratio, the more "expensive" a stock is (and also 

the faster investors believe the company will grow). Stocks in fast-growing industries 

tend to have higher P/E ratios. Pooling accounting: A type of accounting used in a stock 

swap merger. Pooling accounting does not account for Goodwill, and is preferable to 

purchase accounting. 

Prime rate: The average rate U.S. banks charge to companies for loans. Purchase 

accounting: A type of accounting used in a merger with a considerable amount of cash. 

Purchase accounting takes Goodwill into account, and is less preferable than pooling 

accounting. 

Put option: An option that gives the holder the right to sell an asset for a specified price 

on or before a specified expiration date. 

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC): A federal agency that, like the Glass-Steagall 

Act, was established as a result of the stock market crash of 1929 and the ensuing 

depression. The SEC monitors disclosure of financial information to stockholders, and 

protects against fraud. Publicly traded securities must first be approved by the SEC prior 

to trading. 
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Securitize: To convert an asset into a security that can then be sold to investors. Nearly 

any income-generating asset can be turned into a security. For example, a 20-year 

mortgage on a home can be packaged with other mortgages just like it, and shares in this 

pool of mortgages can then be sold to investors. 

Spot exchange rate: The price of currencies for immediate delivery. Statement of Cash 

Flows: One of the four basic financial statements, the Statement of Cash Flows presents a 

detailed summary of all of the cash inflows and outflows during a specified period. 

Statement of Retained Earnings: One of the four basic financial statements, the Statement 

of Retained Earnings is a reconciliation of the Retained Earnings account. Information 

such as dividends or announced income is provided in the statement. The Statement of 

Retained Earnings provides information about what a company's management is doing 

with the company's earnings. 

Stock: Ownership in a company. 

Stock swap: A form of M&A activity in whereby the stock of one company is exchanged 

for the stock of another. 

Strong currency: A currency whose value is rising relative to other currencies. 

Swap: A type of derivative, a swap is an exchange of future cash flows. Popular swaps 

include foreign exchange swaps and interest rate swaps. 10K: An annual report filed by 

a public company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Includes financial 

information, company information, risk factors, etc. 

Tender offers: A method by which a hostile acquirer renders an offer to the shareholders 

of a company in an attempt to gather a controlling interest in the company. Generally, the 

potential acquirer will offer to buy stock from shareholders at a much higher value than 

the market value. 

Treasury securities: Securities issued by the U.S. government. These are divided into 

Treasury bills (maturity of up to 2 years), Treasury notes (from 2 years to 10 years 

maturity), and Treasury bonds (10 years to 30 years). As they are government 

guaranteed, often treasuries are considered "risk-free." In fact, while U.S. Treasuries have 

no default risk, they do have interest rate risk; if rates increase, then the price of UST's 

will decrease. 

Underwrite: The function performed by investment banks when they help companies 

issue securities to investors. Technically, the investment bank buys the securities from 

the company and immediately resells the securities to investors for a slightly higher 

price, making money on the spread. 

Weak currency: A currency whose value is falling relative to other currencies. 
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Yield to call: The yield of a bond calculated up to the period when the bond is called 

(paid off by the bond issuer). 

Yield: The annual return on investment. A high-yield bond, for example, pays a high rate 

of interest. 

Yield to maturity: The measure of the average rate of return that will be earned on a 

bond if it is bought now and held to maturity. 

Zero coupon bonds: A bond that offers no coupon or interest payments to the 

bondholder. 

Questions on Investment Banking 

1) Explain the role of an investment banker 

2) What is difference between basic EPS and diluted EPS? 

3) What is the reason behind the slowdown of Chinese economy? 

4) What skills do you require in an investment banking profile? 

5) What do you understand by schedule 2 and schedule 3 in Indian accounting 

standard? 

6) What do you understand by 8% CAGR growth in cement sector? 

7) Is the decision of Greece of not accepting the bailout given by European Union 

correct? 

8) What will be the effect on bond yield if the bond price decreases or increases? 

9) Explain the relationship between the bond prices and interest rates? 

10) What do you understand by enterprise value of a company? 

11) What is the benchmark for Indian debt market? 

12) What is CAGR? 

13) What is Progressive Tax? 

14) What is difference between Merger and Acquisition? 

Questions on Wealth Management 

WEALTH MANAGEMENT 

1) What are different types of Mutual Funds? 

2) How does the yield curve work? What does it mean when it is upward sloping? 

3) At current economic scenario which type of mutual funds would you recommend 

your clients? 

4) Explain what do you mean by “Wealth Management” 

5) Explain why you went from engineering to obtaining an MBA and why the 

financial services area? 

6) Name different types of asset classes 

7) What is international thumb rule for asset allocation? 

8) What strategy will you use to acquire new clients and get their money for 

investment in to various financial products? 
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9) How will you get deeper in to clients pockets making him to invest in more 

financial products? 

10) What do you know about the company’s product offering and its geographical 

presence? 

Questions on Equity Research 

1) Why are you interested in Equity Research? 

2) Do you follow the markets; do you invest in the market? 

3) Do you follow a specific industry or company? 

4) Name four valuation methods which are commonly used 

5) What stock will you recommend that I should buy, and why? 

6) What valuation method would you use to calculate fair value of a Bank and Why? 

7) How does your background relate to Equity Research? 

8) What do you think will happen in the economy over the next five years? 

9) What have you learned in your Bloomberg training and how would it be useful in 

fundamental research? 

10) Explain how you would select a company for long term investment. 

11) How good are you at MS Excel in preparing financial models? 

12) Equity investor is interested in which ratios for investment? 

13) What are the components of WACC (weighted average cost of capital)? 

14) How would you analyse historical performance of any listed company? 

15) What do you understand by PEG ratio? Can you explain with an example? 

 

Should be updated with the recent current affairs related to financial markets / 

economics 

Questions on Corporate Banking/Commercial Credit 

4. Express your views about   RBI Credit policy and its impact on Banks? 

5. What are the steps involved in Industry Analysis? Also explain with 

examples how it differs from sector to sector? 

6. Have you gone through Loan Policy of any Bank? 

7. Explain Role of Credit Officers and Department? 

8. Explain Basics of Lending- Importance of credit function and principles of 

lending. 

9. Explain 5 Cs & its importance 

10. Importance of KYC Norms 

11. What is Credit investigation? 
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12. How do you perform Credit history verification? 

13. What is RBI defaulters' list? 

14. Explain CIBIL, importance and its functions. 

15. Explain what do you mean by ECGC caution list? 

16. Explain about Credit Rating Agencies-CRISIL, CARE, ICRA 

17. What necessary due diligence, pre-sanction inspection and documents 

should be obtained for processing a loan proposal? 

18. How is segmentation of borrowers done? 

19. How credit requirements are assessed? 

20. Explain types of credit (Fund based and Non-fund based)? 

21. Explain difference between Retail & Business credit, Term Loans, Working 

Capital Finance & Trade Finance. 

22. What are Interest Rate related Issues- Fixed & Floating Rates, BPLR, and 

Base Rate? 

23. Explain steps involved in Process Flow for Advances? 

24. Explain the Concept of Margin; Loan to Value ratio 

25. Explain the Concept of security- secured and unsecured advances; 

26. Basics of mode of creation of charge on securities: Primary &Collateral 

Security 

27. How protection of security is ensured? 

28. Explain the concept of Guarantee 

29. What would you note while studying Director’s, Auditor’s Reports & Notes 

to Accounts? 

30. Importance of Ratio Analysis – Menton key ratios and interpretation of the 

same for at least 5 sectors/industries that you have studied? 

31. What are the key things to be noticed while studying cash flows and funds 

flow statements? 

32. Mention few companies' balance sheets you have analyzed for credit 

appraisal 

33. Explain Working capital finance 



126 | P a g e  
 

34. What is CMA Data and explain its importance? 

35. Explain the working capital cycle 

36. Explain Types of advances- Overdraft, Cash Credit, Packing Credit, Demand 

Loan/ Line of Credit 

37. Explain various methods of assessment for Working Capital Finance 

38. Tandon committee, MPBF and its relevance 

39. Nayak committee recommendations and its relevance 

40. Explain cash budget method of Working Capital assessment 

41. Sole / Multiple / Consortium Lending 

42. Explain WC assessment that you may have studies using different methods 

of WC assessment. 

43. What is Capital Budgeting? 

44. What do you understand by time value of money? Which is better Net 

Present Value or IRR? 

45. Explain DCF Method? 

46. What is DER, DSCR and Break even analysis and their implication in 

Corporate Lending? 

47. Steps involved in Term loans Assessment? 

48. How one Fixes limit for a term loan? 

49. Have you studied any companies' Balance Sheet to assess its debt raising 

ability? 

50. Explain difference between Technical feasibility and Economic viability? 

51. How do you estomate Cost of Project? 

52. How one assesses term loan requirement-Securities and Margins? 

53. Explain Lease finance 

54. Explain Loan Syndication & underwriting 

55. What do you mean by structured finance? 

56. Explain about infrastructure finance 
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57. Explain projects where you have done technical feasibility and economic 

viability? 

58. What do you meaning by NFB limits? 

59. Explain facilities offered by Corporate Banking - Letter of Credit, Bank 

Guarantees, Co-acceptance etc., 

60. Explain assessment of limits – bifurcation of limits (Fund based & Non fund 

based) 

61. Have you ever prepared Credit Proposal in Bank’s Format? 

62. Which are the priority sectors? 

63. Explain Agricultural Credit -  RBI/NABARD guidelines; 

64. What are Direct & Indirect Finance? 

65. What is Financial Inclusion? 

66. Explain MSME Finance:  Definition of MSME, Govt. 

67. What are the measures undertaken by government to support MSME? 

68. Explain financing of Micro  and small enterprise (working capital and term 

loans) & Composite loan 

69. What is Role of CGTSME? 

70. Mention outlines of Retail Credit 

71. Explain different bank specific retail loan products 

72. Explain Pre-shipment & Post shipment  credit 

73. How exchange rate impact credit 

74. How imports are impacted? 

75. Explain Role of ECGC 

76. Explain early alert signals 

77. What is Credit Risk? 

78. Risk ratings- Internal & External Credit Rating and Loan Pricing 

79. Explain industry-wise exposure limits 

80. Define & understanding CRM 
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81. Basic determinants and Functions of CRM 

82. Customer Satisfaction 

83. Customer acquisition & retention 

Questions on Retail Banking 

1. What is Retail Banking and how it differs from wholesale Banking 

2. Are you comfortable in Operational part or sales part of retail banking 

3. What is CRR/SLR 

4. Can you tell us something about Retail Assets and Retail Liabilities of the Bank 

5. What is difference between NBFC and the Bank. 

6. Why are Home Loan rate of interest cheaper than other loans of the bank. 

7. What do you think can a individual open an account with a bank without a pan 

card. 

8. What are KYC documents and its relevance. 

9. Do you know concept of NPA accounts, elaborate. 

10. Are you aware about Basel Norms , how it helps banking sector. 

11. Do you know Vijay Mallay’s case…..can you explain. 

12. What is credit appraisal and the factors that are taken into consideration while 

appraising a loan proposal. 

MORE QUESTIONS 

GENERAL QUESTIONS 

1) Tell me something about yourself? 

2) Tell me something about yourself, i.e. not mentioned in your resume. 

3) Run me through your CV. 

4) What is your family background? 

5) What are your hobbies? / What are you passionate about? 

6) What are your strengths and weaknesses? 

7) Tell me something about your summer internship? What was your learning? 

8) Are you open to relocating? 

9) Why should we hire you? 

10) Why do you want to join our organization? 

11) Would you be willing to sign a bond with us? 

12) Why MBA / PGDM? 

13) Where do you expect yourself after 5 to 10 years? 

14) Tell me something that differentiates you from your classmates. 

15) Why have you chosen this specialization? 

16) Why don’t you join your father’s business? (if applicable) 

17) How many interviews have you attended so far?  

18) What are your salary expectations? 
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19) Aptitude based question. (time, speed and distance) 

20) Situation based people management question can be asked 

21) Is Bank Account an asset or liability for a bank? 

22) Imagine you are working as a manager. A female reporting to you complains 

against the MD for sexual harassment. How would you handle the situation? 

How would you handle the situation if the proofs submitted by the woman are 

false & MD is innocent? 

23) Three golden rules of accounts? 

24) What is Bloomberg? Who was the founder of Bloomberg? 

25) How do you handle a team under you? 

26) What one quality do you think you have built in PIBM and that has helped you 

to grow as a person? 

27) What if you get rejected? 

28) Which location, Pune or Mumbai is suitable for you and why? 

29) Competencies that you have developed throughout academic life with reasons 

30) How will you manage 4 peoples team where all of them are elder to you? 

INVESTMENT BANKING 

1) Explain the role of an investment banker 

2) What is the difference between basic EPS and diluted EPS? 

3) What is the reason behind the slowdown of Chinese economy? 

4) What skills do you require in an investment banking profile? 

5) What do you understand by schedule 2 and schedule 3 in Indian accounting 

standard? 

6) What do you understand by 8% CAGR growth in cement sector? 

7) Is the decision of Greece of not accepting the bailout given by European Union 

correct? 

8) What will be the effect on bond yield if the bond price decreases or increases? 

9) Explain the relationship between the bond prices and interest rates? 

10) What do you understand by enterprise value of a company? 

11) What is the benchmark for Indian debt market? 

12) What is CAGR? 

13) What is Progressive Tax? 

14) What is the difference between Merger and Acquisition? 

CORPORATE FINANCE 

1) Three golden rules of accounts? 

2) Name 5 different types of reserves 

3) What is the difference between share capital – shareholders’ funds 

4) Is depreciation a direct cost or indirect cost for a manufacturing company? 

5) Explain the concept of IRR for a project 

6) What is the difference between debtor days and collection period? 
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7) Where securities premium reserve can be used? 

8) What do you understand by capital structure of a company? 

9) Run me through the new format of Balance Sheet 

10) Why is Capital redemption reserve created? 

11) Journal entry - Equity shares issued at premium 

12) Can inventory in balance sheet be more than sales? Why? 

13) What is the difference between EBIT and operating profit? 

14) What do you understand by “Deferred Revenues”? 

15) Explain positive working capital cycle 

WEALTH MANAGEMENT 

1) What are different types of Mutual Funds? Why are they subject to market risk? 

2) How does the yield curve work? What does it mean when it is upward sloping? 

3) At current economic scenario which type of mutual funds would you recommend 

your clients? 

4) Explain what do you mean by “Wealth Management” 

5) Explain why you went from engineering to obtaining an MBA and why financial 

services area? 

6) Difference between capital market & money market 

7) Name different types of asset classes for investment 

8) What is international thumb rule for asset allocation? 

9) What strategy will you use to acquire new clients and get their money for 

investment in to various financial products? 

10) How will you get deeper in to clients pockets making him to invest in more 

financial products? 

11) What do you know about the company’s product offering and its geographical 

presence? 

12) What is the difference between SIP and MIP in mutual funds? 

13) In which sector are the mutual funds invested in and their trends? 

14) How will you pitch to the customers for selling financial products? 

15) State 4 differences between NSE and BSE 

16) What is difference between Index and Indices? 

17) State 4 broad based equity indices 

18) State 4 sectoral equity indices 

19) What do you understand fee-based income of a bank? 

EQUITY RESEARCH 

1) Why are you interested in Equity Research? 

2) Do you follow the markets; do you invest in the market? 

3) Do you follow a specific industry or company? 

4) Name four valuation methods which are commonly used 

5) What stock will you recommend that I should buy, and why? 



131 | P a g e  
 

6) What valuation method would you use to calculate fair value of a Bank and Why? 

7) How does your background relate to Equity Research? 

8) What do you think will happen in the economy over the next five years? 

9) What have you learned in your Bloomberg training and how would it be useful in 

fundamental research? 

10) Explain how you would select a company for long term investment? 

11) How good are you at MS Excel in preparing financial models? 

12) An equity investor is interested in which ratios for investment? 

13) What are the components of WACC (weighted average cost of capital)? 

14) How would you analyse the historical performance of any listed company? 

15) What do you understand by PEG ratio? Can you explain with an example? 

16) What is the difference between EBIT and operating profit? 

17) Name 5 different types of reserves 

18) What is the difference between share capital – share holders funds 

19) What do you understand by “Deferred Revenues”? 

20) Is depreciation a direct cost or indirect cost for a manufacturing company? 

21) What is the difference between debtor days and collection period 

22) Is minority interest a profit or a loss? 

23) What depreciation method is used on Mines - diminishing value method 

24) Where securities premium reserve can be used? 

25) Why is Capital redemption reserve created? 

26) What do you understand by cash profits? 

27) What do you understand by SLR and CRR in the banking sector? 

28) What is minimum amount that the bank is liable to pay to its depositor when it 

goes for liquidation 

29) Journal entry - Equity shares issued at premium 

30) Can inventory in balance sheet be more than sales? Why? 

31) What do you know about financial modelling? 

Should be updated with the recent current affairs related to financial markets / 

economics 

Derivatives Research / Operations 

1) What is Derivatives? And its different types 

2) Types of derivatives and difference between any 2 

3) Where and why are derivatives used? 

4) If you are getting income in USD and need to pay salaries in INR, which strategy 

will you use? Why? 

5) Impact of bank rate cuts in derivatives market 

6) In call option, who has the right but not the obligation? 

Economy Related Questions 

1) Factors that have positively and negatively impacted crude oil prices 
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2) Demonetization have positively impacted which sectors in India 

3) What do you understand by GST 

General Knowledge Questions 

1) What is the full form of UPSC? 

2) India consists of how many states and union territories? (29, 7) 

3) Name any 5 union territories in India 

4) Which 2 sea which form the coastal line of India? 

5) Name 5 countries having connecting borders with India 

6) What is the current reverse repo rate? (5.75%) 

7) What is India’s gold reserve? (558 tonnes) 

8) Name 10 languages spoken in India 

9) What is current SLR in India? 

10) Name first President of India 

11) At which date did the constitution of India came in to force? 

12) Who is the current finance minister of India? 

13) What is national sport of India? 

14) What does Indian Forex Reserve stand at? 
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